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ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 2 ASSESSMENT REPORT.

DEVELOPMENT
ASSESSMENT REPORT

™ CORT STEPHENS

APPLICATION DETAILS
Application Number 16-2018-270-1
Development Description Demolition of existing buildings and construction of a new
single storey dwelling
Applicant MS VW S0OLOMOU
Date of Lodgement 300042018
Value of Works £300,000.00

Development Pro |

The application proposes the demolibon of the exssting structures and construction of a new sangle
storey dwelling and carportigarage, The proposed single storey dwelling is designed to be similar in
style and propartons o a traditional cottage with a hipped reof, verandah, and timber cladding. The
dwelling will aiso be separated into pavilions to reduce the scale as viewed from the street, A double
carport’garage will be located at the rear of the property.

PROPERTY DETAILS

Property Address 862 Paterson Road WOODWILLE

Lot and DP LOT: 510 DP: 1150491

Zoning RU1 PRIMARY PRODUCTION

Site Constraints Flooding and drainage, hertage, dwelling entitlernent,
Site Inspection

A site inspection was camied out on 14 May 2099, The site can be saen in the photographs below

The subjeci site has a total area of 723 m?, is generally fiat and is zoned RU1 Primary Production,
Access fo the sile is direct from Paterson Road,

The subject site is surrounded by similardy zoned RU1 lols, with the exception of the lona Public
Schoal which is zoned SP2 - Special Activibes. The lof sizes (wilh dwellings) in the immediate
wvicinity range from 232,960 m* to 5000 m?,

The subject site currently contains a dwelling towards the front of the site and a Codorbond shed

with an older shed and an cutbuilding 1o the rear, The current dwelling on the site is in very poos
condition and is considered structurally unsound.
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ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 2 ASSESSMENT REPORT.

16-2016-2701

Site Photos.

o ARPE S IR T 0y o
g D ¢

s
A
"
3

Pholo 2 View of Coltage from Clarence Town Road
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16-2016-2701

Pholo 3: View of Colorbond Shed lo be removed

Pholo 4 View of Coltage looking West
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ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 2 ASSESSMENT REPORT.

16-2019-270-1

REFERRALS

The proposed development was referred to the following internal specialists and external agencies.
The comments provided by the special staff and external agencies have been used to carry out the
assessment against the S4.15 Matters for Consideration below.

i) Planning and Developer Relations

The application was referred to the Planning and Developer Relations team within Council to
ensure that the subject lot benefitted from dwelling entitlement. The referral advised that the
subject fof would benefit from dwelling entitlement in accordance with 4.2B of the LEP. As such,
this application has been supported unconditionally by the Planning and Developer Relations
Team.

if) Drainage and Flooding Engineers

The application was referred to the Drainage and Flooding Engineers within Council as the
subject site is fully located within the low hazard flood fringe category. This referral provided
comments relating to finished floor level requirements, egress requirements, and other flood
related matters. The application was supported by the Drainage and Flooding Engineers subject
to conditions. These conditions have been adopted and proposed for the consent.

iii) Strategic Planning — Heritage Officer

The application was referred to the Strategic Planning Team, who engaged a heritage officer to
conduct the referral. This application was referred as the dwelling to be demolished is a locally
listed Archaeological site in the LEP - this site is specifically known as Pomfretts Cottage.
Council’s heritage consultant assessed the application against the LEP, DCP, and relevant
heritage legislation. On the basis of the assessment, the Heritage Officer has supported the
application subject to conditions. This condition has been adopted and proposed for the consent.

Note: Further details relating to the above matters are found within the body of this report.
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ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 2

ASSESSMENT REPORT.

F6-201 62701

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION — SECTION 4.15

g4 15(1ajli) = The

| Motes (where needed or il not

Clause Compliant
| |

visions of amy EPI

compliant)

21

.EPmlrmﬂnmmdmhm
objectives.

Site s zoned RU1 Prnimary
Production. Dwelling Houses are
permissible in this zoning.

E3 land where there is no current dwelling en
Sie.

[ Site compéies with lot size map; OR,

[ Land zoned RUT, RUZ, E2 or E3 and created
before 22 February 2014 with an area of at
least 4,000m* on which a dwelling was
permissible under the previows LEP; OR,

O Would have met the above requinrements bat
for a minar realignment that did not create an
addtional lot, a subdwvision for a public
purpose or a consolidation with an adjsining
It for a public purpose,

= Where an existing congent for a dwelling is
valid, the consant will be surrendsred.

2.7 & Demcilition proposed and is not included as | The current propasal is for the
exempl under the SEPP. demalition of a locally significant
% Potential asbestos contained with condition of :’Eﬁ;'_wmﬂ-'mmhﬂ
consent added. y
Asbestos has been further
considered through the hentage
assessment.
Standard condition of consent
Emdinrdamnﬂlm
428 | [0 Dwelling proposed on RU1, RU2, RS, E2or | TPe Port Stephens Local

Environment Plan 2003 (LEP)
indicates that the current land use
zone applicable to the subject site
is RU1 — Primary Production, As
the area of subject site is less than
the minimum kot sizes identfied
under the current LEP, dwellings
permissible can be granted in this
Zoning if compliance with Clause
4,28 of the LEP s demonsirated,

The subject site benefits from a
dwelling entithement in accordance
with Clause 4.28 (5) of the LEP
which states:

CL 4.28 (5) Development consent
may be granted for the erection of

a dwelling house on land to which
this clause applies if there is a
lawfully erected dwelling house an
the land and the dwelling house to |
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ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 2

43 ?EWMMWthunﬁw
| building height: OR,
{ O There is no maximum building height and the

development satiafies the objectives.

ASSESSMENT REPORT.

TEF0T -2 A

e e B R T
replace the existing dwelling
house.

Council records indicale a dwelling
approval. This demanstrates that
the dwelling was existing on the ot
and that a dwelling was kely,
lawfully erected on the site.

Limited records were found
relating to historic approvals and
lawful erection of the existing
dwelling on the subject lot. As the
proposal i intended to replace the
existing house, this clause
demonstrates dwelling entlement,

‘Single Storey Dwelling - meets

height requirements.

54 | [0 No more than 4 bedrooms in dwelling used

for B&E.
| O No more than 50m utilised for home
: business or home industry.
| O Kiosk foor area under 20m’.
iﬂhltﬁhbuurm-nﬂ shop does not exceed 100,
| O Roadside stall does not exceed 10m.
| [ Secondary dweliing does not exceed the
greater of BOm? or 40% of primary dwelling.

5.95A | (] Trees will be removed that are not prescribed

WA — proposal is not for any of
ihese wses.

NiA = no significant trees 1o ba

under DCP, remaved.
7.1 | # Potential Class 5 Acid Suifate Soils (ASS); | N/A - watertable is unlikely to be
OR. lowered below 1 metre AHD,

| O Potential Class 4 ASS with no works morne
than Zm below ground level; OR,

| O Pabential Class 3 ASS with na warks mons

| than 1m below ground level; OR,

| O Potential Class 2 ASS with no works below
ground level; OF,

| O Potential Class 1 ASS and an acceptable
rn-'ina-:mnt_phnn has been submitted,
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ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 2

ASSESSMENT REPORT.

FE-201 -2 101
7.2 | O Earthworks required, but do not have NiA = no significant earthworks
negative impacts on surrounding properties. | Proposed.
7.3 | @ Development within ficod planning area but | Property deemed to be fully within
| no anlicipated flood risk to life and property, | @ low hazard flood fringe area. A
or change in flood characteristics. detailed flood assessment has
| been provided in B5 below.
7.5 | [ Within ANEF 20 contour or higher but does | N/A — not mapped as being in this
not result in an increased number of people | Zone.
| affected by aircraft nolse.
76 | [ Essential services are avaiable to the site | Town water and sewer not
| where required. available,
Potable Water = provided via
raimwater tank,
Sewer - Port Stephens Councils
Development Assessment
Framework [DAF) is used to
identify the onsite sewage
management hazard class
applicable to unsewered land. The
DAF mapping layers identify the
subject ot as being Very High
Hazard with regards to
wasiewaler. Given that the ot size
is T22 .83 square mefras, an
effluent pump out system would be
permithed in accondance with
Section 1.5 of the DAF,
T8 | 01 Devetopment is within the drinking water N/A = not within the catchment
| catchment tut will not result in a significant
adverse impact on water quality or flows.
7.8 | [ Subject land contains mapped wetiands, but | N/A = not relevant to this proposal.
- development does nod resull in adverses
impacts on ecology o water flows.
715 | O Dual cccupancy on land zoned RU1, RU2, E2 | NIA - single storey dwelling
| or E3 gives the appearance of a single proposed,
development and shared facilities such as
Access.

w4, 15(1 ajiu) — Any Draft EFI
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ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 2 ASSESSMENT REPORT.

TEFO1 -2 A

 There are nodrat E7rs tat ar relevant 1

o,

54,15(1){a}(iii] - Any DCP

; !
Clause ; Compliant ! compllant}

Motes (where needed or if not

A12 | & Notification and advertising in line with  In accordance with Council's

| period of 14 days from 27
| Septernber 2019 to 11 October

| subMEssions were recebved,

notification requirements the DA
F A
e |ma¢mrﬂﬂudlndmﬁﬁedl'nla

| 2019, During the exhibition period 5

B1 | Trees to be removed do not require approval | Acknowledged
| as outlined in B1.1,

significance.

(1 Land does not contain koala habitat or | NiA
development is consistent with the CKPobM. |

!
B2 1 Net in proximity of tems of envirenmental imA

B3 1 Development meets bushfire construction | Not considered to be Bushfire

|

[ Development would not disturb acid sulphate | SUDIect site.
soils or an acceptable ASSMP has been
prepared. MAA

1 Earthworks would have rminimal
environmental impacts with conditions on

rEQUITEments. | Prone = managed land around the

increased and develepment consistent with | and older shed proposed 1o be
figure BD, on-site detention not required; removed. New struciure mot

| 8 Insignificant increases to adversely impact | "N 9arden.
I on water guality,

VEMNM fill and erosion and sediment MIA
contrals.
B4 | = Non-permeable area not significantly | Current dwelling, colorbond shed,

OR, | deemed to be a significant increase
| B Non-permeable area above figure BD and | of non-permeable area.

acceptable on-site delention proposed or

condition for details added. | Addressed via the installation of a
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ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 2 ASSESSMENT REPORT.

BS | = F’mpt;rsad du.'.lulqm'ranl is on flood prona
land; AND.,
= A flood certificale has baen submitted with
the application and the finished levels are
consistent with Table 2: Development
Suitability Table; AND,
& The submitted documents are consistent

with Table 2: Developmeani Suitabdity Table.

TEF01 -2 A

[ The subject site is mapped as flood |

prone land. Recent food data

reviewed by Council

has revealed

that the subject ot is fully located
within a low hazard flood fringe

The adopted flood data for the
subject site is as follows:

[ Flood | 7.6m |
Planning | AHD
Leyvel i

| floor level of

| rooms and

| Mood related

| developnent
| controls (refer
| to Port

| Stephens

|3 Font
| Stephens

L 1 lesy
Highest Low Hazard Floor
Hazard Frings area

(Category | |
Flood levels that may be useful

ane;

This level
defines the
FaImiLIr
habitable

land that is
subject to

LEP Section

DCP Section

[FProbably | 8.5m
maimum | AHD |
fiood level

| onsite flood

| built at or
above this

| Development
{ Control Plan

| that could
| concenvably

The highest
fiood level

ooowr al this
location if
required,

refuges are
level, to the

Port
Stephens

B5.2
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ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 2 ASSESSMENT REPORT.

TEF01 -2 A

[TCurrent [ B.6m | This level s
day 1% AHD | useful for
AEP flood | insurance
lewel PUrpOSeEs,

refer 1o your
ERSUrancsE
| policy and the
Insurance
| Contracis
| Regulation
1985
|| (Cwealth)
Adaptable | 7.4m | The 1% AEP
minimum | AHD | flood level

fioor level plus 0.5m. 50

| years from

| mow, refer to

| the Part

| Stephens

| Development
Contral Plan

| B5.2.

Assessment of the proposal has
revealed the following key matiers
that need 1o be considerad with
relation to flooding:;

Fi Floar

With reference to the above,
Section BS of the DCP specifies
that the minimum floar level for
habitable rooms must mest the
Flaod Planning Level (FPL). The
proposed finshed floar level (FFL)
of the dwelling s T.8m AHD which
is above the FPL of 7.6m AHD and
is therefore deamed to be

acceplable.

In addition o the above, Section BS
of the DCP also specifies that a
garage or canport must have a FFL

| that is 0.5m AHD above the 5%
AEF lavel. The proposed FFL of the
garage is 6.7Tm AHD, which ks at
least 500mm above the 5% AEP
flood level, and is therefore deemed

| 1o be acceptable.
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ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 2 ASSESSMENT REPORT.

TEF01 -2 A

| Egress and Refuge Requiremaents

The subject property has access to
Paterson Raad that s via land
magped as low hazard flood fringe
calegaory. Palerson Road reduces
in elevation in both directions south
and north and is inundated by the
current 1% AEP flood event to
depths greater than 3 metres,
Hence, 862 Paterson Foad
essentially becomes a flood island
during a current day 1% AEP ewent.

Furthermors, the PMF fiood level of
B.9m AHD would inundate the
surraunding area including the
proposed dwelling to a depth of
1.1m above the finished floor level,
Hance thera is a risk that the
property ooccupants may not
evatuate prior to Paterson Road
being cut off (with the low poind of
Paterson Road to the north being
mone then 4m below the proposed
property floor level).

As per the DCP requirements, on-

| site fiood refuge above the PMF
level of 8.8m AHD is required for
this development. The flood refuge
must also be structurally certified to
withstand fiooding impacts up to the
PMF event.

The architectural plans submitted
with the application have
incorporated a flood refuge area
within the roof space of the garage
located at 9.45m AHD. This refuge

| s considered to be acceplable

| subject to engineering certification
being provided identifying that the
refuge is structurally capable of
withstanding a flocd event up to the
PMF level

| The applicant has submitted a
Flood effects report for the proposal
{from GCA Enginesnng Solutions
dated 30 July 2019). The flood
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ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 2

% Essential services are avaiable to the site,
wherne requined,

ASSESSMENT REPORT.

TEF01 -2 A

| effects report considers the
proposal against the Austrakan

| Building Codes Board (ABCB)
publication 'Construction of

| Bulldings in Flood Hazard Areas’,
This repart provides

| recommendations outlining how the

| proposad residence and garage

| can structurally withstand a PMF
floed event. The recommendations
made within this repart will be
required o be complied with a5 a
condition of consent.

L TESEE S

| Electricity available.
| Reticulated sewer and water supply
mat avalable.

gr

| [0 Development within noise planning area is

consistent with Clause 7.5 of the LEP =
Aircraft Moise; AND

| O Department of Defence has been notified

and no objections have béen raised.

| WA — not mapped as being in this
| T,

&= Development relates to a hertage ibem or
conservation area, however is of minor
nature or would not impact on the
significance of the tem; OR,

& Development is likely to affect the
significance of a heritage ilem, however it is
supported by an acceptable heritage
statement.

& Development proposing pariial or fotal
demalition of a heritage item or dem within
conservation area supportied by a struciural
assessment,

# Mo expecied impact to Aboriginal hemage,

| The subject site is located at 862
Paterson Rioad Woodville, which is
listed as a kocally significant
archaeciogical site in the LEP. The
listed site is specifically known as

| "Pomfreft’s Cottage (Slab
Cottage)”,

| The demalition of structures on a
iocally significant heritage site is
permigsible with consent, under
Clause 5.10 of the LEP, subject fo
an assessment against this clausa.

| The following is an extract from
| Clause 5.10 of the LEP that is
| relevant o this proposal;

5.10 Herntage

| (4] Effect of proposed developmani
on heritage significance
The consent autharity must,
before granting consent under
this clause in respect of a
heritage item or herage
conservabon area, consider the
effect of the proposed

ation

Fags 12 of 21

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

14




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 2 ASSESSMENT REPORT.

FE-FO1EFT0-1
development on the heritage
significance of the item or afea
concerned. This subclause
applies regardiess of whether a
heritage management document
i prepared under subclause (5)
of a heritage consarvation
management plan is submitted
under subclause (8).

(3) Hertage assessment
The consent authority may,
before granting consent to any
development;
{a)} On land on which a heritage
item is located, or
(b} ©n land that is within a
hentage conseriahon area, or
{c} On land that is within the
vicinity of land referred to in
paragraph (a) or (b), require a
hertage management document
o be prepared that assesses
the extent 1o which the carrying
out of the proposed
development would affect the
heritage significance of the
heritage itern or heritage
COMSEnyalhon area concenmed.

In addition to Clawse 510 of the

| LEP, Council must also consider
Section BE of the Devalopment
Control Plan 2014 (DCP). Section
B8 of the DCP outlines the
requirements relating to
development proposals invalving
hertage. Mare specifically, this
clause requires development
applications that are likely to impact
on the hertage significance of a
heritage item, be accompanied by a
heritage impact statement. This
heritage impact statement must be
conaistent with the Office of
Environment & Heritage
‘Statements of Heritage Impact’
documeant and be prepared by a
suitably qualified and experienced
consultant. This consultant must be

| registered and Ested on the NSW
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ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 2 ASSESSMENT REPORT.

TEF01 -2 A

T ——
Consultants Directory.

To address the relevant
requirements in the LEP and the
DCP mentioned above, &
Statement of Hentage Impact ('the
statement’} has bean completed by
a heritage consultant listed on the
NSW Office of Envircnmient and
Hertage Consultants Direclory.

Asg this statement was completed
by a consultant engaged by the
applicant, an independent review of

| the slatement was also conducted
by Councils Heritage advisor, This
review has confirmed tha! the

| statement is considered to be an
adequate assessment for the
purposes of the Hemtage Act 1877,

©n the basis of this, the following
are key points taken from the
Statement of Heritage Impact

Historical Significance

Pornfretis coltage was lkely built
prior to 1878 and may be
associated with the early Eurcpean
sattlermeant in the Woodyille and
lona area. The dwelling is
representative of a vemacular
cottage of the 19" century, and is
representative of building type and
building techniques used in the
1800s. The dwelling has a
symmetrical fagade, steep pitched
roof, verandah, spiit slab walls and
timber shingles. An accurate

| internal assessment of the dwelling
wias unable to be conducted, a5 the
dwelling i3 structurally unsound with
a collapse imminent. Ordinarily
section BA_C of Councils DCP
would require a structural engineers
report to accompany applications
proposing demalition, but this was
nat deemed b b necessary as it

| would not provide any additional
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ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 2 ASSESSMENT REPORT.

TEF01 -2 A

[ infermation than the external
assessment.

Given that an infernal assessment
of the dwelling could not be
completed, it was not possible to
accurately determéne if the dwelling
currently contains archaeological
relics or items of significance. As
such, the applicant will be required,
as a condition of consent, to abtain

| an excavation permit from the
Orffice of Emdranment & Heritage
prior to the commencement of any
wioeks. This ensures that if relics or
Hems of significance are found
during the demaliban of the
dwelling, they will be appropriately
managed,

Social Significance

Pomfretis cottage is lsled in the
LEF as a locally signficant
archaecsiogical sne, and therelore s
deermed to be of value 1o the
community. This value and local
significance however, ks diminished
due to the current condificn and
imminent collapse of the cottage.,

The D4 was advertised in the Port
Stephans Examiner on Thursday
26 September and neighbours
notified in acconrdance with Councils
DCP, This gave the community the
epparunity to express the valus
and significance of the cottage to

| them.

During the notification period,
Council recened a tofal of 5

| submissions from the community.
These submessions have been
collated in the consultation section
of this report.

With specific reference to tha
heritage impact staterment, and the
comments received from Councils
Heritage advisor, i is evident that

| the dwelling to be demolished has

Fags 18 of 21
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ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 2 ASSESSMENT REPORT.

16-2010-270-1

['value to the community. This vakue, |
however, i significantly dimenishad
due to the struciural instability of

{ the building and the mminent
collapse, It was also determined

| that consarvation of the dwelling
wiould not be feasible due o the
degree of detenaration of the

| structure. This deteroration would
require a large amownt of new
fabric and building materials to
resiore, This would even further

| diminish the hisioncal value, On the
basis of the above, it has been
deemed thak it is approgriate to
support the proposed demalition of

| the dwelling.

In addition 1o the matiers
considered above, Clause BB of the

| DCP also requires that the design
of the proposed residence be
complementary 1o the hentage
significance of the area. This must
also take into account the potental
impact the design coukd have on
the nedghbouring Weodville Schosl
of Arts, which is also a locally listed
Hentage ltem in the LEP. As such,

| the slatement of hermage impact

| has provided strict design
guidesines for the new residence o
address this reguirement, The
design guidelines have been

| adopled and will ke recommended
a8 a condiion of consant.

Ba O The development would not generate M
significant increases in traffic.
[l On-site parking provision meets the
requirements of figure BA or meril based
assessment; AMND,

[l Suitable disakled parking is provided in line
with figure BOC.

c1 [1 The development is a minar subdivision; | NIA
AND,

[ The proposal would result in ket dimensions

appropriate for their proposed use whilst not
restricting the provision of services,

Fags 16 of 21
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ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 2

R T e

requirements on subdivisions.,

c3

| [ The proposed development would ba

cansistent with the existing development in
its form, height, bulk, design and materiaks.

= The development would not adversely affect
the amenéty of neighbouring properties or
the public domain.

| E The proposed awning wouwkd provide

continuity in the street and inlegrated within
the facade of the existing developrmant

& Any entry structures are appropriately
lecated $o0 as not to absiruct pedesinans.

| @ The proposed development would be

consistent with the exmsting development in
its farm, height, bulk, design and materiaks.
& Fencing forward of the Bm setback does not
exceed 1.2m and s construcled of masonry
or dark coloured picket/pool style fencing.

Bevond 6m setback, fencing/security gates
S0 1k wosieed 2y

| % BASIX submitted in accordance with SEPP.
| ¥ Site coverage is in accordance with figure

BD.

& Proposal ensures development provides
continuity to the sireet and setbacks comply
with ©4.10-C4.18.

& Development appropriately activates the
streat with habitable rooms where
applicable.

# The proposed development would be
sympathetic lo the sirestscene as it is
consistent with the existing development in
its form, height, bulk, design and materials.

# The development would not adversely affect
the amenity of neighbouring properties or
the public domain.

| & Ancillary development complies with C4,.31-

C4.43.

ASSESSMENT REPORT.

TEF01 -2 A

| considered above, Clause BE of the

DCP also requires that the design

| of the proposed residence be

complementary 1o the hemage

| significance of the area, This must
| also take into account the potential
| impact the design could have on

| the neighbouring Weoodville School
| of Aris, which is also a locally listed

Hertage Item in the LEP. As such,

| the statement of heritage impact

| has provided strict design
guidefines for the new residence o

| address this reguirement. The

| design guidelines have been

| adopted and will be recommended

as a condition of consent.

| The new dwelling is to be designed |
| in accordancs with the
| recommendations made within the

Hertage Impact Statement. This

| will ensure it is sympathetic 1o the
| streetscape and neighbouring

Woodville School of Arts (Locally

| significant Herifage site)

| Walid BASLY cerificate sl.l:mrtlud

| Site coverage compliant

| Setbacks deemed to be accaptable,

| See C3 above.

| Sees C3 above

| Proposed single siorey dwelling s
| not envisaged to impact on the

| amenity of the neighbouring school
| of aris or iona pubdic school.

[ Applicant has adeguakely justified the

development is consistent with the definition

| N/A = This section does not apply. |
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FE-201 -2 101
of home business/home industry and size
lirmit of LEP.

[ Proposal does not adversely impact on
amenity in terms of noise, smell, traffic
generation elc.

[ Mo signage, other than a business
identification sign, s proposad. Restricted
thraugh condition of consant.

O Parking is provided in kne with figure BQ in
Chapter B9 or merit-based assessment
established on employeeshome occupiers
and expected customers.

- [ Applicant indicated hours of operation that
are acceptable given the nature of the
development within the bocality and
restricted through condition of consant.

(] Any storage ks appropnately located,

[ Vehicle repair operations proposed with

maximum capacity of two vehicles and one
frailer per truck permitted: AND,

[ Vehicle storage located behind building line.

CB | O Signage is integrated within the building | NiA = No signage proposed.
fagade; AMD,
O] Development does not include flashing
signs, roaf signs, vehicular signs (where

primary use is for advertising), abowve awning
sign, airborne sign, inflatable sign or

hoarding sign.

s4.15(1 Halliia) — Any planning agreement or drafi planning agresment entered into under
seclion 7.4

i There are no planning agreements that have | VA - Acknowledged
been enfered into under section 7.4 relevant
fo the proposed developrent,
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TEF01 -2 A

 There are no matters within the regulations.
that are relevant to the determination of the

s4.15{1 a){v) — Any coastal management plan

M/A - Acknowledged ‘

E There are no coastal managemant plans
that are relevant fo the determination of the
application.

M - Acknowledged ‘

b} = 1

 Social and Economic Environment: There
walld be beneficial impacts as & result of
the development.

Pomfreits cottage is listed in the LEP as a
lecally significant archaeclogical site, and
therefore is deemed to be of value to the
community. This valuee and local significance
however, is diminished due 1o the current
condition and imminent collapse of the cottage.

The DA was advertised in the Port Stephens
Examiner on Thursday 26 Seplember and
neighbours notified in accordance with
Councils DCP. This gave the community the
apportunity o express the value and
significance of the cottage to them

Diiring the notification peried, Council received
a totad of 5 submissions from the commanity.
These submissions have been collated in the
consultation section of this report.

# Buili Environment: The proposed
development would not cause ham to the
existing characier,

See 03 above,

= Matural Environment: There are no
adverse impacts expacted as a result of the
proposed and appropriale

conditions have been added.

Single dwealling not deamed to have any
negative impact on the environment. Standard
conditions of consent protect the environment
during the construction phase,

15{1 = i &
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16-2019-270-1

The subject site is considered to be suitable for the development as it is permissible within the zone,
and is replacing a current dilapidated dwelling on the site. Dwelling entitlement is permissible as per
the assessment above.

s4.15(1)(d) — Any submissions

It is noted that Councils notification policy outlined in Chapter A of the DCP 2014, that
developments that involve significant works to heritage items and that may be of significant
community interest, will be required to be advertised and notified. As such, the Development
Application has been advertised in the Port Stephens Examiner on 26 September 2019 and
Neighbour Notified. The advertisement and notification period was from 27 September 2019 to 11
October 2019 for 14 days.

Council received a total of 5 submissions during the advertising and notification period. The
submissions are summarised as follows;

No. | Concerns

1 -

Dwelling entitlement

Comments

The property has been identified to have
a dwelling entitlement, this has been
addressed within body of the report.

Historical, cultural, Local Heritage
value

Potential for conservation/
reconstruction to complement the
heritage aspects of the site

The historical, and cultural issues have
been addressed in detail within the body
of the report.

A Statement of Heritage Impact (‘the
statement’) has been completed by a
heritage consultant listed on the NSW
Office of Environment and Heritage
Consultants Directory to accompany the
application. The report was assessed by
Council's heritage officer whom agreed
with the assessment and listed
recommendation.

The new dwelling is to be designed in
accordance with the recommendations
made within the Heritage Impact
Statement.

Financial/economic impact on the
Wooedville School of Arts.

Potential future complaints from the
new owners relating to the activities
held at the Woodville School of Arts
Potential for future owners to object to
future events held at the Woodyville
School of Arts.

The use of the land as a residence is
unchanged. To not allow residential
development would be to sterilise the
use of the land. Any potential future
complaints would need to be
investigated if they arise.

The development of the subject site is
not considered to give rise to a financial
or operational impact to the Woodville
School of Arts. Further, this is not a
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16-2019-270-1

- Proximity and relationship with the matter for consideration under Section
Woodville School of Arts and 4.15 of the Environmental Planning
restriction on operational use. Assessment 1979.

4 - Inadequate notification of the Notification was carried out in
Development Application accordance with Council's advertising
and notification policy.

s4.15(1)(e) — The public interest

The proposal has been assessed (as indicated by the assessment above) against relevant
legislation and Council policies. The legislation and policies assessed against have been developed
and implemented with public interest in mind. Given this proposal meets all relevant legislation and
Council Policies, Council can be satisfied that the proposal will not have an adverse effect with
regards to public interest.

DETERMINATION

The application is recommended to be approved under delegated authority, subject to conditions as
contained in the notice of determination.

TRISTAN SULLIVAN
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N

Proposed amendment to Port Stephens Local
Environmental Plan 2013

Amand LEF2013 to regularse the existing approved use of land
at Lots 2 & 4 DP J58888, Lot 2 0P 1204319, Lot 1 DP 1225542 at

70, 704, TOB and T0C Latitude Dreve respectivaly, and to enable .
the extension of the existing use to adjoining Lot 25 DP B52410 at PORT STEPHENS
4473 Nelson Bay Road, Anna Bay (subject to development il COUNEII

consent), and to facilitate future subdrdsion of Lat 25 D 852410 |
at 4473 Netson Bay Road, Anna Bay info 2 lots,
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FILE NUMBERS

Council: Port Stephens Council

Department: Strategic Planning

SUMMARY

Subject land: The site comprises of the following lots:

Lot 2 DP 398888 at 70 Latitude Drive, Anna Bay
Lot 4 DP 398888 at 70A Latitude Drive, Anna Bay
Lot 2 DP 1204319 at 70B Latitude Drive, Anna Bay
Lot 1 DP 1225542 at 70C Latitude Drive, Anna Bay
Lot 25 DP 852410 at 4473 Nelson Bay Road, Anna
Bay

Proponent: Ingenia Communities Pty Ltd
C/- ADW Johnson
71335 Hillsborough Road
Warners Bay NSW 2282

Proposed changes: The PSLEP 2013 will be amended to regularise
the existing, approved use of Lots 2 and 4 DP
398888; Lot 2 DP 1204319 and Lot 1 DP 1225542
and to facilitate the future extension of that use to
the adjoining Lot 25 DP 852410.

The amendments will also enable the future
subdivision of Lot 25 DP 852410 so as to permit a
minimum lot of approximately 8,000m? to be
created fronting Nelson Bay Road.

The necessary amendments to the PSLEP 2013 to
achieve these outcomes will be identified in
consultation with DPIE, should a Gateway
determination be issued.

Area of land: The site has an area of approximately 43ha.
Lot yield: Lot 25 DP 852410 is proposed to create 1 additional

lot with capacity for approximately 170 sites on
which manufactured homes could be installed.
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BACKGROUND

The Planning Proposal seeks to amend the Port Stephens Local
Environmental Plan 2013 (PSLEP 2013) to regularise the existing approved
use of land at 70, 70A, 70B and 70C Latitude Drive, enable the extension of
that use (subject to development consent) to adjoining land at 4473 Nelson
Bay Road, and to facilitate the future subdivision of that adjeining land.

The Planning Proposal will regularise the approved existing use on the part of
the site where an approved caravan park is located. The approved caravan
park has 270 sites on which manufactured homes are currently located, or
being installed and it is currently operating as a seniors living lifestyle resort.
The current zoning of the site no longer permits this use and the development
operates relying on existing use rights.

The Planning Proposal seeks to facilitate the extension of this use to part of
an adjoining parcel, Lot 25 DP852410. Subject to development consent and
further approvals, an additional 170 manufactured homes could potentially be
accommeodated on Lot 25 DP852410.

The Planning Proposal will also facilitate the future subdivision of Lot 25
DP852410, enabling the part of the lot fronting Nelson Bay Road that is that
not proposed to be used for the caravan park, to be excised.

The specific amendment to the PSLEP 2013 is to be determined in
consultation with DPIE, should a Gateway determination be issued. Any
expansion of the existing caravan park and future subdivision would be
subject to future applications and assessment.

As identified in this Planning Proposal, the following additional investigations
will be provided following a Gateway determination:

. Determination of the exact mechanism to amend the PSLEP 2013 to be
identified in consultation with DPIE.

. Maps to support the mechanism to amend the PSLEP 2013 as required.

. An investigation of the site by an appropriately qualified person in
accordance with the Guidelines for Koala Habitat Assessment presented
in Appendix 6 of the CKPoM.

. Further assessment of contamination across the site.

. A detailed flora & fauna assessment.

. An assessment of the potential credit liability generated by the future
development and an offset strategy for achieving these credit
requirements, in accordance with the requirements under the NSW
Biodiversity Offsets Scheme.

. Assessment of acid sulfate soils across Lot 25 DP852410.

. A Bushfire threat assessment.

. A specialist assessment of flood impact.
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SITE

SIZE AND CONFIGURATION

The sie comprises the following lots;

Lot Address | Lot Size

Lot 2 DP 308888 | 70 Latitude Drive, Anna Bay | approx. 10.3ha
Lot 4 DP 353888 704 Latitude Drive, Anna Bay approx. 18.8ha

Lot 2 DF 1204319 | T0B Latitude Drive, Anna Bay | approx, 0.5ha

Lot 1 DP 1225542 | 7OC Lattede Drive, Anna Bay | approx.  0.7ha

Lot 25 DP B52410 | 4473 Nelson Bay Road, Anna Bay | approx. 13.2ha

| Total site area | Approx. 43ha

Figura 1- Site Locality Plan (nest page) identifies the subject land (also
Refer Attachmant ome)
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FIGURE 1 - Locality Plan (land the subject of the Planning Proposal is
shown in Black outline)

Locality Plan - Latitude Drive - Nelson Bay Road, Anna Bay

BT e e ———————
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LOCATION

The site is located on the southemn side of Nelsan Bay Road in Anna Bay and
sits approximately 2.5km west of One Mile and 8.5 km south-west of Melson
Bay. Anna Bay town centre is located approximately 3.5km south of the
subject sie

The site is accessed off Latiude Drive which extends along the northerm
boundary of Lot 25 DP 852410 and through Lot 1 DF 1225542, Latitude Drive
intersacts with Melson Bay Road 1o the west of the subject site.

Figura 2. site Locality
Source. Mearmap (https herw. nearmap, com.awf) = accessed 220082018

ADJOINING LAND USES

The existing uses of land in the vicinity of the site include a limited numbser of
single dwellinga, dual occupancies, rural land, a frofting track, a golf course
with a driving range, and vegetated sites

Land to the north of the subject site consists of vacant vegetated land zoned
E2 Emvironmeantal Conservation pursuant to the PSLEP. All other land to the
south, east and west is Zoned RUZ Rural Landscape pursuant to the PSLEP.

Directly adjoining the site o the east and south s land wsed for nural
residential purposes, consisting of dweallings, dual occupancies and
associated outbudings on large lots. To the west of the subject site (at the
rear of the rural residential properties) is land which contains cleared and
vegelated areas and areas used for rural industry.
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HISTORY OF LAND USE

The site was maned for mineral sands in the eady 1970s. Sand mining
actnities generally involved vegetation stripping, the mining of sand by
dredging in a moving pond, and processing of the dredged slurry, Thase
activities have resulied in the land being heavily disturbed

On 13 July 2010, Council approved a development application (DA 168-2008-
257-1) for a caravan park on the land now known as 70, T0A_ TOB and 70OC
Latitude Drive, Anna Bay. Al thal tme the land was zoned 1{a) Rural
Agriculture 2one and caravan parks were permissible with consent (under the
Port Stephens Local Environmental Plan 2000).

The Local Government Act 1993 and Local Government (Manufaciured
Homes Estates, Caravan Parks, Camping Grounds and Moveable Dwellings)
Regulation 2005 permits the installation of moveable dwellings in approved
caravan parks, including manufactured homes, without further Couwncil
approval. The consent has been modified over tme and the site currently has
270 caravan sies on which manufactured homes ang Being installed,

The PSLEP 2013 zoned the land RUZ Rural Landscape zone, which does not
permdt caravan parks. The development on the site relies on the existing
consent to operate and is commonly known as Latitude One Lifestyle Village,

Development consent (DA 1872017/282) has been granted on 07072018 for
earthworks vathin Lot 25 DP 852410, The development invaolved sand
extracticn i the north-western cormer of the lot to be used for works
associated with the construction of the approved caravan park on Lots 2 and
4 DP 108888, Lot 2 DP 1204319, and Lot 1 DP 1225542, The approved
earthrncrks on Lot 25 reman angoing.

CURRENT USE AND EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS

Approved development on Lots 2 and 4 DF 388888; Lot 2 DP 1204315 and
Lot 1 DP 1225542 consists of a caravan park with 270 sites, on which
manufactured homes have been installed, with occupation of several bong-
term sites having commenced. Some parts of these [ofs are not alfected by
works associated with the approved caravan park and comprise vegelaled
land,

This development was approved under a histons zoning and currenthy
operates relying on that approval and existing use rights.

Lot 25 DP 852410 is not included in the land subjed 1o the caravan park
approval. A single storey dwellng house s located toward the eastem
boundary of the lot, adjacent to the site's Nelson Bay Road frontage. The rest
of this lot ks predominately vacant, comprising areas of grassland and
scattered vagetation.
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PART 1 - Objectives or intended outcomes

The Plaaning Proposal seeks 1o achieve the fallowing outeomes:

e Toregulanse the edsting approved use of Lots 2 and 4 DP 3598888, Lot 2
DPF 1204319 and Lot 1 DP 1225542 and remove the need for the
developmenl to rély on exisbing useé nghts,

« Enable the axtension of the existing use to adjoining land at Lot 25
DP852410 at 4473 Nelson Bay Road in order 1o increase housing diversity
and provide for population growih within the Port Stephens LGA.

e To facilitate the future subdivision of Lot 25 D8 852410 into twa (2] lots.

« To provide suitable planning controls that facilitate the proposed
developmaent

The proponent submitted the concept plans for the proposed future
develaprment an Lot 25 DPBS2410 (in light blue), which shows the relation
with the existing development on the adjacent lots (in Bght green). Both plans
are also incleded in Attachment ona.

Flgure 3. Concépl Plan for 108 25 in relation 1o the approved caravan park
development (Lots 2 & 4, Lot 1.and Lot 2),
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in pink; subject to further investigation).

Figure 5. Proposed future 1-into-2 lot subdivision of Lot 25 (indicative area
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PART 2 — Explanation of provisions

The PSLEP 2013 will be amended to regularise the existing, approved use of
Lots 2 and 4 DP 398888; Lot 2 DP 1204319 and Lot 1 DP 1225542 and to
facilitate the future extension of that use to the adjoining Lot 25 DP 852410,
subject to development consent. The amendments will also enable the future
subdivision of Lot 25 DP 852410 so as to permit a minimum lot of
approximately 8 000m2 to be created fronting Nelson Bay Road.

The PSLEP 2013 zones the land RU2 Rural Landscape zone, which does not
permit caravan parks. The current development on the site relies on the
existing consent to operate and an extension of that use to the adjoining
parcel would not be permissible under the current zoning.

Similarly the existing minimum lot size that applies to the land would not
permit Lot 25 DP 852410 to be subdivided so as to excise the land fronting
Nelson Bay Road.

There are a number of potential amendments that could be made to the
PSLEP to facilitate the outcomes of the Planning Proposal. As outlined above,
some mechanisms may relate to the application of State policies. Other
potential amendments include site specific local provisions to permit and
regulate additional uses.

DPIE provides guidance to councils that it is not necessary to identify the
specifics of amendments to a local environmental plan prior to a Gateway
determination if the objectives and outcomes have been identified.

Should the Planning Proposal receive a Gateway determination, it is proposed
to consult with DPIE on the specific amendments to the PSLEP necessary to
achieve the intended outcomes.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL



ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 2 - ATTACHMENT 3 PLANNING PROPOSAL.

PART 3 - Justification

Section A — Need for the planning proposal
Q1. Is the planning proposal a result of any strategic study or report?
The Planning Proposal is not the result of a strategic study or report.

The HRP is applicable to the area, but the subject site is not located in an
identified or emerging growth area identified in the HRP. The land is not
located in a centre and some external services such as shops for day-to-day
needs are a short drive away in nearby Anna Bay, Salamander Bay, and
Nelson Bay.

However, the Planning Proposal is generally consistent with the visions and
goals of the HRP. The proposal will make efficient use of the land, as it
provides housing choice (including for seniors) with easy access to a range of
community facilities and services within a lifestyle village setting.

The Planning Proposal will enable a range of outcomes of the Hunter
Regional Plan 2036 which sets out principles for settlements.

It is well recognised that caravan parks can be an important provider of
affordable tourist and/or residential accommodation. The Hunter Regional
Plan (HRP) sets regionally focused goals including the establishment of
thriving communities and greater housing choice. It identifies that by 2036,
95% of people will live within 30 minutes of a strategic centre that has shops,
dining, entertainment and services. Nelson Bay's identified on the Hunter
2036 Map as a Strategic Centre and is located approximately 8 minutes’ drive
from the subject land.

The Planning Proposal is consistent with the HRP and will contribute to the
following strategic Directions and Actions.

HRP - Direction 6: Grow the Economy of Mid Coast and Port Stephens

Actions

6.3 Enable economic diversity and
new tourism opportunities that focus
on reducing the impacts of the
seasonal nature of tourism and its
effect on local economies.

The proposed increase in residential
population in close proximity to
Nelson Bay, Anna Bay and other
surrounding tourist destinations will
provide ongoing patronage to local
retail and activity facilities during and
outside the peak holiday period,
reducing the seasonal effects of
tourism on the local economy.

6.5 Plan for and provide
infrastructure and facilities that
support the ageing population.

The Planning Proposal would
facilitate the expansion of an
approved caravan park facility for
long term residential occupation that
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offers affordable accommodation
options supported by high quality
community facilities.

Further, the expansion would
maximise use of existing community
facilities within the existing
development and provide the ability
to expand on the level of service to
be offered at the lifestyle village. For
example, additional recreation
facilities such as tennis courts, an
additional outdoor pool, an additional
community garden and a secondary
club house could form part of the
expanded development footprint,
with details to be finalised at the
development application stage.

HRP - Direction 21: Create a Compact Settlement

Actions

Whilst the site is not identified as an emerging growth area, the Planning
Proposal will allow for the further delivery of land for housing quickly and
cost-effectively whilst making use of established infrastructure that supports
the existing (non-touristic) caravan park development on the site.

Consistency with the identified actions is addressed below.

21.1 Promote development that
respects the landscape attributes
and the character of the
metropolitan areas, towns and
villages.

The site is setback from Nelson Bay
Road and would be appropriately
screened to respect the landscape
area of the surrounding locality.

21.2 Focus development to create
compact settlements in locations
with established services and
infrastructure, including the Maitland
Corridor growth area; Newcastle—
Lake Macquarie Western Corridor
growth area; the emerging growth
area around Cooranbong, Morisset
and Wyee; and in existing towns and
villages and sites identified in an
endorsed regional or local strategy.

Whilst not located in an identified or
emerging growth area, or on land
endorsed in a regional or local
strategy, the Planning Proposal
would provide for the efficient use of
land and make use of existing
servicing and infrastructure
investments associated within the
existing approved land use.

The exiting development is of a
medium density nature with a wide
range of community facilities and
services. Therefore, and as outlined
elsewhere in this report, the Planning
Proposal seeks the extension of an
existing compact development onto
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an adjacent lot. It aims to utilise, and
expand on, already established
services and infrastructure.

21.3 Identify opportunities for urban
redevelopment or renewal in urban
locations with access to public
transport and services in the Greater
Newcastle metropolitan area and
where there may no longer be a
need for employment land.

Whilst the site is situated outside the
Anna Bay town centre, part of the
subject land has development
consent for a caravan park, on which
up to for 270 moveable dwellings
could be installed. An onsite
community bus currently provides
connectivity for residents to public
transport connections. Should an
expansion of this use be approved, it
is foreseeable that new residents
would also utilise this service.

The site is not strategically identified
as employment land within the
Hunter Regional Plan, the Greater
Newcastle Metropolitan Plan or any
local planning strategies.

The expansion of development
across the Planning Proposal area
provides opportunity to make
efficient use of existing investments
in infrastructure provision and
community facilities.

21.4 Create a well-planned,
functional and compact settlement
pattern that responds to settlement
planning principles and does not
encroach on sensitive land uses,
including land subject to hazards, on
drinking water catchments or on
areas with high environmental
values.

Port Stephens Council is yet to
finalise its housing strategy which is
currently being drafted. The current
strategy that applies to the Planning
Proposal is the Port Stephens
Planning Strategy 2011. An
assessment against the settlement
planning principles in that strategy
are included below.

The proposed development area has
been subject to significant
modification through historic land
uses and is not subject to hazard
risk; nor considered environmentally
sensitive land; or located within a
designated drinking water
catchment.

21.5 Promote small-scale renewal in
existing urban areas, in consultation
with the community and industry to

Whilst the site is situated outside the
Anna Bay town centre, part of the
subject land has development
consent for a caravan park on which
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ensure that this occurs in the right
locations.

there are 270 sites for moveable
dwellings. Approx. 100 are fully
constructed and additional stages
are under construction.

The expansion of the development
footprint will make efficient use of
existing community facilities and
infrastructure. Consequently, the
expansion of residential
development in this location is
considered suitable.

21.6 Provide greater housing choice
by delivering diverse housing, lot
types and sizes, including small-lot
housing in infill and greenfield
locations.

The proposed expansion of the
approved caravan park for non-
tourist purposes will provide an
affordable housing choice for the
Anna Bay locality, supported by high
quality community facilities.

21.7 Promote new housing
opportunities in urban areas to
maximise the use of existing
infrastructure.

The expansion of the development
footprint will make efficient use of
existing community facilities and
infrastructure. Consequently, the
expansion of residential
development in this location is
considered suitable.

Accessibility to Retail Precincts

With respect to accessibility to retail precincts, the site is located within a short

distance from the existing retail precincts at Anna Bay, Salamander Bay and

Nelson Bay. The Anna Bay retail precinct is located less than a 4-minute drive

from the subject land with a range of service offerings that include:

Supermarket;

Medical centre; and

Public school and child care facility.

Local Shops including a post office and service station;
Restaurants and cafes and tavern;

In addition to the above, the Tomaree Community Hospital, Dental facilities,
Tomaree High School and St Philip’s Christian College are in Nelson Bay,
approximately an 8-minute drive from the subject land. The location of the
nearby centres is shown in the Figure 5 below.
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Figure §. Proximity to Nearly Cenires

Community Bus Services

The approved caravan park developmaent (DA 16-2009-257) is conditioned 15
provide a communily bus 1o transpart residents and offers regular trps 1o
surrcunding retail centres (ncluding public transport connections]) as well as
providing tailored day irips for recreational activities and enterainment, This
senice can be expanded to service the expanded development footprint,
subject fo development consent.

Access to Employment Centres

Empleyment cenires are localed within commubing distance from the side, This
includes the major touns! destination of Port Stephens, comprising Nelson
Bay and its surmounds. Additional emplayment nodes include Raymand
Terrace (25 minutes), Willamiown (20 minutes), Tomago (30 minutes); and
Bereshield (40 minutes). Eoth Williamtown and Tomageo are identified as
catalyst areas in the Greater Newcastie Metropolifan Plan wilhin excess of
3000 and 200 new jobs respectively expected to be created over 20 years.

Public Transport

Whilst a designated public bus route does not travel directly past the site, it
does service the nearby Anna Bay commuenity. The on-site community bus
can transpor residents fo nearby bus stops and fo the Salamander Bay retail
precinet which also has good public fransport connectons,

To suppodt the Planning Proposal, a seres of technical studies have been
completed to guide the development of a concept plan for the site. Key site
canstraints have been identfied and considered as part of this Proposal.

The Planning Proposal is generally consistent with the Hunter Regional Plan
2036, Port Stephens Planning Sirategy 2011-2036, Anna Bay Stralegy and
Town Plan, Port Stephens Community Strategie Plan 2013-2023 and Port
Stephens Ageing Strategy 2016-201%. These are discussed elsewhere in this
Planning Proposal,

Addibonal information about the Planning Proposal’s consisiency with other
relevant plans and strategies s provided under Q3 and Q4.
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Q2. Is the planning proposal the best means of achieving the objectives
or intended outcomes, or is there a better way?

The purpose of the Planning Proposal is to regularise the existing approved use
of Lots 2 and 4 DP 398888, Lot 2 DP 1204319 and Lot 1 DP 1225542 and to
facilitate the future extension of that use to the adjoining Lot 25 DP 852410.
The Planning Proposal also seeks to enable the future subdivision of Lot 25 DP
852410 which currently contains a dwelling fronting Nelson Bay Road. These
outcomes will be the basis for drafting the legal instrument (the LEP).

The Planning Proposals — a guide to preparing planning proposals, published
by the NSW Department of Planning, Industry and Environment (2018) (DPIE
Guide), states that, at the Gateway stage, it is not necessary to identify the

mechanism by which the outcomes of the Planning Proposal will be achieved.

Consideration of all means of achieving the outcome sought by the subject
Planning Proposal is still required. The exact mechanism to amend the
PSLEP 2013 will be identified in consultation with DPIE should the subject
Planning Proposal receive a Gateway Determination to proceed.

There are a number of potential amendments that could be made to the
PSLEP to facilitate the outcomes of the Planning Proposal. Consultation with
DPIE will seek advice on the appropriate amendment having regard to the
application of State policies, the Improving the Regulation of Manufactured
Homes, Caravan Parks, Manufactured Home Estates & Camping Grounds
Discussion Paper (published by the NSW Department of Planning, Industry &
Environment (2015), and the Standard Instrument Local Environmental Plan.

Section B — Relationship to strategic planning framework

Q3. Will the planning proposal give effect to the objectives and actions
of the Hunter Regional Plan or Greater Newcastle Metropolitan Plan
(or any exhibited draft plans that have been prepared to replace
these)?

Hunter Regional Plan 2036

The Hunter Regional Plan 2036 (HRP) has a vision for the Hunter to be the
leading regional economy in Australia with a vibrant new metropolitan city at
its heart. To achieve this vision, the NSW Government has acknowledged the
growing importance of Greater Newcastle (comprising the local government
areas of Cessnock, Lake Macquarie, Maitland, Newcastle and Port Stephens)
and set the following regionally focused goals:

¢ The leading regional economy in Australia;
s A biodiversity-rich natural environment;

¢ Thriving communities; and

¢ Greater housing choice and jobs.
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The HRP s applicable to the area, but the subject site is not located in an
identified or emerging growth area identified in the HRP. The Land is naot
located in a centre and some external services such as shops for day-lo-day
needs are a short dimeg away in nearby Anna Bay, Salamander Bay, and
Melson Bay.

Howewer, the Planning Proposal is generally consistent with the vislons and
goais of the HRP. The proposal will make efficient use of the land, as it
provides housing choice (including for seniors) with easy access o a range of
community facilities and services within a lifestyle village setting.

The Planning Proposal is consistent with the wvision and goals of the HRP as it
will facilstate addibanal housing cholce withah & few, well designed community
that = accessible to a range of facilities and services, The provision of
additional housing will provide broader economic benefits via increased
demand for goods and services as well as providing housing for a growing
waorkforce,

The HRP projects thal approoamately 11,020 additional dwellings will be
needed in the Pord Stephens LGA by 2038, The proposed development will
rake a eontribution towards meeting this projected demand

The HRP also identifies a projected increase in the percentage of people
aged over 85 years from 15% to 25% by the year 2036. The proposal will
assist in meeting this demand through faciitating the provision of additional
howsing suitable far an ageing population

A poroaimoe
locolon of

suiject kand

.I ™ - iy - o 2]
Figure 7. From Hunter Regional Plan-Greater Newcastie Settiement Plan
Saurce; hitplplanning new.gov.au
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The Planning Proposal is consistent with the HRP as it will support a number
of strategic actions in the HRP, including the following which have been
addressed under Q1:

21.4 Create a well-planned, functional and compact settlement pattern that
responds to settlement planning principles and does not encroach on
sensitive land uses, including land subject to hazards, on drinking
water catchments or on areas with high environmental values.

21.6  Provide greater housing choice by delivering diverse housing, lot
types and sizes, including small-lot housing in infill and Greenfield
locations.

221 Respond to the demand for housing and services for weekend
visitors, students, seasonal workers, the ageing community and
resource industry personnel.

22.2  Encourage housing diversity, including studios and one and two-
bedroom dwellings, to match forecast changes in household sizes.

It is considered that the Planning Proposal is consistent with the Hunter
Regional Plan.

Greater Newcastle Metropolitan Plan 2036 (GNMP)

The subject land is considered suitable for the proposed future use given that
part of the land is already utilised for the intended use. The residual land (Lot
25 DP 852410) that will accommodate an extension of the caravan park
(subject to development consent) is relatively unconstrained and, based on
preliminary investigations, it is considered that constraints relating to ecology,
acid sulphate soils, and flood prone land can be resolved should the Planning
Proposal receive a Gateway determination to proceed.

This site can be distinguished from typical residential developments as it can
provide a wide range of community facilities and services for future residents
due to an existing development on a neighbouring lot. These include a
community bus service, a club house (including hall, sports lounge, cinema,
craft room, library, salon, indoor pool, spa, sauna, gym and café/hall), outdoor
swimming pool, lawn bowls facility, croquet area, pocket parks, off leash dog
exercise area, and walking areas.

The site also offers opportunity to contribute to the targets and directions set
by the Greater Newcastle Metropolitan Plan 2036 (GNMP) for new residential
development in Port Stephens. The GNMP projects 11,050 new dwellings for
Port Stephens by 2036. To support a changing population and dwelling
needs, the GNMP sets a 60% target for new dwellings in the existing urban
areas (infill) by 2036. The Plan also highlights the need for more variety of
housing types and densities, and the provision of access to transport and
community services and facilities for local communities.

Preliminary work undertaken by Council staff to inform the Local Housing
Strategy currently under preparation (required by the GNMP) indicates that

19
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there will be a shortage of infill developments and Council may not be able to
reach the target of 60% of new dwellings being developed in infill locations.
The Planning Proposal could assist in providing medium density infill in a
location already serviced by community facilities and infrastructure.

The Planning Proposal will also respond to the need for increased variety of
housing types and densities as identified by the GNMP. More specifically, the
subject site provides opportunity for a particular type of medium density infill
development which includes access to (bus) transport, and a wide range of
community services and facilities. The Planning Proposal will also facilitate
dwelling types that are suitable for seniors and will contribute to the housing
choices available in the area.

The subject site is considered suitable for the outcomes the Planning Proposal
will facilitate based on the land being relatively unconstrained, the availability
and quality of community facilities and services, and the provision of an existing
community bus service which connects the site with nearby town centres.

Strategic and site-specific merit of the Planning Proposal

As noted in this report, the subject site is not identified in State and local
planning strategies for urban development. DPIE provides general guidance for
assessing planning proposals that may not be consistent with State or local
strategic plans and policies (See the DPIE Guide). The assessment requires
consideration of both the strategic merit and site-specific merits of a proposal:

(a) Strategic merit of the Proposal

The DPIE Guide specifies that a planning proposal with strategic merit must
not seek to amend planning controls that are less than 5 years old. The
Planning Proposal seeks to amend LEP controls that are more than 5 years
old (The PSLEP was gazetted in 2013).

The DPIE Guide specifies that a planning proposal is considered to have
strategic merit if it gives effect to relevant State strategies and local strategies
that have been endorsed by DPIE, or responds to a change in circumstances
that have not been considered by existing strategic plans.

As outlined above, the Planning Proposal is not consistent with State or local
planning strategies, however it is considered to demonstrate strategic merit as
it responds to a change in circumstances that has not been recognised by
existing strategic plans.

The existing approved development is currently underway and includes a
substantial investment in new infrastructure such as roads, services, and
community infrastructure. The Planning Proposal would facilitate efficient use
of this investment, including the community facilities and services located
within the existing approved development site.

20
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While the Planning Proposal does not demonstrate consistency with the
medium density housing principles in the PSPS, the existing approved
development includes a wide range of community facilities and services for
residents which typical medium residential developments do not provide.
Therefore, the principles of the PSPS can be considered more relevant to
medium residential development housing types that are not operating under
land lease arrangements with substantial on-site facilities and services for
residents.

These facilities and services and the nature of the manufactured homes that
have been installed under the existing approval can also be distinguished
from the caravan parks with moveable dwellings that were more predominant
at the time the PSPS 2011 was prepared. The HRP similarly does not identify
or address the range of modern housing typologies under land lease
arrangements that have become more prevalent in coastal areas such as Port
Stephens.

Given these changes since the preparation of the PSPS in 2011, and the
changes in the housing market that have not been addressed in the HRP, the
Planning Proposal is considered to have strategic merit as it will respond
appropriately by ensuring the orderly and economic use and development of
land, consistent with the objects of the EP&A Act.

(b) site-specific merit of the Proposal

The DPIE Guide requires a planning proposal to be assessed having regard to
site-specific criteria as follows.

1. The natural environment

The land is relatively clear from environmental constraints. Parts of Lot 25 DP
852410 are significantly degraded from previous use (sand mining) and
current earthworks. The environmental values that remain on site can be
protected and kept outside the proposed development footprint and these
matters can be addressed at the development application stage. The Planning
Proposal provides a balance between housing and conservation outcomes
and is unlikely to result in significant adverse impacts on the natural
environment.

2. The existing uses, approved uses, and likely future uses of land in the
vicinity of the proposal.

The existing uses of land in the vicinity of the site include a limited number of
single dwellings, dual occupancies, rural land, a trotting track, a golf course
with a driving range, and vegetated sites.

Land to the north of the subject site consists of vacant vegetated land zoned

E2 Environmental Conservation pursuant to the PSLEP. All other land to the
south, east and west is zoned RU2 Rural Landscape pursuant to the PSLEP.
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Directly adjoining the site to the east and south is land used for rural
residential purposes, consisting of dwellings, dual occupancies and
associated outbuildings on large lots. To the west of the subject site (at the
rear of the rural residential properties) is land which contains cleared and
vegetated areas and areas used for rural industry.

There are no unacted-on consents for approved uses in the vicinity of the site
and the likely future uses of the land in the vicinity are expected to remain as
per the current uses given there are no current planning proposals for that
land. The surrounding land is also not identified in a State or local strategy for
future land use changes.

Proposed vegetation management areas on the southern and eastern
boundaries of Lot 25 DP 852410 will also create a buffer between any future
development on that lot and land in the vicinity of the proposal.

The Planning Proposal is not expected to have a negative effect on land in the
vicinity of the proposal.

3. The services and infrastructure that are or will be available to meet demands
from the proposal.

Existing public utility services, (road) infrastructure, and community facilities
and services associated within the existing approved use can be extended to
service a proposed extension of the use onto Lot 25 DP 852410 (subject to
development consent).

The site can provide a wide range of existing community facilities for future
residents which are not available in typical medium residential developments.
Demands for services and infrastructure from the proposal can therefore be
met efficiently and to a high standard.

Given the Planning Proposal's ability to demonstrate both strategic merit and
site-specific merits, it is considered appropriate for the Planning Proposal to
proceed for a Gateway Determination.

Q4. Will the planning proposal give effect to a council’s endorsed local
strategic planning statement, or another local strategy or strategic
plan?

Port Stephens Council is currently preparing its local strategic planning
statement, therefore the following local strategies are considered in the
context of this Planning Proposal.

Port Stephens Community Strategic Plan 2013-2023
The Port Stephens Community Strategic Plan (PSCSP) was adopted by
Council in May 2013. The PSCSP identifies the community’s vision for ‘a

great lifestyle in a treasured environment’. It outlines the long-term goals
agreed with the community of the Port Stephens LGA.
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The Planning Proposal is consistent with the objectives of the PSCSP, as set

out in the table below:

Table 1 Consistency with Port Stephens’ Community Strategic Plan
2013-2023
Strategic directions and -
objectives EOITNINENIATVE
OUR CITIZENS

Community Safety
Port Stephens is a community where
people feel safe

The proposed development would
provide for the expansion of an
approved residential community
which places the safety of residents
as a high priority. Opportunity for
casual surveillance through the
development tis encouraged to
contribute toward a feeling of safety
for residents.

Ageing Population
Improve facilities and services for an
ageing population

The proposed development will
facilitate the improvement and
extension of the existing
development which provides
housing and associated recreational
and community facilities for
residents, including those over 65
years of age.

People with disabilities

Improve the built environment,
advocate and provide services for
people with disabilities

Any future development of the site
would be required to give due
consideration to accessibility for
people with a disability.

OURLIFESTYLE

Recreation and Leisure

Provide passive and active
recreation and leisure services and
facilities

The existing development provides
recreational and leisure facilities to
meet the requirements of residents
within the subject site. Such
facilities would be able to be
expanded, subject to development
consent.

OUR ENVIRONMENT

Environmental Sustainability
Manage the natural environment for
existing and future generations

It likely that future proposed
development can be undertaken
without resulting in unreasonable
adverse environmental impacts.

Waste Management

Port Stephens has a highly valued,
affordable and convenient waste and
recycling system

Waste management will be
considered as part of any
development application on the
subject site.

Sustainable Development
Balance the environmental, social
and economic needs of Port

The existing development provides
for the needs of residents within the
Port Stephens area by providing
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Strategic directions and
objectives

Commentary:

Stephens for the benefit of present
and future generations.

housing in combination with
recreational and community facilities
in a manner which is consistent with
the environmental values and
constraints present on the site.

OUR ECONOMY

Economic Development
Port Stephens has a sustainable and
diversified economy

The proposed development will
result in economic benefits through
the provision of housing with new
residents supporting the ongoing
growth of the local economy.

Transport
Port Stephens has an integrated,
connected transport network.

The proposed development will
connect to the existing Port
Stephens transport network.

OUR COUNCIL

Infrastructure

Port Stephens’ infrastructure and
utilities meet the needs of all
sections of the community

The proposal will make use of
existing infrastructure, providing
opportunity for more affordable
housing.

Engagement

The Port Stephens community is
informed and involved in decisions
that affect them

The subject Planning Proposal will
be subject to standard community
notification and consultation
processes.

Port Stephens Planning Strategy 2011-2036

The Port Stephens Planning Strategy 2011 (PSPS) provides a comprehensive
planning strategy for the Port Stephens LGA and was developed to inform the

adoption of the PSLEP 2013. The Strategy identifies that medium density
housing areas should be located where residents have good access to
services and not in isolated locations to avoid the creation of social

disadvantage.

The subject land is centrally located within a short drive from the town centres

of Anna Bay (3.2km), Nelson Bay (8km), and the retail centre of Salamander
Bay (5.6km). The caravan park is required to provide a community bus
service for residents under the existing development consent. This service
offers regular trips to surrounding retail centres, connects with existing public
bus services, and is likely to be able to service an expanded development

footprint.

In addition, and unlike typical residential developments, the existing caravan
park provides high quality community facilities for residents. These include a
club house (including hall, sports lounge, cinema, craft room, library, salon,
indoor pool, spa, sauna, gym and café/hall), outdoor swimming pool, lawn
bowls facility, croguet area, pocket parks, off leash dog exercise area, and

walking areas. The Planning Proposal provides the opportunity for the sharing

of these facilities and potentially new facilities within the proposed future
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development. Because of the variety of the facilities and the quality of the
facilities, the distance of the site from town centres is unlikely to result in an
outcome where residents are at social disadvantage or feel isolated.

The PSPS acknowledges that medium density housing should, where
practicable, be located according to principles in the PSPS which guide the
application of new residential zones. These principles include locating
medium density housing within a five minute walk of a centre or a five minute
walk of a bus stop with frequent services to major centre or within a ten
minute walk of Raymond Terrace or another town centre. As mentioned in the
above, the existing caravan park provides residents with a community bus
service and in combination with existing public bus services, is likely to
provide a reasonable level of service.

The Planning Proposal is inconsistent with some of the principles and
directions in the PSPS relating to medium density housing, however given the
availability of a wide range of community services and facilities in existing
development in combination with the existing community bus service linking
residents to surrounding town centres, the proposal is considered to respond
adequately to the PSPS directions.

Anna Bay Strategy and Town Plan

The Anna Bay Strategy and Town Plan guides the management of future
population growth and the building of neighbourhoods in Anna Bay. It
establishes a context and policy direction for future rezoning requests and
development controls in the Anna Bay area. It also integrates the location,
timing and funding for community facilities and infrastructure.

The strategy sets out a town plan, which is a strategic response to the
constraints and opportunities in Anna Bay and the policy and legal framework.
The vision set out in the strategy for Anna Bay is a small and vibrant town
offering a mix of dwelling types and business opportunities and a quality
natural environment. It will have a pleasant main street with a mix of retail and
office space for local and visitor patronage and shop top housing or tourist
accommodation.

The subject site is not located within the Anna Bay Town Centre and therefore
many of the key strategic directions outlined in the strategy are not directly
relevant to the site or proposed development. Notwithstanding, the proposed
development will contribute to the vision established for Anna Bay by
providing additional residents within the proximity of the Anna Bay Town
Centre, to provide patronage to the expanding commercial uses within the
town centre.

Port Stephens Ageing Strategy 2016-2019
The Port Stephens Ageing Strategy outlines actions that achieve positive and

practical outcomes for the ageing population in Port Stephens and informs
actions in Council’s Delivery Program. Council’s policy direction for ageing
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communities is consistent with all levels of government, and that are
discussed in planning and legislative documents that form the framework for
responses to ageing populations. The strategy provides direction for a whole
of Council approach to deliver key priorities that support positive ageing
outcomes for the Port Stephens community.

The objectives of the strategy are:

Recognise that ageing populations are a valued demographic of the LGA
and maximise the strengths and opportunities they can bring to our

community;

Prioritise actions for Council to meet the needs of the ageing population in
a way that demonstrates consistency with the Port Stephens Community
Strategic Plan, and Council’'s Delivery Program and Operational Plan;
Promote integration between Council's Ageing Strategy deliverables and
State and Federal outcomes to effectively address the needs of ageing
populations in the Port Stephens LGA; and

Guide a proactive Council-wide approach to improve the liveability for the

Port Stephens ageing population.

The strategy sets out five (5) themes to address the issues that that impact on
aging populations, specific to the Port Stephens LGA. The table below
summaries the five (5) key themes and provides comments on how the
relevant themes are addressed by the proposed development:

Table 3

Consistency with the key themes of the Port Stephens

Ageing Strategy 2016-2019

Key priorities

Commentary:

Housing, neighbourhood and land
use planning

Ageing populations will have a major
impact on future urban design and
housing demand due to a shift in
preferred housing choice, such as
type, design and location. As people
age tenure security and housing that
is adaptable, smaller, safer, and
more secure and that is close to
services, transport and family will
become increasingly important.

As mentioned elsewhere, the
approved development provides a
range of community and recreational
facilities that would not otherwise be
available in standard residential
properties, encouraging a sense of
community and security to resident.
The development enables residents
to socialise and participate in
community live. An on-site bus
services provides opportunities for
social/recreational trips to off-site
locations.

Transport and Accessibility
Improvements to connectivity
between homes, and quality services
and facilities can provide a broader
and cost effective benefit to other
cross-sections of the community.

The goal of this action is to create a
connected network of public

Many of the recreational and social
needs of residents are catered for
on-site and eliminate the need to
travel for this purpose.
Notwithstanding, Anna Bay town
centre is a short drive from the site
and provides additional recreational,
commercial and community services
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Key priorities

Commentary:

transport, pedestrian and cycle ways
that provide access to desirable
locations and increase social
connectivity and opportunities.

which can be accessed by using the
on-site community bus.

Health and community services
The goal of this action is to establish
effective partnerships with health
care providers, mobile health
services and, community and
recreational activities; and where a
need exists, identify and advocate
for new ones.

As previously discussed, the
approved development on the site
involves facilities and services for
residents to engage in community
and recreational activities on site to
cater for the needs of current and
future residents, including the
proposed extension on the
neighbouring lot.

Inclusion and participation

The goals of this action are to
support continued and increased
opportunities for engaging ageing
populations in desired social
activities, including participation in
decision-making processes within
existing Council plans and services
and support continued and increased
opportunities for engaging ageing
populations in desired social
activities, including facilities and
infrastructure that meets the needs
of older people.

As previously discussed, facilities,
services, and infrastructure to meet
the needs of (older) residents are
provided on-site and can be
extended to the neighbouring lot.
Facilities and services not provided
on site can be accessed through the
on-site community bus service.

Q5. Is the planning proposal consistent with applicable State
Environmental Planning Policies (SEPPs)?

In considering the proposed use of the site following rezoning, a review of
relevant State Environmental Planning Policies (SEPP’s) has been undertaken.

Table 4 — Relevant State Environmental Planning Policies

Consistency and

(such as manufactured homes)
where they are located in a
caravan park.

SEPP 21 provides matters for
consideration when
development consent is
granted for a caravan park,

SEPP Relevance Implicati

mplications
SEPP No 21 — | SEPP 21 applies to caravan This Planning Proposal
Caravan parks or camping grounds, this | seeks to amend the
Parks includes moveable dwellings PSLEP to regularise the

existing approved use
and allow for the use to
be extended to adjoining
land. The approved use
consists of a caravan
park on which moveable
dwellings are installed or
being installed.
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SEPP

Relevance

Consistency and
Implications

including a caravan park that
includes manufactured homes.
These matters include site
suitability, location and
character, and whether
necessary community facilities
and services are available.

This SEPP may apply to future
development applications on
the subject site, depending on
the potential amendments
made to the PSLEP 2013.

The proposal is
considered to be
consistent with the
objectives of SEPP 21
and if relevant, any
future development
applications on the
subject site will need to
consider the
requirements of SEPP
21.

The Planning Proposal
is considered to be
consistent with the aims
and objectives of the
SEPP relating to the
provision of community
facilities, the protection
of the environment in
the vicinity of the land,
and the orderly and
economic development
of the land used for long
term residents.

SEPP No 36 —
Manufactured
Home

Estates

Helps establish well-designed
and properly serviced
manufactured home estates in
suitable locations.

The Proposal seeks to permit a
caravan park.

SEPP 36 does not currently
apply to the site given the
current zoning does not permit
caravan parks, the current
zone is not for urban purposes,
and the site is not identified in
an endorsed strategy as
suitable for urban
development.

This SEPP may apply to future
development applications on
the subject site, depending on
the potential amendments
made to the PSLEP 2013.

Should SEPP 36 be
relevant, the Planning
proposal is considered
to be consistent with the
aims and strategies of
the SEPP, in particular
aims to provide for
facilitate the
establishment of
manufactured home
estates as a
contemporary form of
medium density
residential development
that provides an
alternative to traditional
housing arrangements.

Should the SEPP apply
to future development
applications, the
Proposal is generally
consistent with the
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 Consistency and

Implications

"SEPP 44— | This SEPP apphes toland

Koala
Habiwat
Protection

| across MSW that is greater

| than 1 hectare and 15 not a
Mational Park ar Faresiry
Reserve. The SEPP

| encourages the conservation
and management of natural

| vegetation areas that provide
habitat for koalas o ensure
permanent frée-iving
populations will be maintamed

| over their present range.

| The site contains established

| vegetation and, based on

| Council's mapging system, is

| mapped as containing Koala
habitat.

A __'_._b"

matters for
consderation dunmng
assassment including
the prowvision of
sufficient commusnity
facilities and services,
and adequate transpor
faciios

| The subject site

contains prefermed koala
habdat and its
assaciated buffers,

The Port Stephens
Ciouncil Comprehensive
Koala Plan of
Managemaent (CKPOM)
was developed
throughout the 1990°,
endorsed by Council
20014, and approved by
the Department of
Planning in 2002 Thes
plan of management
meets the requirements
of clawse 8. Any future
development on the site
will be required to give
consideration 1o the
CKPOM.

Appendix 2 of the
CHPOM sets out
perfomance criteria for
rezoning requests.

The Planning Proposal
i congidered generally
consisient with the
requirements of the
CHPOM and unlikaly fo
result in significant
adverse impacts on
koala populations.

AR investigation af the
site by an appropriately
qualified person in
accordance with the
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SEPP

Relevance

Consistency and
Implications

Guidelines for Koala
Habitat Assessment
presented in Appendix 6
of the CKPoM will be
provided at the post-
Gateway stage.

CKPOM performance
criteria.

a)

not result in development
within areas of Preferred
Koala Habitat or defined

Habitat Buffers

The proposed
development may
slightly encroach into
areas of the subject site
which are mapped as
preferred koala habitat
and its associated
buffer. The extent of
encroachment is minor
and any impacts on
koalas are unlikely to be
significant.

allow for only low impact
development within areas
of Supplementary Koala
Habitat and Habitat Linking
Areas

The proposed
development will have
no impact on areas of
supplementary koala
habitat.

minimise the removal of
any individuals of preferred
koala food trees, where
ever they occur on the site

Further assessment of
the levels of tree
removal required for the
proposed development
will be further assessed
at the post-Gateway
stage.

not result in development
which would sever koala
movement across the site.
This should include
consideration of the need
for maximising tree
retention on the site
generally and for
minimising the likelihood of
impediments to
safe/unrestricted koala
movement.

Links across the subject
site are limited to those
across cleared land. The
preservation of
vegetated areas of the
subject site identified in
the VMP at the south
and east of Lot 25 DP
852410 and retained by
the proposed
development may allow
for the restoration of
habitat between habitat
areas to the north and
south of the site.
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SEPP

Relevance

Consistency and
Implications

SEPP 55 -
Remediation
of Land

This SEPP applies to land
across NSW and states that
land must not be developed if it
is unsuitable for a proposed
use because of contamination.

There is the potential for the
site to contain contaminated
land.

Clause 6 of SEPP 55
requires that
consideration be given
to whether the land is
contaminated as part of
a rezoning proposal.

Previous assessment of
contamination across
the site indicates that
there is potential for
contamination within the
subject site due to
historic sand mining
activities across the site.

A contamination
assessment was
undertaken for the site
(refer Attachment 3).

Further assessment of
contamination across
the site will be
undertaken at the post-
Gateway stage.

SEPP -
(Rural Lands)
2008

Contains rural planning
principles and rural subdivision
principles, which must be
taken into consideration before
developing rural land. Provides
for rural land to be subdivided
below the minimum lot size for
subdivision for the purpose of
primary production.

The Proposal relates to land
zoned RU2 Rural Landscape.

The Rural Lands SEPP
identifies several
applicable rural planning
principles. Consideration
is demonstrated below.

Rural Planning Principles

a) the promotion and
protection of opportunities
for current and potential
productive and sustainable
economic activities in rural
areas.

Development has
already been approved
across Lots 2 and 4 DP
398888, Lot 2 DP
1204319 and Lot 1 DP
1225542 for a caravan
park, with construction
currently underway.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

54




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 2 - ATTACHMENT 3

PLANNING PROPOSAL.

SEPP

Relevance

Consistency and
Implications

As discussed elsewhere
in this proposal, there is
limited agricultural
potential on Lot 25 DP
852410.

Therefore there would
be limited opportunities
for rural activities.

b) recognition of the
importance of rural lands
and agriculture and the
changing nature of
agriculture and of trends,
demands and issues in
agriculture in the area,
region or State.

Development has been
approved across Lots 2
and 4 DP 398888, Lot 2
DP 1204319 and Lot 1
DP 1225542 for a
caravan park.

As discussed elsewhere
in this proposal, there is
limited agricultural
potential on Lot 25 DP
852410.

c) recognition of the
significance of rural land
uses to the State and rural
communities, including the
social and economic
benefits of rural land use
and development.

The site is not presently
utilised for rural
purposes therefore the
proposed development
is not likely to affect any
social or economic
benefits of rural land
use.

d) in planning for rural lands,
to balance the social,
economic and
environmental interests of
the community.

The site is not presently
utilised for rural
purposes and permitting
land uses other than
rural activities is not
likely to result in or
negatively impact any
social, economic or
environmental interests
of the community.

e) the identification and
protection of natural
resources, having regard to
maintaining biodiversity, the
protection of native
vegetation, the importance
of water resources and
avoiding constrained land.

As discussed elsewhere
in this proposal, a due
diligence flora and fauna
assessment and a
Vegetation Management
Plan (VMP) were
prepared for Lot 25 DP
852410. (Refer
Attachments 4 and 5).
Further detailed flora
and fauna assessment
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SEPP

Relevance

Consistency and
Implications

can be provided at the
post-Gateway stage.

f)

the provision of
opportunities for rural
lifestyle, settlement and
housing that contribute to
the social and economic
welfare of rural
communities.

The subject site has
limited potential for rural
housing.

g) the consideration of The Planning Proposal
impacts on services and is not for the provision of
infrastructure and rural housing.
appropriate location when
providing for rural housing.

h) ensuring consistency with The Planning Proposal

any applicable regional

strategy of the Department

of Planning or any
applicable local strategy
endorsed by the Director-
General.

contributes to
implementation of
visions, objectives and
actions of various
regional and local
strategies as outlined
elsewhere in this
Planning Proposal.

Rural Subdivision Principles

a) the minimisation of rural The site is not presently
land fragmentation. utilised nor considered
suitable for future rural
purposes as outlined
elsewhere in this report.
b) the minimisation of rural The proposed LEP

land use conflicts,
particularly between
residential land uses and
other rural land uses.

amendments will
manage risk of land use
conflicts by providing for
development on
disturbed rural zoned
land directly adjacent to
an approved caravan
park development.

the consideration of the
nature of existing
agricultural holdings and
the existing and planned
future supply of rural
residential land when
considering lot sizes for
rural lands.

Zoned rural land in the
surrounding locality
comprises a variety of
lot sizes with limited
agricultural productivity
along the Nelson Bay
Road frontage.

d)

the consideration of the
natural and physical

The concept plan
provided by the

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

56




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 2 - ATTACHMENT 3

PLANNING PROPOSAL.

SEPP

Relevance

Consistency and
Implications

constraints and
opportunities of land.

proponent and the
proposed future
subdivision consider the
environmental and
physical constraints of
the site and provide for
the separation of the
proposed development
from existing dwellings.

It will also provide for
the retention (and
rehabilitation) of a
vegetation corridor
through Lot 25.

e) ensuring that planning for

dwelling opportunities takes

account of those
constraints.

An existing dwelling is
located on Lot 25,
toward the Nelson Bay
Road frontage. This
dwelling is proposed to
be retained within a
proposed new lot and
separated through a
future subdivision from
the future proposed
development by a
vegetation corridor
which is to be retained
and rehabilitated.

The concept plan takes
into consideration the
environmental
constraints of the land
and makes use of
existing infrastructure
and community facilities.

SEPP
(Coastal
Management)
2018

Promotes an integrated and
co-ordinated approach to land
use planning in the coastal
zone consistent with the
cbjects of the Coastal
Management Act 2016.

The Proposal relates to land
identified within the Coastal
Zone Combined Footprint.

The site contains areas
mapped under State
Environmental Planning
Policy (Coastal
Management) 2018 as
being within a coastal
use area and coastal
environment area. An
area of land identified as
a coastal wetland with
an associated buffer is
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SEPP Relavance

Consistency and
Implications

located 1o the norh-
east, but s well
separated from the
subject site

It would be feasible to
redevelop the side to
anirmise any impacts oan
the matters histed in
Clause 13 or 14 of this
SEPP,

The proposal s
considered to be
consistent wih the
objectives of SEPP 21
and if relevant, any
future development
applications on the
subject site will need to
consider the
requarements of SEPP
21

n
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is provided in the table below.

Table 5 — Relevant Ministerial Directions

Ministerial
Direction

Aim of Direction

Consistency and
Implications

1. EMPLOYMENT AND RESOURCES

1.2 Rural Zones

The objective of this
direction is to protect the
agricultural production
value of rural land.

This Planning Proposal
report gives due
consideration to the
objectives of this direction.

As outlined elsewhere in
this report, it is considered
that the site does not
currently present any
potential agricultural
values.

1.5 Rural Lands

The objectives of this
direction are to:

(a) protect the agricultural
production value of
rural land.

(b) facilitate the orderly
and economic
development of rural
lands for rural and
related purposes.

When a relevant planning
authority prepares a
planning proposal that will
affect land within an
existing or proposed rural
or environment protection
zone (including the
alteration of any existing
rural or environment
protection zone boundary)
a planning proposal must
be consistent with the
Rural Planning Principles
listed in State
Environmental Planning

The site is considered to
have limited agricultural
production value taking
into consideration historic
land practices (sand
mining and bulk
earthworks) and current
uses of the site.

The Rural Planning and
Subdivision Principles
listed in SEPP (Rural
Lands) 2008 are
addressed above.
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Policy (Rural Lands)
2008.

(4)

A planning proposal to which clauses 3(a) or 3(b)

apply must:

(a) Be consistent with any
applicable strategic plan,
including regional and
district plans endorsed by
the Secretary of the
Department of Planning
and Environment, and
any applicable local
strategic planning
statement.

The Planning Proposal is
not the result of a strategic
study or report. However,
the Planning Proposal will
enable a range of
outcomes of the Hunter
Regional Plan 2036 which
sets out principles for
settlements and the Port
Stephens Planning
Strategy as outlined in
Part 3 of this report. Part 3
of this report further
outlines the strategic
merits of this Planning
Proposal in accordance
with the DPIE Guide.

(b) Consider the
significance of agriculture
and primary production to
the State and rural
communities.

The site is presently not
utilised nor considered
suitable for rural
purposes. Further detail is
provided under SEPP
(Rural Lands) 2008.

(c) Identify and protect
environmental values,
including, but not limited
to, maintaining
biodiversity, the protection
of native vegetation,
cultural heritage, and the
importance of water
resources.

The site contains
preferred koala habitat
and its associated buffer
(refer SEPP 44 Koala
Habitat Protection in this
proposal).

The Planning Proposal will
not impact on vegetated
areas within the area
currently under
construction. A due
diligence flora and fauna
assessment and a
Vegetation Management
Plan (VMP) were
prepared for Lot 25 DP
852410. (Refer
Attachments 4 and 5) for
more detail).

Council environmental

planners have considered
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all ecological aspects of
the Planning Proposal and
do not identify matters that
can be considered an
impediment for
progression to Gateway.

(d) Consider the natural
and physical constraints
of the land, including but
not limited to, topography,
size, location, water
availability and ground
and soil conditions.

There are no natural or
physical constraints of the
land that would prevent
the proposal.

(e) Promote opportunities
for investment in
productive, diversified,
innovative and
sustainable rural
economic activities.

The site is presently not
utilised nor considered
suitable for rural
purposes. Further detail is
provided under SEPP
(Rural Lands) 2008.

(f) Support farmers in
exercising their right to
farm.

The site is presently not
utilised nor considered
suitable for rural
purposes. Further detail is
provided under SEPP
(Rural Lands) 2008.

(g) Prioritise efforts and
consider measures to
minimise the
fragmentation of rural
land and reduce the risk
of land use conflict,
particularly between
residential land uses and
other rural land uses.

The site is presently not
utilised nor considered
suitable for rural
purposes.

The site is considered to
have limited agricultural
production value taking
into consideration historic
land practices (sand
mining and bulk
earthworks) and its
relationship to adjacent
land holdings.

(h) Consider State
significant agricultural
land identified in State
Environmental Planning
Policy (Primary
Production and Rural
Development) 2019 for
the purpose of ensuring
the ongoing viability of
this land.

The site is presently not
utilised nor considered
suitable for rural
purposes.

The site is considered to
have limited agricultural
production value taking
into consideration historic
land practices (sand

38
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mining and bulk
earthworks).

(i) consider the social,
economic and
environmental interests of
the community.

The proposal provides

opportunity to increase
housing diversity within
the Port Stephens LGA
and to provide greater

housing choice

(5)

A planning proposal to which clause 3(b) applies

must demonstrate that it:

(a) is consistent with the
priority of minimising rural
land fragmentation and
land use conflict,
particularly between
residential and other rural
land uses

The site is presently not
utilised nor considered
suitable for rural
purposes. Further detail is
provided under SEPP
(Rural Lands) 2008.

(b) will not adversely
affect the operation and
viability of existing and
future rural land uses and
related enterprises,
including supporting
infrastructure and facilities
that are essential to rural
industries or supply
chains

The site is presently not
utilised nor considered
suitable for rural
purposes. Further detail is
provided under SEPP
(Rural Lands) 2008.

(c) where it is for rural

residential purposes:

1. is appropriately
located taking account
of the availability of
human services, utility
infrastructure,
transport and
proximity to existing
centres

2. is necessary taking
account of existing
and future demand
and supply of rural
residential land.

N/A

2. ENVIRONMENT AND HERITAGE

2.2 Coastal

Management

The objective of this
direction is to protect and
manage coastal areas of
NSW.

Appropriate consideration
has been given to the
protection of coastal use
areas and the provisions
of the Coastal
Management Act, 2016

39

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

62




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 2 - ATTACHMENT 3

PLANNING PROPOSAL.

and associated guidelines
and documents.

Refer to SEPP (Coastal
Management) 2018 in the
above.

2.3 Heritage

Conservation

Requires relevant
planning proposals to
contain provisions to
facilitate the conservation
of items, areas, objects
and places of
environmental heritage
significance and
indigenous heritage
significance.

The subject site is not
identified on PSLEP 2013
mapping as containing
any items of
archaeological or general
heritage significance, nor
is it located within a
heritage conservation
area.

The results of an
Aboriginal Heritage
Information Management
System (AHIMS) search
for the subject site
indicate that there are no
Aboriginal sites or
Aboriginal places
recorded or declared in or
near the subject site.
(Refer Attachment 6).

Any development on the
site is unlikely to result in
adverse impacts in
relation to the heritage
significance of the site.

3. HOUSING, INFRASTRUCTURE AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Zones

3.1 Residential

Encourage a variety and
choice of housing types to
provide for existing and
future housing needs,
make efficient use of
existing infrastructure and
services and ensure that
new housing has
appropriate access to
infrastructure and
services, and minimise
the impact of residential
development on the
environment and resource
lands.

The Planning Proposal will
increase housing choice
and variety in the Anna
Bay locality and the Port
Stephens LGA by
providing opportunity for
housing supported by
quality community
facilities.

Further, the proposal
makes efficient use of
existing and future
infrastructure to service
the proposed
development.

40
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The compact form of
development proposed
will reduce the
consumption of land for
housing and associated
urban development on the
urban fringe, and will be of
good design.

Overall, the proposed
development is
considered to be of minor
strategic significance and
is supportable noting the
specific merits of the site,
as discussed elsewhere in
this Planning Proposal.
Part 3 of this report
outlines the strategic
merits of this Planning
Proposal in accordance
with the DPIE Guide.

3.2 Caravan
Parks and
Manufactured
Home Estates.

3.2 Caravan Parks and
Manufactured Home
Estates

The objectives of this
direction are:

(a) to provide for a variety
of housing types, and

(b) to provide
opportunities for caravan
parks and manufactured
home estates.

As the site is zoned RU2
Rural Landscape pursuant
to the PSLEP, any
development on the site is
currently excluded from
SEPP 36.

Depending on the
potential amendments to
the PSLEP, SEPP 36 may
apply to future
development applications
on the site.

Clause 9 of the SEPP
identifies matters that are
to be considered by
councils. Further,
Ministerial Direction 3.2
requires that a planning
authority take into account
the principles listed in
clause 9 of SEPP 36.

The Planning proposal is
consistent with the
principles in SEPP 36,
including principles related

M
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to heritage and ecology,
provision of infrastructure
and services, adequate
access to transport
services, sufficient
community facilities and
services.

These matters have been
addressed in detail
elsewhere in this report.

It is considered that the
ability to develop the
subject land for this
purpose is justified based
on the specific merits of
the site, namely, the fact
that part of the subject
land has existing use
rights as a caravan park
and current approval over
that land permits 270 long
term moveable dwelling
sites which is a
comparable and
compatible development
to a manufactured home
estate.

Further, the ability to
expand this form of
development provides
opportunity for the sharing
of community facilities and
make use of existing
infrastructure investment.

3.4 Integrating
Land Use
and
Transport

The objective of this
direction is to ensure that
urban structures, building
forms, land use locations,
development designs
subdivision and street
layouts achieve the
sustainable transport
objectives.

The site is accessed from
Latitude Drive which
extends along the
northern boundary of Lot
25 DP 852410 and
through Lot 1 DP
1225542. Latitude Drive
intersects with Nelson Bay
Road to the west of the
subject site.

The intersection of
Latitude Drive and Nelson
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Bay Road was upgraded
to cater for the traffic
demand resulting from the
approved development on
the site.

The existing development
is required to provide a
bus service, using a 12-
seater minibus, for
transport to nearby local
centres. This service can
be extended to include
any proposed
development of Lot 25.

4. HAZARD AND R

ISK

4.1 Acid Sulfate
Soils

The objective of this
direction is to avoid
significant adverse
environmental impacts
from the use of land that
has a probability of
containing acid sulphate
soils.

Acid sulfate soils were
considered and deemed
appropriate across Lots 2
and 4 DP398888, Lot 2
DP 1204319 and Lot 1 DP
1225542 as part of the
approval for the existing
development and currently
under construction on the
site.

It is expected that any
acid sulfate soils
encountered within Lot 25
DP 852410 can be readily
remediated through
standard procedures.

Further assessment of
acid sulfate soils will be
undertaken post-Gateway
stage.

4.3 Flood Prone
Land

Applies requirements for
planning proposals that
seek to create, remove or
alter a zone or a provision
that affects flood prone
land except where non-
compliance is of minor
significance in the opinion
of the Secretary of the
NSW Department of
Planning and

The site is identified in the
PSLEP as being located
within a flood planning
area.

The current development
on Lots 2 and 4
DP398888, Lot 2 DP
1204319 and Lot 1 DP
1225542 includes fill to
mitigate flood impacts on

development.
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Protection
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]'E'rii&'rdni-éﬁﬁ'{'n}
nicmenated delegate )

The objectives of this
diréction afe 1o protecd
life, property and the
environment from bush
fire hazards, by
discouraging the
establishment of
incompabible land uses in
bush fire prone areas, (o
Efcourdge S0
managemeant of bush fire
prone anreas.

Fropecied flooding across
Lot 25 is limited to areas

| in the south sastem
| portion of the lot.

It is expacied that flooding
can be addressad on the

o subject site through filling

in a manner which will not
adversely affect the flow
of floodwaters in the
locality or increase flood
fisks 1o surrounding

| properties.

The Planning Proposal
relates 1o bushfire prone
land,

The applicant states that
the primary protection of
the proposed
davelopment from
bushfire would be via the
establishment of Assel
Protection Zones (APZ's),
consistent with the
“Planning for Bushfire
Protection” guidelines,

The concept plan for the
proposed development,
provided by the
proponent, includes asset
profection Zonas adjacent
fo areas of high bushfire
mak.

A perimeter road and
alternate emergency
access is provided in the
concept plan to ensure
consistency with planning
for bushfire protection
MEasures.

It is considered that no
assessment i5 reguired
pre=-Gateway and

| appropriate consultation
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will be undertaken should
gateway determination be
issued.

5. REGIONAL PLANNING

5.10
Implementation
of Regional
Plans

The objective of this
direction is to give legal
effect to the vision, land
use strategy, policies,
outcomes and actions
contained in regional
plans.

The Hunter Regional Plan
20136 (HRP) applies to
the proposal and is
addressed elsewhere in
this proposal (Section B -
Q3).

6. LOCAL PLAN M

AKING

6.1 Approval and
Referral
Requirements

The objective of this
direction is to ensure that
LEP provisions encourage
the efficient and
appropriate assessment of

development.

The proposed
amendments to the
PSLEP do not include
provisions that require
concurrence, consultation
or referral.

Section C — Environmental, social and economic impact

Q7. Is there any likelihood that critical habitat or threatened species,
populations or ecological communities, or their habitats, will be
adversely affected as a result of the proposal?

Areas of Lots 2 and 4 DP 398888, Lot 2 DP 1204319 and Lot 1 DP 1225542
have been partially cleared of vegetation for the approved development, with
remnant vegetation located toward the north of Lot 2 DP 398888 and south of

Lot 4 DP 398888. The Planning Proposal will not impact on vegetated areas

within these lots.

Lot 25 retains some vegetated areas toward its southern boundary

A due diligence flora and fauna assessment undertaken across Lot 25 DP
852410 (refer Attachment 4) indicates that the majority of the site occurs as
regrowth shrubland dominated by species such as Leptospermum laevigatum
(Coastal Tea-tree), Acacia longifolia (Sydney Golden Wattle) and Dodonaea
triquetra (Common Hop Bush).

Such species are colonisers and typical of regrowth vegetation, however
larger specimens of slower-growing species such as Banksia serrata (Old
Man Banksia) suggests that at least some areas of regrowth have been
established for at least several decades (Google Earth imagery shows the
majority of the site including these areas as vegetated in 2002).

The flora and fauna assessment suggests that some of these patches may
have constituted the Coastal Sand Apple — Blackbutt Forest mapped by
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LHCCREMS in 2000. Althcugh predominanthy native, areas were infiltrated
with dense infestations of Lantana camara (Lantana) and other exofics.

Smaller patches along the southern and eastern penphery included sem: -
mature and mature individuals of Evcalyptus robusta (Swamp Mahogany),
Melaleuca quinguenenia (Broad-leafed Paperbark) and Casuarina glauca
(Swamp Cak), Such areas were identified as disturbed varnants of Swamp
Mahogany — Paperbark Forest. This community comesponds with the “Swamp
Sclerophyll Faorest on Coastal Floodplains®™ EEC.

A low-lying patch of vegetation in the scuth-east of the site is obviously
subjected to periodic inundation, with the groundcover dominated by sedges
such as Gahnia sp. [Saw-sedge). An emergent canepy of Eucalypls includes
Swamp Mahogany, and the area is simiarly considered lo constitule a
disturbed variant of the Swamp Sclerophyll Forest EEC,

The ramaindar of the site exists as cleared grasslands with some isolated
treas (both native and exotic) prevailing. Species including Ptendium
asculenium (Bracken], Senecio madagascanensis (Firewead), Andropogon
virginicues (Whiskey Grass) and Briza major (Quaking Grass) were prevalent,
wilh isolated irees incisding Broad-leafed Paperbark and Pinus radiata
(Monterey Pine)

A vegetation map for lot 25 is previded as Figure 8.
P A |

Figure 8. Vegelaticn Map
Source: Dus Ciigence Advice — Anderson Ernvironmant and Planning
{27006

A Vegetation Managemeant Plan (WVMP) was prepared for Lot 25 DP B52410 to
fulfil conditions of consent for earthworks approsed under D& 182017/282.
The YMP is enclosed as Attachmant 5. The Yegetation Management Plan
proposes vegetaton management areas totalling approximately 3.8ha,
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adjacent fo the southern and eastern boundaries of Lot 25 DPF 852410, as
shiowwn in Figura 9.

Figure 3. Yegetation Management Areas - Lot 25 DP 852410
Source: Vegelation Management Pian AEP Rel 1496 - July 2017

Portions of the sfe, in the north, south and east are identfied on the Port
Stephens Koala Habitat Planning Map as containing prefemed koala habital,
wilh an associated 20m buffer (refer Figure 10},

Hnurn 10, Extract from the Port Stephens Koala Habitat Planning Map
Source: Por Stephens Koals Habitat Planning Map (February 2007

4f
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The subject sife is mapped on the M5W Biodiversity Value Map as partly
containing biodnersity vaklues (refer Figure 11).
———

Figwre 11, Extract from NSW Blodiversity Value Map
Saurce: hitpa:iwenw Imbe nsw. gov.au'Mapsindex, html Peewe=EVMap
— aceessed 21/08/2018

The subject site is atso shown on the NSW Natnee Vegetation Regulatory Map
as containing sensithve regulated land,
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Source: https://lwww.Imbc.nsw.gov.au/Maps/index.html?viewer=NVRMap
— (accessed 21/06/2018)

It is recommended that an assessment of the potential credit liability
generated by the future development is investigated and an offset strategy for
achieving these credit requirements be provided. This strategy can be
undertaken post-Gateway and must be prepared in accordance with the
requirements under the NSW Biodiversity Offsets Scheme.

Q8. Are there any other likely environmental effects as a result of the
planning proposal and how are they proposed to be managed?

Technical studies have been undertaken (or will be undertaken at the post-
Gateway stage) to assess the likely environmental effects resulting from the
Planning Proposal and how these effects are proposed to be managed. The
following matters are considered.

Contamination

Contamination investigations previously undertaken across the site indicate
that the site was mined for mineral sands in the early 1970's. Due to former
sand mining activities on the site, there is potential for contamination to occur
across the site.

Contamination across Lots 2 and 4 DP 398888, Lot 2 DP 1204319 and Lot 1
DP 1225542 has been assessed as part of the approval (DA 16/2009/257; as
amended) and is considered to have been appropriately dealt with via
conditions of consent for the relevant approvals.

An assessment of contamination across Lot 25 DP 852410 will be undertaken
and provided to accompany the Planning Proposal at the post-Gateway stage.
It is expected that contamination across Lot 25 DP 582410 can be
appropriately dealt with in a similar manner to which it was controlled over
Lots 2 and 4 DP 852410, Lot 2 DP 1204319 and Lot 1 DP 1225542.

Hydrology and Water Management

There are a number of gullies or creek lines that run through the site that will
be considered as prescribed watercourses. Development within 40 metres of
a prescribed watercourse requires approval from the NSW Office of Water.
Any future development on the site will therefore be integrated development
and will require referral to the NSW Office of Water.

Any new works associated with the proposed development on Lot 25 DP
852410 are likely to be clear of the watercourses mapped on the site.
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Bushfire Risk

The subject site is identified as containing bushfire vegetation Category 1 and
its associated buffer (refer Figure 12). The proposed development would
therefore be integrated development and require referral to the Rural Fire
Service for consideration.

A Bushfire Threat Assessment for the proposed development will be carried
out at the post-Gateway stage. The primary protection of the proposed
development from bushfire would be via the establishment of Asset Protection
Zones (APZ's) consistent with the “Planning for Bushfire Protection”
guidelines.

The concept plan, provided by the proponent, for the proposed development
within Lot 25 DP852410, enclosed as Attachment 2, includes asset
protection zones adjacent to areas of high bushfire risk, illustrating that the
proposed development can accommodate the bushfire hazard present on the
site.

The concept design incorporates the principle of providing a perimeter road
where possible, as this provides the best access for fire fighting vehicles.

Flooding

The site is mapped in the PSLEP as being located within a flood planning
level. It is noted that flooding has been considered and addressed within Lots
2and 4, Lot 2 DP 1204319 and Lot 1 DP 1225542 as part of approved
development on the site (DA 16/2009/257). It is considered that flooding
within Lot 25 DP 852410 can be addressed in a similar manner.

A specialist assessment of flood impact can be provided at the post-Gateway
stage if required.

Indigenous Cultural Heritage

An Aboriginal Heritage Information Management System (AHIMS) search of
the subject site and surrounds was undertaken. The results of the AHIMS
search indicate that there are no Aboriginal sites or Aboriginal places
recorded or declared in or near the subject site. A copy of the results of the
AHIMS search are included as Attachment 6.

It is noted that the subject site has a history of sand mining and has been
extensively disturbed by previously activities. As such, it is considered that
there is a very low likelihood of items of Aboriginal cultural heritage being
present on the site.

If necessary, an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment can be carried out
over the site and provided at the post-Gateway stage.
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Traffic and Transport

Access to the site is off the recently constructed Latitude Drive which extends
along the northern boundary of Lot 25 DP 852410 and through Lot 1 DP
1225542, meeting Nelson Bay Road to the west of the subject site. Nelson
Bay Road is the main arterial link connecting Newcastle to Williamtown and
the Tomaree Peninsula.

The intersection of Latitude Drive and Nelson Bay Road was recently
upgraded to cater for the traffic demand resulting from the approved caravan
park within the site.

The existing road network which surrounds the site is considered appropriate
to accommodate any future development on Lot 25 DP 852410.

Services

Public utility services including telecommunications, gas, electricity and water
will be available to serve future development on the site.

Q9. Has the planning proposal adequately addressed any social and
economic effects?

Anticipated social and economic effects are addressed below.
Social Effects

A range of social benefits associated with the development of the site are
anticipated, including:

* Additional housing choices in the Anna Bay and the Port Stephens LGA
which caters for future population growth and responds to an ageing
population in Port Stephens.

o Efficient use of community facilities and services provided at an existing
approved development.

* Provide a critical mass which will enhance the viability of new services,
facilities, and public transport in the Anna Bay area.

Economic Effects

A range of economic benefits associated with the development of the site are
anticipated, including:

= Stimulation of local economic activity through increased local spending.

*  Employment through construction and future maintenance of the
development, and direct employment of employees servicing the
development.

* Contribution toward investment in social infrastructure in the surrounding
locality via additional funding through the Section 94 Contribution Plan.
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* Provision of additional dwellings with easy access to major employment
precincts such as Newcastle Airport and Tomago.

Section D — State and Commonwealth interests
Q10. Is there adequate public infrastructure for the planning proposal?

The site is accessed off Latitude Drive which extends along the northern
boundary of Lot 25 DP 852410 and through Lot 1 DP 1225542, Latitude Drive
intersects with Nelson Bay Road to the west of the subject site.

Nelson Bay Road is a State road and is the main arterial link connecting
Newcastle to Williamtown and the Tomaree Peninsula. It carries both local
and tourist traffic visiting the Nelson Bay area and is the only route servicing
the Tomaree Peninsula and the various townships between Newcastle and
Nelson Bay.

The intersection of Latitude Drive and Nelson Bay Road was recently
upgraded to cater for the traffic demand resulting from the approved
development within the site.

The proposed extension of this development is proposed be serviced by this
infrastructure, subject to development consent.

Public utility services including telecommunications, gas, electricity and water
will be available to serve any development on the site. Consultation with the
service providers will occur post-Gateway, as the Planning Proposal
progresses.

Q11. What are the views of state and Commonwealth public authorities
consulted in accordance with the Gateway determination?

This matter will be considered further after this Planning Proposal progresses
through Gateway.

Consultation with relevant State and Commonwealth agencies can be
undertaken following a Gateway Determination. It is envisaged that the
following agencies will be consulted with:

* NSW Roads and Maritime Services;

* Department of Primary Industries;

« NSW Rural Fire Services;

*  Worimi Local Aboriginal Land Council.
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PART 4 - Mlpping

There are a number af potential amendments thal could be made to the
FSLEP 2013 to facilitate the cutcomes of the Planning Proposal. As outlined
above, some mechanisms may relate to the application of State policies.
Othar potential amendments may include site specific local provisions to
pemmdt and regulate additonal uses.

DPIE provides gu.d:m:e to councils that i is not necessary e Iﬂﬂnlifﬁr the
!-l.'-ltl:l"ﬂ af amendments (o a local emaranmental plan pnos o a Eﬂt‘«"«'ij‘
defermination if the objectives and oulcomes have been dentified

The necessary amendments o the FELEP 2013 to achieve these cutcomes
will be identfied in consullation with DPIE, should a Gateway determinaticn
be issued

Maps to support the Flanning Proposal will be prepared after the Gateway
Determinaticn, The existing zoning of the site is RIUZ Rural Landscape.

Figwre 13, Existing zoning of the site
Saurce. PSLEP - accesssed 21 /06/2018

A minimum lot size of 20ba currently applies 1o the subjedt site.

=3
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Figure 14, Existing lot size controls for the subject site
Source: PSLEP - accessed 210062018

PART 5 - Community consultation

Community consultation will be undertaken in accordance with a future
Gateway Determination,

Matice of the public exhibition period will be placed in the local newspaper,
The Exarminer. The axhibition material will be on display at the following
locations during nomal business hours:

Council's Administration Building, 116 Adelaide Streef, Raymond Terrace,
Raymaond Terrace Library, Port Stephens Streel. Raymond Terrace;
Tormaree Library, Town Centre Clrewil, Salamander Bay,

Medowie Communily Centre, Comner of Medowie and Ferodale Streets,
Medowe.

The Planning Proposal will also be avaitable on Councls website,
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PART & - Project timeline

The additional technical information, sludies and investigations identified in
the Planning Proposal will be compleled a8 required, within the expecied
timeframes isted below, should the Planning Proposal recelve a Gateway
detemmination

»  Consultation with DPIE as to the potential amendments to the PSLEP
2013

* Maps, as required, to support the amendments to the PSLEP 2013;

= An investigation of the site by an appropaately gualified person in
accordance wilh the Guidelines for Koala Habitat Asseassment presented
in Appendix § of the CEPob;

. Further assessment of contamination across the site;

] A detailed flora & fauna assessment;

L An assessment of the potential credst labiity generated by the fulure

development and an offset strategy for achieving these credit

requirements, in aceordance with the requirements under the NSW

Bicdiversity Offsets Scheme;

Assessment of acid sulfate soils across Lot 25 DPE52410,

A bushifire threat assessment;

A specialist assessment of flood mpact;

Amy technical information, stedies, or investigations as determined by a

future Gateway determination.

The Planning Froposal s expected to be reported to Council following the
completion of the public exhibition peried. The following timetable = proposed:

Feb March | Apr |May |June July Aug  Sept
____ (2020 | 2020 | 2020 | 2020 | 2020 | 2020 | 2020 | 2020
Galteway
Determination
Studies |

Agency |
 Consultation |
Public
_ Exhibition |
Courncil | |
Parfiamentary | | | |
Counsel | | |

=]

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 78




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 2 - ATTACHMENT 3 PLANNING PROPOSAL.

Attachments

Attachment one — Locality Plan

Attachment two — Concept Plan

Attachment three — Preliminary site investigation and acid sulfate assessment
Attachment four — Ecological due diligence

Attachment five — Vegetation management plan

Attachment six -  Aboriginal Heritage Information Management System (AHIMS)

o6
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Attachment One - Locality Plan

Locality Plan - Latitude Drive - Nelson Bay Road, Anna Bay
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Attachment Two — Concept Development Plan

o8
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Proposed amendment to Port Stephens Local
Environmental Plan 2013

Rezoning of 2179 - 2213 Pacific Highway, Heatherbrae ‘h F(_‘}ET 5'|'EP|-| ENS
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FILE NUMBERS

Council: 58-2019-4-1

Department: To be provided at Gateway Determination.

SUMMARY

Subject land: Lot 4211, DP 747474, 2179 Pacific Highway
Heatherbrae;
Lot 53, DP 534043, 2199 Pacific Highway,
Heatherbrae;

Part Lot 513, DP 587997, 2207 Pacific
Highway, Heatherbrae;

Part Lot 512, DP 587997, 2209 Pacific
Highway, Heatherbrae; and

Lot 511, DP 587997, 2213 Pacific Highway,

Heatherbrae.
Proponent: Perception Planning on behalf of landowners
Proposed changes: To amend the Port Stephens Local

Environmental Plan to rezone the land from
RU2 Rural Landscape to B5 Business
Development and remove identification of the
site as AB2 - 20ha.

Area of land: 5.9ha

BACKGROUND

The Raymond Terrace & Heatherbrae Strategy (the Strategy) is a strategic
plan produced by Council that was funded by the NSW Department of
Planning, Industry and Environment. The vision of the Strategy is ‘A strong
regional centre and a great place to live work and play’ (p.10). The strategy
contains a number of directions and specific actions that seek to facilitate
Heatherbrae as the key destination for ‘bulky goods premises’ in the Port
Stephens Local Government Area (LGA). This direction was informed by the
Hill PDA, 2012, ‘Raymond Terrace and Heatherbrae Economic Land Use
Study’ that identified that there is an undersupply of bulky goods (pp. 75-77).

In response to the direction provided by this Strategy, an informal meeting
took place at Council on 4 December 2018 to discuss the rezoning of 2179
Pacific Highway Heatherbrae from RU2 — Rural Landscape to B5 — Business
Development. Although this site is not specifically identified in the Strategy
(p.8), it is considered to be consistent with the direction of the Strategy given
its location within Heatherbrae. Furthermore, it is understood that Council has
reached out to the landowners of the specific land identified in the Strategy on
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a number of occasions, but a planning proposal is not the landowners focus
due to the existing uses of the land (i.e. caravan park, hotel, etc.).

The key issues discussed at this meeting and how the planning proposal has
been developed to respond to the key matters is outlined in the following

table:

No

Issues

Response

1

Heatherbrae Bypass — It is noted
that the site is unlikely to continue
its direct frontage to the Pacific
Highway should the Heatherbrae
Bypass be constructed. These
arrangements are acknowledged
in the Raymond Terrace and
Heatherbrae Strategy (RTHS),
which seeks to reinforce
Heatherbrae as a destination for
bulky goods.

This planning proposal seeks to facilitate
Heatherbrae as a destination for bulky
goods. After the Heatherbrae Bypass is
constructed, it is expected that highway
traffic will reduce the demand for
development, such as service stations
and takeaway food. A bulky goods facility
would respond to this changing market
and could facilitate increased commerce
in Heatherbrae.

Pacific Highway Access — Any
access arrangement negotiated
with the Roads and Maritime
Services to the Pacific Highway
should include consultation with
Council.

Initial consultation has taken place with
the RMS and a subsequent Traffic
Impact Assessment (TIA) has been
undertaken (ATTACHMENT 6). The TIA
discusses that the most appropriate
intersection option would be traffic lights,
which the RMS have identified as an
appropriate intersection treatment. A
copy of the RMS comments are provided
as (ATTACHMENT 7). It must be noted
that the existing access arrangements
would remain unchanged until a
development application for subdivision
has been approved by Council. The
rezoning process simply gives the land
development potential for a development
application to be prepared. Owners of the
direct frontage lots expressly seek to
retain access post rezoning. Rights are
otherwise reserved regarding any future
development application requiring
alternative access arrangements.

Bulky Goods — A key aspect of
the planning proposal will be the
strategic justification of the site for
bulky goods. As noted, Council
has identified land in the RTHS
(Action 2) to be rezoned from
RU2 - Rural Landscape to B5 —
Business Development

A planning proposal identifying an
alternate site should provide
justification for its suitability over
the option identified in the RTHS.
Consideration should also be

Since meeting with Council, discussions
have been held with neighbouring
landowners to produce an expanded
planning proposal that now covers five
properties or 5.9ha in total land area. The
land identified by the Strategy (which
contains a hotel and equestrian centre),
differs to this land which contains a small
number of detached dwellings. The
limited number of existing landowners
means that it is significantly more
feasible to develop compared to the land
identified by the Strategy. Furthermore,
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given to the land area to be
rezoned given that 4.5ha is
identified for rezoning to B5 —
Business Development in the
RTHS and the site proposed is
approximately 1.8ha.

the proposed traffic light intersection
treatment would improve the existing
traffic situation, as it would allow for the
existing U-Turn Bay adjacent to the site
and the U-Turn Bay further to the south
to be closed.

4 Flooding — The land is mapped as
being flood prone land. Any
planning proposal should give
consideration to Ministerial
Direction 4.3 — Flood Prone Land,
including the potential
vulnerabilities of any relevant land
uses that would be permitted in
the proposed zone (e.g. childcare
centres).

The site is mapped as flood prone land.
The planning proposal only seeks to
rezone land that is ‘Minimal Risk Flood
Prone Land’ (i.e. land that is above the
1/100 Event, but below the below the
Probable Maximum Flood). At the
meeting with Council, this was discussed
with the Council Flood Engineers. This
approach was considered to be
consistent with the approach taken for
commercial/industrial development
across Port Stephens. The approach to
commercial/industrial development on
flood prone land is outlined within the
Port Stephens Development Control Plan
2014 (B5 — Flooding).

5 Services — Water and sewer
servicing should be resolved with
Hunter Water Corporation.

Reticulated water is available within the
Pacific Highway road reserve. An on-site
solution for sewer will need to be
developed at the development
application stage which will be consistent
with the Port Stephens Development
Assessment Framework for On-Site
Sewerage. A recent example of on-site
solution is provided by the Bunnings
Development on the opposing eastern
side of the Pacific Highway.

5] Pre-Lodgement Meeting — A pre-
lodgement meeting be arranged
with Council staff to provide
further guidance and advice on
the planning proposal, including
the requirements for lodgement
and appropriate fees,

A pre-lodgement meeting tock place with
Council on 1 August 2019. The matters
discussed at this meeting and an
appropriate response is provided below.

At the meeting with Council on 1 August 2019, the following matters were
discussed in relation to the draft planning proposal that was provided to

Council:

1. Flooding = There is an inconsistency in terminology in the ‘Site
Description’ and ‘Ministerial Direction’ sections. Please ensure
references to flood prone land and flood planning area are consistent.

2. Heatherbrae Bypass — The Planning Proposal should consider the
impact of the planned M1 Extension to Raymond Terrace (i.e.

Heatherbrae Bypass).

3. Mapping — Please correct any discrepancies in the mapped boundary
of the proposal in Figures 3 and 4.
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This planning proposal has been updated to address the above feedback.

As identified in this Planning Proposal, the following additional investigations
will be provided following a Gateway determination:

. Site Survey

. Preliminary Contamination Report
. Preliminary ecological Assessment
. Preliminary Servicing Inquiry

SITE

The site is located within Heatherbrae, which is 22km to the north of the
Regional City of Newcastle and 8.6km from the Port Stephens Regional
Centre of Raymond Terrace.

Raymond Terrace and the neighbouring centre of Heatherbrae are now home
to over 12,000 people. Heatherbrae is a mixture of residential, commercial
and industrial uses, which includes hotels, service stations, take-away food
premises, Weathertex and bulky goods premises.

Heatherbrae has historically been characterised by industrial development
(e.g. Weathertex) and as a major highway service centre located on the
Pacific Highway, which is the major arterial road along the eastern coast of
Australia. More recently, Heatherbrae has seen development for bulky goods
premises in the form of Bunnings Warehouse and Boating, Fishing &
Camping (BCF). Further, the Regional Centre for Jayco is now also located at
Heatherbrae.

The development of the Port Stephens Local Environmental Plan 2013 (the
LEP) resulted in the rezoning of a number of sites to B5 — Business
Development, which was intended to facilitate bulky goods premises.
However, the majority of these sites contain existing buildings on small lots,
which is not conducive to the large floorspace and parking that is required for
these uses, hence these lots are being redeveloped rather than purpose
developed.

The site does not contain native vegetation or grasses. It is mapped as
Bushfire Prone Land (BPL) due to the existing vegetation on the eastern side
of the Pacific Highway. The most western part of the site is mapped as Flood
Prone Land, which does not form part of the planning proposal. In line with
most land in Port Stephens, the site is mapped as Acid Sulfate Soils (ASS) —
Class 4.

The Pacific Highway forms the eastern boundary of the site, which is a
classified Highway (SH 10) under the care and control of NSW Roads and
Maritime Services (NSW RMS). It forms part of the north-south movements
around the site providing access to the North Coast, Hunter Valley, Central
Coast and Sydney and is an important link in the NSW arterial road (highway)
network.
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The site is relatively free of constraints and the major key matter relates to
discussion with the RMS about appropriate site access. This is consistent with
the previous approach taken in relation to a recent planning proposal at Motto
Farm Motel, which forms part of the LEP (Schedule 1 (2A) — Use of certain
land at Heatherbrae).

Figure 1 (page 7) identifies the subject land outlined in blue.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

89




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 3 PLANNING PROPOSAL.

Figure 1 - Site Plan (Source: High definition Design, 2019)
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PART 1 - Objectives or intended outcomes

The Planning Proposal seeks to amend the Port Stephens Local
Environmental Plan to enable bulky goods development at 2179, 2199, 2207,
2209 and 2213 to facilitate Heatherbrae in becoming a bulky goods
destination.

PART 2 — Explanation of provisions

The objectives of the Planning Proposal will be achieved by the following
amendments to the Port Stephens Local Environmental Plan 2013:

= Amend Land Zoning Map Sheet LZN_002) (ATTACHMENT 1) for Lot
4211, DP 747474, Lot 53, DP 534043, Part Lot 513, DP 587997, Part
Lot 512, DP 587997 and Lot 511, DP 587997 from RU2 Rural
Landscape to B5 Business Development Zone (ATTACHMENT 2)

= Amend Lot Size Map Sheet LSZ_022 (ATTACHMENT 3) to remove
the identification of the site as 20ha (ATTACHMENT 4)

PART 3 - Justification

Section A — Need for the planning proposal
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Figure 2 — Identification of the site in the Greater Newcastle Metropolitan

Plan (page 10)
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Figure 3 - Identification of the site in the Port Stephens Planning Strategy (page 4)
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Figure 4 - Identification of the site in the Raymond Terrace and Heatherbrae Strategy (page 51)
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Figure 5 - Proposed Land-Use Zoning (Source: NearMap, 2019)
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Q1. Is the planning proposal a result of any strategic study or report?

The proposal is the result of the Raymond Terrace and Heatherbrae Strategy,
which contains a number of directions and actions that seek to facilitate
Heatherbrae as the key destination for ‘bulky goods premises’ in the Port
Stephens. This direction was informed by the Hill PDA, 2012, ‘Raymond
Terrace and Heatherbrae Economic Land Use Study’ that identified that there
is an undersupply of bulky goods (pp. 75-77).

The Hill PDA Study identified that the opportunity exists for Heatherbrae to
position itself as a leading destination for bulky goods shopping in the LGA.
Based on the undertaken retail expenditure modelling, sufficient demand
exists to support approximately an additional bulky goods floorspace of:

¢ 5,000sgm by 2016 (1.3ha of land);
e 8,200sgm by 2021 (2.1ha of land); and
¢ 12,000sgm by 2031.

The Port Stephens Local Environmental Plan 2013 did not provide additional
lands to bulky goods premises at Heatherbrae when it was developed. This
planning proposal aims to assist the above demand by gaining rezoning in
2020 and a subsequent subdivision approval and development
commencement by 2021.

The Planning Proposal will enable the direction of the Raymond Terrace and
Heatherbrae Strategy to Heatherbrae as a bulky goods destination. From this,
it can be seen that the planning proposal falls in line with the intent of the
Strategy document adopted by Port Stephens Council, which was informed by
economic analysis completed by Hill PDA.

Q2. Isthe planning proposal the best means of achieving the objectives
or intended outcomes, or is there a better way?

In order to achieve the objective, the following options were considered:

a. List a Schedule 1 — Rather than rezone the land, list as an Additional
Permitted Use for bulky goods premises to be permissible with consent
under Schedule 1.

This option is considered less desirable than the option proposed under Part 2
— Explanation of Provisions because it would be inconsistent with the NSW
Government, N/A, ‘Planning Circular — Schedule 1°.

b. Amend the Zone from RU2 — Rural Landscape to B5 — Business
Development for the entire identified lots (i.e. including flood prone
land).
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Rezoning the entire lots would result in land that is below the Flood Planning
Level, which would be inconsistent with Ministerial Direction 4.3 - Flood
Prone Land under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

c. Amend the Zone from RU2 - Rural Landscape to B5 — Business
Development for the part of the identified lots not identified as being
flood prone land.

This option is considered the most desirable and as a result it is proposed

under Part 2 — Explanation of provisions. It allows for the land not identified as
flood prone land to be developed for bulky goods premises.

Section B — Relationship to strategic planning framework

Q3. a) Will the planning proposal give effect to the objectives and
actions of the Hunter Regional Plan or Greater Newcastle
Metropolitan Plan (or any exhibited draft plans that have been
prepared to replace these)?

The relevant regional and sub-regional strategies considered are:

Hunter Regional Plan 2036

The Hunter Regional Plan 2036 (the Plan) states that it will guide the NSW
Government’s land use planning policies and decisions over the next 20 years
(p.4). The Plan identifies Heatherbrae as a significant employment land
cluster and Raymond Terrace as a ‘centre’ within the Port Stephens LGA.

The most relevant directions from the Hunter Regicnal Plan include:

- Direction 6 — Grow the economy of MidCoast and Port Stephens; and
- Direction 23 — Grow centres and renewal corridors.

The planning proposal is generally consistent with these directions of the
Hunter Regional Plan because it will lead to short term jobs during
construction and long-term jobs once businesses are established as a result
of the zoning change.

This zoning change will reinforce the role of Heatherbrae as the key
destination for bulky goods in Port Stephens. Heatherbrae is not identified as
a renewal corridor in this Plan.

The most relevant actions from the Hunter Regional Plan include:

- Action 23.5 - Focus commercial and retail development within existing
centres and transport hubs and ensure that locations for new centres
are integrated with existing or planned residential development; do not
undermine existing centres; encompass high quality urban design; and
consider transport and access requirements (p.58);

14
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- Action 24.1 - Locate new employment land so that it does not conflict
with surrounding residential uses; and

- Action 26.3 - Protect existing and planned major infrastructure
corridors and sites, including inter-regional transport routes like the M1
Pacific Motorway and the railway, port and airports, to support their
intended functions.

The planning proposal is generally consistent with the Hunter Regional Plan
as it will provide new employment lands within an existing employment land

cluster within proximity of Raymond Terrace and will not conflict with existing
or planned infrastructure.

Greater Newcastle Metropolitan Plan 2036

The Greater Newcastle Metropolitan Plan 2036 (the Plan) was released in
September 2018. The Plan states that it will set out strategies and actions that
will drive sustainable growth across Cessnock City, Lake Macquarie City,
Newcastle City and Port Stephens communities (p.5). The Plan identifies
Raymond Terrace as an emerging city centre and supports increasing the
number of jobs within and near Raymond Terrace.

The one specific reference to Heatherbrae in the Plan is in relation to the
protection of the Blue and Green Grid (p.79). The planning proposal is
consistent with this direction because it is located on the western side of the
Pacific Highway and does not propose to remove any vegetation.

The most relevant strategies from the Greater Newcastle Metropolitan Plan
include:

- Strategy 8 — Address changing retail consumer demand; and
- Strategy 9 — Plan for jobs closer to homes in the Metro frame.

The planning proposal is consistent with these directions as it seeks to rezone
land at Heatherbrae to facilitate a key destination for bulky goods. The
economic analysis completed by Hill PDA for the Raymond Terrace and
Heatherbrae Strategy identified a need for bulky goods premises within the
LGA. Rezoning this land will address changing retail consumer demand and
create jobs which are in proximity to the existing residential centre of
Raymond Terrace and the future centre of Kings Hill.

The most relevant action from the Greater Newcastle Metropolitan Plan is:

- Action 2.2 - Work with Port Stephens and Newcastle City Councils to
align local plans to protect transport corridors and ensure proposed
changes in land uses minimise the cumulative impact on the operation
of the road network.

The Planning Proposal is consistent with this action as it will not impede on

transport corridors. It is noted that the site is unlikely to continue its direct

15

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 98




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 3 PLANNING PROPOSAL.

frontage to the Pacific Highway should the Heatherbrae Bypass be
constructed.

Q4. Will the planning proposal give effect to a council’s endorsed local
strategic planning statement, or another local strategy or strategic
plan?

Council does not currently have an endorsed local strategic planning
statement, or another endorsed local strategy or strategic plan. However, the
most relevant local strategy or other local strategic plans are:

Port Stephens Planning Strategy 2011

The Port Stephens Planning Strategy (the Strategy) was released in 2011.

The Strategy pre-dates the most recent strategic planning guidance that has
been provided by the NSW Government in the form of the Hunter Regional
Plan and Greater Newcastle Metropolitan Plan. In turn, it is expected that it
would be replaced by the required housing strategy.

The Strategy states that it is one of a suite of high-level strategic documents
produced by Port Stephens Council to guide the operations of the council, and
the future growth and sustainability of the Local Government Area (p.1). The
Strategy identifies Heatherbrae as an ‘Enterprise Corridor’ and then goes on
to explain:

‘The 186ha Heatherbrae industrial precinct has far more diverse industry
types than Tomago. The largest amount of floorspace is occupied by the
construction industry related manufacturing uses. Heatherbrae has been
identified, in the first instance, as the target area for bulky goods retailing as it
is considered the most suitable location from a strategic planning and
marketing perspective’ (p.52).

The planning proposal is consistent with the direction provided by the Port
Stephens Planning Strategy of seeking to identify Heatherbrae as the key
destination for bulky goods premises within the Port Stephens Local
Government Area.

Raymond Terrace and Heatherbrae Strategy 2015-2031

The Raymond Terrace and Heatherbrae Strategy 2015-20317 (the strategy)
was adopted by Port Stephens Council in 2015.The strategy is a strategic
plan produced by Port Stephens Council that was funded by the NSW
Department of Planning, Industry and Environment. The vision of the Strategy
is ‘A strong regional centre and a great place to live work and play’ (p.10).

16
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The strategy contains a number of directions and specific actions that seek to
facilitate Heatherbrae as the key destination for ‘bulky goods premises’ in the
Port Stephens LGA which are as follows:

- Direction 1.1 — Growing a regionally competitive centre by providing
lands to strengthen the retail offering of Raymond Terrace and
facilitating Heatherbrae as a destination for bulky goods; and

- Direction 2.1 — Enabling development that supports compatible land
clustering ‘like with like' land uses by the identification of key precincts,
such as Kangaroo Street for Light Industrial and Heatherbrae for bulky
goods.

These directions were informed by the Hill PDA, 2012, ‘Raymond Terrace and
Heatherbrae Economic Land Use Study’ that identified there is an
undersupply of bulky goods (pp. 75-77). The Hill PDA Study identified that the
opportunity exists for Heatherbrae to position itself as a leading destination for
bulky goods shopping in the Port Stephens LGA. Based on retail expenditure
modelling undertaken, sufficient demand exists to support approximately an
additional bulky goods floor space of:

¢ 5,000sgm by 2016 (1.3ha of land);
o 8,200sgm by 2021 (2.1ha of land); and
o 12,000sgm by 2031.

It is understood that no additional lands were provided to bulky goods
premises at Heatherbrae when the Port Stephens Local Environmental Plan
2013 was developed. This rezoning would assist the above development
demand by achieving a rezoning in 2020 and a subsequent subdivision
approval and development commencement by 2021.

From this, it can be seen that the proposal is the result of the Raymond

Terrace and Heatherbrae Strategy 2015 adopted by Port Stephens Council,
and is therefore consistent with the strategy.

Port Stephens Integrated Plans 2018

The Integrated Plans (the Plans) were adopted by Port Stephens Council in
early 2018.

The Integrated Plans seek are a combination of the Community Strategic
Plan, Delivery Program and Operational Plans. They seek to guide the
operations of Port Stephens Council over a four-year term of Councillors. It
contains a number of actions relevant to place, community environment and
the council. The Plan makes no specific reference to employment lands,
Heatherbrae or bulky goods premises.

17

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 100




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 3

Q5 Is the planning proposal

PLANNING PROPOSAL.

consistent

with applicable State

Environmantal Planning Policies (SEPPs)?

An assessment of relevant State Environmental Planning Policies (SEPPs)
agains! the Planning Proposal is provided in the table below,

Table 1 - Relevant State Environmental Flanning Policies

SEPP

| SEPF 44 = Koala
Habital Protection

| SEPP 55 -
Remediation of
| Land

| SEPP Primary
| Production & Rural

Relevance

This SEPP applies fo
land across MW thal is
greater than 1 heclars
and is not a Mational Park
or Forestry Reserve. The
SEPP encourages the
Conseraabion and
management of natural
vegetation areas that
provide habitat for koalas
b enswre permanent
free=living populations will
be maintained dwer their
present range

Thiz SEPP applies 1o
land across NEW and
states that land muest not
be develsped if if is
unsuitabde for a proposed
use because of
contamination.

| This SEPP applies to
land across NSW and

Development (2019} | aims to facilitate the

arderly economic wse and
development of lands for
primany production.

Caonsistency and
Imphcations
| The site contains a
| numiber of isalated
| trees, which Port
| Stephens Council
| Officers have identified
| are koala feed trees. A
| Preliminary Ecological
| Assesament will be
| undertaken post-
| gateway ta address the
| Port Stephens CHPoM
| far rezoning proposals.

| Mo indication or

| avidence has been
| provided to indicate that |
| the site is

| contaminated, A

| contamination

| assessment will be

| undertaken post-

| gatewmay, if required.
t

| The relevant Minstenal
| Direction is discussed

| betow, which provides

| greater relevance to the |
| rezoning of rural lands |
| through a planning

| proposal
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Q6. |Is the planning proposal consistent with applicable Ministerial
Directions?

An assessmaent of relevant Ministerial Darections against the Planning Proposal
15 provided in the table below,

Table 2 = Relevant Ministerial Directions
Ministenal

Chrecingn

1. EMPLOYMENT AND RESOURCES

Aim of Direction

Consistency and
Implications

| 1.1 Business and | The objectves 'nf-l:his

Industrial Zones

1.2 Rural Zones

| 1,3 Rural Lands

drgclion ans to
encourage employment
growih in suitable
iocations, profect
employment fand in

business and industrial | consistent. This proposal will
Zones and support the | encourage compaetition,
viability of identified which is a key principle in the |
canires establishrment of effectve

I The objective of this

direction is to protect

agricultural production
of rural lamd

I The objective of this

direction is to protect
agricultural land and
minimise land use
fragmentation and
conflict,

and should be discouraged.

the Port Stephens LGA,

| seeks to rezone rural land to

The planning proposal seeks |
to encourage employment by
creating an employment
centre identified under a
number of land-use
stralegies, therafore is

BCONGTHE Markets
Monopolies can lead to
inefficient marke! economies

The planning proposal is
inconsistent with this
direction, but i is of minor
significance due bo its
consistency with the Greater
Mewcastle Metropolitan Plan. |

Furthermone, the sile s nat
identified to have agrculiural
value and is located within
an existing centre, which
Council is irying to promcle
as the 'destination for bulky
goods development’ wilkin

The planning proposal is
inconsistent with this
direction, but it is of minor
significance due to its
consistency with the Greater
Mewcastle Metropalitan Plan, |

Furthermone, the propasal
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achieve the aim of
contributing to Heatherbrae
becoming a key destination
for bulky goods. This aim is
identified by the Raymond
Terrace and Heatherbrae
Strategy.

Heatherbrae can be seen to
have been the location of
significant investment in
public infrastructure (i.e.
Pacific Highway), which
provides the exposure
required for bulky goods
premises. Although the land
is currently zoned rural, it is
not being used for significant
rural purposes, but housing.

2. ENVIRONMENT

AND HERITAGE

2.3 Heritage
Conservation

The objective of this
direction is to conserve
items, areas, objects
and places of
environmental heritage
significance and
indigenous heritage
significance.

The existing LEP has been
informed by previous
Environmental Planning
Instruments (EPls), heritage
studies and archaeological
studies. Schedule 5 -
Environmental Heritage of
this LEP does not identify the
site to contain any heritage
item, be located within a
heritage conservation area or
be part of or adjacent to an
Archaeological site.

A Basic Search of the
Aboriginal Heritage
Information Management
System (AHMIS) identified
no heritage items or places
within 50m of the site.

The planning proposal is
consistent with this Direction,
as there is will be no impact.

3. HOUSING, INFR

ASTRUCTURE AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

3.4 Integrating
Land Use

The objective of this
direction is to ensure
that urban structures,

building forms, land use

The proposal is consistent
with this direction because it
seeks to encourage

employment within the
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and locations, development | existing centre of
Transport designs subdivision and | Heatherbrae. The subject
street layouts achieve site adjoins the Pacific
the sustainable Highway, a major arterial
transport objectives. road where public transport

is currently available and
increased service is feasible.
An existing bus stop is
located adjacent to the
subject site.

Additionally, the most relevant aims, objectives and principles of Improving
Transport Choice — Guidelines for Planning and Development and The
Right Place for Business and Services — Planning Policy and a response
are:

Improving Transport Choice — Guidelines for Planning and Development

1. Concentrate in centres - The proposal immediately adjoins the Pacific
Highway, which is a well-serviced |location for public transport in Port
Stephens. At the same time, we could expect people purchasing bulky
goods to use private motor vehicles.

2. Mix uses in centres - The proposal represents the transition of
Heatherbrae to the key destination for bulky goods in Port Stephens.
This will contribute to the existing mix of housing and industry.

3. Align centres within corridors - The proposal is located within the Pacific
Highway Corridor, which links the regional centre of Raymond Terrace to
the major centre of Newcastle and other regional centres, such as
Maitland.

4. Link public transport with land use strategies - The proposal is in
response to the Raymond Terrace and Heatherbrae Strategy. By
responding to this Strategy, the proposal is concentrating desired
development in a desired location.

5. Connect streets - The proposal will enable an internal street network that
facilities future northern connections to adjoining lots. At the same time,
when Heatherbrae is by-passed, the Pacific Highway will have significant
capacity for local traffic.

6. Improve pedestrian access - The proposal will enable subdivision that
will provide pedestrian pathways. At the same time, we could expect
people purchasing bulky goods to use private motor vehicles.

7. Improve cycle access - The proposal will enable subdivision that will
provide pedestrian pathways, which could be used by cyclists and/or a
road network that can be used by cyclists. At the same time, we could
expect people purchasing bulky goods to use private motor vehicles.

8. Manage parking supply - Appropriate parking will be provided at the
subdivision stage depending on the use.

9. Improve road management - The connection to the Pacific Highway will
be designed and constructed in consultation with Council and the NSW
Roads and Maritime Services.
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10.Implement good design - The proposal is over flat land with relatively few
constraints and in turn opportunity exists for good design at the
subdivision stage.

The Right Place for Business and Services — Planning Policy

bulky goods.

1. The Right Location - The proposal is responding to a Strategy, which
identifies Heatherbrae as the right location for bulky good outlets. This
Policy discusses how bulky goods require space to display and handle
large goods and how they can be located in centres. Heatherbrae is an
existing employment centre that has been identified as the most
appropriate location for bulky goods premises.

2. The Right Centre - The proposal is located within a centre that has good
highway exposure, land for large floorspaces and near growing
residential populations. This is why Heatherbrae was identified by the
Raymond Terrace and Heatherbrae Strategy as the key destination for

4. HAZARD AND RISK

4.1 Acid Sulfate
Soils

The objective of this
direction is to avoid
significant adverse
environmental impacts
from the use of land
that has a probability of
containing acid
sulphate soils.

The existing LEP has been
informed by previous
Environmental Planning
Instruments (EPls), which
identifies the site as Acid
Sulfate Soils — Class 4.

The planning proposal does
not propose physical works.
When physical works are
proposed as part of a future
subdivision, the earthworks
will be associated with the
filling of the land as opposed
to cutting and therefore
should be consistent. This
clause will be addressed
through a future
Development Application.

4.3 Flood Prone
Land

The objective of this
direction is to prevent
damage to life, property
and the environment on
land identified as
unstable or potentially
subject to mine
subsidence.

The site is mapped as flood
prone land.

The planning proposal only
seeks to rezone land that is
‘Minimal Risk Flood Prone
Land' (i.e. land that is above
the 1/100 Event, but below
the below the Probable
Maximum Flood). This was
discussed with the Port
Stephens Council Flood
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Engineers at the meeting
with Council held 4
December 2018.

This approach is consistent
with the approach taken for
commercial/industrial
development across Port
Stephens. The approach to
commercial/industrial
development on flood prone
land is outlined within the
Port Stephens Development
Control Plan 2014 (B5 -
Flooding).

For the purposes of this
Ministerial Direction, the
planning proposal does not
include land that is mapped
as flood prone land below
the 1/100 Event.

4.4 Planning for
Bushfire
Protection

The objectives of this
direction are to protect
life, property and the
environment from bush
fire hazards, by
discouraging the
establishment of
incompatible land uses
in bush fire prone
areas, to encourage
sound management of
bush fire prone areas.

The site is identified as
bushfire prone land. The
bushfire prone land maps
identify that a small eastern
part of the site is Vegetation
Buffer'.

Given that the planning
proposal will enable
commercial/industrial
development, which only
needs to demonstrate
consistency with the
aims/objective of the NSW
RFS, 2006, ‘Planning for
Bushfire Protection’ and that
the bushfire threat is not
located on the site, a
Strategic Bush Fire
Assessment or Bushfire
Assessment Report is not
considered to be required.
This information can be
provided at the Development
Assessment stage of the
development process.

Therefore, it is considered
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this proposal is consistent
with this Direction.

5. REGIONAL PLA

NNING

5.4 Commercial
and Retail
Development
along the Pacific
Highway

The objectives for this
direction are to protect
the highway, prevent
inappropriate
development and to
reinforce the role of
retail and commercial
development in town
centres.

The proposal is inconsistent
with this Direction because
the speed limit is 80km/h
along the Pacific Highway to
which the proposal has
connection and site frontage.
However, the inconsistency
is considered to be of minor
significance because the
proposal is responding to the
identification of Heatherbrae
as the key destination for
bulky goods premises in Port
Stephens by the Raymond
Terrace and Heatherbrae
Strategy. This Strategy is
seeking to prepare
Heatherbrae for its transition
from a highway service
centre for when the Pacific
Highway bypass is
constructed. The proposal is
within an existing centre.

5.10
Implementation

of Regional
Plans

The objective of this
direction is to give legal
effect to the vision, land
use strategy, policies,
outcomes and actions
contained in regional
plans.

This direction applies
because the site is identified
in the area covered by the
Hunter Regional Plan and
the Greater Newcastle
Metropolitan Plan. The
planning proposal has
demonstrated consistency
with both the Hunter
Regional Plan and the
Greater Newcastle

Metropolitan Plan.
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Section C — Environmental, social and economic impact

Q7. Is there any likelihood that critical habitat or threatened species,
populations or ecological communities, or their habitats, will be
adversely affected as a result of the proposal?

The rezoning seeks to improve environmental outcomes by enabling
development within an existing centre where infrastructure is present. This
places downward pressure on more isolated lands that may contain remnant
vegetation and therefore be less suitable.

The site contains a number of isolated trees, which Port Stephens Council
Officers have identified are koala feed trees. A Preliminary Ecological
Assessment will be undertaken post-gateway to address the Port Stephens
CKPoM for rezoning proposals.

Q8. Are there any other likely environmental effects as a result of the
planning proposal and how are they proposed to be managed?

The likely environmental effects have been discussed through either
addressing consistency with the relevant SEPPs or Ministerial Directions.

Q9. Has the planning proposal adequately addressed any social and
economic effects?

The proposal has the potential to provide lands for employment. These lands will
create employment during construction and through the subsequent uses that
eventuate. The provision of employment has positive social (i.e. jobs provide wages
for basic needs) and economic effects (i.e. construction has a high value chain for job
creation).

Section D — State and Commonwealth interests
Q10. Is there adequate public infrastructure for the planning proposal?

Adequate public infrastructure is available. The site has access via the
Pacific Highway and potential access to existing reticulated water. An on-site
solution for sewer will be required, which would be consistent with the existing
bulky goods precinct on the opposing side of the Pacific Highway (i.e.
Bunnings). A Preliminary Servicing Inquiry would be lcdged with Hunter Water
post-gateway.

Further traffic analysis will be determined by the NSW RMS in consultation
with Council. Given that the proposal will have direct access to the Pacific
Highway, the RMS will have a legislated role at the Development Application
stage and in turn no further analysis is required at the rezoning stage.
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Q11. What are the views of state and Commonwealth public authorities
consulted in accordance with the Gateway determination?

It is proposed that the following government agencies be consulted:
. NSW Rural Fire Service (Bush Fire Prone Land);

. NSW Roads and Maritime Services; and

. Local Aboriginal Land Council.

PART 4 — Mapping

The proposed map layer amendments are included as attachments to the
Planning Proposal as follows:

Attachment 1 — Current Land Zoning Map LZN_002

Attachment 2 — Proposed Land Zoning Map — Map Amendment to Land
Zoning Map — Sheet LZN_002 from RU2 Rural Landscape to B5 Business
Development Zone

Attachment 3 — Current Lot Size Map LSZ_002

Attachment 4 — Proposed Lot Size Plan — Map amendment to Lot Size Map —

Sheet LSZ_002 to remove the identification of the site as 20ha

PART 5 — Community consultation

Community consultation will be undertaken in accordance with the Gateway
determination. It is suggested that the proposal will be exhibited for 28 days.

Notice of the public exhibition period will be placed in the local newspaper,
The Examiner. The exhibition material will be on display at the following

locations during normal business hours:

. Council's Administration Building, 116 Adelaide Street, Raymond Terrace
. Raymond Terrace Library, Port Stephens Street, Raymond Terrace

The planning proposal will also be available on Council's website.

PART 6 — Project timeline

The additional technical information, studies and investigations identified in
the planning proposal will be completed within the timeframes listed below,
should the planning proposal receive a Gateway determination:

. Site Survey
. Preliminary Contamination Assessment

26
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. Preliminary Ecological Assessment
. Preliminary Servicing Inquiry

The planning proposal is expected to be reported to Council following the
completion of the public exhibition period. The following timetable is proposed:

Table 3 — Indicative timeframe for the proposal

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Lodgement

Council
Assessment

Further
Studies

Council Report

Gateway
Determination

Further
Studies

Public
Exhibition

Council Report

Parliamentary
Counsel
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ATTACHMENT 1 - CURRENT LAND ZONING MAP
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ATTACHMENT 2 - PROPOSED LAND ZONING MAP
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ATTACHMEMNT 3 - EXISTING LOT SIZE MAP
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ATTACHMEMNT 4 - PROPOSED LOT SIZE MAP
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ATTACHMENT 5 — COUNCIL CORRESPONDENCE

Information referenced in this report can be inspected upon request.
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ATTACHMENT 6 — TRAFFIC IMPACT ASSESSMENT

Information referenced in this report can be inspected upon request.
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ATTACHMENT 7 — RMS CORRESPONDENCE

Information referenced in this report can be inspected upon request.
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ATTACHMENT 8 — COUNCIL FEEDBACK

Information referenced in this report can be inspected upon request.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 118




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 1  ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

% PORT STEPHENS

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 119




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 1  ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Contents @& 6 Qe

Cover artwork

This yoars Sovar artwork
& by WNGENT arlist
dason Russod

T artwork degpcls
BEthing places &l (e
SOty coffang |ogelhs
s oesheslian

Year in review
Welcoma

Hughhighls

Alayou s massage

Ginnamal Maonngoe's
MmassH)a

Comirunily ranciol fepoil
Financial sumimary
SooTecad

Qur Port Stephens
Por Slaphans. smapshol

i Lioramcal

Ayvands and reccgnilons

Hiwing your sary

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

120




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 1  ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Statutory information

Our performance

Crenrvsrs Slaiedmsonts. rocisod
by thi Local

L)
pebatiile; '“"”'I : Govarnenent (Goneral)
et oS Regulation FH5
A arad atbuer BSW
ComiTLay parinenings Govarnemand ncls

O placa

Attachment 1

Elesclicn of
IS a oS o
Coundl, commithses
nequonal coameTiiiaas
B (JraES

Attachment 2

Cagilal works projocts

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

121




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 1  ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Year in
review

* Mayor's message
= General Manager's message
» Community financial report

NAIDOC Week, Raymond Tertace
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Yabang Gumba-Gu

This report is designed to show you our
highlights and challenges between 1 July
2018 and 30 June 2019

But reflecting on the past year for our
thriving, diverse community is only part
of the story

For each of our strategic goals we measure
our performance then ask. .. what's next?

Yabang Gumba-Gu means road to lomomow
in Gathang, the traditional language of the
Warimi people of Port Stephens.

These words carmy significant meaning as we
waork to achieve our community’s wision —

a great lifestyle in a treasured envircnment,
That's why we chose Yabang Gumba-Gu as
our theme for this annual report.

In July 2018, we signed a historic ‘road to
tomomow” agreament with the Warma and

Karuah Local Abonginal Land Councils. You
can read more about this on page 44,

This report takes a plain English, honest
and authentic approach to reporting

our progress lowards implementing our
Delivery Program 2018 to 2021.

It comprises 2 volumes;

= Voluma 1 provides an overiew of our

perfomance for the year together with
statfony and governance information,

* Volume 2 contains our audaed financial
accounts.

You can read an electronic version of
this report and our integrated plans at
poristephens. nsw.gov.au

Special thanks to CEO of Wormi Local
Aboriginal Land Council Andrew Smith and
our Aboriginal Strategic Commaties for their
help with this report.

We hope you enjoy this record of our year
in Port Stephens — and join us in looking
ahead on our road 1o IomMOomow,
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Our community highlights

98,354

CHILDCARE PLACES

provided to families
thraughout Port Stephens

920,000 | 25,065

PEOPLE VISITED LIBRARY MEMBERS
our beaches and pools, up by 1845 new

which we've made more members in 2018
accessible for everyone to 2018

$207,000

IN GRANTS FOR OUR COMMUNITY

Our place highlights

1.8m

$10m

PEOPLE VISITED FOR OUR ECONOMY
im 2018 to 2018, bringing from sponsored events with
mare than $538m to our 123 events held cn Council
local economy cwned or managed land

$25.6m

OF MAJOR PROJECTS PROGRESSED

— read about the projects on page 58

B 0 DEVELOPMENT
APPLICATIONS

determined with median turnaround time of 37

days and a total capital investment of $244m
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Our environment highlights

35tn

OF CARBON DIOXIDE SAVED

by new solar panels on our Administraton
Building — that's equivalent to planting 578 trees!

$750,000 5one

secured for wead and bushland management

1488tn 62ha

WASTE COLLECTED RESTORED
at our free drop off days of bushland which acts
— see details on page 73 as natural koala habitat

Anrial Fepaon] 2008 o 2009

Our Council highlights

68%

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

in our staff survey

$25.4m 68

IN GRANT FUMNDING MEW CITIZENS
including 511.7 million for from 17 countries
the asrospace precingt webcomed o Port
Astra Aerolab Stephens in 2018 io 2018

76%

COMMURNITY SATISFACTION
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Mayor’'s
message

Delvering for our community — It's the
reason | ran for Mayor and continues 1o
be my main focus as | near the end of my
second year in office.

Whether that be through bocsbng commnunity
wellbeing, creating more vibrant places

for people to enjoy, supporting cur local
economy of making sustainable changes —
I'm commitied to delvering the projects and
senaces that matter to our commumnity.

One of iy many highlights for 20418 to 2019
was signing a histonc agreement with the
VWonmi and Kanuah Aboriganal Land Coundcils.

Yabang Gumba-Gu, of road o Dmonmow in
the Wanmi language of Gathang, sets cut
the roadmap of projects we want (o deliver
together for the benefit of Port Stephens.
I'm proud o say we'ne already making
significant prograss.

Az we've journeyed along the road to
tomaraw, there have been many bwists
and turns. One of the biggest challenges
our Councll faced this year has been our
application for a Special Rate Variation,

I'll be the first to admit it was an ambiticus
plan, Cur vision was to deliver a
S$100-million-plus program of infrastructure
projects across Pod Stephens — projects

that our communily asked us to deliver.

More footpaths and cycleways, mare
sealed roads, more sporting fields and
more for our town centres. We wanted to
boost our local economy and deliver quality
facilities for all to enjoy, now and for years
to come,

After manths of community consultation,
we lodged cur appcation with the NSW
Independent Pricing and Regulatary
Tribunal (IPART). IPART deamed us as
fimancially it and while cur commaunity
wanted these projects, they told us they
were not wilkng to pay for them through
increased rates,

While I'm disappainted by the aufcomes,

| stand by this Cownecil's decision to set a
bold vision for the future of Port Stephans
and attempt to make it happen,

When | siood for election in 2017, | made it
clear | wanbed io make a real diference o
Port Stephens — the place |'ve loved since
childhood, where I've grown up and raised
rmy family.

My desire to deliver for our community
has only been made stronger through this
process, And while we can't do everything,
| won't stand by and do nothing
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That's why we went back 1o the community
in July 2019 with a shortlist of projects

that could be delivered without increasing
rates. The consultation process was
overwheimingly positive, with hundreds of
people having their say on the projects they
would ke to see fast-tracked.

As a result, our Port Stephens 2020
prajects represent an extra $15.9 million of
community prionty projects to be carmed out
over the next 18 months.

This is just one of the ways we'll continue 1o
deliver value for money for aur commundty,
now and info the future, You can read more
about our highlights and challenges over
the past year in this annual report and

| hope you'll join us as we walk together on
the road o tomomow,

yqn Tﬁl{w@r

M of Port Stephens

Arrasal Fepaor] 2008 o 2009
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General
manager's
message

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Im 2018 to 2019 our Council has been
firrnly focused on the future — what it could
look ke, where our community’s priorites
lie and how we can best work logether o
deliver their vision,

Sianding at a fork in the road, our Council
had a decision to make, We could confinue
ta dediver the standard services and
facilities our community values or invest in
the fulure of Port Stephens o mprove the
Iwves of cur community,

The first road was adequate but well-wom.
Dwr Councl has been lean for a long time
= frming our 313 million deficit around to a
modest surplus in a decade,

The second road was unchartered territory
for our Council but the benefits to our
community wera clear. After 8 manths of
consultation, Couwncil applhed for a rate nsea
to dediver an extensne program of works.

But being financially it and having a
reasonable infrastructure backlog worked
against us and IPART rejected our
application. Qur community told us they
still want these projects but not if it means
rasing rates.

After further community engagerment,
we'vie commifted (o delivenng an extra
$15.9 milion of major projects over the
next 18 manths, bringing our total program
to almost 350 million. We'll achieve this by
leveraging our existing funds and finding
new funding sources.

| want o pay tribute to all of the staff who
worked tirelessly throughout this process
— engaging with our communify, felding
enquiries, investigaling projects and
crunching numbers. It has truly been a
team effort and a great result for all,

We've delivered more than 5256 million of
major projects in 2018 to 2019 and made
significant progress on 2 priority projects.
The Medowie Sport and Community Facility
is taking shape, while construction is well
underway on our Koala Sanctuary —

a unique: eco-tourist destination and

koala hospital,
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Retationships are key 1o our Council's
success_ This year, we signed a histonc
agreement with the Worimi and Karuah
Local Abonginal Land Councils that paves
the way for our mutual success. Yabang
Gumba-Gu detals the actions we will take
together for the benefit of Port Stephens.

We've been successful in securing grant
funding of $25.4 mallion in 2018 o 2019,
including $11.7 million for the aerospace
precinct Astra Aerclab, | attribute much of this
success o the strong relationships we have
with all levels of govermnment, which enable us
to advocate for more for Port Stephens,

I'm proud to say we're continuing to
achieve our high targets for our key metrics
— service delivery, govemnance, risk
management and financial sustainakbility

Af 68%, our employee engagement
score is high for any crganisation (B5%
is engaqed). It's just short of our target of
T0% engagement.

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Cur commundy satisfaction score of 6%
1% considered high in the [ocal government
sector, We've shified our target to an
ambitious 80% satisfaction as part of our
commitment to continuous improvement,

Our commitment to a culture of excellence
was recognised with a host of awards

and acknowledgements, mcluding TAFE
MSW's Owverall Trainee of the Year and
Minfex's Solution Innovation Award. From
digital innovaton to making housing mone
affardable, these recognitions tell us wa're
an the right track with achieving the bast
outcomes for Port Stephens

Thesa are just some of the ways wa've
worked together to deliver for our
community over the past 12 menths. I'm
proud of what we've been able fo achieve
and I'm excited for what's to come as we
walk together on the road to tomorrow

Aqyne L{fq{[i ;

General Manager

e Lendes ILince
Pk by Hemi Tobbe
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Community
financial
report
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Emérpency sraces 5108 § Beact conbiod 5154 gy
BN

Engresering and fusidings masnlenanoe

Toeartm anel (e prormobons

Anral Fepaoe] 2008 o 2009

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

131




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 1  ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Financial overview 2018 to 2015

Port Stephens Coundil s financally Inchuding capdal income, owr operating result
sustainable and fit for the fulure. We have  Was a surplus of $25.2 millien — higher than
maintained our financal postion in 2018 last year's surphus of 320 million,

to 2019 while: When capital grants and conributions are
* keeping cur rates at the lowest level in  excluded, our operating result is a surpius of
the lower Hunter region $3.9 million. This is consistent with the 2017

et o b oui tia | to 2018 surplus of 54.9 million
targets, while improving service delivery  The total income from continuing operations

bo our commumity. was higher im 2018 to 2019 compared [ast
year due o

InEEmE slalement 2idte H15is 0168 T 20160
7000 2015 Fithl] 2017 018 2018
Torbail inceme froem conbniuersg oparatons 114046 134604 132227 136833 147457
Tobal sapenses feom conlinuing oparabons 107,188 11448/8 WE5H51T MG 122083
Oiparating resull from continung operations Trat 20016 Z2Me Hors 25 2
Mol oparabng surplusiidaficil) befors granis and (2T4T) BO32 B40T A4 ARG

cominbulons piovicesd for caplal purmosos

Balance sheet 2004t HiEw 2016t 20T 2048 o
5000 2018 e 2017 2018 2019
Tosl cusrinl assals S3.918 59 1897 2 G530 83N
Tl cusront Eabibies FRO3R 24080 2TOS9B 3 BSE  35BTE
Tl man-cuirmmnl aasabs BDO D4 A8 034 027128 DAY 134 1015884
Tkl ran-cinrant kabsilas 25500 22412 19261 0090 15.B0G

= additional operating Income from
MNewcastle Alrpor (this is consolidated
infe the Por Stephens Council
Financial Statements)

= income from Roads and Mantime Servces
for additional work done on State Roads,

Total expenses from continuing operations
wera higher due lo an impaimment koss.

The balance sheel provided is a snapshot

of our financial position inchuding assets,
Kabilites and net wealth (equity) at 30 June
2019, For detailed nformation on our financial
performance, refer to Volume 2 of this report.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

132




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 1  ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Annial Fepaon 2008 o 29

Where the money came from
We received $147.5 million in revenue in

the 2018 1o 2019 financial year. Qur largest
income sources were:

+ rates and annual charges (357.7 milion)
inciuding wasie management levy

= user charges and fees (344, 7 milion)
imciuding holiday park fees and Roads and
kartime Services charges.

These were also our [argest mocome sources
last year.

844.Tm | User
charpos and boes

S3TR000 | Mod gains from tha
desporsnl af assels

$1.5m | Inbaresd mhd ._:::.‘_.:
Frvers el fiye L . X

£3.6m | Fair value merement e S
on invasiment propetss :

£6.6m | CHher movones

$11.9m | Geanls and conlrbulons
providhed fof oparalbng purposas

$57.7Tm | Rales and
AnnUAl charges

521.3m | Grands and contnbuons.
prowded for capdal pUrposes
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Where the money was spent

We spent 5150 million during the
year — $122.3 million on operations
and $37.7 million on capital additions.

Magor infrastructure spending included:

Roads 58 2 million
Crainage $4.2 million
Buildings 54 million

Newcasthe Airport 53.3 million

Other open Space or
recreational assets 52.3 million

Foaotpaths $1.8 million

The above figures include assets
that have been dedicated to Coundcil
The total amownt of assets dedicated
to Council in 201810 2019 s

5104 milion

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

What we own

Anrual Fepaon] 2008 o 209

Clur infrastructure, propery, ptant and equipment were valueed at 3351 million and our
investment property assets were valued at 5356 million at 30 June 2019. The value of our

infrastructure |5:

Roads 3380 million

Drainage 3196 million

Land $112.7 million

Crher infrastructure $102 million

Buildings 395 milion

What we own, minus what we owe

Mewcastie Airport 2307 mélon
Plant and equipment $11.5 millicn
Land improvements 35.8 million

Other assets 35 milon

Office equipment, fumniture and fittings
1.7 millicn

Fort Stephens Council community equity (defined as our net worth) was 51 billion at

30 June 2018,
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Scorecard

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

S key result measures underpin everything we do at Port Stephens
Council, You can read more about our resull measures and integrated

plans on our website poristephens. nsw.gov.au

Service delivery
¥ Target: > 95%

Integrated plans
dedivered on tame

Achievement:

87 8% of actions in
the Cperational Plan
achéeved

Community satsfaction

* Target: > 80%
community
satisfaction

r Achiovement: TE%

==
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Empioyee engagement
¥ Target: >T0% employee
engagemeant

Achisvemaent: 6G8%

1
Governance ': iz,
¥ Target: > 95% Governance i
Health Check m
Achisveament: 98, 1% :
an i
" }
i
m
0 b=
B e g v il Haaeg

o o o . S e
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Arvual Regee 2068 jo 7019
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Risk management 'i = = -
# Target: > B0% risk management :: = A i [ !
maturity score s L | “ |
Achisvement: BE% 1 " : :I i
E B 2 =
2 i it !
"" I s | il !

M2 2013 A0va 2018 A6 2007 ZO

Financial sustainability »v
# Target: underlying financial surplus FL IR s
Achiovement: $1.003 millkan L)
e+
205

e

.10} __l

LR
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Annual Repond 2018 10 2019
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Our Port
Stephens

* Port Stephens snapshot
* Our Council
* Awards and recognitions

* Having your say

Lemon Teee Passage reshore
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Port
Stephens
snapshot

Located on the east coast of Australia aboud
2 hours north of Sydney, Port Stephens

is known for its stunning natural beauty,
unigue wildiife and strong community spirit
These charactenstics make our place an
ideal recreation, tourist and retirernent
destination as well as a great place 1o e,
work and play

The Warimi people are the traditional
awners of the Port Stephens local
aovernment area (LGA), We value the
unique status of Aborginal people as the
custodians of these lands and walers.

Port Stephens was named after Sir

Philip Stephens, First Secretary of the
Admiralty in the laie 1700s and later a
Lord Commissioner of the British Admiralty
betwesn 1785 and 1806
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Region: Munbar

J.i;-a;l-: A58 5 squang klcemaires

Populastion: 72, M5 people 2018 Exmals) Aressdentasl Popotsion)

Population projection: B0 384 by 2008

Median age: 44

Pepulatien density (perscnstha): 081

Population by ward: Wast 3% (7% of e lnd weal),
Conbial J-?'h-:ll'«.l.lb':wm.- Enesd 31% 3% of e land area)

HHW populstion canires “.-I'rTl"'l}'fHJ Forraca, Megowio, Molson Bay

Labour force: 20 T54 (aBs 2005

Unemployment: 5 5% parce 2005

Humbser of businesses: 4591

Groas Reglonal Product: £5 049 billicn

Main employing indusiries: Pubbc Admmcsirabon and Safaty {15%),
Manufectunng (12%), Construcion {11%])

Souare Feenpiar 34 Jdigky 2090
Wi e Rl P Slepher Eoonorsis Prolie of G wilails Portulapneri i gev s
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Anrual Repod 200810 2019 5§
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.J:M.ﬂlﬂﬁwmhﬂmﬁ-u' _._ 0 it

Our Councll

A great Wfestyle in a treasured environment

Engaged people, working logether, defivering
valued senvices,

To deliver sensces valued by our community
in the best possible way.

Respect — creating a unique, open

and trusting environment in which each
individual is vaiued and heard.

Integrity — being honest and inspiring trust
by being consistent, matching behawiours
to words and taking responsibility for

aur actians,

Teamwork — working together as cne
Council, supporting each other to achieve
better resufis for everyone,

Excellence — improving the way we work
to meet the challenges of the fulune.

Safety — providing a safety focused
workplace culture to ensure the wellbeing of
stafl, their famdies and the community.
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17 September 2017 to curmam
- F

Ward

Glacomo Amott Ken Jordan Paul Le Moblee

Chris Doohan Sarah Smith Steve Tucker

e Y
\ =
1 W

«amrmie Abbot Calerm Dby John Mel

May i
Ryan Palmer

Ward
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1 July 2018 to 30 June 2018

Mumbser of mestings 22 1
Mayos Pabmod 21 1
Councillor Abbod 1T i
Councilior Amofl 21 1
Councilior Laahan 15 1]
Coumcilor Dunklny 1r 1
Counclior Josdan 15 1
Councilior Lo Mollso 18 1
Councillor MNall 20 1
Courclar Smilk 18 1
Councillar Tucke 18 i

2wy Crafryi e, e el iretigrh Pkl Beebanien e Wil CourScilkion. o] slalT wilh soedife dodeic Bl B Lo of Camncalior s worli 15 rstaria

a3
i
-
dd
1=
18
16
20
21
20
20

Ta
if)

44
4
L2
Ll ]

i
[
&1

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

146




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 1  ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Annial Fepoe] 2008 o 209

In May 2019, Council adopted its Councillor Induction and There was no coundllor mduction program durning this penod as it
Professional Development Policy. This followed the release of the was provided in the first year of the Council term in 2017 to 2018,
by the Office of Local Government. provided fo all elected members, The table shows those wha
Clause 5,17 of the policy reguires the General Manager io report participated, The tolal costs of professional development (including
annually on all councillor induction programs, ongoing professional  accommodation and training) for this perod is $58,538.
development and training sessions provided throughout the year,

A LGEA Nalonsal Congniss & Bausindss Expsp Istayror Frakmer, O Dumicoy, Cr Lo Mofieg, Cr Smith
2018 LGENSW Annual Condarsnce ktayor Pakmer, Cr Aunoll, Cf Le Moltea, Cr Tuckar
2B NSW Constal Confgnoncs Cr Hall

AICD Cempany Drociors Cowrsa Mayor Pakmar, CrAbboll, Cr Dunkdey, Cr Mal
AE LGHSW Toursm Confenmnon ktayar Pakmer, Cr Dunkiay, Cr Srmilh

215 ALGA National Ganeral Assembly hayar Pakmarn, CF Dunidoy, Cr Lo Motlsae
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Facilities and
Services
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Awards and
recognitions

Al Port Stephens Councll, we believe in doing
the right things in the best way. We are proud of
our culture of excellence and the recognibon we
have received for achieving the best oulcomes

for Part Stephens

TAFE HSHYY

Agishralasian
Ropottaryg Awards

Minkax

Liocal Govasmsmsn
HEW

Liocal Govesramanl
HEW

i) Mnrnoagorment
Lhalrga

NS Prommioe s
Aysraingd

Local Caowveamamand
MW

Sastar Cilios
Agsncimtinn

Oreirrall Trama of th Yiosar and
Baingas AdmmeFation Tiames
of hi Yaar — Kaithh Saith

Sabver owarnd — Anmigal repod

Mk Scdubion Innsoyation A
Tar Promapp

Finals] — Enxcalnmsg
fupand for Envirsoimacial
Munmgoman] Sysiom

Finalsl — Excaboncn Avwaind
far Coapabilty Framesork and
awhngion ko Fumon R
IrlGrmalion Sylem

Winnar

Finails] — Makng housing
moda alloedobio

Firsl placn — Cusiomar servicn
myshory shop

Crutskanding redaticnship with
i Wiammi Poopio: asssardaed
ml Global Dialooun for
Community Solubions
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aving
your say

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

We are committed 1o engaging our residents,
stakeholders and s1aff in the development of
policies, plans and the defivery of services for our
community. Our Commanity Engagerment Policy
recognises that community infosmation sharing,
consultation and participation are vital for effective
decision-making.

There are many Ways you can have your say on
the gowverming of Port Stephens and the future of
our LGA:

ete for Councillors every 4 years
through the local government election for
Port Stephens Council

Arrange to speak at a public

access meeating

Winta to or telephone elacted members of
the Council

Get social and connect with us on aur socal
media channels, including Facebook, Twitter
and Instagram

Make a submission on Council's Delivery
Program including the one year Operational
Plan when on exhibition yeary, or on our
Community Strategic Plan every 4 years
Make submissions an major projects or
natifed consents thal are consulted or
advertised throwghout the yvear

Participate in the annual Community
Satisfaction Survey In May\June each year
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Our
performance

* Overview

* Our community
» Our place

* Our environment
* Our Council

Famiard, Hron
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Overview:
our focus
areas

The Port Stephens Courncs
Community Strategic Plan 2018
to 2028 outlines aur 4 main
focus areas. Each goal is a key
direction in cur Delivery Program
2018 1o 2021.

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

TELT o ) T P

Part Stephéns 5 a thimang and strang

community respecting diversity and heritage,

Goal 1; Community diversity
Cur community accesses a range of sendices
that support diverse community needs.

Goal 2: Recognised traditions

and lifestyles

Chur community supports the richness of its
heritage and culture,

Goal 3: Community partnerships

Char Counecil works with comemunity to foster
creative and achve communibes.

Port Stephens is a lveable place supporting
local economic growth,

Goal 1; Strong economy, vibrant local
businesses, active investment

Our commundy has an adaptable, sustainable
and diverse econonmy,

Goal 2; Infrastructure and facilities
Owur community’s infrasiructure and
facilities are safe, convensent, reliable and
envircnmentally sustainable

Goal J: Thriving and safe place to live
COur community supports a healthy, happy
and safe place.
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1 % :

Ly | ..'-"'-'.i
v Babs
I B o B

Part Stephens’ emanonmant is claan, grean,

protected and enhanced.

Goal 1: Ecosystem function

Cwusr community has healthy and dynamic
envirgnmental systems that support
biodiversity consendation

Goal 2: Environmental sustainability
Crur commnunity uses resources sustainabily,
efficientty and equitably.

Goal 3: Environmenial resilience
Chur comemunity is resient to envircnmental
risks, natural hazards and chimate change.,

oA ,*
Al ‘-4..'-;'
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Port Stephens Council leads, manages and
delvers valued community sensces ina
responsibie way.,

Goal 1; Governance

Our Council's leadership is based on trust
and values of Respect, Integrity, Tearmwvork,
Excellence and Safety (RITES)

Goal 2: Financial managameant
Owr Council is fimancially susiainable to meet
community needs,

Goal 3: Communication and engagemaent
O community understands Councal's
senices and can infiuence cutcomes that
affect them,

Arral Fepaoe] 2008 o 209
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Our
community

Paort Stephens is a thriving and
strong community respecting
diversity and heritage.

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Dur community accesses a range of senices
that support diverse community reeds.

<) Boost to childcare places

Wowd s been a massive year of growth
and change for our Port Stephens Councl
childcare services.

The number of children attending OOSH
(out of school hours and vacation care) has
increased significanthy, resulting in 13,700
mone childeare places offered compared to
last year.

Owur trusted OOSH sendce now offers more
than 50 thousand childcare places befone
and after school.

What's changed?

I Al 20159 we took owver 2 privately run
COO5H services at Shoal Bay and Tomares,
These added to our existing services. at
Raymond Temrace, Medowie and Seaham.
We opened cur seventh facility at the
growing suburb of Fern Bay in July 2018,

We developed the brand Thrive Kids so all
ol Council-run childeare oplions are now

under the same banmner. This includes amily
day care, OOSH (including vacation care)

and mobile preschool,

25 new family day care educators joined our
service, We now have 70 trained educators
covering 7 local government areas from

the Central Coast to Port Stephens, This
includes 5 regisiered relief educators who
siep inwhen a team member is sick or on
leave, sohing a significant isswe for working
parents who rely on family day care,

We expanded cur mobile preschool thanks
to a successful grant application for 50,000
fromm the NSW Department of Education. This
enabled the preschool to operale 5 days a
week instead of 4 days. We added Fem Bay
fo its rekation and continued weekly visits

o Grahamsiown, Anna Bay, Medowie and
Raymond Terrace,

Bl ) What's next?

We're gearing up o grow our new brand
Thrive Kids in 2019 to 2020 and further
increase the number of children attending
our high-quality early education and childcare
programs. it's a tangible way we help our
commundy e, work, play and grow in

Port Stephens.
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Local student adaresses
NSW Parliament

‘| hope that in the near future, young people
will have a bigger presence and their
opinions counted in the decision-making
processes that affect them, whether in Port
Stephens o other regions of Australia,’
declared Tomaree High School student
Daseun Kim.

Douen 15 a Port Stephens Council Youth
Advisory Panel (YAP) member. She
addreszed NSW Pariament on Children's
Youth Parfiament Day in Youth Week 2018,

I represented the youth of Port Stephens
and spaoke on the topic of opportunity,
gad Doeun.

‘It was wonderful 1o be able to interact
with other youth representatives from
around New South Wales, And o voloe my
opinions about the many opportunities that
already exist in our reglons such as wine-
making, asrospace industries, the marine
environment...and the need for continual
enhancement in these areas.” I Aa .. ¢

i - ;

|‘ l -

f Almost 20,000 families live
— in Port Stephens with an
‘1 “average of 1.8 children.
Sy f Pl

-

Annual Fespoe] 2008 o 2009
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Young people focus on ‘things
that make them teel valued

In November 2018 our YAP panel members
produced their inaugural newsletter The
Catch-up. They recensed minimal feedback
and decided their efforts were betler spent on
other projects.

Young people are very busy. They focus

on things that make them feel most valued,’
says our Community Development and
Engagement Officer James Campbell who
Works weth the panel.

Enter Pathayays and Possibiities,

It's a research and advocacy project
designed by owr YAP members. In January
2019, the project was awarded a 519,000
Youth Opportunifies grant from the

MNEW Government.

Members have been working hard to deliver
the Pathways and Possibilities project by the
end of 2010

Thewr bnief is to define key prionties fos

the youth of Port Stephens, abgned lo ouwr
sirategic goals. As part of this they've bean
asking: what would an ideal youth-friendly
space in Port Stephens look ke?

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Their consultation has focused on what young

people want bo s8¢ in a fufure youth space at
Tomaree and how o make Raymond Terrace

Library more youth-friendhy.
o/ Youth Week highlights

Im April 2019 we supported suctessful

events including:

« Twilight Markets at Raymond Terace
showcasing young local creative artisis

« Shkate and scoober competition at
MNelson Bay

» Snak N Rap yvouth celebration at Mallabula
Skate Park

What's next?
The YAP will e their advocacy and
leadership skills to help develop our Youth
Plan 2020 to 2022 Well use the results of
their Pathways and Possibiliies project to

plan more effective spaces for young pecple
in Port Stephens on our road to tomomow
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Anvual Regon 2018 10 2019

Youth Woek Twagnd Masket,

Around 16% of Port Stephens’

population are young people
aged 1210 24 years.
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o'} Inclusion for every body ¥
If & pecture tells a thousand words, that smile

ts a great way to explain why we're making
changes o boost social inclusion across

Port Stephens.

e want more pecple with disabilities,
their families and their carers to be able
o enjoy Por Stephens.’ says our Mayor
Ryan Palmer

“It's our goal fo provide the best opportuniies
far imclusion we can offer our community
and visitors,”

You can read owr Dhsabaty Inclusion Action
Plan on our website portstephens nsw.gov.au

* We completed 2 major upgrades to
Litte Beach, one of our most papular
beachfronts. To complement ouwr new
beach access ramp, Ability Links (a NSW
Govamment metatnve ) funded atcess
improvements. Mow there's better signage
for accessible parking plus wheelchair-
friendly picnic seating and pathways.

= Floating wheelchairs wene demonsiraled at
an Accessible Beach Day al Fingal Beach,
They're now in regular use at Fingal, One
Mile and Birubi beaches.
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= We opened a brand new all-abilities
plavground at Shoal Bay's Bemie
Thempson Reserve. The location was
chesen by community vobe.

* We made access improvements to
Mallabula's Caswell Reserse. The car park
was sealed and there are now wheelchair-
accessible pathways to the play area,
amenities and BBG.

= We sltarted working on mone user-fmendly
communication channels to deliver cur
messages more effectively for pecple
with disabilibes, We commissianed an
Accassibility Audd of our welbsde and
brochures, and are in the process of
implementing the recommendations,

@ Changing times for our
outdoor volunieers
In August 2018, we decided to move away
from cur committes model (known as section

A55c committess) for volunieears in our parks,
resardas and cemetenes.

We've already dessobved 8 commithess and
we'll fully tramsation to the new model over the
nixt year.

Why the change?

Feedback from a service review told us
many of cur cutdoor volunteers were

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

fealing burdened by the adminisirative
and governance work associated with
355¢ commitiees.

We realised we were placing too much sirain
an our outdoor volunteer waorkforce.

We want o make valunteernng mare
meaningful, fun and safe, and less onerous
on volunteers,

Cur new system reduces the administrative
burden for outdoor voluntesers 5o they can
concentrate on doing what they're passionate
about — acinaties bk bush regeneraton,
towvn pride and park mprovements.

| | What's next?

We'll focus on making sure our T00-plus
vilunieers feel valued by

= increasing opportunibies for cur voluntesrs
to bearm new skills

= establishing a new on-grownd
support officer

* implementing a new Volunteers
Recognition Policy that features regular
thank-you cands, letters and certificates,
media promyotion and an annwal
awards event,

We'll also ook fo expand our volunteering
opportunities o encourage more members of
our comminity o get involved.

Annial Fepon] 2008 o 20ie

Our
community’s
VISION IS

a great
ifestyle in

a treasured
environment
for every

bodly.
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Dwr community supports the nchness of its
heritage and culture.

H'.‘_-.'I{Ilrl':_'. cilJreer el it 15 OLF
future road map

In the Gathang language of the Worimi
pecple, Yabang-Gu-Butunga means road

to lomomow, These words now carmy new
meaning fior our commumnity in Pori Stephens,

Cwring MAIDCC Week im July 2018,

our Council signed a unigue agreement
deveioped in conjuncticn with the local Wornmi
and Karuah Abonginal Land Councils. We
named the agreement Yabang-Gu-Butunga
They're not just words, Yabang-Gu-Butumga
includes a code of cooperation and lists
prosects we'll complete over the et 3 years,
The agresment sels the tone for a respectful,
forward-thinking relationship betwean cur
Coundl, Local Aboriginal Land Councils and
the Traditional Cwmers of the Port Stephens
area, After 3 years, we'll measure the
success of each objective and set new cnes,

This has been in the works for a number of
yaars. 5o, 'm proud to be here to sign thes
agreement with both land councils,” said our
Mayor Ryan Palmer.

o
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It's & roadmap of how we'll work together

o improve the ives of Abonginal people
Inimg in our regicn both now and into the
future — ned just through talking, but through
achieving outcomes,’

You can read the full Yabang-Gu-Butunga;
Road o Tomormow agreement on our website
poristephens. new.gov.au

Jiscovering
Yabang Gumba-Gu

Dur road 1o fomomow & a jourmey of
discovery and shared benefits — and here's

a great example.

Since signing our Yabang-Gu-Butunga
agresment, we've been meeting regularly
with local Abonginal community members
and Elders. They're in the process of
rewving their traditional language Gathang
{pronounced gui-tongue) which was spoken
across a lange region extending beyond Port
Stephens, throughout the Hunter region and
as far north as Port Macguane.

Use of Gathang has been in senous decline
since colonisation, nesulting in the language
being dormant for many years, Thanks

o the commitrment of Aboriginal people

— who spent valuable time sharing their
language with historians, inguists, settiers
and early explorers — the archives have
been reopened,

L ]

Some of our first

objectives are;
nesw "Welcome fo
Wanmi Country’ signs
at the gateways fo
Port Stephens

Irnproving the
Abonginal content

o our website
developing commumnity
connections with cther
agencies io strengthen
Aboriginal families

and communities

buiiding educational
MESOUMDES IN oUr
libranies and
children's senices
cultural awareness
training for staff
and Councillors,
We're proud to say that many
af these objectives have
already been achieved at the
tirme of writing.

—
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Each Gathang-
speaking

Nation including
Warrimay (Worimi)
has unique words,
sounds, structures
and dialects.

The Worirmni have launched a revitalisation of
this wonderful sounding language — waking
it from s slumber and beanging it back to

Iife by sharing their traditional knowledge
and language of the land we know as

Port Stephens.

|dentifying and implementing the comect
translation is expecied to be a long and
challenging process. But the Wonmi ane
determined to get it right

Waorking in conjunction with the Gathang
Language Group and kocal Aboriginal
language advocates, we have discovernad
what's bebeved to be a more precise local
translabon of read to tomomow: Yabang
Gumba-Gu.
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bl ) What's next?

The agreement will be updated to refiect this
new knowledge. We're also working with the
Local Aboriginal Land Councils to develop
a process for using Gathang across Port
Staphans to haghlight significant areas, land
features and developments.
It's an important joumey that we'ne
walking together and a great example of
reconciliation in practice.

& Birubi Information Centre ¥
This year we prepared a Development

Application (DA) for the Binubl Information
Centre on Gan Gan Road, Anna Bay.

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

This will be a gateway to Birubi Point
Abanginal Place and the world-famous
Worimi Conservation Lands. These are the
largest moving sand dunes in the southem
hemisphere and are home 1o middens,
artefacts and burial sites belonging to the
Worimi people.

We successfully applied for 8 55.4 million
grant to build this landmark project. The grant
is part of the NSW Government’s Growing
Local Economies Fund,

The Information Centre will dramatically
improwve traffic fliow and safety in a precious,
environmentaily sensitive area that's regulasdy
packed with locals, tourists, and large
numbers of buses and cars.

Annual Fepon 20080 0ie B

(Bl ) What's next?

Thie Hunter and Central Coast Regional
Planning Pane! approved cur DA in
September 2019, This means we Can now
progress our emvironmental assessments,

permits and detailed design drawings ready
for constructian in late 2020,
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&) A fine Walk of Art

Street banners were fransformed inlo a
pulbhc gallery when we tumed artworks by
5 local artists infto a unique Walk of Art at
Melson Bay.

Artworks by Anna Webster, Denise Dufly,
lan Marriner, Kimberly Swan and Matthew
Johnsione were featured.

Walk of Art takes you through Apex Park
and our recently completed Yacaaba
Street extension, where 3 buidings
were demolished o open up pedestrian
access between Melson Bay town centre
and foreshore,

@ Public libraries need
more funding

I July 2018, we joined the Renew Cur
Libraries campaign 1o double the current
funding for public libraries across NSW so
they are sustainable long-term.

Pulblic ibranes play a wital role in
commienites like ours.
Az well as our libraries at Raymond

Terrace, Salamander Bay and Leman
Tree Passage, our Mobile Library visits 15

locations fortnighthy.

We run popular children's programs,
including our early iteracy program Slones
in the Street. Qur commuanity programs help
adults learn about technology and writing,
while author visits, movie screenings and

book clubs bring people together to have fun.

Renew Our Libraries was supported by
maore than 80 councils, as wel as the NSW
Public: Libraries Association and Local
Government M3,

Tegether, we achieved a commitrment from
the MNSW Governmeant to increass Borary
funding by $80 milkon over 4 years,

While this is an incredibhe result, the
campasgn is now pushing to secune the
long-term future of public Wbranes by
indeximg funding,

Why? Libranes today ane abaut more than
just books.

They provide literacy support for young
children, bridge the digital divide, serve as
a meeting place for older and newly arrived
Australians, and bring people together from
all walks of life," says our Library Services
Manager Kris Abbott.

We believe pur council-oened ibranes are a
vital part of our social infrastructure, now and
on our road to tormomow

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

166




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 1  ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Qur libraries in 2018 to 2019;

1845 new members
bringing total
membership to 25,065

299,000 items
borrowed

183,254
total visitors

Internet used
19.707 times

Wi-Fi used
13.114 times

Staff helped with
29,120 enquines

562 children's
programs with 8230
people attending

Stories in the Street

early eracy program
reached 67 families

Overall use was down
by around 15%
compared to last
year's figures*

*Ths & Bely due n part 1o Tomaree Liteary

# Sarmancer By besng Gosed or severy
weeks for penovalions

Anrual Repont 2018 0 2019
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Dur Council warks. with community 1o foster
creatnae and actve communites.

Australia Day ambassadon
Every year on 28 January, if's routine for
celebrities and high-profile Australians
to ba invited into a city as its Australa
Cay ambassador,

This year wea decsded to do things diferently.

Far the first e in several YEars, we chose
a local ambassador o give the Australa Day
address in Port Stephens

Kathy Remmer 15 a mother of 2 young
childran, busiress coach, Prasident of
Melson Bay Rotary Club, and a member
of Tomares Business Chamber and Port
Stephens Waomen in Busaness,

Kathy is an upstanding member of our

‘A fantastic example of someone who ?’MU“W:';“ = W‘“'r":ﬂ‘f:?m "':‘g“"i
\ 3 y QOUNErs neac CIr potEnlal a m pr

has given back to this communitys to have her as cur local ambassador,’ said

across almost every facet of her life Mayor Paimer

— Mayor Ryan Palmer. The honour wasn't lost on Kathy, who has

miultiple schierosis, She described her
passion for Port Stephens,
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'Port Stephens is such a supportive and
tight-kmit comrmunity. I'm excited to be able
to share my love of this place and its people,’
said Kathy.

To me, Australia Day is all about celebrating
cur diversity, We all have different
upbringengs, perspectives and culiures.

‘It's wonderful io come together on thes day
to celebrale each other's differences and
everything thal makes us Ausiralian.’

Stinking hot: remembernng
Australia Day 2019

It was already 32 degrees by Sam at
Raymeond Temrace, which may explain why
crowds were down comipared o last year far
official festroibes at Raymaond Terrace, Melson
Bay, Lemon Tree Passage and Karuah,

MNevertheless, sprits wene high for thousands
of locals and holiday-makers who celebrated
the day at homes, parks and walervays
across Port Stephens.

We welcomed 24 new citizens in cifizenship
ceremaonies at Raymond Temace and Nelson
Bay, and presented our annual Australia Day
awards to:

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

— Ben Milamd

Ben is Secretary of Medowie Sports and
Commumnity Club and Chairman of Port
Stephens Council Audit Commitiee. In 2018
he established a fundraiser called Medowie
Bale Out the Drought which raised 580,000
for drought-affected farmers, Ben is very
community-minded and heawily involved in
leadership and sponsorship of numenous
local sparts.
d = Army Dufour

Amy started playing fouch foctball at the age
of B for Nelson Bay Touch, has represented
Aurstralia and is a consistent mentor to
yournger players. She is renowned for

her sense of fair-play and abundance of
natural talent.

Graeme Chamberain
Graeme is a local [ronman who pushes
himself to be his best, while encouraging
others through his work as a volunteer. He i
Club Caplain at Birubl Point Surf Life Saving
Club, and a member of Tomaree Tl Chub and
Melsons Bay Hash Harriers.

Anrual Fepaoe] 2008 o 2Xie

— Mlichasel Francis

Michael is a Board Director of Port Stephens
Community Aris Centre and a natural leader
who has promoted artstic culture in our
regicn for more than 20 years. In fact, more
than 1400 pecple have been members of the
arts centre during his tenure,

Hunber Region Botanic Gandens were
established on 130 hectares at Heathwerbrae
in 1985, They are managed, maintained
and developed by a non-prafit company

of around 200 dedicated volunteers, who
collectively wan this awand.

hichael Mumray is an expert in business
sirategy, leadership and systemis. He brovght
his wealth of experience to the Pori Stepheans
Suicide Prevention Network, serving as
chairperson for the past year.

Lee Anlezark is the oulgoing president

of Tornaree Parkinson's Support Group.
Lee has Parkingon's disease himsel! and
established the group 10 years ago. He has
led with optimism, hope and enthusiasm to
the great benefd of others.
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Oiparabanal

Our performance o
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Hecognised traditions and lifestyle
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Our
place

Port Stephens is a Iveable

place supporting local
economic growth.

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Our community has an adapiable,
sustainable and diverse sconomy.

Unanimous support for new
economic strategy
Few people will argue that 'our place’ is
renowned for its natural beauty, That's why
generations of Australians have made Port
Stephens their holiday destination — and we
wouldn't have | any other way,

But Port Stephens s 50 much mare than
a tourist town.

Chur hocal economy is umsque and diverse —
from manufacturing, aviation and defence
industnes to tourism, retail and hospitality,
We're also part of the Hunter region, the
largest regional economy in Australia.

Chur Councll has been working hard fo dive
new ideas and support sustainabée growth for
all local businesses, [ange and small,

A new Economic Development and Touwrsm
Strategy 2019 1o 2021 was supported
unanimously by our Councd in March 2019

The stralegy provides the framewaork for
creating a vibrant place that suppors
local economic growth, This will help
Port Stephens to thrive along our road to
tomarrow, regardiess of whether it's peak
fourist season,

What's next?
As part of the new strategy we will;
= continue to invest in programs that make
business growth easier
= partner with industry to dove cvemight
visiior spend across Port Slephens
+ aftract events that drive economic benefit

* greate people-fiendly, vibrant spaces for
our residents, businesses and visitors,

You can read the full strategy our website
portstephens new.gov.au
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POPULATION my
N

~J
{o
(&) |
27,346
JOBS
4591
ACTIVE
BUSINESSES
19.2%
YOUTH O 1015
22.9%
COWER 65

SOUSCE. REMPLAN Juty 20159
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$4.8bn

REGIONAL EXPORTS

$3.6bn

REGIONAL IMPORTS

55bn +

GROSS REGIOMAL
PRODUCT

$10,913m

QUTPUT

$141.7m
RESIDENTIAL
BUILDING
APPROVALS

Annial Fepaor] 2008 o 209

Vislor BLOMNGITY

$539m 15m 2221
in visitor Visifors per people
expendiure annum emplayed

SOURLE Foursm Hesearch Posl 7018

Employment by industry

Public safety and administration 15%
kManufaciuring 12%

Construction 11%%

Retad trade 10%

Hey drivers of output
Manufacturing 28%

Constrechon 15%

Public admin and safety 13%
Renting, hiring and real estate 9%

Strategic nfrastruciurs assels
Mewcastie Airport
RAAF Base Williamiown
Fort of Mewcaste
Defence and Airport Related Industrial Zone

[DAREZ
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Flace actvabon will grow
our economy ™

Place activabon i a deliberate affort to
bring a public space 1o life. The idea is o
creale a vibrant setting where people want
to spend time for all sarts of activities swch

and relaxation.

Creating people-frendly spaces across
Port Stephens is part of our mew
Economic Development and Tourism
Strategy. Thes year we recruited an Events
and Place Activation Tearn Leader to deive
programs 1o achieve our goal,

A greal example of place activation is
the inaugural Port Stephens Seaside
Scavenge held in Apal 2019 at Robinson
Reserve, Anna Bay. We invited our
community 1o a fun event where they
could trade trash for treasure. Picking
up rubbish from the waterway rewarded
participants with Seaside Scavenge
curmency for use at a pop-up market
featuring pre-loved clothes, books and
other goods. All thess tems had bean
donated by the community.

This event was a huge success. As wall
85 creatng a positive community vibe, a
staggerning total of 146 kilos of nubbesh was
remmoved, including 60 kilos of recyciing
picked up from Birubi Beach.

L
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o) Foala Sanctuary
construction ®

We're excited to report construction is
undersay at our Port Stephens Koalka
Sanctuary at One Mile Beach.

The sanctuary will feature a hospital for sick,
injured or orphaned koalas as well as a tourist
information centre. An elevated boandwalk will
allow visitors to view our resident koalas in
their natural habitat. On the ground, overnight
accommadation in the form of ‘glamping tents’
will offer a unique experience for our guests,
This is the culmination of several years
planning and raising the necessary funds,
argund 37 million, The sanctuary has been
made possible through a partnership with

the NSW Government and volunteer group
Port Stephens Koalas. Stage 1 inchsdes the
koala pens, accommedation, the elevabed
boardwalk and internal access roads.

We're fortunate to share our place with one
of the few remaining koala populations on
Australia’s east coast and we're doing all we
can to protect them.

) What's next?
Ve expect the Koala Sanctuary o be
complete in early 2020. Stage 2 including the

hospital, tournst centre and car parks started in
August 2018

After an expression of interes! process,
we've commissioned a local antist to create a
unigue artwork telling the story of the koala,
fo feature at the new facility.

(3¢} It's time for a new brand

The heart-felt brand F.5. | ove you' has
been a huge success for Port Stephens over
the past 8 years. No doubt, this has helped
o grow and sustain our $500 milon-plus
annual tourism industry,

The time is right to refresh our

marketing pitch. This year we helped
Destination Port Stephens (a non-profit
industry body supported by our Council) o
start searching for a new brand. We tock part
in a workshop with other key stakeholders to
develop the foundations fior a new domestic
marketing campaign leading into summer
2019 1o 2020,

Our Visitar Information Centre weloamed
almest 78,000 people during 2018 to
2019, In partnership with Destination Port
Stephens, we generated almost 51 million
in accommodation and tour sales for local
tourism operators.

More inferstate visitors from Victona
stayed overnight in Port Stephens —

a 40% increase.
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We see Victonia as a key growth market,
especially a3 Newcastie Alrpornt continues to
promobe direct flights between Melboume
and Newcastie (Port Stephens) as an easy,
accessible option.

Domestic visitor data for 2018 fo 2018 shows
an overall 10% increase in visitors to 1.8
milion, On average they stayed 13% longer
than the previous year,

(B ) What's next?

The new Destination Paort Stephens brand
will be revealed in early 2020 and our Visitor
Information Cenire team is reviewing our
current booking system to make it more wser-
friendiy. This will be increasingly important as
wii lookl 1o expand into international markets

fike Mew Zealand. You can read more about
this on page 79.

This year we held or supported
123 events held on Council
owned or managed land

These included: Port Stephens Surf Fro,

Lowe Seafood, Tastes at the Bay, Trex,
Mations of Onigin and Sail Port Stephens,
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1L TaliliiiESs

Our community's mfrastreciure and
faciities ane safe, conversent, reliable and
emviranmentally sustainable.

(3g") Major projects on track *

Constructon of our magor projects and

works program was on track at the end of
the 2018 fo 2019 financial year, reflecting
a tolal expenditure of 3256 million across

Port Stephens.

Among our completed projects:

+ makeover of Caswell Reserve at
Mallabula featuning new playground,
accessible public amenities, pathways
and car park

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

» Lancaster Park al Soldiens Point

eslablished as dog off-leash area

with fencing

significant road upgrades of Hinton Road,
Holdom Road Karuah, Gan (Gan Road
intersection, Nelson Bay Road/hedowe
Road roundabout Wilkarrtown and
Waterfront Road Swan Bay

installed new signage at gateways to Port
Stephens and some localities (stage 1)

« Apey Park amphitheatre with grass and

sandsione-block bers

Longworth Park seawall replaced

new cashless parking meters at Melson
Bay to improve ease of use

CCTV (closad circuit television) upgraded
or replaced at 13 remote sites to improve
public safety

+ Integrated Vehicle Management System
inestalled in 90 cowndl vehicles to drive
efficiencies and improve safety by
manitaring driving times

= Anna Bay Cemebery extension with 400
reeny burial sites and columbanum walls.

You'll find a full kst of our major projects and
works for 2018 10 2019 in Attachment 2 of
this repart.

(bl What's next?

We expect to open the 352 million Medowie
Sport and Communety Facility in earty 2020
After extensive commumnity consultation,
we've added to our list of projects for the next
18 months. You can read mane about our
Port Stephens 2020 projects on page B1.
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a0 Dry times punish our road
patching program

Extrerme temperature fuctuabons cause
asphalt road surfaces to expand and contract
excessively. In penods of drought it's near-
impossible to make lasting repairs 1o growing
numbers of potholes.

We managed by successfully heavy patching
20,000 square mefres of road using 2400
tonnes of asphall. To mprove quality, we've
increased the patch thickness and reduced
the surface area where needed

Like much of drought-affected Mew Scuth
Wales in 2018 o 2018, we're doing the best
we can o keep on top of road repairs despde
the challenging conditions,

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

(@) Action needed on Council
depot bulldings ™

Clur ageing Council depot busldings do not
meest modern expectations for condition
and functionality.

We have 2 large depots, Nelson Bay and
Raymond Terrace. These facltate our heavy
machinery and equipment, workshops,
siores and B5 team members. Our parks and
gardens staff cccupy other smaller depots.

O depots were designed in a different era,
In fact, the former Mumicipality of Raymond
Termace used the existing depot sife to store
plant and equipment from as early as 18935,

Our depots have served us well for more
than 50 years bul if's tme io consider
substantial upgrades or relocation,

Annual Fepon] 2008 e §

The way thal we (and all councils) use our
depots has changed dramatcally in recent
times. These days our leams use technology
o get the job done safely, adherning to stict
environmental controls, YWe don't need
farge stores 1o stockpile supplies such as
chemicals and fuel because most can be
readiy purchased.

As a starting point, we're commitied to
upgrading our Raymond Terrace depot 1o
bring it in line with modem requirements,
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Elite award for Nelson Bay

Foreshore Regional Park

What an honour! Until this year only

capital city parks in Sydney, Brisbane and
Melboumne had received a prestigious Green
Flag Award.

Green Flag Awards originated in the United
Kingdom in the 1990s. They aim to raise the
standard of green spaces and bring people
back into parks

Parks and Leisure Australia’s judging process
ts renowned for being rigorous with 27 critena
plus an on-site inspection for finalists,

Taking care of Neison Bay Foreshore and all
our parks is a real team effort 5o it's great to
see all that hard work recognised,’ says our
Parks Program Coordinator Michael Reay.

Nelson Bay Foreshore Regional Park is
visited by arcund 250,000 pecple each year
to enjoy the spectacular waterfront, access
doiphin and whale-watching tours, and use
our free outdcor gym and play equipment

This vear our parks and
mamntenance crews

§
O

grassy drains
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Anvual Repod 2018 Yo 2019
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Apex Parx, Netson Bay
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Diur communety supports a healthy, happy
and safe place.

Breathing new life into
the Bay' ™

We now have a clear roadmap to make
Melscn Bay Town Centre a thriving place
on our road to fomamew, The Melson Bay
Public Domain Plan is the result of robust
community debate and hard waork by our
Council, Qur shared goal is to revive the
iconic area that locals and holiday makers
call the Bay'

We listened fo what our community ioves
about Melson Bay and sel a long-temm
vigion for its streets, paths, parks and
foreshore, This will promate year-round
activity and boost the viabilty of businesses,

The main featwres will be a gresner town
canire, enhanced opportunities. for walking
and cycling, better parking and quality
spaces where pecple want fo spend time.
The Melson Bay Pubke Domaen Plan is
part of a broader strategy adopbed by

our Council in Seplember 2018 called
Progressing the Nelson Bay Town Centre
and Foreshore Strategy: A Rewvised
Implementaban and Defvery Program.

&
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This Deltvery Program recommends taller
buildings in some parts of the Bay — 5 storey
developments in the town cenfre o retain

its village characier and & storeys along the
edges. Initially we proposed a 10 stoney limit
but a compromise was reached in response
o community feedback.

To ensure high-rse buildings don impact the
Bay's character, there will be controls to assure
that excellent quality designs will maximse
wigw-sharing and natural ight in public areas.
We asked comminity members and
businesses to be part of the Nelson Bay
Implementation Panel to keep us accountable
and drive action on the Delvery Program.

We also establishad an Independant Nelson
Bay Citizens Parking Panel to workshop
ways to improve parking in the town centre
and foreshore, Want more details? Find the
full documents at poristephens. nsw.gov.au

What's next?
We submitted a planning proposal o the
NEW Government to implement the Melson
Bay Delivery Program and we're waiting on

approval to exhibit the proposed changes o
local planning controés,

We'll also estabilish a plan and funding
sirategy to implement parking improvements
in 2019 to 2020, based on recommendatons
fram cur ndependant panel,

Anrual Fepaon] 2008 o 2009

We listened
to what our
community
loves about
Nelson Bay
and set a
long-term
VISION.
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Development and
planning highlights

for processing of planning
cerificates. Our leam has worked hard to
reduce wait times from an average of 5
days to just 24 hours.

were issued
this year with aimost two-thirds processed
USing our rew anling system.

{DAs) were determined with a total capital
investment valee of 5244 million.

Wans
pchigved {met median) and ths was under
the Premier's tanget of 40 days.

was drafted, including a vision
for a new town centre, diverse housing
choices, accessible open spaces and
community facilities, YWe're working with
City of Newcastle lo publicly exhibi this
strategy in November 2019,

to drive the actons im our adopbed plans
for Medowse, Melson Bay and Raymond
Terrace/Heatherbrae town cenires. The
panels include community membsers,
business representatives and Coundillors.

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

What's next?

I 2020, we'll complete our new Local
Housing Strategy to plan for future housing
across Port Stephens based on local
populaton trends and forecasts.

Craating a 20-year vision for
and-use ™

Cur Council is in the process of developing
a Local Siralegic Planning Staterment {or
LEPS) on land use. These statements

are a new legislative reguirement for local
government, Our LSPS will reflect the views
of cur community and spell out our vision for
land use across Port Stephens.

The LSPS must be succinct and easy to
understand. It will describe our priontes,
the special character and values we plan o

presense, and how we plan to manage and
monifor change.

It will also detail how we plan fo achieve the

actions in the NSW Government's regional
land use plans,

This won't replace our Community Strategc
Plan 2018 to 2028, which has a much
broader focus than land use, but will help us
manage growth and change into the future.

@) llegal aumping and
land-use continues

Atrend of Begal dumping in and arcund
building s#es across Port Stephens has
continued this year.

Our Waste Compliance team increased
proactive surseillance and this resulted in a
total of 3100,000 in penalty infingements
being ssued.

This approach has helped us to reduce
illegal dumping in hotspot locations by S0%
compared to last year

VWe also successhully applied for 2 significant
grants iotalling 5164,000 for an ilegal
dumping and lifter prévention project

We hope this will encourage our commiumnity
to repaort illegal dumpers — and lat the
perpetrators know we're determined o stamp
it oul.

We mvestigated 228 new complainis of
unauthornsed development and/'or land

use thes year. Howewver, by adding an extra
compliance officer to cur team we reduced

the volume of outstanding complats
by 60%.
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Annual Repont 201810 2019 8
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Infrastructure and facilities
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. Blaseline Actual
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Thriving and safe place to live

Anrual Fepaon] 2008 o 20ie Ij
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Our
environment

Paort Stephens’ environment & cean,
green, protected and enhanoed.

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Dur community has healthy and dynamic
emranmental systems that suppart
bicdiversity consendation.

5 Fiyirg foxes are an important
part of our ecosystem

Im some neighbouring towns and cities, fiying
foxes are seen as a menace. Here in Port
Stephens they play a critical role in keeping
ouwr native bushland healthy,

Ve share our environment with a natve
population of grey-headed flying foxes and
Ittle-red flying foxes. They live in a ‘camp’

at Raymand Terrace, extending through
Mewbury FPark and Ross Walbridge Resenve,
Grey-headed flying foxes are a threatened
species, protected by MSW and
Commamaealth legiskation, They were first
obsearved at the camp in 2011,

The littie-reds joined in 2016, probably to
enpoy feading on the area’s mass-fiowenng
spotied gums (eucalyplus trees).

Cur flying foxes are hard workers but they
are often misunderstood. They do a fiy-in-fiy-
out night shift, leaving at dusk and returning
to camp before dawn to sleep through the
day. Their imponant work is spreading pollen
and seeds over a 50 kilometre stretch of our
dynamic natural emvironment, every night.

Our Councll adopted the Raymond Terace
Flying Fox Camp Managernent Plan in August
2018, i outlines communily concems caused
by the presence of flying foxes, including
notse, smell, excrement and perceptions of a
potential health risk.

So far, we haven' seen the same destructive
impacts as other councils, However, the camp
is close o residential areas and Raymond
Terrace shopping disinct. This plan describes
how we'll manage the camp should any
significant issues. or conflict arise on our road
to tarmonmow

Want mane information about the Raymond
Terrace Flying Fox Camgp Management Plan™
Go to our website porisiephens. nsw.gov.au

* Reviewed our Tres Vandalism Policy ta
reaffirm penalties and raise awaraness.
Deliberate damage/removal of trees and
vegetation on Councl-manage d land is an
CrOing issue as perpetrators try to enhance
views of developmeant opporhenihies.

+ Focused on restoring natural koala
habitat and other areas confaining rare
and threatened species. Volunteers and
contracions helpsd with mambenanse
works on 62 hectares of significant natural
ernaronmaent 1o menimise weeds, pests. and
hurman disturbances.
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Anral Fepaor] 2008 o 2009

* Prepared a draft repon on koala hbs of
source populations in Tomago, Medowie

Cosla Geooigedn and iy Sjeces Pannes
gl our ANCEN DT aaiereeig A

and Kings Hill. This will form part of a
broader project io identify and assess
the health of koala populations across
Port Stephens.

War on weeds: some success
but iInvasion continues

We liken it to a war — and thes is no
exaggeration ghven the emdronmental risk
posad by 32 invasive weed species in

Part Stephens. These are prionty-listed fior
attack and controd as parf of our comphiance
with the Buosecurty Act 2015,

Weeds such as Pampas Grass, Chinese
Wiclet, Frogbit, African Clive, Alligator Weed,
Water Hyacinth and Giant Salvinia might look
pretty but they cause sernous harm to our
envvircnment and economy.

It was our mos! successiul year ta date in
termmns of funding for our weeds campaign. Our
Invasive Species team worked hard to secure
more than $750,000 for weed and bushland

managemant programs over the year.

Wi lve in a beautiful part of the workd but
unforfunately woody weeds ke African

Dive are threatening our nathve Species,

and taking over cur natural bushland and
farming land,” says Steve Peart, our Councl's
Strategy and Environment Section hManager.

=)

« successfully applied for a $100,000
grant fo rehabilitate and profect the
Mambo Wetlands at Salamander Bay for
future generations

+ treated more than 250 kilometres of
aquatic areas for weed invasion

* issued 34 biosecunty directions, mcluding
cne seizure of 30 plants

¢ inspected 371 sites covering more than
1000 hectares with an 52% success rate
for adequate control of high-risk infestations

* held 2 African Olive awareness days,
including a successiul field day featuning
Costa Geargiadis, host of ABC TV's
Gardening Australia program and
passionate biosecunty advocate

What's next?

From 1 July 2019, the Biesecunty (Chinese

Violet) Contral Order came inbo effect. This

imsasive plant was first found in Boat Harbouwr

in 1824 and has spread throughout Fort

Stephens. The crder means l[andowners

must immediately destroy all Chinese Viclet

on their property, We'll continue raising

awareness and workimg with our commumnity

to eradicate it

Afull kst of prionty weeds i Port Stephens is
available at portstephens nsw.gov.au
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Our community USes resources
sustainably, efficiently and equitably.

@) Rule change causes
compost challenge
In Oclober 2018, the NSW Envircnment
Protection Authonty (EPA) made a surprise
announcement that significantly affects

how we manage domestc waste in
Port Stephens.

A regulation known as the Resource
Recovery Exemption Order was revoked
for maxed organic waste, effective within
24 hours, According ko the EFA, this was
due o new independent research that
posed potential environmental concems
about compost made from mixed
domestic waste,

Previously, the order allowed this compost
to be used on land for grazing agnculturs,
in forestry plantations and rehabilitated
mine sites. Suddenly, thés was forbidden
due io poiential physical contaminants and
ervvircnmental risks.

This meant an immedsate stop

o an important part of our waste
managerment process,

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Mo longer were we permetted 1o use the
compast materal from mixed domestic waste

in ordinary garbage bins. This had been a
key feature of the successhul Newline Road
Waste and Composting Facility, commercially
operated by SUEZ

While many other councils are just starting

to compost food waste, we've been doing it
for 20 years with this state-of-the-art system
We've been advised by the EPA that further
discusssons will be held with our Council

to determine the financial impacts an our
waste management system — with a view

to proveding compensation,

A review s underway but for now, we have no
choice but to sand the waste to landfill. This
will clearly impact our waste-reduction tangets,

& VWe're aiming high with
hundreds of solar panels

More than 350 solar panels now cover the
reof of cur Raymond Terrace administration
busiding. We installed them in February 2019
and we're already seeing the benefis.

The 89,96 kilowatt solar photovoltalc system
generales about 20% of the buikding's annual
energy consumplion and is estmated 1o save
us about 330,000 per year. It has produced
TE megawalt hours at the time of writing —
the equivalent of 35 tonnes of carbon dicoade.

We're looking for ways o save maney and
reduce our enviroamental footprint, and solar
power s a proven way o make real and
lasting savings,” says our General Manager
Wayne Wallis.

Cur building will use approximately 85% of
the sclar power generated by the panels,

The remaining 15% will be put back into
the grid, especially on weekends and pubbc
holidays when our anengy use 5 k.

By taking advantage of Commonwealth
Government rebates for solar power, we
expect to achieve a return on our investment
in about 4 years.

bl What's next?

A review is underway to quantfy our
sustainability targets and we're provisioning
solar power at our agualic cenires
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Waste collection in lonnes

E-waste and chomicals
E-iaaha
sl de ol

e

E-washa

drop off

Chemicals

i 4
el TS

Lihmecal
anop of

2017 o 2048 2018 fo 201G
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A 10-year Coastal
Management Program
will go a long way
towards helping us
build resilience against
environmental risks.

Our community 15 resiient to environmental
risks, natural hazards and chmate change.

s} Long term
strategy underway "

Owur stunning, diverse coast is an incredible
asset. Making sure it's protected from
environmental perl on our road to tomormow
is ot only our responsibility — it's

COMMOoN Sanse.

Threats from natural hazards and climate
change such as ercaion, inundation, land-
clearing and soil run-off have the potential fo
destroy our treasured natural envinonment
and our way of kea_

A 10-vear Coastal Management Program (o
CMP) will go a long way lowands helping us
build resience against environmental risks

We're in the process of developing a
CMP with neighbouring councils, state
agencies and other stakeholders, This is
a S-stage program and the result will be a
long-term strategy to manage cur coastal
land sustainably,

The first stage of the ChP was a scoping

shudy to map the Port Stephens Coastal
Zone, and examine how it's used and valued
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by our community. This 2one streiches
frorm Fem Bay in the south 1o Yaccaba
Headland in the north, including the vast
Port Stephens estsary.

Cwr scoping sfudy was reviewed by the
MNSW Office of Environment and Hertage in
February 2019 and completed in July 2018,

What's next?

Stage 2 has commenced and is
expecied to be complete in late 20139,
This involves detaded studies to identify,
analyse and evaluate risks, vulnerabilities
and opportunities.
& | Update on
PFAS contamination ™

W continued supporting landholders at
Williaméown affected by PFAS contamination

with a special sub-calegory of rates in 2018
to 2018,

This gave a discount of 50% for residents in
the primary Zone, 25% in the secondary zone
and 10% in the broader zone.

The contamination was caused by the
historical use of firefighting foam containing
chemicals known as PFAS (per and

poty fluorcalkyd substances) at RAAF

Basa Willianmtown.

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

We rermain concemed about the impacts
Of OUr commanity and environment from
PFAS contamination,

In 2018, our General Manager presented
to a Commomeealth senate inguiry into
the management of PFAS contamination
in and around Defence bases, and our
submission was accepted by the Joint
Standing Committee.

In Movember and December 2018 we
undertook mechanical maintenance warks to
parts of Willambown's drainage. The works
wana in ling with approved environmental
management plans and procedures, and
will help the drains operate as efficiently
as possibile,

Bl ) What's next?

We'll continue the Williambown sub-category
of rates. Wel also continue advocating for
our community and environment.

Ve've installed a

Anrual Fepaoe] 2008 o 2009

) Our climate change
policy delayed

This year we did not complete our Port
Stephens Cimate Change Policy due to
resourcing constrasnts. While a preliminary
Ierature review was completed in Nowermber
2018 and a draft project plan was developed,
the strategy did not progress as planned.

This hasn't stopped us from completing
actions from our 2008 Climate Change
Adaptation Plan, including installing a 90.05
kilowatt solar photovoRaic system on our
adminisiration building.

bl ) What's next?
Underaking a review of aur Climate Change
Adaptatian Plan is a priority in 2018 to 2020,
We're also committed to working with our
community and local businesses to reduce
our overall impact on cimate change in
Pori Stephens,

on our administration building.
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Our
Councill

Port Stephens Councl leads,
manages and delivers valued
COMMIUNITY SENaoes in a
responsible way.

Dur Council's eadership is based on frust
and values of Respedct, Integrty, Tearmwork,
Excellence and Safety (RITES).

How we changed our

[ B=1 r"..'-.r1.'_':|;;ur'.'.|:.r1'.
We worked hard to develop a new nisk
management system last year and won an
award at the Statewide Risk Management
Excellence Awards in August 2018,
Cr Council was named the overall winner m
the Large Regional or ketropoitan Councils
division for best strategic enterprise nsk
management mitiathee.
This cements our Council as a leader in the

field of nsk management. But how does il
benefit cur community?

Behind the scenes, cur new Integrated Risk

Management Sysiem combines mulliphe

processes into a unified tool. This

includes our:

« methodology — matching what we do to
our strategic and cperational plans

+ reporting — docurmenting what we've done
and haven't done

The system makes every part of our
govemnance visile and accountable, and this
in fum affects our risk profile,

It's a big change for the better in the way our
Council does business, It greatly improves
our abikty io effectively manage risk io

our community, employees, environment
and crganisation,

We adopted a new Workforce Plan in
January 2019, This sets out the strategies
we'll use io plan our Council's human
resoUrceEs requiraments for the next 3 years
and beyond. Making sure we have the right
pasple with the right skills 5 citical 5o we can
successfully deliver our strategic goals,

A new Capabality Framewaork introduced

in June 2018 will hedp develop the slalls and
aspirations of our employees. The framewark
outlines a team member's current shall leveds
and identihes future growth areas. It does
this in a way thal's easy o understand,
positive and encourages progression, This

15 consistent with our leadership values of
Reasped, Integnty, Teamwork, Excellence and
Safety (RITES).
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@) Slight drop in community
satistaction rating

The 2019 Community Satisfaction Survey
asked more questions than previous
years. We also set an ambitious new
target of BO%% as part of our commitment o
CONMALIOUS IMprovement.
We sought more detailed input from our
comminity on their perceptions of our
performance — and their vision for places,
SErvices and 200ess On Oour road to tomormow,
Cwur overall commundty satisfaction rating this
year was T6%, Our services with the highest
level of satisfaction were:

= branes at 9%
« chidren's services at 958%
» garbage collecton senices al 95%.

VWhile our overall rating is less than kast
year's B5% ratng, i's still considered a high
result for a local govennment organisation.
For the sake of comparison our 2017 result
was T9%.,

A likely factor in this year's rating was our
proposal to increase rates by a Special Rate
Variation and we've taken that on board as
we sirive to do betler,

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Bl What's next’”

We've istened to feedback and we'l
continue to focus on whal matters most to
our community. Thes feedback will alsa be
heipful as we begn a conversation with our
community in 2020 to review the Community
Strategic Plan.

We won ‘Major Airport
of the Year'

Mewcasthe Airport landed a major national
award — the Ausiralian Arport Associabion's
Major Airport of the Year 2018,

As co-owners of this tremendous assat with
City of Mewcaste, it's our responsibility to
develop effective shareholder value, A record
1.28 million travellers passed through the
airport in 2018 1o 2019, marking 5 years of
sheady growth.

Ouwr partnership with Newcastle Airport will
have major impiications on our Council's
road to tomomow and this year we helped
o propel several exciting developments
designed to deliver long-term benefits,

A new route was announced on a 3-year
basis for internaticnal feghts from Mewcaste-
Port Stephens to Auckland during the
summer penod between Movember 2018

and February 2018,

Anrual Fepaon] 2008 o 29

We jointly announced a suctessful
apphcation for MSW Government funding of
$11.7 million fo help develop the proposed
Asira Astrolab aerospace business park,
located on 76 hectares next to Newcaste
Alrport. This will be an international centre for
defence and aercspace related indusines,
creatng jobs and economic benelit for the
enting Hunier regson.

Our Mayor Ryan Falmer was appointed

to the Boards of Newcastie Airport Pty Ltd
(MAFL) and its associated enlity Greater
MNewcastle Aerotropolis Pty Ltd (GMAPL) in
May 2019, This will help to further build a
strong and effective partnership between our
Council and both entifies,

B ) What's next?

Development of Astra Aerclab asrcspace
business park by NAPL will proceed over
the next yvear. The NSYW Government has
agreed o investigate Special Activation
Precinct status which, if approved, would
fast track development of the broader
Williamtown area.

We'll continue to advocate for critical runway

upgrades al Newcastie Arpor 1o increase
aircrafl capacity and uniock the Humter

region's potential,
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Goal 2: Financial
111;!!‘|ﬁg£1:11ur1t

Dur Council i financially sustainable to meet
community needs,
. *,h Vision for change:

— our proposed SRY ¥

It was an ambitious plan to kickstart a 3100
Biory phas of e canital
infrastructure across Port Stephens on our
road to tomormow, This year we applied for a
Special Rate Vanation (SRV) overa 7 year
pericd to fund improvements our community
asked us fo deliver,

These were identfied during consultation on
our Community Strategic Plan im 2017, They
included revitalsing our lown centres, betier
amenities, drainage, skreef Bghting and
sports faciities,

Dur Council was motivated by a vision to
el o sects and stimubte the
local economy,

We held 20 community consultation events
during July and August 2018 to get feedback
on the proposal.

The community has uneguiocally old us
they want more than we can provide with our
current income,' said Mayor Ryan Palmer.
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While our Council is financially fit, we sirmply
don't have the resources to deliver the major

profects our community wants.'

So, in February 2019 we asked the NSW
Independent Pricing and Regulatory Tribunal
(IPART) for permission to increase rates by
7.5% per year for 7 years, This included the
standard increase (or rale peg) set by IPART
for all councils

IPART's repor told us we anly partly
demonstrated a financial need — the
proposed rate increase was nol necessary
to meet an infrastructure backiog or
renewal benchmarks.

The SRV was not critical o our finandal
sustainabdty. This is largely due o our
Council's strong financial position, having
achieved a moadest surplus for the past

7 years. There was also a lack of community
wilingness to pay for all of the proposed
works and this was demonstrated by the
majority of submissions to IPART.

Dwr application was refused in May 2019 and
although it wasn't the cutcome cur Council
wanted, the farge number of submissions
(681} showed we had achieved clear and
effective communscation with our communty.
They understood what the SRV was, the
prosects i would pay for and how this wiould
impact them.
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Bl What's next”

We're determined to fund as many Iccal
progects as we can by opbmising our
investment retums, aking out low-nterast
loans and matching local projects with

a broader range of state and federal
government grants.

In July 2019 we went back 1o the community
o refine our SRV projects down to a shortlist

that we can implemsent withow! increasing
rates, These are called our Pom Stephens

2020 projects,

Hundreds of people had their say duning the
consuitation process and were strongly in
favour of the proposal

As a result, our Council voled to fast-irack
£15.8 milkon of projects identified as priorties
for cur community, This includes 55 million for
feotpaths and cycleways, 52.4 milkon for town
centre revitalisation and 32 millon for roads.
These will be camied out over the next 18
maonths in addition to our regular program

of works,

We welcomed

Anrual Fepaoe] 2008 o 209

- Moliday parks highlights

Our Council=owned holiday parks welcormsd
mare than 78,000 guests and cusiomer
satisfaction was high. Fingal Bay and Halifax
holiday parks achieved Net Promoter Scones
higher than T0% and this is considersd
world-class based on giobal standards, Shoal
Bay, Treescape and Thou Walla haliday
parks achigved soores above 50%. Crerall,
these are pleasing results for an important
revenue source for cur Council.

To guide their future operation and ensure
continuing success, we drafted new plans
of managemeni for Shoal Bay and Halifax
holiday parks

Bl ) What's next’”
Work to replace the amenities at Shoal Bay
and Halfax holiday parks will be completed in
tate 2015, Ouwr new Koala Sanctuary kocated
at Treescape Holiday Park is expected to be
complete in early 2020 {you can read more
about this on page 58},

to our holiday parks at

Halitax, Fingal Bay, Shoal Bay, Treescape and Thou Walla
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Our cammunity understands Council's
services and can influence outcomes that
affect them.

MNew customer charter is a
WO 1N Qrogress

Last year our Council embarked on a
whole new way of providing high quality
customer service. YWe introduced an
organisational framework called Customer
First, which places our cusiomers
(ratepayers, community and colleagues)
at the heart of everything we do.

'‘Closing the loop’ is an important part of
this change.

In practice this means following through
on promised actions to resohve any issues
of guenas customers bang to us on the
phone, cnlineg or in parson. The same
goes for infernal customers whio might be
colleagues working in a different team.

We're making progress. However, we
recognise that creating a Customer First
organisaton requires significant cultural
change — and this will take tma,
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A year down the frack, ‘closing the loop' is a
phrase vou'll hear often arcund our Council,

The Customer First Framework makes our
team members accountable for closing the
locp and we have key perfformance indicators
to ensure this happens.,

We are striving to help customers as best we
Can, &5 500N &5 Wa Can — and measune our
performance avary time.

For exampde, we now track customer
enquires from their first poant 1o resoluton.
Cur success rate for beam members handling
calls without needing to transfer customers
to other Council sections improved from 52%
in June 2018, o 63% in June 2019, We're
aiming to reach our ambitious tanget of B0%,,

Last year we reported working towands a

monthly target of B0% of customer requests
completed within 21 days. In 2018 to 2018,

we've made a small gan from B0% to B3%.

Az pari of the first stage of the Custormer First
Framework we:

« wpdated our Customer Service Charter

+ developed a draft Customer Matrix
1o explain how our service delivery is

prioritised from our customer point of view
and not our Coundil (staff) view

*« provided training 1o all fronténe staff,
including cur Librares and Therve
Kids teams

= mioved several processas (o o
Customer Relatons team rather than
cur Records team, including emad
and hardcopy comespondence, onling
cartificates, doveway appications and road
cpening apphcations

» maved developrment and construction
certificate processes from Customer
Refations to our Development Senices
Business Support team.

Each of these changes is designed to
sireamline processes for customers and
increase their satisfaction with our Council's
performance. They will alsa help us o record,
monifor and track each cormespaondence —
and close thea loop.

Whats next’

We'll mplement Stage 2 of the Cuslomer
Firs! Framewodrk, focusing on aur Customer
Request Management (CRM) system. A
senace review will examing how CHM can be
better ulilised to meet the needs of internal
and external customens.
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o | oocial media success
We're seaing results! Our social media
presance and engagement increased
substantially thes year.
Socal media and especally Facebook proved
an effective way for us to communicate with
our community for all sorts of reasons. From
handy remanders about wasie collection, road
repairs and events, o what's coming up for
debate at the next councll mesting. Not to
mention critical information in emengencies
such as bushfires and slomes.

Social media helps 1S o deliver and
exchange information in a way that's
accessible, interactive and helpful

Iy the year 1o 30 June 2019 we grew owr
Facebook page Bkes by 23% from 7733

o 84T 3. Qur organic engagement on
Facebook (non-sponsored content) rose by
a steady 8% from 342,000 to 371,000,

We predict that social media will contnue
to be a valuable tool to converse with our

9473 people like us

i =" [ ol ala L
IR rs =,
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community on our road o tomorow. That's
why we're working hand io establish frus! in
our messages by offering our community
consistently high-qualty, useful information
and getting back to enquines as quickly

as possible.

* Held numerows drop-n information
ses50ns and promoted the cal-to-
achion have your say’ on majcr progects
inchuding the design for a new skate park
and playground at Birubi Point Abongenal
Place Spex Park Master Plan and cur
SRV proposal.

« Dyr Public Relations and Marksting team
took responasibility for both our website
and imtramet to streamline ouwr intemal and
axternal commumications.

* Focused on commumcating cleary and
effectively with our audience/tustomers,
using pdain English and clean design,

Anral Fepaor] 2008 o 209

* Updated our Brand ldentity Style Gusde and
started rolling it out across our Coundl 1o
encourage clear, effective commumnication
and piain English wiiting,

= Finalised our Social Media Strategy
to ensure we communicate with cur
community on platforms they prefer

= Focused on producing quality video content
to make our stones mone accessible for our
commimity,

= Made improvememts 1o our website
to make it more user-fiendly in ine
with recommendations from an
accessibdity audit

Bl ) What's next?

We're in the process of puting more

apphcation forms online and will continue

our "soft launch’ of Online Services, 1o

encourage and heldp our community complete

thesr business with us enline. A marketing
campaign for this will take place once bugs
are fixed,
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Dipsnrabonal
Our performance
on Irack
: Basadineg Aciual
Whal we sadd we'd do How effaclive were we'T Target 07 to F018 2018 to 2049
L1191 Maragn ored dolyor (ha Human Emgiiyan angagomonl = 0% i %
R oSounnns. pEogiaETs
Complas. will IPAR checkls! for workfonoe plan Klankain Coenphiani Comphant
L1 21 Cocecinalo and dodvor Courcliol ani oxoculymg Counciliogs salsfachon wilh sinacis Blaintaim 100 Ll
SLEE SENaces
L1 2 2 Conduct olransten oommmonsss Mumbior ol ofoans conbormesd Calgnons 1 A
coniprosd
L 1.2 3 Dovoiop mnd manogs nelylionsigrs walb ol ivels  Parbcipation in consulabondadvocacy acinitios wilh Edambaim Y Wi
of gowarmumsind and stakeholders olhar kel of gowemment or Sgoencies
L1224 Diveion shansdholdar walun iough on afscie Paricipation in HMAPLGHAFL Boand msobeygs Blamntain Yo oS
parinesshgs witls Bewcasie fpod
Aapnr] arvollad Hismbeds pal ARnwUm = Basohra 1272 634 1.27rAT3
Aurpon dividends recatved per annum rBaselne  $1,803.000  $1,843,000
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[ Baseline Actual
Wit we sakd we'd do How effective were we? Target 17 o 2018 2018 to 2018
L1.2 5 Work with Hurler councs 1o anfuncg e Pamcipsion m Hunder Jond Crgansaton meeings Rdambaimn Wis WS
Hurdor mogion
L1.3 1 Cooedhnabe and delrar govemancs and Goverancos Heall Check scoig > B5% BT % R
legal saners
L1.3.2 Cooednaylir mnd repo on Tha ilamal Auid-idaniiliod Ssu0s esehnad wilhin aapcied * Basohna  B3% 100
il penCarss i amr
L1233 Undsarrtabon: o comumanity sabsfachon survry Cremrall community satesdncton with Councl > Hi B Ti%
L1.3 4 Managea the Inlegraled Plannng & Iniegrated Fans delvansd on Bma = 5% 0% %
Repmirg Framanwo
IPAR documenis conlom with IPAR checkis Compliont  Compland Comphand
L 1.3 5 Manage aocess o edonmabon and Humber of prcacy compiamisbesaches < Bgsaling 5 q
PTeaCy Procieasng
L1.4.1 Focailata the four-year rong Sorvce Heverw of  Numbar of reviews comphsled — Sarace Raviews (SH)  Complebon 10 SHs 18 SHs
CoUncEs (Ioonasss §hd Sorais airud i foneeas ADR] I ALRIs 17 ADRHIE
L1 4.2 Manage the Coporale mpiovemoent and Mlainaen sysbom upbmae Klanntam 100 100
Barsaiss S-j‘ﬂhﬂ'rﬂ.ﬂm'ﬂﬂm 1 T
L1.5.1 Mansadgs tha inlegralod Hsk Maradgomsant Maindien nek manpgomsant maturily Soon = B B3% B
Saraheems pHogram of wirks
Roling projecied workers componsation daposd Fay <base Base $1m Base $1.2m
penemEREm (rousnded ) Paid $0 Fm  Pad 50 Bm
< 100 LT s
Parconlsge of incdonis repofied to Coporales Rk < Basgolng 12 8% 131%
Why wasn't it completed? Aftor boln bosting B outsicde 24 howrs
proporsnd softwnng solutson, i was dolammnad e Imnpsaimadlalion of e Infegrabed Resk Managesiant 100% Progact 501% w

gt achesved o o0 ek D be acteeed

« 5% off P baeged 5O track = 5% off i Bngal
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! Basakie Byl
. > Hew eltoe 7
WWhatiwes wasd wed do cr el e e Target 2017 to 2016 2018 to 2019
L2 1.1 Managa Counced's. bnancisl respiecas Lirnsdesriying fmamncisd surpius ol 1% of Dudget heairiaan Achevod Achiervad
Lllﬂlxrilﬁ-.ﬁ.nnull.' Finpncipl Slalsmeants AJ_'!'I_HT'-'TI Lirsgidpliliissd LIrspLinbifisad
_|:-:;11L'I|H:I'_| Wil &R chackls! lor Lomg Tenm Kamirdien E:oamgiinn oamgilinrl
Financsal Plan
L2 2 1 Manags Couwnclls commescinl Busmossns and FMrion el on commsdcial Syvesdmonl poddobo Fio 10% % fi"a
il els - - - - - -
Propaity wacancy f&ls < 20% 14%
L2 2 2 Dolver he Properly Sennces copial | Scheduled works delverod on bme, on budgel * Boselne | 100% 100% )
WOFKS PR
L3 2 3 Managas and scousibon, devslogment rosecls Schadiulod wirks dilesensd o brma, on budge * Hasaebng  100% 1100
and bodmarsby sios
Feveow and crolop Proporty invesimont Sirabogy W odund 2 Mew 110615 M
L2 ¥ 4 Mansgs Councls ioursl sooomimadaton fgrarage nighily rads (per Sle | cafing 2 Basabrwy Cabig $173  Cabaret 5182
Silos 551 Labos 52
Mod promobor scotes for Council's Holdny Parks F Bisolne 61 95% G4 20y

Hurder R, Hapymond Temacs

e

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

204




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 1  ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Annial Fepaon] 2008 o 2 e

| Bagetine Aetuial
WWhat we sakd we'd o How sfTective wens wa'7? Targpet 2047 to 2018 2018 to 2019
L3 1.1 Davaiop, anplemant ard mondor Counols Schasdubsn acledrs in Cuslomar Fasl Frsmansndk s gL 1005
Cusstoemar Frsd Frameson complobad [(Slagn 1)
flr.!ernﬁllnlﬂn-cnn'nf conbact msodution = Auorenual Targel T Targod B0%: h
ool Aol 5% Achanl 50%

Wiy wedtent we effective? W hivet 200 an ambious tangel of B0% &t pad of our commslman] o
conbnucus mprovemanl. Rosd monm on page B2

L3.2.1 Manage Councls coimimurasalions Proghamam of nbermal ond axtarmdl cofmemiunacahon £ B5% % B5%
NS Complobad on ima

L3 2 2 Manage Councl's dagilnl sonices Grosadh n wihisilan USers. o el e 75 1. %

L3.3.1 Manage Councds brand and faputation Feder o L3211

L3 4 1 Conduct Councll's communty angagomant Schedubad commundy engagomanl actyibes in > 058 A5 100%:

atinries L:apiad Works progroem complated o sharfed
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Statutory
iInformation

The follewing Statudony Statements are
required by such instruments as Local
Government (General) Regulation 2005
— REG 217 and other NSW Government
acts. The relevamt clause is highlighted
beside each report.

Crararsrieran Ch, oy lettaoe
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Port Stephens Coundl s committed 1o
open and transparent reporting. The
information contained in this section of
the repod is legisiated and supplements
information provided elsewhere in

the reporn.

Council's general reporting requirements
are set out in section 428 of the Local
Eovermment Act 1883 (the Act) and
clause 217 of the Local Governmeant
(General) Regulation 2005 (the
Regulations), References to "section’ refer
to the Act, while references fo ‘clause’
refer to the Regulations, unbess otherwise
stated. To access copies of the Act and
Regulations visit legislation.nsw.gov.au

Section 428(1)

This report outlines our achievements
in implemeanting the Delivery Program
for the 2018 to 2018 financial year,

inciuding how we have performed and
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Statutory information

our effectiveness. it was completed within
5 months of the end of the financial year.

Section 428(2)

An End of Term Repar is not required for
2018 w0 2019, A full report on Councils
achievements in implementing the

Community Strategic Plan will be prepared for
the cutgoing Council in the year the election is
held. Visit portstephens. nswgowvau to access
Council's End of Term repart for 2012 to 2047,

section 428(3)

The annual report has been prepared in
accordance with the Integrated Planning
and Reporting Guidelines.

Anral Fepaoe] 2008 o 2009

Section 428(4)

Council's audited financial reports have

been prepared in accordance with the Local

Govermment Code of Accounting Practice

and Financial Reporting. They are featured

in Volume 2 of this report,

iy T il
aechon 428(5)

Following Council’s adoption of the
2018 to 2018 Annual report, it will be
made available on our website and at
our libraries, An electronic copy will also
be provided to the Minister for Lecal
Govermment's office,

Section 428(A)

A State of the Environment Report is not
required for 2018 to 2018,
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Clause 132

Ponsiontd CoOmoesSns
Posipond ralos

Smuall dabds
Contarvalion agroemsanis
Unecomnsmicall ko fssowar
Mol le)aky recoverable

Intanest on [nte payITsants Dayond
rMapEyer's conbial of haddshp

Toital

1,515,510
3610
B053
83235
1D
a0

SR

51,533,118
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Clause 217(1)a)

The Mayor and General Manager attended
the Sister Cities Mayaoral Swummit in
Bellingham, USA from 4 1o § Seplember
£018. The surmmit brought Sister City
Mayors together to share success stories,
discuss challenges and discover beneficial
ideas and solutions, The oost of attendance
was partially covered by the Belingham
Sister Cities Association with the balance
paid by atiendees.

The Mayor and General Manager

also attended the Newcastle Business
Delegaton's vist to Auckland, New Zealand
from 3 to 5 February 2019, This event

was hosted by Newcastie Airport Pty Lid
and coordinated by the Hunter Business
Chamiber, The visit provided an oppontunity
for business, govemment and toursm
leaders from Mewcastie and Auckland to
discuss local and regional ssues. The cost
of flights, accommadation and transfers was
pald by Mewcastie Airport Pty Lid,
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Mayornl aliownnce 841,235 Irdeestabe travel (ot of HSW) 518
Councllors: oot and alkvwanons 170835 Interstala cul of pockod oxponsas
Coouncilols” sapanses |se Dol ) 178 427 Inbasrstalo Sooommodetion (oul of NSW) S6250
D ause 21 '|.'|: '_'H'El-l i Total 10 497 Imrastals socommodalon 12755
e Conlannoss £13.174
The following is a summary of the expenses Toakoing $3535
incurred in perfarming the functions of Mayor - S
L 5 Mnors’ oupansoes 22141
and Councillors and associated aowances == A i
in 2018 1o 2019. ey P
, : Miodnle Pl calls 15936 Siabodary 638
Cur paolicy recOgnises m"""' Mayur. a.nd Laspeciline pehcenssr roan bl - FAyrards mnd conamons S4430
Councillors, in performing their civic Larihng phona cals Child core oxpenses 5273
functicns, are entitied to be provided with Fax ronial Communicalions bursdie $BTES
certain facilties and be reimbursed for certain
A Fax cals - Prodessaoinal dovakapaman 531,721
expanses, The policy was adopled on 26 i i £38 340
September 2017 and s reviewed annually. sokiizs d . 2
Irirastabe el g8 857 Ciost o Mayoral Viohecio £15 008
Inlrastabe ouf of pockel ageenses g Total S1TRAZT
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Clause 217{1}a2)

Boral Resources (NSW) Pry Lid

Biftae Gravel Pey Lid Td Dadsoon Cusdinos
Hunbar Cumrios Py Lid

Cleain Coast Py ILid

Hunbar Land kanagomand

HiainFaldar Pty Lid

Toodjon Pty Lid

Trinirs 17 Blardeaain

CGiraph Buildars Pty Lid

ERM Powor Rolal Py Lid

M & L Sulioyan Pty Lid

[} & M Shanw Plumbeng Pty Lid

Tempar Plumbing and Gasistmg Py Lid
Gedrard Murphy (Drainage) Ply Lid

IPS Piembing Sonaoos Pty Lid

MuBana Mamnlanancs Py Limiénd

Spm Mulholand Electncal Py Lid
Movocastnan Electical Contractors Pty Lid
Comsary Indusines Fly Limnited {T/\A Comsarny Elecincal)
Bluerdealar ERcincal Sennces

ooka Enorgy Techmical Sorncos Pty Lid

intalifiot Pty Lid

EcolProjscts Ausirais Py Lid

Al Al Lirsan PRy Lid (T0A South Peciho Laundry )
Bodlingham Maninag Pty Lid

BIA Archilectene Pty Lid
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Saipply and delvedy of quarty motenals

Baush regoneration and wood conirol senices

Medowss Sports and Community Facility
Smaall Silers Elaciriciy
Piumbifg manionanon Lenices

Elacingyl mambemamnon sonicirs

Hualineg Vantilabon and Adr Condiionmng (HVWAE)
miEnlEnNancy Sardis

Parl Slophens Councl Indvdund Viohatks K pnmgeemaen]
Syslom (IWKS)

Longwarth Park seawall upgrace
Lman supply for Fod Slephans Courcl Holday FParks
Karuah boat ramp pondoon upgrsde and whal demokion

Koala Sancluary — detaked design and
constiichon documsntalion

TiEa-2018

Ti&-2018

Ti2-2018
T13-2018
Ti4-2018

Ti4-2018

T16-2018

T17-2018

T18-2018
rig-2018
V-1
Ti-2018

Schaduily of Habas®

$5.043 640
Schadule of Rabas®
Schasdule of Rabes®

Schodule of Rabos®

Schadule of Rabes®
5200570

281,300

$385 025
5184 385
2211 650
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ARIER Engiraenng FPhy Lid

Reder o Looal Gowvemmant Procuramaent for ive Soreon
Prerridiars and Schedule of Rales ol igp og au

ERM Powarr Rodasl Py Lid
Timibehineg Cabans Py Lirnibed
Timbardins Catses Py Limited

Mo#r Landscapo Archilectes Py Lid

Grird Projicts Pty Lid
Michstis Py Lid
UrdssrConher Carmas

Soil Consanmbon Senice

Clause 217(1)%a3)
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Fur conditaaning upograda and replacemont al 578
Hunter Streat

Supply of glecincity for lnrge busdngs and feclibos for
NSW Councils

Supgly of electriciy for Coanci stroet ighiing
Shoal Bay Hobday Park amaneisss Biaking

Hodifas: Holday Park amenibes baibding

Barubi Poind Abonginal Piece memalion precinct — detnilod
lnndscape desgn

Robingon Ridsanae 4kabo posk = design and construct
Koala Sanchaary — slage 1

Koala Sanclaary — glamping lends

Raymond Temace Rverskde Park foreshors
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Tde-2018 §182 350

ELO1 T3 Schadule of Rales®
TA0-2017-21 Schedule of Rales®
To2-2018 51,086 174
TO3-2018 $1.180,343
TO6E-2018 110,348
TOT-2018 2200 00
Toa-2018 $1 463,638
T13-2018 $1.2068.376
SAZ01E-(N $331 G

Expenses incurmed by Council in refation to legal proceedings during 2018 io 2019 are detaded below. Council atso recoversd 383 837 in legal
costs. Workers Compensation and ofher employment matters, public liabdity and professional indermnity clams are not included in the summany.

Suprema Cowrt

Shopl Hay Developmants Py Lid,
Sncogol Py Lid and Comemunity
Assocation D 21048

Development Appeals

Bertnll TR Porl Slephons
Gardenamd

Lirdcomib
fnng Bay Resord
Kobra & Shoviol

Prosspedings sooiing declasalinns and damades mgaing dransge 8 Neison Bay

Apphcalons Ssiong 1o oxlond bma lor complandd with defamed commancimani
condieong of consent and o modéy consen — gransd

Appand against refusal io grant developmant consednt o snpie slonny dwiling
Appaaid apains] Councd Orgar (o complole dovalopmaen
Appanl ngains Council Order o demalish

Crngiing 314, 146
Finsihiod L2358
Disconbrised vy consanl 517,190
Canigoing soes
ngoing £ATRE
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Dintrict Ciowrt
[ailors Appaal ngairds] sentoncing and convichon in Local Courl Cingoang

Local Court Prosscutions

D Dhesfreis Homes Fad o comply il clsan-up nobcs — defendant lound guily, hnad 8000 and ordéned ©  Finalsesd

Py Cosls
Lohajtaseenrih Folkila watars and dovvalcpmonl nod in Bccondancs wilh consent — dedondant hrned Fanlicisd

$5500 and edarsd bo pay costs
Hunor Sofas Divwniopman] without consant WWilhdiream by consam
Wi Mo Ehaloment moflod Withudrivam by consan
Diales [y altesck matler — dobordant Tounsd guty, Bnod $1450 and ordened 1o pay cosls Fervihisasd
| i Homas Folkibe winkirs ibafenpnl Tinad 57300 and ordansd 1o pay cosls Finplisod

Criheeir mattens

Wishb Appaoalks (o Mo NSW Cred and Adminsicstess Trbonsl (MCAT) Inlemsd Appoal Panal Do
agaansl Thbunal indings i admsnsiralesg rovy apphcabons and subsoaguen
redobormrrueon hasnng

Winhb Conlempl apphcation — maltor wathdrwn by Apploant, dismissod by NCAT Finalisosd

Wb, McEwan Appaiaks 1o tha MOAT Inlemal Apposl Panal sgams! Trbunal hindmnags i sdminsirstreo Fnalmaesd
raview apphicebons snd subsoquent redalamminabon haprng

Wi Apphcalons or admmisirslead fenverw DN Gand

TOTAL

51650

SA0T2

S0604

S 190046

£3134

20811

541682

£13.42

£rna
520,510

$38, 000
464 678
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: 2 Coundail provided hardship rate relief and rate
Clause 217(1)(a4) donations under sections 601 and 356 of the
Council did not carry out any work on Act amounting to $3860.
private land requiring a resolution wunder

section 67 ofthe Actduring 201880 2018, |\ . counci's Financial Assistance for the

Disposal of Waste in Port Stephens Policy,
$56,958 in financial assistance was provided
Clause 217(1)(a5) to the following crganisations:

Each year, Council provides financial
assistance to community and cultural

groups in Port Stephens in accordance with e et
section 356 of the Act. During 201810 2018, 1o s oy sons
we made available the following financial :
b Scops Home Access Hunler Region 2743
For Slephens Lindng Chunch $a7a
Raymond Terace Early Educabon Conkre 5355
Raymaond Tarmace Man's Shod 1406
Salamander Bay hMon's Shod £4515
Gulturad projects Rund $50,000 Salamandor Bay Rocycing §7586
Aboriainal reects kesd $35,000 Salvaton Army Por Stephens LYET
Comenuny progects fund £40 515 Satention Army Raymond Tersoo §1819
{inchading Waed funds) 81 Vincont De Paul Socaty, Anna Bay  $4735
Huntagn projocts fund SO0 31 Vincenl Do Paul Socily, Nelson Bay 513,905
Emaronimonisl propects fund £10. 350 Sl Windind Do Pl Socioby, F4514
{355¢ committoes) Raymond Tentace
E wironmental progects fund $3640 5t vincent De Paul Socioty, Tandba Bay 51451
[schoocts) Port Stophons Koalas §1514
Mayorad funds B2 209 Tilligorry Habént Assosiation £513
Total 5206, 804 Lemon Trea Passage Ruial Fre Seraoe  $04
Total $56,958

Anrual Fepaon] 2008 o 2009

Clause 217(1Xa6)

There were no external bodies exercising
the functions of Council.

Clause 217(1)(a7)

Council must report on all corporations,
partnerships, trusis, joink ventures,
syndicales or other bodies (whether or not
mcomporated) inwhich Ceuncil (whether alone
ar in conjunction with other councils) held a
controling interest during the reporting pericd,
= Mewcastle Alrport Partnership
Company 3 Pty Lid

» Mewcastle Alrport Partnership
Company 4 Pty Lid

Following the corporate restruciure of the
Mewcastle Airport Ltd on 8 October 2013,
there are 4 parners of the Mewcastie
Airpart Partnership. City of Mewcastie ocwns
Mewcastle Airport Parnership Company

1 Pty Ltd (as trustee for Newcastle Airport

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

213




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 1

Partnership Trust 1) and MNewcasthe Arport
Partnership Company 2 (a3 trustee for
MNewcastle Alrport Partnership Trust 2). Port
Stephens Council owns MNewcastle Arport
Partnership Company 3 Pty Lid {as trustee
for Newcastie Alrport Partnership Trust 3)
and Newcastie Airport Parnership Company
4 Pty Lid (as trustee for Newcaste Alrport
Parmership Trust 4).

Following the incorporation of the Greater
Mewcaste Aerofropolis Py Lid on 20
December 2018, there are 4 partners of the
Greater Newcastie Aerobropolis Parinership.
City of Newcastle owns Mewcastie Airport
Fartnership Company 1 Pty Lid {as trustee
for Newcastle Airport Partnership Trust

1) and Newcastle Alrport Partinership
Company 2 (as trustee for Mewcasthe
Adrport Partnership Trust 2). Port Stephens
Councl owns Newcastie Arport Partnership
Company 3 Pty Lid (as trustes for Newcastle
Arport Partnershep Trust 3) and Newcaste
Awport Partnership Company 4 Pty Lid (as
trustes for Newcastie Airport Partnership
Trust 4).

Port Stephens Councll holds 100% interest
in Mewcastie Airport Partnership Company
3 Pty Lid and Newcastle Aipont Parinership
Company 4 Pty Lid.

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Clause 217(14ag)

Councll must report on all conporations,
parnerships, trusts, joint ventures,
syndicates or other bodies (whether or not
incorparated) in which Councl participated
during that year.

* Newcastie Airport Pty Ltd (NAPL)

= Newcastle Airport Partnership (MAP)

« Greater Newcastle Aerotropolis Pty
Lid (GNAPL)

« Greater Newcastle Aerotropolis
Partnership (GNAP)

MNewcastie Alrport Ply Lid operates the
Mewcastie Arport as. agent for the Newcastle
Alrport Parnership. Under this. structune, City
of Newcaste and Port Stephens Council hokd
the rights to their share of the assets and their
share of the obligations in the parinership.
Greater Newcastie Aerotropolis Pty Lid
manages the development of the Asira
Agrolab aercapace park, comprising T6ha
of land adjacent to the Newcastle Airpor, on
behalf of the Greater Newcastie Aeriropolis

Partnership. Under this structure, City of
Newcastie and Port Stephens Councl hold
the rights: o their share of the assets and their

share of the obligations in the partnership.

Port Stephens Council has a 50% interest

in NAPL, NAP, GNAPL and GNAP, with the
City of Newcastle holding an interest in the
remaening S0%.

The Hunber Joint Organisabon group ks the
hub for local government collaboratson —
sirengthening our communities by being the
local voice on regional strateges issues and
delivering tadored local government solutions.
For ower B0 years, Hunter councits have
found signficant benefit in working together
through positive cooperation and resounce
sharing. There are 4 key entities created and
operating as part of the curment enterprise:

— a statutony
body under the Local Govermment Act
18483 {MSW) established in 2018 to dentify,
advocate for and collaborate on regional
sirategic pronties for the Hunter.
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and

its wholly owned sulbsidiary

— companies
lirited by guarantee under the Comporations
Act 2001(Cth) established io improve the
quality and efficency of local govermment
services in the Hunier region. These
organisations offer tailored local govemment
services through 5 divisions:

* Local Government Training Institute
= Local Government Legal
+ Regional Procurement

= Screen Hunter which, under delegation
from member councils, licences film
production on council owned and
controlled land

= Environment Diwision which delivers a
regional environmental managenent
program on behalf of member councils
from thie Hunfer and Central Coast.

an incosporated association under the
Associations Inoonporation Act 2005 (NSW)
that holds property assets for the Hunier
Joint Organisation group,

Part Stephens Council has representation on
each entity’s Board and shares ownership
aredior controd with the other 8 councils of the
Hunier Region

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Port Stephens Council is a member of the
MEW Local Government Mubeal Liability
Scheme, known as Statewide, |t started

in 1883 as a joint venture forming a ‘self-
ingurance mutual' covering public liabdity
and professional indemnity insurance.
Membership includes 117 member councils
across N3W

Part Stephens Council is a member

of StateCover Mutual, This body was
established as a not-for-profit workers
compensation insurer bo partner with NSW
local government antities in the managameant
of their workplace risk, StateCover Mutual
prowvides NSW Councils with an alternative
option to self-insuwrance through an insurer
that represents the inferests of its members.
It provides an integrated injury prevention
and injury management service model

to minimise the overall cost of members’
workplace risk,

T

Arrial Fepaoe] 2008 o 20ie
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Clause 217(1)(a9)

We are commitied to developing an
equitable and diverse workforce, which

i5 representative of our community and
region. Cur Workplace Equity and Déversity
Committes s actively working towards. this
goal and meets quarerly

The Workplace Equity and Diversity work
plan 2018 to 2022 has been developed to
foeciss on;

= leadership and commumicaton of equity
and diversity

= creating a working envircnment free from
discrimination and harassment

= altracling, developing and refainng a
dinrerse workionsa

» maentaining existing resounces that suppon
equity and diversdty

« monitoring and reviewing
workplace culiure
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The committes focuses on implementing
the objectives of the work plan and

raising staff awareness of equity and
diveersity. We have conducied a number of
programs for staff including anti-bullying,
harassment awareness, managing equity
and diversity, respectiul workplaces and
cultural awareness.

The committes raised awareness with staff
throwgh promoting R U 0K, Day, Hamony
Day and World Refuges Day

We also participate in the Elsa Dixon
Abonginal Employment Program and provide
on the job training for a school-based traines,
enabling them to gain a qualification a5 a
component of their stedies,

Council holds an annual Apprentice,

Trainee and Cadet Information Night as a
part of cur recruitment campaign for these
pasitions. This helps anyone who has limited
experience in applying for a career with
Councl by providing face-fo-face information
about the recnetment process and pasition,
Im cur commitment to workplace edquity and
diversity, we support frained contact officers
who are available to provide support fo all

staff members in equity and diversity matters.

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Clause 217(1)}{b) and (c)
Council's senior staff consists of the General

Manager and 3 Group Managers. All senior
staff are employed under standard contracts.

Ganaral Manager
Sarir Stalf
{(machuding the Gonaornl Manngar)

2337 116
$a69, 410

Clause 217{1)e)

Council does not lewy an annual charge
for stormeater management services as
we received a special variation to general
income in 1887 to 1988 for stormeater
management acthities.

Clause 217(1)e1)
Council has not bevied an annual change
for coastal profection services this year,

Anrual Fepaon] 2008 o 2 S

Clause 217(1)f), Companion
Animals Act 1998, Companion
Animals Regulation 2008
Council provides an annual refum 1o the
Office of Local Govemnment on aclivities
o enforce and ensure compliance

with the Companion Animals Act 1998
and Companion Animals Regulation
2018, including lodgement of pound
dala collection returns. We also report
information on an incident-by-incident basis
related to dog attacks.

Council provides the full suite of Companion
Animal functions. In the past year, the
Tollowing information has been collected on
the Companion Animals Register:

= 28 dog attacks — a substantial drop from
63 in the previous year

= B58 companion animals impounded —
an increase of 212 compared to last year

O the companion animals mpouwnded:

= 214 animals were either collected by their

cwmver or returmned to their owner by Coundi
prior to being transporied to the pound
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= 125 amimals wene sumendersd (o the
pound by the public

= most of the remaining animals were either
soid io new owners of released fo rescue
organisatons,

In 2018 to 2019, we spent 5227 264 on

companion animal management (exchuding

ranger salanes and vehicle costs), Of this,

£10,630 was spent on communty education

programs, personal probective equipment,

tools and training.

These community education programs

have included;

= annual ranger conference — presentation
on Barking Dog Polcy.

= dangerous dog campagn — all 52
propertes with declared dangerous,
regiricted or menacing dogs wene
inspected twice for compliance and
education to reduce dog attack incidents

= producticn and distnbution of promotional
materials o schools and community,
including stickers, pencils, dog leads, eco
poo bags and dispensers, bounce balis
and educabonal acthity booklet

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Rangers also attended a number of events

with mascot Ranger Ralph to educate

the community on companion animals,

These included:

¢+ Irrawang Primary School careers day —
180 interactions

+ St Brigid's Primary School Spring Fair —
&0 interactions

« Grahamstown Pubdic School annual far —
50 interachons

+ MarketPlace Raymond Terace Christmas
event — 100 interactions

« Australia Day, Melson Bay —
100 enteractions

+ African Olive Weeds Field Day —
B0 interactions

+ King St Hertage Festval, Raymond
Terrace — 100 interactions

Counci contributes. to Hunber Animal Vatch,
which camies out subsidised desexing of
animals in the LGA

Im an effort to reduce euthanasia rates,

we have actively promoled the sabe of
suitable unclaimed dogs and cats from its
pound to the community through online
advertising and partnerships with registered
FEScUE organisations.

We have continued to promote and improve
the 13 off-leash areas within the LGA,
including making upgrades o signage

and faciliies. The education cpportunities
and continued growth of the Ranger

Ralph program has raised awareness of
respensible pet ownership and off-leash dog
exercise areas.

Councl collected 552 591 in registration

fees and forwarded 1o the Office of Local
Government. W received back 557,643

plus $11,123 residual payment from the last
financial year, totalling S68,795. This was

put iowards the Comipanion Animal Register,
animal handiing training, tools and equipment
and octher imtiatnees undertaken over the
reparting pericd,

section S08(2) and 508A
Council does nat have a Special Variation to

Rates Expenditure o be reported on in 2018
o 2016
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December 2010 — Division of
Local Government Department of
Fremier and Cabinat, Section 12

In accordance with the Capital Expenditune
Guidelines, the below capital works projects
have commenced as at 30 June 2019

IYesl oree I o ress — 56.3m 52 4m
Spoand  consirechon
Comemunsty  undorany
F mcility Sy pan
5 for mos
nfammabon

Baruti In progress
Informalion - concept
Canlbia dsign and
Db
Apphicalian
]
S P
AT T moee
infarmation

Kol In HTrass -
Sancluary  consirecion
UNCara ey
S} [l
o5 for mda
FfCTTa o

#6 dm 0 2m

&7 5m £0.0m

o 2098 o 2015 Inancesl yeu
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The Privacy Management Plan was reviewed
and adopted by Council on 28 March 2017,
Council provides updates with respect to the
Act to the relevant staff as required. Council
conducted 3 intemal neviews under the Act
As a result, there were 2 contraventions

by Council with respect o release of the
infarmation. Mo other contraventions of

any information protection principles nor of
privacy codes of pracbice, nor disclosurne of
personal information kept in a public register.

Council is required 1o produce an
Annual Report under section 125 of the
Government Information (Public Access)
Act 2009 (GIPA Act).

The GIFA Act has a number of mechanisms
o access information including mandatory,
proactive, informal and formal release,
During this peried Council processed 314
informal requests for information, removing
the need o make a formal access applcation
in most cases.,

Anrual Fepaon] 2008 o 2009

Under section T of the GIPA Act, agencies
st review their programs for the release of
governmend information to identify the kinds
of information that can be made publicly
available, This must be reviewed at least once
every 12 months.

Our agency's program for the proactive

release of information involves:

= reviewing all formal applications and
determining if the information sought should
be released proactively in the future

= reviewing all informal requests and
determining if the information should be
refeased proactreely in the future

= aligning Council's electronic records
management system categories to the GIPA
Act and delermining if any further records
should be released proacthvely in the future

* monitoring matters raised by staff and
determining if the information should be
reteased proactively in future.

Dwring the reporting penod, we reviewed

this program by ensuring there is an ongoing

manfonng program of all requesis for

infarmation — whether formal, mformal or

ather requests. The program also includes

information from Council officers with respect

to the informiabion thay are producing. As a

result of this reniew, Councll has nol addad

any addrbonal information to the proactive

releass provision,
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4 . R = R . T T ¥
Llause 8, schedule =

Yios MO

The total number of access applications
recanved by the agency dunng the reparting
year (including withdrawn applications but not
including imvalid applicatons).

The fotal number of access applcations
received by the agency durng the reposting
year that the agency refused either whaolly
ar partly because the appication was for

the disclosure of information referred to in
Schedule 1 to the Act (information for which
there is conclusive presumption of ovemiding
public interest agains! disclosure)

3 | 4
% of iokal Tt Y

Statsftical imformation about access
applications — clause B(d) and Schedule 2
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Talie A: Number of applications by tipe of applicant
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Apphoabon dosis nol codmply will fonmal 1 0%
redueesTsnis (ecion 41 of the Act) Rosporsiie and oBoci graammant i 15%
Applicabon s for axciuded information of the 1 10 Liw anforcamont ard sacurty 4 1%
Ry WS S Er R k) Incinadanl righls, pudscs] proonssos and a2 55%
Apphonbon contrmvones rostraind order (Secion 0 0% nahmal pusics
110 of the Acl) Bursesss M0rests of sgencees and a 20%
Todal number of invalid applications recebved 1 100% alfuE piEsons
Invahd apphcabons thal subsequanily Ded ! 0% EnvEonment, culling, soonemy and 0 (11
walkd apphcabons genaral matiers

SoCiecy provisions i} i},

Exsirgl dooumsnts s imtorsials 0 LIE

Freadom of indormalion legeiation

Total dl 10:0%
Cnarreding secrocy ks i} 0%
Cabiret informabon a ity
E xistutve Couincl rlaimmation 0 (1%
Cenbermpl a 0% Decichod withen 1o Slaubory bmodrame (20 45 1004
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Public Interest Disclosures Act 1994 Section 31, Public Interest Disclosures Regulation 2011 Clause 4
Council mast report 1o the NSW Ombudsman on the number and natere of disclosures received, Councll has distibuted policies to staff

throwgh training, intranet, staff newsletters, brochures, posters and bulletin boards. All staff give an undertaking that they have read and
understood Council's Intemal Reporting Poficy

Mumbsar of pabhc alicials wihd mace pubis menrs] decosums. |0 your pulile mibonty 0 0 ]
Humbar of puibhc mianes] dsciesums moaved by your pubsc nuthorty
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Anrual Fepon] 2008 o 2X0e

Procedures for the Administration of the Model Code of Conduct for Local Councils in NSW, section 11.1

Councl is required to report complaings relating to the Mayor, Counciliors and the General Manager in the vear to Sepltember. In addition o
thiz, Coundil provides the details of the full financial year.

Misnibssr of compianis

1 a)  Tha tolel numbar of complaints moateed in the pencd aboul Counciiors and tha Gonorml anagaes (GM) undos the code of conduct 10
b Tha botal numibor of complaints. nolsed n ihe petiod aboul Councilors and tha GM undar the code of conduct 10

Orgisrviimi of Cofrpainls. s sl

2 al  The numbod of compiants linaksed al the outsel by altamalive maans by ha A or Mayor 10
by The number of complants mired o the Ofice of Local Govemment under a special complaints managemand amangsmaenl 1
£l  Tha number of coda ol conduc] cormplaenls neforred b 8 condsc] momrw i}
di  Tha number of code of condwel compHanis finakssd al prebminary astessrmand by conduch fovimwar i
o) Tha pumber ol eode of comdise comiplanls rolored back o GA or Mayor for resolubon allor prekminary assessman by conouct fonmaar 0
f}  The number of Bnalsed osde of conduct compiants mveshgaled by o conduc] reveneos 0
@) The pumbor of Bnaksed code of corfuct complamts mvostigalesd by a conduec] reveiny Coamemiiios a
hy  Tha numbor of Enalsed compiants nvesigaled whian e wiss found fo be o breach o
1§ Tho numbor of Bnsésod complainks mvesiigaied whoeno hoo wiks Tound o bo o beoach 1]
i The number of complanis mafered by e GAM of Mayor o snolhar agency of body such a3 the ICAC, o NSW Ombodsman e Office o (i

hsin Polics

K}  Thed mumber of complaats ban mvashgabed hal aro nol yisl Bhahsed 0
i The kolal cost of deatng wilh code of condud! complaints wihin tha pocd made aboul Councllors: and the G nchiding slall costs £5 208

Prodimanany erscsgssmant siatsics

3 Thinembed of complaints debenmened by he conduct reviewar al tha prolimmany assessmenl Slage by each of the lllwing aclions. i
aj Tolsks no Acion 0
bl Toresokea the complaind by aBarnalve and approgrinto stmlegies 0
c]  Torofer tha matier back o the GR or ihoe Mayor, for resolubion by allemaise and appropraie sirafogns i}
di  Toonoler i mather 1o another agoncy of body such as Bhe 1ICAC, b HSW Ombodsman, tha Ofllcs o e Polico a
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8) Toinveshgate the matier 0
(1] To mecoememsandg thal Bhe complainds comdnaior convenn o condwes! vy commifioe o invesbgabo tha maflor i}
Irnenshgation slatslics
4 Tho numbsr of sveshigaled compiamis msulng o a dolormmnalion [hal soee was no breoch, in wiseh e Ioloseng ToComenand SO Wi msdo

@) Thal tha council (oviso 45 ROCOS oF MOCTUDS 0
bl That o porsan of parsons underiake mning of olfier educabion i
5 Thi numben of sveshigaled oompdaints nosullmg o oa debormination that thore was a broach n whech B [olowang rocommendalions wahn msds
@) That tha council tovess any of G poliess of prooiiures a
bi  That tha sulyecl parsan undarake any irainng of athar sducatan relavant 1o i conduct gring reo b tha bramch 0
cj  That the subjecl person be counselied for their conduc i
dj  That the Subject person apologhes 10 any person of crgansaton aSocied by tha braach i
o)  That lindings of inappropialn conduct b made publc i}
fi  Inthecase of @ braach by he GRI, that achon ba lakan wndar the GRS conbrsct for the breach 0
gl Inthe case of a breach by & Councilor, thad the Councillor be formally consured for the breach wnder sachon 440G of the Local Gowesrman 0
At 1843
hj I the case of a brasch by & Councilor, thad the matter ba rededred bo Bhe Offics for furihsr action 0
& Matier efored or msohed aflor commencaman] of an evestigation undor clausa 8 50 of the Procedums 1]
Catoponns of mesoonduct
T Thir nismbasr of svestgalsd complants rmsullng i a dobormmstion thal o was 8 brosch with reewpect lo asch of the follvwing cslogories of condiet
a) Gonoral conduct (pan 3) 0
by Conflict of menest {part 4) i
cl Porsonn benedi ipar 5) i}
di Reationshe bobsben councl officials (Pan &7) 1}
o) Auoonss o nlormsation and resouncns (Par 7B 0

Custcorma of dolermnabons

8 Thie number of mvestigaled compiainis nesullng in a dobormination thal ihero was 8 broach n which Bhe council fniled o adopd (he conduct
TS, TeEmmeenclnBacin

9  The number of myveshgaled compiants resuling in a debormmation thal ibere was a broach n which e councl's decsion was overiumed folloang o O
rivvmrad by 1P Oiffica

=
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Special Schedule 7 of Council's audited
financial accounts in Volume 2 of this annual
report contains defalis of the condtion
ratings of civil assets. Attachment 2 of this
report contains Council's capetal works for
2018 to 2019,

Council does not provide senaces directed
at carers and'or pecple being cared for by
carers and is therefore not considered o be
2 "human senrvices agency’ as defined by the
Carers Recognition Act.

Section 54P(1)

Councl has not entened into any
efvirenmental upgrade agreements.

Fisheries Management Act 1994

Council cperales in accordance with and
gives consideration fo Fisheries Management
At related Threat and Recovery Abatement
Plans. Coundl has no specific allocated tasks

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

o report on and has not had any need to
seek permits of make notificatons as a public
authority io the NSW Minister for Primary
Industries relating to these plans.

Disability Inclusion Act 2014,
section 13(1)

A Council must as soon as praclicable after
preparing its annual report, give the Minister
a copy of part of the annual report relating o
the council's implementation of its Disabity
Inclusion Action Plan. Actions are recorded in
4 categories in accordance with the Disability
Inclusion Action Plan guidelines:

Liraradti commim unilies o 2 5 4
Improneng socess
o serdacars Bhnough
balsar systams and
PO
Suppoing socass (1] 1 1 0o

16 mosansngiul
ernglyrmand

Afiihades and 1] 1 1 0
T T Tt

Total T d B d

Anrual Fepaon] 2008 o 2Xie

Dwring NSW Seniors Week 2018, we
hosted 2 sessions deliverad by Cochlear
Implant Australia to provide information and
awareness of hearing loss,

We held an Accessible Beach Day at
Fingal Beach on 18 November 2018

whera we [aunched our new hlobi-Mat,
Davingi chair and the Mobi-Chair Floating
Wheelchair. We partnered with Ability Links,
Accessible Beaches Australia and Surf Life
Saving MSW to make beaches in the area
mione accessible.

We continued to provide the inclusive event
tent throughout 2018 1o 2019, Through this,
we made Australia Day events, NAIDDC
Week Family Fun Day and the Smith
Family's Garden Party more inclusive for
our cammianity.

We established an Independeant Citizens
Car Parking Panel, which considered traffic
and parking in the Melson Bay town centre,
The Panel report made recommendations
on the availabdity and kecation of disabildy
parking in Melscn Bay and access to public
transport opbons.
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We successfully appled for grant funding to

improve inclusion and accessibiiity through

the following projects:

= safety fencing and sofi-fall rubber at Bemnie
Thompson playground, Shoal Bay

= accessible amenities building at Licnal
Morten Crwal, Karuah

= acoessible iollets at Mallabula Tennis Chib,
Raymond Terrace Tennis Club, Raymond

Terrace Athletics Club and Port Stephens
Metball Club

= shared pathway through Boomerang Park

= neaw bus boarding ramps and accessible
bus shelers

« accessible amenites, all abdbties
playground, accessible kbokout and
pathways at Birubl Point Aboriginal Place

We have underaken the following

community and recreation projects o

improve accessibifity and inclusiveness;

= acoessible amenties and all abilties
playground at Caswell Resere

= extended accessible parking area at
Market Street, Fingal Bay

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

« mew playground for a range of abilities at
Bemie Thompson Reserve, Shoal Bay

+ accassible amenities at Bob Caims
Reserve, Salamander Bay

+ accessible picrec faclity at Litle Beach,
MNelsan Bay

+ accessible fishing platform and upgrade
of decking at Little Beach whar! (disability
access for swimming), Melson Bay

« developing a parks performance mabrix to
assess acoessibity, assel provisions and
maintenance and condition,

We have completed the action in the DIAP
o review and audit Councl managed
outdoor spaces and buldings to determine
areas where work 5 reguired, All works have
been scheduled in Council's Strategic Asset
Management Flan

Im March 2018, an accessbility audit was
carried out on Council's website to ensure
that information is accessible and site
provides an nclusive User axperiance,

We are currently implamenting tha

recommendations of the audit and will
continue to make mprovements bo the
accessibility of our websie

We continued fo provide our Blue Dot wheel-
in wheel-out garbage bin service for people
with a disability fiving at home,

We also contmued to prowide programs for
children with addiional needs at Oulside
School Hours Care in Raymaond Terrace
and Medowie, Family Day Care and the
Mobida Freschool,

We continued to provide employment
oppartunities for people who have a disability,
as outhned in our Equal Emgloyment
Opportunities activities.

We're currently in the process of supporting
access to Councll volunteerning opportunities
for people with a disability.

We supported the International Day of
People with a Disab#ty cn 3 December
2018 with Saidability at the Grahamsiown
Agquatic Resane,
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Annual Fepord 2080 ©

Sechon 7.5(5)

Councl is required 1o give detalls of compliance with, and the effect of, the planning agreements executed and in force during 2018 fo 2019,
1mnnmmsmnﬁuu.n§ymtm z1mﬁn15 mm-rﬁémﬁm The agreament provedes detals on funding Exseued
Flanming Agrosmeni Biackie and Barbarn Blscs conirbulions bowaeds the cosl of the construchon

of Halloemn Wiy, Raymond Terace

Swimming Pools Act 1992 section 22(2), Swimming Pools Regulation 2018 clause 23

Counciis. are required o inspect private pools as requested and issue compliance certificates. Coundils must also inspect (at least once every
3 years) any tourist or visitor accommodation or property with more than 2 dwellings where a swimming pool is situated. The following is a list
of inspections for 2018 o 2019

Musnbor of mspechons of vslor sccommodation B
Numbaer of mapecbons of promises with more than ? dwolings @
Mumbas of mspechons thal resullod n Ssusnce of & Cortiicate of Complancn (Sechon X2d) 174
Mismbe of Fspachons thal resulted 0 Ssupnce of & Non-Complancs Cortlcala (clauss 217) Fiil
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Council committees

Raf

1

Commities name | Purposs of commities

Atoigingl Stalsge  To exchangs siformabon bitwesen th Abonginsl coemednty and Counl 0n S afschig Abahmnil pecph
Coramabioa T promcée mutusl swareness and respoct lor the culunes of both Abongpnial od non-Aborignsl eommuniies

Anna Bay/ Heuli To asams| Counes in B mansdgedmson of Anna Bay Hal

Coamsmairaly Hall and  To undedtake manlenancs and improvesmants o desgnated parks and resanmas (as pec moap incheaded n 355c
Landcare Group Commifiod Torms of Rofsnonod Appandig

Al Comsnitlos The Ausciil Commiies i an advsony commition of Council compersng 2 Coundl represanaines and 2 cxbamal
Pyttt

Ther obwiciive of B fudd Comimilles = ko anhono: B cxpoisie govemancs of Councd thioiegh the provsion
of mdepandon oebraghl, fvieny @nd adwon The Commilliea will sast Coundl by provading mdependon
AT Ehd assisianes on the cigansaton’s givemanos, ek coniral @nd complanon framenworks.

Boal Harbour Parks  To undestaks mantennnce and improwsmants io desgnatod parks and resanes (as por map nchaded n 355

andl Resonms Commilioa Torms of Relananca Appand)

Codrimaioa

Bobrs Famm Public o asssd Councd m the management of Bobs Form Hall

Hal Commitiese

Corolte Headland  To psses! Coundl in he managesmont of Codetin Hall and Corlette Hoadiand (&5 par map mncloded n 1550

and Hall Commitiso  Commifien Forms of Rolsnenon Apponding

Cotlslls Parks, To undariake mainlanance and mmprovesmnenls b desnalod parks and esenes (Fs por map included n 3550
Resens mnd Comnmitbon Terms of Referenc Appandig

Landoare Group

Form Bay T assst Councd in tho managomant of Fom Bay Comemundy Conlre

Cearamaindty Conlre

C el

Fotrnarty Forn Bay

Hak Commutlose

Fingal Bay Parks To undcariake mainkenancy ard Mmprovements b dosgealed parks amnd nessaas. (55 D00 map ncluced in 355
and Fesarnes Committos Torms of Faleancs Appandix)

Ceuramaling

ATTECHEENT 1 | 113

Ariral Fepaoe] 2008 o 2009 I

| Currant delogates

Mayar Rysn Palmes
Alomati

Ci Sarah Smith

Cr Sarah Smilh

Cr Chris Doohan

Cr Glon Dunkiy
Cr Chirs Doahan

Allomile
Cor Ken Jocdan

TG uadelifeh . [iod it
) Iyl e D &
raTlai of B CdmmiTemos )

Cr Sarah Smilh
Cr Chis. Dhooban

Cor Shave Tucknr
©r Sarah Smilh

Cor Gilon Dunidery

Cr Johin Mol

o Gigopmo Aot
G Han Josikan
Cr Paul Lo kiottes

Lor Johin Mall
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Ref Commities name

0

1

13

Harmage &iasony
Commitles

Hinilon School
of Ants, Parks
and Foreshora
Commities

Kanuah Comemunity

Hall Commiltoo

Kmruah Landcar
Giroug

Lamon Treo

Pessago Ol School

Canim Comemifion

Lemon Tiea
Passage Parks
Hasorars and
Landcire Group
Eialabaibs

Communily Cenbi
Comirutlisg

Etallabuls Parks
s Rrgsnais
Comimlio

Wistlariis, RS

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

I Purpose of commitbes

i Curend delegaies

This commithaa s run by Councd and supporied by funds from the Herdoge Office. Communty members mesd G Paul Le Motfles

ko rRse and make recommendaton on local herilage Esues

T wssmi Council in the mansgoemant of Hinbon School of Ars
To undadake mandenance nnd mprovaments & designabed parks and resaras (as par map includad o 355¢
Commition Toems of Halamance Apparideg

To assisl Council n e managesman of Kamnah Community Hall

To undortake maronance mnd mprosamonts i desgnabed parks and roserves (as por map nclidod m 355
Commitios Tems of Rolamance Apparidiong

To asssl Counci in e managomon of Lemon Tree Passage Ol Schood Conine and sumomids

To undertake manianance and mprovemonis 1o parks n Leman Trea Passags (&5 por mag included in 355
Comsmition Terms of Relerencs Apporidi)

To st Council in e managamant of Malabits Commundy Contro

To undartake mainlenance and mprovemonls bo designabed parks and resanes (8s per map ncludad in 3552
Coeremition Terms of Rofernon Apparidog

T undertake mmnensncos and mmprovemoenls b desgnobed paks and msorses (85 per map ncluded in 3550
Commities Teims of Rafarents Apparidon,

To assisl Coundl i e managemsan of Modows Commundy Caenire

Cr Kon Jordan

Cr Gimcomo Amoll
Cr Kan Josdan
Ci Paid La Moo
Cr Kon Joedan
Cr Paud Lo Moo
CF Geaforma Amall
Gr Stove Tucker
Cr Sarah Semdh
Ci Cheis Doohinn

Cr Stava Tuckar
Gr Sarnh Smith
Cr Ches Doohan

Cr Shives Tusckar
Cr Sarah Smilh
Cr Chess Doohan
Cr Stovnd Tuckar
Cr Sarah Smith
Cr Cheis Doohan
Cr John Modl

Cr Chirs Deokan
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21

)

&3

21

Commities names

Port Slaphens
Malive Flors Gandon

Porl Staphens Sislod
Cibers Commithos
Raymond Tofracs
Parks. Rosarvaes
and Tidy Towns

Raymond Termacea
Senior Cillzens

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

| Purpose of commities

To fachtate communscabon batwean the sporbing puihc and Coundl in oeder B0 ansure thal the oostng
and hahee neads and requirements of those parsons parbcipating and adminstraling spofts oa BocUrtaly
whandiind and broight 1o e aitertion of Councl

To underisie mantonance and mprowemonts i desagnaled parks and rosenaes (85 por map inclded in 355
Commiltoa Torms. of Ralance Appanding,

To st Councd n the management of Neson Bay Community Hall

Ta mmmwmhmmmm NESErEs. (&S [0r Mo inchiced in 350C
Coenemtton Tarms of Reforonce Appordix).

To coordnate tha annual celsbrabion of Australa Day in Pod Stephans in ke with recommendabcns from
Aarshraka Day Councl

To undoriake mantanance ard mproyemonls i e natvo ot garcan (as por map ncheded in 355c
Comemiton Torms of Rofononog Appsordod

To promnla posdtes and ongoing elalionships belsmen nlemationasl communities. prossding opporiundies Tor

culursd axchangs

To uhderake mantanonos and mmprovemonts b deisgnaled parks and msenses (&S por map intuded in 355
Comemitbon Torms of Flefenmncs Appandig

To assmsl Councd m he management of the Raymond Termace Seror Cilizens Hall

ATTECHEENT 1 | 118

Arral Fepaoe] 2008 o 2009 I

: Current delegates

Cr Sarah Smith
Cr Chis Desohan

Cr Chris Doohan

Cor Jasrmie Ahbol

Cr John Mall

Cr Chris Dootun
Cr Sarah Smith
O Jasrmig Abibol
Cor Giadomo Aol
Cr Ken Joedan

{1 Cpumiior Som
wach wardi

Cr John Hafl

Mayor mnd ol
Counciicns

Cf Gistoma Amoll
Cr Kan Jordan

Cr Pand Lo Molloa

Cor Kasn Joscan
Cr Pawl Lo Molla
Cr Gincomo Amoli
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Ref Commities name

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

: Purpose of commitbes

Fa) Soll Ash Community  To assist Councll in the managaemant of Salt Ash Commundy Hall and mantenance of nearby parks area {as

P

33

a5

Hall, Park
and Ressnas
Comimitheg

Ground Cosmmitions

Sepbnm Pagk
& ‘Wollands
Commitien

Section 4 Pansl

Shoal Bay Beach

Soldmrs Poinl
Landcare Group
Siradogic Aris

Taniba Bay Parks,
Hesenves and Hall

par map mohuded in 3550 Commithes Tamms of Referencs Appendix).
To wssmd Counal i tho manageman, mamniananco and mpovemants (o Sall Ash Spors Geound

To pssisl Councl n e manpgemond, manbenance and mprovemants (o (he park and wobands (0% por map
included in A55c Commities Terms of Roforence Appando)

T indpem Councd of ary proposed and'or mguesied changes o Councils Contribubions Plan and associniod
sysioms and procosses.

To undedtake mamsnancs and mpncvemoents (o desgnaied paks and resenes (85 pad map ncloed m 355
Cesmmititd Tedms af Relananos Appanidg

To undarake muindenance B mpovemonts B desgnabed paks and 10sorves (86 poT map ncluded in 355
Comemalion Terms of Roferance Appondi).

To provide ingnad indo Port Sbpphons Council sirslegic policy. plans and programs redaling bo cullune and the
mils

To arssist Council idenbiPy tha aeisting and futun requssmants. for ats and cultural faciliss. acnoss Pord
Sephans

To esssl Councdl in the mansgemant of Tanilba Bay Foreshore Hell
To undertake manonance and morovements ko desgnatod paks and reseres (as per mag ncluded in 355
Commities Tesms of Ralenance ADparidig

i Curend delegaies

Gr Sarah Smith
Cr Chers Dookhan
Cr Sivnd Tuckor

Cr Sarah Smith
Cr S8ove Tucker
Cr Chas Doohan

Cr Kon Jordan

Gr Giacoma Amoll
Cr Paud La Moblos
Moyor Ryan Pafmar
Cr Stavd Tuckar
Cr Giapgems Armoll
Cr Ghan Dunicay
Cr Chitis Doohan
Gr Kan Jordan
[0 and 1 Counclior
BT i el

Cr Cish Dundckay

Cr Jarmie Abboti

Mnyor Ryan Paémer
Cr S8ave Tuckar
Cr John Med

Cr Paud Lo Moblss
Cr Stave Tucker

Cr Sarah Seulh
Cr Chitis Doshan
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Ref | Commities name

i

41

Tilgarry Lordcans
Erougy

Tilkgorry Spodts
Council

Toamaress
Cmobarms
Cofmirafisg

Tompres Sports
Comncil

Wit Ward
Cimihbi s
oyl

Wl Ward Spors
Coumcil

Wilkamiliown Hal
Comimdiios:

ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

: Purpose of commities

ATTECHEENT 1 | 117 I
Anrasal Fespoe] 2008 fo 20409

| Current delegates

To undartake mantenance and mproyements b desagnated parks ond resersas (oS por moap inclided in 355c  Cr Stove Tucker

Committoa Torms. of Felerancs Appandi).

To facitale comemuncabon Dotween the sporbng public and Coundd in orday B0 ensune el the eosing
and fufune needs and requinements of those parsons pashcipaling and adminstaling spods are accurslaly
iantifiad and beought 1o the atterdion of Counsl

To whdoriako mamanance and mprovamenls i cemolonis on Tormanea Pranansuta

To faciitale communicaticn batwsoen the sporhng pubilic and Councd in codor bo ensure ihal the sxsting
and Tl noods ard mequiroments of thoss persens parcipaing and sominstialing spots 87 acourslhy
Al e beonsghd 1o the attontion of Conincd

To wnderake mantoninte and mmprovements b oomebenos m West Wand

To facitale communcalion betwaen tha sporiing public and Councd in crdor B ansurs that the sosting

and fulum needs and equimments of thase persens pasticipabng and admirstaling spodts oo acourMoby
idantified mnd beoughd 1o (he attontion of Councd

To assesl Councd i the managemant of Wiliambowmn Hall

Cr Sarah Semill
L Chers Dookan
Mayor Fyan Paimed
Cr Bbirve Tucker
Cr Barah Smilky
Cr Chris Doohan

Mayar Rysn Palmer
Cr Jommie Abboft

Mayar Ryan Palmiss
G Jisrmiig Albol
Cr Glsn Dunkdey
Cr John Mall

Cr Sarah Smith

G Paul Le Mollia
Cr Gueopma Aot

Cr Kan Jordan
Cr iPand Le Moios
Cor Gissm Aol
Cr Kan Joedan
Cr Paid L hdobion
Cor Gemestma Anmoill
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Regional committees and groups

Ral

id

47

Coammities Name : Purpate of Commities

AGL Mevcashe
LT T T T
Facibty Comemunity
Dsalogue Group
Binubd Poant
Cufiural Henlsge
Advesary Panol
Brordy Hll Gy
Community
Consultatng
Commitipn

Compsehonsnm
Koaka Plan of
Managoment
Irrplermstnda bon
Commfion

Comimwmnity
Projects Fund

Gienedal klargged

Tree purperse of & Commurdy Condullnise Comimifios @& 1o provnde o orum ol drcussion baiwean  proponsnt
afd neprosantainoes of o comimurdy, SEkehokdar qroups and i local councll on B40es dineolly nelabng (o &
spocilic Shale sgiecant project

To advse Port Stephens Council on the management plan requeed o prodact the YWonmi cultunsd and sparual
ranlags and onhanca tha eryvironmant of e Bl Point Crown Reseve and Binds Poinl Abonginal Place

Thn purpersn of & Commursly Consulinig Commifion & o provide o forum for dscussion babwoan o propongsnt
and repeosantaives of e comimunity, stakeholdar groups and tho kecal councl on ssuos dinectly relebng o o
spacific Staln sgnaicant projoc

Respotvdih fof overssving tha implermontaton of the Port Slophiens Coumncl Comprahonsve Koals Plan of
anagamni

To make recommendatons o Council on appications moeved (hrough the grenks proorss

To condued ovahabon of tha pefomancs of e Gaenaral Managar.

ATTECHEENRT 1 | 119
Anyrasal Fespoed] 2008 fo 2009

Curren) delegaies

Mayot Ryan Painar

Gr Sarah Smdh

Cr Pasul L Wiotiog

Cr Sarnh Smilh

ARprmabo
Cr John Nell

Minyos Fyan Palmar
Cr Kaon Jomdon

Cr Chirs Dhoodhisn
Cr Jarmia Abtotl

i Counciice fom

T Vi)
Meyor Fyan Palner
Diespisly Mayod
Sarah Srmillh

Cr Gasooma Arnoll
[rowruslen ey Do)
Cr Poul Lo Mot
fromenaled by e
Gereal Mlanager}

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

237



ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 1  ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Ref Commities Hame Purposs of Commities Current delegales
50 Hunter Joind To dscuss regeonal [s5uas in the Hunier, Mayos Ryan Pakmar
Cirgansation ARoenato
Formadty Hunbor Depaily Mayol
Councils Sarah Smith

L | Hurior Sub-Branch  To provide: & fonim for incal comenunily mombars, sarvicn provedors,. businesses and b polca 1o GRouss Meyor Fyan Palmar
Camo Provantion B500% 0N Apprograbe sralogios riping o cnme snd commemunsty sadoby
Hobwr * Aittencheds. will b by inwikation anldy, 1 representatre vwill be ivibed by e Police Trom each peak body!
Hole' Thai s a Comilies  grgansalion o0 Hunler Walos | Housing NSW ) Gouncal will hold 2 positians, 1 will bo Comramunity Planner
e Pol SpRess ooy i th ot will b ths Mayor or e iepresentative € st (o allend

Lo Area Cammand
Adormberahig By
irmyilation o the Lot
s Cormemander
Councl's deiogae
e b
53 Hurdos Wintor This cormemition s mn advisony comemibion ko Hunbor Waler Corporngaon Cr Paul Lo Moftes
Comornbon ARernate
Commmnity Cr Gaacoimo Amoll
Consultalve
Comimiths
53 Joird Rgional T conssdor devologmen| apphcatons rolomod o tho Paned under the egsiaion lor devolopmont apphcalons  Mayor Fyan Palmor
Pianinang P for thi o Stephans Local Gowarmemant o Cr Paul Lo Metiso
Thi Pansl comprsas 3 Stale mambers snd 2 Councillors. Tha ledm i o 3 yoars kor eack Panol msmiber, ARirnabad
Cr Chins Doohsn
Cr Gancoma Arnoll
54 Locsl Development o provide advice Lo Cound $1afl on development iogardng biallc mallers. Mayod Ryan Pakmar
Camimitise
55 Lizad Trafe: An RTA-based commities which allows Council bo have debageted authanty 1o nstall of remsove regulalony ssgn Menods Ryan Palmsr
Commities posting on publbic rosds. Cr Sleve Tecker
&5 Leraenr Hunbar The commities s a esbive requirement and is i discuss disclion across iocal governmant areas and Meangor Ryan Palmsar
Bushiae BCISS AgENcEs N regard 1o bushiing managemaenl Alcenatas
hianngomant Cr Paul La Motlea
Commitios Cr Gaacome Aot
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ATTACHMENT 1 | 121
Arrual Fespoed 2008 o 2019

Ref | Committes Hame |Furp-ﬂ:.u-ufﬂmml‘l:ll-l m

&1

Lovar Hunbar
Community Advison
(rougs

kanno Parics
Supvrory Panol
Birvesdorind
Appomimant
Harwrarsthe Adrpaor
Painchg
Coompany Mo 3
Pty Lid

HEW Pubbc
Libniees Associnbon
{Central Easl Lona)

The Group s managed by Hunber Locad Land Services (HLLS), Tha pupoesa (5 60 provice an opporiunity for
tha HLLS s angaps wilh stakehodders on 8 range of moflars, mchsding stralegic direchon and progrsms.

Community Consulalve Comenittes mgarding tha propossd karmma Park in Poit Staphans

Special Purpose Vehicko for Bho pan cenarship of Misscasio Arpor

Special Purposa Vohicle lor Bha parl cemarship of Howcaste Arpod

Thi pmtnarship & espons@ie for the dovelopmont and monagemant of Mewcasti Aurpor and
rodsload infrastiuciung

Sharaholior dolegate for Mewoastis Airpori

Tha purpose of ha Assoctabon s o champson the pubbc Bbrary causa, strangthen e pubbc ibrary nalwor,
aivvocsts afoctamaly, loslon cooparaton and colabarabon, baikd bst and support, indisle pafnarships and
shara felasvant indormabon

Cr Paul Le Moties

Cr John Mol

apporled drecion
Cr Steva Tuckar
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Refl

64

85

&¥
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Commities Mame | Purpose of Commities

Por Stephens To expiore e ophons avadabée Tor re-geveiopment of 1he Council depot at Raymond Terrace

Council Depol

a-gervedapenant

Commities

Presi Stiphuend Al as & communcabon and adveory mechansm o Council on relevant Econcmes Davelopmend s
Econarmic Orenrso tha implemantation of ite Economes Dasaloprmont Sirabegy

Darveiapsrivand

Advrsory Panis

Porl Stephens To provide advice on flood flocdplnin management studses and plans

Fioodplan Advsong

Panal

Poit Stophans To mcl as Trust Managors of the Crown land and hobdny parks

Holidary Parks

Rorsaraa Trust

Peaf Staphans! This Commilias nchades roprasentatees from Groal Lekes Council end s rosponsibla for long lerm planning
kiynll Lakes Estuary v (ho oskusty ond tha coasting

ol Coastal Forg

Kanagoment

Commities

Proposty Advisory To provide & forum for the Comporabe Servicos Group Loademship Tosm o addvoss mlovani ssuos,
Commiiee ancompEng o sialege approach (o (he management of Tha Group:

Sall Ash Sand The purposs of 8 Communiy Consullave Commdiss is o provids a forum for dscussion betesen &
Projesl Comsmunily  propononl and reprosoniales of e commundy, siskabaldor groups and e local countd on ssess difscly
Cansultalimn rrdaling bo & spocibe Siale sgnilicant projec

Commithen

Current delegales

Mayos Ryan Pakmar
Cr Ko Jordan

Cr Jahn Mall

Cr Gaacoimo Armoll
1 Conpeiy foes

B W)
Mayor Ryan Palmar
Cr Chiis Dochan
Cr Glan Dunkloy
Cr Ceacoamsd Armsil
Cr Paul Lo Mothen
ARprrighy

Cr Gaacoamo Amoll

Al Councillors

Cr John Ml
ARenata
Cr Paul Lo Motlea

Manpor Ryan Palmar
Cr Chns Dochan
Cr Paul La Motlea
Cr Kan Jorden

Cr Glan Dunkloy

{1 Counciie e

BT Wl |

Cr Sleve Tucker

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

240




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 1  ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 1.

Al Fespeoed 2008 o 20149 I

I e e [

RFS Distnct Liaison  To reveny thie progress of the sanvics level agreement betwean Pord Slephens Councl and MW Rural Fre Cr Gaacomao Arnott

Commimitios Sanicg i ha local govedniment anea ABormalo
Maneid Ryan Palnai
T2 Willsarricrn T prorvida m fonam for the mesdents of Wiliamibown aeea B0 disciess relevand ssues with Fedaral, Sialo and Maneor Riyan Patmar
Consulainag Lpcal Ciovaarursanl alochid mombars Bnd sganss (el Rlanages|
Comimition Fonm
T3 Wignmi To cwnrsos tho mpnoamand of B londs ownod by e Abonhgesl ownnrs. and lsased Bsck 1o tho Cr Jsimia Abbotl
Consarvidon MENY Gioneormamaan ARnrmalo
Lands Board of Cr Sarnh Same
Lanagomont
Pl A e el
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SECTION 6
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ATTACHMENT 2 | 125 I
Anrual Repont 2018 o 2019
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Joly description | #uctual costs (§)

nfonrmabon Technology mprosamants
Shaond Boy Holiday Pork improvemsands
Fingal Bay Holday Park nprovemanis
Haltax Holidey Fark improvemanls
Traescags Holiday Pagk impdoemsents
Thiow ¥alla Holday Park mprovoments
Koals Spnchinty — Tiooscape Holiday Park
Invesiment Proporty smprovemdnils
Plar wpanmsas

Libensy reesouncns

CCTVY enprovamants
Footpath and cycloway mprovemants
Biocmarang Park shored pofhvary
Tompgo boald ramp

Longaarth Park semyal

Foreshore aicson and accrelion mansgamil
Litthr Baach wharf

Taylors Boach wharl

Madzon Bay Mannn
Fpairsidin Padh Soenyadl
Shopd By dmginy s

Karuah =0al remp

Waako Eacabily improvemanis

Soaham School of Arts

SES Traning Towad Reymond Toermacs
Famn By Hall

1,040,
533,005
405 008
326
131,326

i e
B25, 506

2,160 228

2 B8 TR
36 BAG
X300 481
182, 608
140,483
182 677
1T 444

1151
05,054
14, 185
17,008
25,14
210 454
242 085
FU2 a4
10,544
41 372
38083
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ATTACHMENT 2 | 127 I
Arrual Fepaon] 2008 o 2009

Job description Actual costs (§]

Annp Bay Cometeny

Anna Bay F Birubs Foant Hall

Mlsan Bay Camsabary dranaga
Resmeobe mchilcing of pumg stabons
Walarinonl Road, Swan Bay

Hofmoe Sheol drmnsge

Futisme dosigns dramagoe

Balinl Closa, Medowso

Tarmant Road Salomandar By drainngo
Bupwthosno Park soaling

Eerancion Pagk upgrodos
Poacs Park amenies

Bob Casrns armambbas

Shonl Bay foneshom playground
Beob Coerns Rosarve

Meson Bay Croquat Clul

Lakaskda Sports Complax

Salt Ash SportsgEound

Wi craven Speoil and Community Faciliy, Foicdal
Longworth Park, Karuah

Reymond Torrace Pageon Chub
Aguag Park rivobkaleabon

Bragnalls Boach East playground
Corwwend] Riosorve playground
Caswoll Rsnrve pubic amendus
Fingal Bay foroshors sokar kghting

HIBETE
pER
0,142

05,558

4099 474
17,558
10, M5

163 048
AT TS0
AF M5
11.218

104,735
14,2
4, G
11,2963
28,624
P

116,231

£ 4 0
a2 126
58,027

240,050
28,354

173,653

155677
4 653
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Job description Bctual costs (§)

Lakaside Losurg Coandra upgraces
Lansiie Spons Comghx
Lancasler Park

Lol Borion e rifss

Litthe Baach Accirssibdity

Prrsdas Gandons. boandwalk
Rrsriade Park rolunds

Robirson Resen, Anna Bay

Salt Azh Sports Cormyhe

Tandiba Bay bomrdwaik
Tompgo o mmp

Tomases Aquabc: Canra

Yulborg Ovad upgisde

King Park Sports Complox Mastar Plan
LG signingn upgrodes

Madowsr Fond upgrades and car park samlng
Evans Road, Medowie

Fusssll Strasal, Clamrcabesm
Ghurch Sinsd, Matson Bay
Yacaaba Sinsal, Melson by
Tomases Hoad, Shoal Bay

Milchal Siresl, Sodder Poind

Swan Bay Rosd, Swan Bay

Epal Soaham Road, Clanmooiosn
Fomshoere Diva, Forodalo

Brandy Hill Drve, Brandy Hl

By F
21 B26
35,523
1,
16,845
16,548
108 825
S
22,042
LR
11,5049
15,835
25,831
M
92, 480
BT
160, 4867
21,042
10616
162 818
Ja22 reo
138073
113,458
08 F55
177 Bay
127,50
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ATTACHMENT 1 | 129

Arrual Fepaon] 2008 o 2009 I

Job description Actual costs (§]

Lemonires Passoge Road

F uifiang dasygns

Clasancaloamn Rioad

Hoddorm Foad, Kaniah

Sall Ash Avanus, Sall Ash

Hinton Road, Oslirdey and Melsons Plaics
Gan Gan Road, Anns Bay

Port Slophons Strool, Raymond Termaon
Mkt Stroal, Fingol Bay

iankn Rosd, Erst Soaham

Fingal Bay Link Road — concepl planning
Shopl By traffic Bghts

Patorsen Road, Duns Croek

Shonl Boy Road nnd Gowree e

iRnko Rowd, Exsl Soaham

Council buiding mprosamants

TENTAL

0,037
184 842
0 063
1,011,897
118,331
405 460
692 853
17,358
70071
56 587
32,218
13,065
293 491
100,576
1,617 851
447 922
25,648,435
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ATTACHMENT 2 | 131 l
Annual Repot 2018 10 2019
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2018 to 2019 Annual Report | Volume 2
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=
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b e e T

Port Stephens Council

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the vear ended 30 June 2019
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Armad Faped] 2500 b XI1H

Part Stephans Council

Seneral Purpose Financial Statements
Tos Bhay yor oredosd W0 Jurse SIS

Cantents FPage
1. Understanding Council's Financial Statements 3
2. Statement by Councillors & Managemaent 5

3. Primary Financial Statements;

Income Statemend

Siatemant of Comprehensive Income
Sistement of Financial Positon
Statement of Changas in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows

o e =4 0

-
[=1

4. Notes to the Financial Statements 1

& Independent Auditor's Reports:

On the Financial Staterments (Sect 417 |2])
On the Financial Staterments (Sect 417 |3])

& &

Chvrvisrw

Fofl Shiehertd Lol o Somsiioles] onddd [hee [ OGal Ceindsiiremand At 1O (MY A s s el plscn ol
bursinmss ol

116 Addedsicks Sirnaet
Raymord Tomaos NSW 23324

Council's. gusding principlos ano dednfed in Chopler 3 of tho LGA ond nciudaes

PICS: Sy D ey ercieo of luncborms gonssmsly by couwnol

PrCapdies: B0 D s wihadi el focininng

e S ol SO nily s D i Do

prirapes. O sonrd Tiarsindd mahagdmssnl, shd

pOnopheEs o sArstogec planming fetning ko the dessolopemasnt of an nSegralod pAsnning and eporting rmmeassork

A deescrpion of e nafure of Counol's oporsbors: and @5 pnncipal ootoeties oo proadod i Moda 2b)

Through e s of Th inbomsol, we hars ordaned Bal our coporting s Bmaly. comgbkelo and pmikabie ol minamem
ool ANl penSSs DESRReS, TRAncinl sERlomDdls and ofhdgd Slormabon &he pubhcly avakalie on oUW

WO (RIS OREHITYS. Frig G fU)
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Port Stephens Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for ther year ended 30 Juna 2018

Linderstanding Council's Financial Statements

Intro-duct=nmn

Emch yoor, indendual Locol Govormmesnts scross NESW sre regquend (o pressenl & ol of oucked finsnosd stalomoents
b thavr copinacil aned Cosmamiuniby

Wihat you will find bnthe Slatements

T Tafvibraciil shecirrsints sl ool B Senncial paufcrmaancs, ol Dostn and cish Bows of Colrsl b tha Tl
o o 30 Junn 010

Thiz formmal of B nancial Slabenents s sdandaid scross all HEW Coundls arsd comples will Dolh (he sooouing
pnd nsportng requersmesnts of Ausbalinn Accownlmg SiEandards and nequinemonts a5 58l dosn by Thae Ofhos ol Local
Gronrerrrmiond

About the CouncillorManagement Stxbement

Thie Tancial Stasmeaels st De comfa] by senin Sall os prosanbng ey I Councls Tnancinl rsulls fod B
o e Bnd Toegudiad 10 Do denbed Dy Codingl ~ dhSunesg Bollh feapansddly for and owisishg of B st
sliSmmenils

A beouit the Primary Financial Siatemenis

The fmancial stalements mooeporata o Sprmany™ Smancial siatemani=s

1. The Incoms Slatement

Surmmasnses Councils, Srancial porformencn for Sho year, shng all moome and oxporrces. Thes sinbemord plso
cesplivys Councils onginal adopiod budgsl 1o provide @ companson bobaogn whal was proseciod and whal actualy
Tl

2. The $tatement of Comprehensive Incoms

Prmardy roconds chamnges. in T fer value of Councils Infrosirichrs, propery, plant and equepment

1. The Sisiemaent of Financial Poaition

A, 2 Jursd snapaldil ol Conncis hhansgl podshon @dbanling s assols. habsldsrs ad "l waallh®

4. The Statemaent of Changes in Eguity

I'his sl chasnges lor Tha yesar {in dolaes ) o Councils “ned wassin”

5. The Satemaent of Cash Flews

Iraletallins. welhilen Councls. cash caima Thoim ond whond il wad spond This siabsmes] @se daplins Coindls ofigial
mdopted budget 1o peovide @ ocmpanrson bobwoen whal was projeciod and wissl schuslly oocurmsd

About the Notes o the Financial $tatemsnts

The Mobes lo e Fnancial Siabements provedas groods deliil and addbonal rdomrmabon on B free praemany Nindncsl
slabamais

Aboaif the Auditors Reporms
Council's bnancinl SAnIGmankS &0 dgginied 1o B sudiod By T MESW Al O

I INEAY his sucklod peonhdes 2 Rl fopsaits
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Port Stephens Council

General Purpose Financial Statements

Jos Wi e aredeed 340 e 200

Linderstanding Council’s Financial Statements {continued)
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Port Stephens Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to Section 413(2)(c) of the Local

Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended)

The attached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:

« the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended) and the regulations made thereunder,

= the Australian Accounting Standards and professional pronouncements, and

* the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:

« present fairly the Council's cperating result and financial position for the year

» accord with Council's accounting and other records.

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 10 September 2019.

Ryan Palmer
Mayor
10 September 2019

Wayne Wallis

General Manager
10 September 2019

Sarah Smith
Councillor
10 September 2019

Tim Hazell
Responsible Accounting Officer
10 September 2019
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Port Stephens Council

Income Statement
Foir Bhap yoar gendiesd 30 Jung A0S

Driginal
wnawdied
budgel
Pk

56 Tar
2L ST
1, X513
B 5aid

11,4
5 i1
50

121 @17
45 1355
Gaa

0 B
15, 631

13,5615

194,010

£l BAH

8,638

1,638

1827

e Courcl hus. e seslgbsd comparges when infiplly appivesr AASE § The coenpersiys niormaslon B9 Been prpead el e

5000

Incame From continuing operations
Rensnus

Fabos pedd anndinl channgoes

User chargos and loes

Pevlind sl e ek Bimdeh| Fodnmiiipn

Ofhar rasdsnlers

Grants and contribubons. provedod for cpecaling
T

Gennils pnd contriuons provadod for capdnal
PrLiTEHERrS

CHNGE s

Mol gaeres Troem thas dspoesal of assols

F e ylusd ncroimand On mvasimond peopoeias
Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Er|||,'\-'._|,'\|u|¢I Barsalis &l Of-Csis

Baonoawing oosks

Mubhonsss snd conliscls

M pCal D g pmine [sain

(har exponsas

Riprabiniod Shineahl | fmiphimios] of IPPSE
Total sxpenses from continsing operabiony

Operating result from continng opersticns
et operating resull for the year

Atiriiutable 1o
CoEnci
P -COn g i el irsls

Hel operating result for the year before grants and

confributions provided for capital purposes

ALEH 1 Frupesdl RaFumenls Redrsdony aswl Jeadsaei!

o Hredaled due o pror pence] afite

'l Wce il SHaleSel Wi I el i’ OShechch willh e B ng Sl
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A bual
2018

57 852
44 63
1451
i 50
11 9198

21,32

218
3 507
14T AGT

40 254

TS
a8 130
id AR
17T
I

14 A

I

i

25,204

2520

}B0Z

fictual
2018

56 087
35, 1
1417
BP0
1 G

15, 1&5

A6
L]

1205 .53

48 108
ara
40 Da0
14,552
(=R
57a

116 M50
S0

20,074

20074

4 040
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Port Stephens Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Bor The vt ondoed 30 Jona A014H
5000 019

Het operating result for the year (as per Income Statement) % 204

Dher comprebhensive Income

Aumcants wiech wall nol Bo roclassifiod subssqusniy ba 1o cporalng roscll

Gain (sl on dvaluotai ol IPPAL 8BS
Total Hems which will not be reclassified subseguently to the

oparating reaul & 541
Total other comprehensive iIncoms for the yoar B 41
Tolal comprehensive income for the year 34 155
Ariribatabile 1o
L BT | ] Ly §iG
radn-torficing nbsesls
Thed Cimgiecd hlink Fel resilsieg Sormpir e Wi ety Epplyireg AT O T TEat Mree Ersnmsion
A4S 1B Faagneg
Hralian? S L ey perriesd e
s =k L

21 651
410 651

40,725
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Port Stephens Council

Statement of Financial Position

E% ol 30 Muns AO0TH

§ "000

ASRETSE

Current assels

Cosh e cash equivplont essals
Ervirsbmonis

Bl rvwaihns

Erenrdnnas

Wi

Total current assats

Mon-cumerl ansats
Enwvashmanis

Enlrastryctun, peoparty,. plant and agipmant

Emwasimon] peogarty
Inlanjilie assets
CHhod

Tobsl nor-current assals
TOTAL ABSETS

LIABILITIES

Current liabdlitias
Pryakdes

Incomin rocireed Inadvanco
Bl eram et

Prowsions

Tobal euwrent labillilss

Hop-cumment llabilises
Fayubshos

EROiTehaings

FIowmions

Tobtal nar-curmant llabilibes

TOTAL LIABILITIES
et assets

ECQTY

Aorimarbalod SUr s
Blipwaiug ban s
Councll aguity interest

Tetal equity

Tt Conshol KA Rl FERLEted COPDARBIREL Wihen

13048
5067
O
5162
a41d

a3 701

1482
188
10,0240
SHD BT
LT
6,149
1774
1,015 AE4

i TG SA5

14,345

i A0
1F 6T
1% BT6

15,004
T4z

15 B0E
51 683
1,027,803
618 886
406,017
1,027 Dicy

1,027,903

iy appbire AGSEH U T Do Bres @IS N Dese Biefull &0 Ore

AASE 13 Franod aruments Reropnins gl Lieascemend

The afcrer Slaliemerd of Fieasoisl Poslcn shaoghl e fead n

g iion edth B accompamyng noles
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Restated
e

9,828
A0
R
5 Bl
4.5
5 1w

1.AE5]
160

(R ]
30 630
1 AT
i Toad

:|

TR
81,1

LT}

1 fal 514

11 167

3450
1720

11 A55

a8
20,31
531
20,510
b T |

853,748
503, 330
410, 418

% 4R

o953, 748

Brmad B 2500 b XIS

Restated
1 Juby 2047

8,0
40 4102
4,05
14,313
435

12 g

31

I8
5.1
AL 774
5 D0
4 b
10

T 28

1 U, s

|1 e
431

2 837
15 ACH)
*F D5

i
18,121
532

8 51
A7 I
852,770
Lz 46T
S0 W1

852,770
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Part Stephans Council
Statement of Cash Flows

Tox Bhay poar orded 30 Juree 20499

Criginal
umaudited
bugget
Fitil]

]
kL] k]
1353

15 468
5,8ar
{44,103}
{36, DA5|
(D)
{13,213}

23 NG

]

{71 581
Z1 333)

2 000

(3 485]
[1 485%)

| Find)

8,828

8.075

41,3437
80,317

T gbwowe Exgbemmesni of Cash Fhoed i [ pedd N Copencion sl e sooompanyng noles

5000

Cash Nows from operating activitiea
Racapts

Faobes ond annual chagoes

Lheif cligdpos and boos

Terwirsdresiind Grsd inbofers] noviriing [oon oo
Girards and coninbitions

Bands, dagosds. and ndlorvbon amognts s
LI

Payemaenis

Employen banafits pnd on-oosls

Kabsiials ghd conifpcis

Hoirnsang costs

Clfun

Met cash provided {or usesd inj operating
aclivities

Canh MNovws Miam investing activities
Racespis

[abn of aniessimise §ocudilines

Sakn of roal oalale pssols

Saln of mirasiructuns, pdopoarly, pland and
squiprmori

Dhfsreoad diadilees pocsgly

Faymants

Proiciase ol irgeriimasni Saeyriss
Furchse al inseesimant naparty
Punchase of infrastnuiciuee, propeity, planl snd
U

Purnchiase of real aslato gsuels

Furchass of inkangia assals

Mot cash provided (ar used in) inyveaiing sctivites

Caah flows from financing sctivites
Rocapts

Procends fiom bornowmngs and advancos
Paymanis

Ropaymanl of bonowings snd sdvanons

Met cash flow provided jused in) financing activites

Het increase/{decreass) in cash and cash eguivakents

Pliss cosh and cosh agurnlonis - bogerning of
FTET

Cash and cash equivalents — end of the
year

At il | AOreatEn
plus Insostmants on hand - ord of o

Total cash, cash equivalents and imvestments
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Achasl
Rl

aT, 360
47184
1284
21646
113
11,774

47 168)
{38, 1:340)

(702
(d 151

Sl AL

12 850
255
104

{37 1
(ELEH]

(37 334y
(23

[ 1509
{3 _R16)

{4 M)
{4 I0E)

A4 1.:10

b axE

13,848

36 289
50,237

Arrmad Bl 000 NI

Auzbual
20E

55 080
A0 TT4
12349
77T
7]
12202

(44 132)
(44,308)

(ETa)
(16 {45)

2 AT

TG0
5 &G0

Tt

14
{11,300
{13

§29 0

(2 55T
{155])
127 51

000

%, 7321
st

L ]

6083

8,828

41 247
51,070
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Part Stepheans Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Tox Bhay poar orded 30 Juree 2099

Contents of the Notes accompanying the Financial Statements

Note  Details

1 Barsrs of prapasiion

Z2im) Eogiancil fumChadrrs ol rvbad < Rrancial indonmatsn

2 Council fundonssorters - componen! doscnplions

3 Iroorma from conlmursg opocatons

] Expiread noim commining oporabors

a Garrs o 05505 from thi disponsal noplacament and de-recognibon of assals

fia) Cash and cash eguivalan] assels

(]3] Irmasdrrands

B} Rasiriciod cash, cash egurvalonis and invosimants - dedails

[ Rucornshlos

8 Irrenboises ard oiied assals

Gim) Irdrgstiruchare, peoparty, phant and aoguipmsant

Sih) Extomally iastriched imdrastruchee, propoty, plant and ogugimant

&) Intrashuchae, proporty, pdanl and egugemont = curran] yoar empasmeenls

10 IFrir sl propsity

1 irdargitile assals

12 Parynbhirs sind Ban owings

13 Pt

14 AccismiAaing Sunplus eiislon Fesenas, Chafijis 0 SoolUming poboebs, Changas in
meccoinding estmates and anors

15 Staternen] of cash Nows - addonsl informstion

16 Irforosts oy ol anbilns

i7 Coiremilrmiamts

18 Contngencios and othar assataliabiibas nol eoognisad

18 Finoecial resk morasgssmant

20 Katernl budgoel varmybons

21 F oo Wiy Mloarsainimsnl

F Ralabied Parly Transachons

73 Ewmtils aooiining afer tha ropoita) dila

24 Stalnmion] ol devalopnr conlnbubons

25 Fmancial resull snd fnonosl posilion by fund

28 Stalernenl ol pailoimancn mods s - consobadaled gty

Additomal CouncHl disclosures [unauwdiisd)

i Council miormalion and conlact dokaik

Page

i
16
K
hi ]

a3
33

w
A0
47
4%
4%
at
.13

5
5

a5
L H
649
[
15
B2
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A Bagaat 2370 b 30T

Port Stephens Council

Maotes to the Financial Statements
for the yoar andod 30 June 2015

Mote 1. Basis of preparation

Thessun Minancast Aaiomonts wihn aulchsod lof Sdun by Councd on 10 Soplembss 2010 Coundil has thiv fovwer 1o
amard ored nessus Thess Tmancinl sinbemaents

Thad peanicapal cctisnling: podeads sloplod @ ha paopanation of s corddalalaling Tinamcal AArlemanls & sol it
Esikirey

Tty pasdicaees hayo Boon Consalonily appiosd (o ol I yoars prirsondisd . ankoss ollsdwrss sl

T bty geesrren parpsosa Snancial stslemonts hae boon propansd N scooedanon wilth Austisian Aocounirg Standans
mnd Aursinnlan Accounhing Inlerprotafcns . tho Local’ Gowsrmmaod? Aol 1563 (WSWY end Hogulabons, and Tha | ool
Gorvarremond Code of Accoinirs] Pracics and Franciusl Regoneg

Counal 15 & mol fod-prodd anbiby
Tres fnnncial siabisnents o presenisd in Austiakan dollars and &l founded 16 he neanes] housand dollars

Windeas olfanyes incdecabisd ol mounts diciossd in o nancial $talsments. oeo ocliesl smourits. Spoecihc Budgetary
mnournls hanms boen nckudod Tor comparatres analyss [To achuss | m The follosing mopos and nolios

¢ Imcosmae slalomenl
t  Shslorrsanl ol cash Rovws
*  Nole 20 - MMabednal budgel vanabons
{a] MNew and amended standards adopled by Council

Dureg o your, Counal pdopiod ol ciandaids which wam mandaionly offetiee for the Sesl mae al 30 June 2008

Tharsp rrly iogrioed shandards shoch Pad A empac on mpMind pesiben, P icfmMance pfdior declosures hvae
bt dirsurssad i Hole 14

(b} Historical coal convention

T fmancinl shilsmants hove boon pregonsd ondor (ko histoncal ool cormvonbon, a8 modded by (ha evaioalon
ol cotain finarcnl essobs snd labibbos ard cofnin classess of mitestnecturn, propeety, piaesl ard squeponent and
i lTTHIN ooy

je]l ESignificant accounting estimaled and judgemenis

Thay propicabon ol hnpscssl siabemanls agungs e s ol corain cnibcal accoustling eshimelos 1| o foguilirs
g Hmanl bo axircee d4 udgorment i B piocesd of apphang the Counclls aocounbng pobos

Esbmaries. and jsdgemanis afé conBnually evalusied snd o based on hatoncal exponsnce anhd olher Faclons,
including eapsectalions of foture @wenls thal may have o Snancial mpad on the Councl and that ano bedensd 10 be
Fipcabin dinded [ CHC ETHLRCIE

Criticsl secauniing estimalss and sesumpbicna
Courdl makis eShmatos AN assumglnng concodnmg the lulure
Thas firiailrs ACcourhng edlimerdes will, by Sohndion, sekdom aqual e rolaled actial rosuls

Thes edtenales s assmgilons el hayve @ sgrehicant ik, of caush] 8 malonal sdpistmess] (o s Cairyes] amounts
of assols mnd labibes within e nexd fmancial yoar inclods

Gy ostmmoled Tnir values of evestmond propestees = o Nobde 10

o] osbmalod fair valuess of nfrastruciung, progoty, plent and squpmant - refor Molo B
) ostmmated by rirwehiabon provesions - mofir Nole 53

) oy Bomnatl provesors - idod Moo 13
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Part Stephans Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
fos Bhe yoar orded 30 June 2018

Naote 1. Basis of preparation [continued)

Significam judgemanta in applying he coundll’'s scccunting policies

() hrgaitimont of monnvablos

Coumcl his msde 8 jidgiema] aboul B anpaaein] of § rambsi of 45 Psihrralbes - noled Mot T
) inlodosts in olhar onties

Council has made a judgeman] aboul B rolalionshep & has wil axlernasl el - roler Nolbs 10

Monies and other assety received by Council
(&) The Consolidated Fiund

In nccordamon with B provesions of Soction 409{ 1) ol the L ccal Covommanl Aot 1993 (MSW), sl morary and propasty
e by Coumncal i hisld m o CGouncl™s Consoliaod Fond wnbess o 5 reguered 8o ba Bkl i Bhe Counci™s T rusd
Fiinid

Cagh ared plFaf Bteds of B FoBovang) el hows Boon mcioded oo pan of the Cordobdetod Fusd
(3] The Trus? Fursd
| pcnndars wilh thi royresns of Secten 411 of el Local Govarnirmid Act 1003 [NSW) (Bs aimssndad ), i sopadaio

o delinet Toust Fund s méniained 1o stoouni for ol money snd progesty receved by B councal i thasd which
mad B spphad onlby for ths purposes of, or in accondarcs sl th sk reabng 1o oS manis

Tiiasd Frcoeis and piopoity sulec] 1o Councll & conlicl Rave beissh cledad i i eports

A sopaiatl siabamaent of monees feld & the Trust Fund B avsdabie fof sdpecton ol The council alliob by dory porcn
Trus o chargo

Goods and Services Tax (G5T)

orvnnises, Rapansns and aasols arn mcognsad nal ol I enmolnl of nssociabed GST, unkass ha GST incuemed &
THol ieCoreer ks Tramy [P T alaceny pAATHONRY. BN This Casa il 1S econed o Dl of (e Cosl of Scauinsiaon of 1he st
oF 15 peail al b e

Riponrvatres and paynbies s stalod inchisve of 1o amouinl of GST tecepmble of payvable. The noel amou of GS1

rascrynrabibe Troem, o payalibo 1o tha Raxabon mthorty s includod with oBhor receemblios oo panalaes in B Siofomaosn]
of Finaancssl Porgabsce

Caghn fiows arg peasaiod on o gross bass, The GST componants of cash flows orming Troam avwesbng of Rnsnocng
peiniinie Bial &b ieconsaiahiln Indims, oF payabis (o, Do Eston aulhorty oo prosonbed &3 opacalmg cath Nows

Mew accounting standards and interpretaticns Issued not yel effective
Mew accounting standards and inferpretations issued but not yet effective

Carbam noew pooounbng standands and eflerprolabons have bean pulished thal ane nol mendalony foe 30 Juse 2019
rasposting poncads (and which have nod Boon oty sdopled by Council]

Councils. msossmant of (hida nrsy shandaenss and eterpinliong (whoro Py haed bean dopmsd &5 having a
rastorasl ieginc] on Councls Tubuts fnancial perfcenaance, Brancul posion and carsh Nows) aro 568 odl Blow

AASE 16 Lesses

Matuve of the clhange
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A B 2370 b 01

Port Stephens Council

Maotes to the Financial Statements
for the yoar andod 30 June 2015

Mote 1. Basis of preparation jcontinued)

AARR 16 wers Bsued i Fabruary 20006

Whaot appbcable AASE 16 will sl o abmost &1 leases B neoogreisd o T balanco sheel by lossoas willi the
debnchion babveon operalrg ard nanon bases. romovsd

Winaest [has nipw sEandasid, @ Branciol kabslty (0. 0 loase ehaly) and on aesol (o o nghl 1o use B loasod dom)
weill Dy eCogised Tof noarty all peTANgeEonts whann Gouncd commes fisal to payng o rentnl fes i the e of o
Spelecafiel drgS0d

Thad odily sxdigrhins afo Shodl-tm a6 Kew-vakii asss, whh aie axeimgl 1o [l SEEoimbig (Bl Hiol dsckasung )
ringueemanis of AASEH 16 - Lodsas

dmapacf
Councl stafl e reveswed all of Cownol's lnirng srangements over o el 12 months lakorg inlo consderabion
B reray loersn nocoudng rubes in AASE 16 (npodcobls friom 17 18)

AMSH 16 wall [on the wholn) afloct Councl's sccounting lor aosbng operaling oese agroaments Bl an in paco
&% ol 2090

A8 thi ond OF This foparing penod, Councl has. non-canceliatie opambng kase commamants of $1 221K - mbar
Mote 18
M Thirs cofnimelimants, Bpprosemalaly 5146 solabs fo SPail-1oem eses nid S0 1o kv ki Bt

Balh thida aasa s and arnoiiils wall Gonbnoh b0 B sccounilid [of &5 iy cummadlly i {5 aapansed of &
sirnight- o B withen 1B Income Stalomant)

For the Ieeniining opedabng Minse commitments of 511285, Council anlicpals | wil recognse ease kabiibes (on
s, beskancn shesnl) Brud alss necoginmg complenartany oghl-oluse sessts (on 45 balarncs 1wl ah 1 July 2010

B adehon bo Bhes, Councl cufrently has o rumbst of oiher aperabing loeses ol previousty reporied i Mole 18 afsch
ans Menly 1o be broughl o acoourd. Wids! Bho empact of thes res nofl yol Been Tull detamnined, @ wall mesull inoa non
cusment nght of wse axsol and mecognition of @ lonsae labdity which will bo ssparniod inlo @ comant ond non-cuamaent

componmn

AASH 15 Revanue from Confracts with Cusfomens and associated amending standards,

AASH S milnoduces B Treg-she) proterss Bof Fowarnm NeCognibai, wiil P cols prncapds of M Row Starsdand Baindg
foi anbithes 1o MeCoghing rnsanu (o depecd P iranshel of goods of sorvces 1 cushomars m amounts thal iefect the
cormadmmtion (thal &, paymenl) ke which The onbity eepects 1o bo enified in sechange tor thote goods or wsnaons

Accounting polcy changes will arss m ths bmng of nesenue recognibion, matmand of confmcs costs and contraces
wehich corlnin & Snancing elemont

Coimioals shoikl FEsess s rowininn siroaen bl paracuier enpect & oupachisd o gront incoma mnd mies whech ee
puins] Bidlorm (el Endrimancomand of [ha raleng o

Thae chinges. m vones ecogrebon mdgquinsrnenis n AASBETS may ceuse changes o The bemng snd amourd of
P focodded i e Enaccnl stalemonis as woll a8 addiionsl deciosuies Adsesamont of the finanosd ejpaect
o thes standams s in pogiess.

AASH 1058 Income of NFP Entibies

AAEH 1058 suporsndas il (e NCOFS (OCOQPbon roqunePenls rHohng o councils, presssly 0 AASH 100
Conkiihuleng
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Port Stephens Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)

Under AASB 1058 the future timing of income recognition will depend on whether the transaction gives rise to a
llability or other performance obligation (a promise to transfer a good or service) related to an assel (such as cash
or another asset) received by an entity.

AASB 1058 also applies when a council receives volunteer services or enters into other transactions in which the
consideration to acquire an asset is significantly less than the fair value of the asset, and where the council's objective
is principally to enable the asset to further the council's objectives

Upon initial recognition of the assel, this standard requires council to consider whether any other financial statement
elements (called ‘related amounts’) should be recognised in accordance with the applicable accounting standard,

such as:

(a) contributions by owners

(b) revenue, or a contracl liability arising from a contract with a customer
(c) a lease liability

(d) a financial instrument, or

(e) a provision

If the transaction is a transfer of a financial assel to enable council to acquire or construct a recognisable non-financial
asset to be controlled by council (i.e. an in-substance acquisition of a non-financial asset), the council recognises a
liability for the excess of the fair value of the transfer over any related amounts recognised. Council will then recognise
income as It satisfies its obligations under the transfer similarly to income recognition in relation to performance
obligations under AASB 15

Ifthe transaction does not enable council to acquire or construct a recognisable non-financial asset to be controlled by
council, then any excess of the initial carrying amount of the recognised asset over the related amounts is recognised
as income

Council will assess each revenue stream but particular impact is expected for grant income where perfromance
obligations need to be satisfied before income can be recgonised

AASB 2018-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Right-of-Use Assets of Not-for-Profit
Entities

This Standard provides a temporary option for not-for-profit entities to not apply the fair value initial measurement
requirements for right-of-use assels arising under leases with significantly below market terms and conditions,
principally to enable the entity to further its objectives (for example, concessionary or peppercorn leases).

The Standard requires an entity that elects to apply the option (ie measures a class or classes of such right-of-
use assets at cost rather than fair value) to include additional disclosures in the financial statements to ensure users
understand the effects on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the entity arising from these
leases

As per a NSW Office of Local Government recommendation, Council has elected to measure right-of-use assets
(under a concessionary or peppercorn lease) at cost. The standard requires additional disclosures be provided in
relation to below market-value leases measured al coslt

Council has not applied any pronouncements before ils operative date in the annual reporting period beginning 1
July 2018,
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Port Stephens Council

Maotes to the Financial Statements
for the yoar andod 30 June 2015

Note 2(b). Council functions/activities - component descriptions

Details relating to the Council’s funcBenaiactivities as reported in Mote 2ia) are as follows
Our Community

Port Stephens is a thriving and strong community respacting diversity and heritages

Childnen’s Sandcns, Communily Sonioes, Conlracl ard Senaces. Librang Senioas

Commundy Davelopmant and Engagoment; Economic Devalopmant and Towrsm, Sirolege Planning. Violunisas
Ronssgomsent, Dolnvery of Councils Fenncal Asealanon Progeirs

Management of Abcsiginal Places. in Poil Slephens.
Our Place
Port Stephens is & liveable place supporting lecal economic growth

Asspl Sysioms, Builkling and Dovslopor Hofations, Budsdfng Temdes, Gl Assals Plgnning. Tnel Contiscts, Cel
Propects, Commundy ard Recroaton, Comimuniy Divesbopimesnl ard Engagemaenl. Combnachon, Comlracd and
Sarvces, Desgn, Emergency Monsgemont, Engrbinng Sendcet, Empnichinenlsl Hoolllh and Comphance
Mocharecad and Momisnancs Sones, Parks, Planmng and Dovelopst Rolabons., Foods, Roodssate amnd [eainsga
sttogic Planmng; Sunvary and Land Infonmabon

Econmme: Davolopmont and Toursm, Deeslopmsnt, consinucion and maninnanca of Koala Sanciuary, Hospdsl
anad Towrnsm Facibly

Our Enviromment
Foart Stephans” enviranmant i§ clean, green, protected and enhanced

Trbi Assadsimsnl Sennced. Trod Pesmel Sysiem, Communily and Rocreaton, Rehabdtalo, mondos and morsgs
decommissnnesd i stos, Wailo hanogomonl

Cosslal Manogoemen!, Communiy suppodl and advocacy, Dedvor Emsoremental Educabon and Granl Programs,
Dipvolop and smgilemand progects 1o probect pnd anhanco the local emeronmont, Ecologecsl and E rreranmantal
Flanning Services, Managomant and Regulston of Bosecunty Rsks, Sialegic guidance, cument knowladon and
bsirsd peBChon achc

Cur Council
Port Stephena Council lesds, mansges and dellvers valued communlty sendces in & responsible way

Buwrwss Excolonon.  Clgorshp Ceromonss.  Commorcesl  Invosimenls;,  Community  Dareplopment  and
Engagemesl, Corporale Ropoiteg, Corporale Sysheens arsd Busmass Improvomesnl, Cuslomor Redstans, Dagpbal
and Yelrda, Envichmeshial Mansgement, Faolibed Maoragamanl, Financs, Govwemaoncs, Hobdey Packs, Human
Risouices, nfocmabon shd Communicobon Toechnodogees. Informabon Sorvons, Lerison wilh obhor gowesumonl
mgunoes. Manngo stradegic and oporaional maltors, Marketing and Promotons, Pubbc Rolabons and Maroohng

Rk Managaemesnl, Stabulory Propety. Suppos] cammarcad avinbon sacvices, Suppord seracas lor Bha Wagor,
Counclons and sl axsculneg ofcars, Work Hoallh and Salely
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Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Bor tha i ondoed 30 Janda S07H

Mote 3. Income from continuing cperalions
£ ‘000
{a) Rates and annual charges

Owdinary rates

B irsmr i bl

F Erriland

Blusaiass

Liss pRncsnor rrbsleds (mandabory
Rates levied (o ralepayera

Fonssonor role Sub&sios nocinaod
Total ordinary rates

#rmsal charges

Domoestc wisho monspemen sevioos
WWashe managamon] sorvices (nod-domoshg)
Sochon G111 chamgas

Liws porescanns rishalon (marsdabory |
Brnal charges levied

Pansionar subscdes riooyod
Deoirsirstic wasles i g T

Tetal annual changés
TOTAL RATES AND ANNUAL CHARGES

Cownosl hars usod 2006 yonr valuohors prossdisd by Bha MSW Valusor Ganoral n caloulalng s b

Acocoamting policy for rates and charges

Fintes nnd annainl changos ane mcognissd o ovenue whan s Council abdmirs onnlngl o The assols Commgineindg

ESE PECEHS

Pansudnes Mebobis reliha 00 reduchions in fabis and carlain andudl Changes Ior ehgb DRRSosiS’ DEBcE oF rrsdancs

i i local pensiinmeed courcl Brod Bhal e nol suledeed by s MEW Govesnmsonl

Fonsaner raba sutvabes oo rocoived iden Bho MSYY owernmanl 1o proveds & contriibon iowars B ponsiorss

roba s

Gonkiol oot aessets aoquired roims rles and annual chamos s oblnmad al e corenoncemant of P ralng Yo s
it &5 6 anidcaahile el hekad B The ralanlg DIoDary OF, WiNena sl Upon el of tha rales

Fati ]

13 207
e

7 .BaET
[RR )
40 827

b=
41 40

13 044
7 .B0h

{45
15 e

244
16,344

&7 652

Arrmad Bl X000 XIS

Faril ]

12,242
159

¥ 50
[RRaEET
64

GG
A0 FH

13,408
2 554
14
(44T}
15,044

245

15 &0
58 08T
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Part Stepheans Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Tost By yonr oradesd 4 Jure: S99

Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

§ 00D 20189
(b} User charges and fees

Specific user charges

Wiasin mana T il SOreSars (CdHh -0 e ) i G0T

Total specific user charges 1 GOT

Citheer wiser chaipes and fees
[i} Fees and changes - statubtory and regulatory functions (per = 628)

Prredrlin wiorks — sichon 6T 137
Sacton 107 cartilicobes (EPLA, Act) 104
Bechon GES codcalos 1hE
Bislchirg inspachon Toes 2G
Huslifirsg sodvicis 11065
Shop rrpacton leas 205
Subdiivrssan Mo £40
Total fees and charges — slatutoryiregulatary 2 487
(i) Fess and charpes = other [incl, general user charges [per 5.608))

furamal conlrol L F;
Gt e iigs 165
Child corm 1 8ok

Fom png pmsrpancy soevicas sy (FESL § implamardabcn

Holsdayy pares (R ]
L it ol Ll
Librnry 105
Mowcaslie afpon 17 04%
Pl e mssiars 851
Poarkis. gardens pnd olhar communiy sonaons

RS (farmerty RTA) changes (stale icads nol conbiollad by Council) T 187
Soranal e msnacimni Tk =1:
Wasle deposl Rpping Tods Ly
LIlFsir | ]
Total fees and charges — other &0 B
TOTAL USER CHARGES AND FEES 44 OB

Accounting palicy 1or uaer changes and Tees

L i, e dnies mie ioe o] o enm wiiesn | R saincn P Boes (i k

2018

N
1474

167
218
174
309
i i
176
27T
364

45
167
14
11.00%
B
118

15 135
i

1

i GET
97
Fi]
1532
35 914

39,752
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Fort Stephens Council
Motes to the Financial Statements
loe Bhay yoar onded 30 June K19
Maote 3. Income from continuing operations (contineed)
§ 000 2018
iz} Interest and investment revenue (including losses)
Interest on financial assets measured atl amortised cosl
wordlum rales ang annieal chaegs (el spoesml purposd rnbes s G659
LArsh and inserstimsnnis 52 Py
Mrwcai b asrfl 250
TOTAL INTEREST AND INVESTMENT REVENUE 1,451
InbareRt fevenie § atlfibutable o
Lrnresiriciad invesimentaTinancial asseis
Diyorcian mibos arnd @nreinl chamgors § genosnad fumnd ) 1659
Leswirnl Coancil cash sned emsisimonis 715
Reatricted invesbmeanls/funds = sxbsErmal
Dasgiliogitsnh b Contrbiidans
Caochinn T 11 e
P ey ¥at i)
Total interest and invesbment revemus 1 451
Accountng palicy for interest and investment revenise
Irsfgst el enocamiy & recogned] iy e eflecines nlores] cale al o el el mleres! e o
Dendamnds aie neCodresmd a5 incomsd i peohl of ks pnliss B dendard iy ropeesents 6 cOory |

Eles] o Ahad raEt T

Armad Bl 000 ke XIS

2018

o il o I
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Port Stephens Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)
$'000 Motes 2019

(d) Other revenues

Rental income — investment property 10 2,989
Rental income — other council properties 724
Ex gratia rates 57
Fines — parking 222
Fines — other 372
Legal fees recovery — rates and charges (extra charges) 68
Legal fees recovery — other 6
Commissions and agency fees 199
Insurance claims recoveries 677
Emergency relief -
Events and promotions 91
Long service leave receipts 73
Private works 356
Other 762
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 6,596

2018

2,718
400
60
224
249
111
61
230
158
699
107
134
307
658

6,206

Accounting policy for other revenue

Council recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Council and specific criteria have been met for each of the Council's activities as described
below. Council bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of

fransaction and the specifics of each arrangement

Parking fees and fines are recognised as revenue when the service has been provieded, or when the penalty has

been applied, whichever occurs first.

Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease lerm

Miscellaneous sales are recognised when physical possession has transferred to the customer which is deemed to

be the point of transfer of risks and rewards.

Other income is recorded when the payment is due, the value of the payment is notified, or the payment is received,

whichever occurs first.
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Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Bor thas yiss andod 30 Jonoe 2014

Mote 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

Opesraing  Operating
£ ‘000 Fargl 2018

(&) Grants

General plarpose [entisd]
Curreni year allocation

Finmncinl arism s 3372 1278
Payment in advance - fulure year allecation

Financinl grasrs s 3 303 L33
Total general purposs fi 565 & A52
Specific purpose

Eushiiro and qimaprgency Semens 1,432 1,110
Child cang Pt | 173
Emgiianirsindal (oo slis 407 549

Flood plavm maansgomani

Morfaon and cullurnl 15

L&y 111 208
LIRS sty ol LT
Ricraalan fnd culliss s

SiprmeTiood demsge

Stiool Bofling T4 ]
Trarapor (noads 1o floovery) 4724 1,108
I FafmdGr 1
Fismily disy Care 5 129
Horicullusl hordago rost ]
Bawcas e firpor
Yooulh e lopETn 04 (|
 Hhis 4 i
o coeirdl 178 143
Tatal specilic purpase 2 Bs5 3851
Total granis g 520 10,303
Grant revenies & ablributabile 1o
Commormwaallh Tunding T i1 T Bl
Stale g 2 182 3T
Dithsnr Tumading Fal a7
.53 10 303
FHE o panl i dae b

Capital
2019

i ]

4 BE4
4 564

I
4 A3

& Bhd

Capital

Faril

3,146

455
2. 713

Arrmad Bl X0 b XIS
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Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the yeor andod 30 June 2018

Mote 3. Income from continuing operations (continued)

Opsrating  Operaling Capital Capital
£ ‘000 i g [ 2018 2019 i |4
{1} Contributions

Developer contributicn:

(874 & 87.11 - EF&A Act, 964 of the LGA):

Cash contributions

5 111 = cominbuliors 1owneds amsenilis sansces 358 55 5108 4315
& 112 = hinod dosolopmon! cormaond krviers A406 JICH}
Hiuilage 5ra 512 - 21

Taotal developes conlributions — cash wre B 5 554 4 s

Total developer conbributions i T BEA 5504 4 038

CHher conributicns

Cash contributions

Bishivt sanacas 78 - LU X

Pt mrud guiior 13

Rocsaahon amd culise ¥ 5 T i

FMS coninbubons (rogional ronds, tiock grant| 1,008 1077

CHhas 3

I O e el | Sna® A0 resm 32 38

Environmnntal projocts Bl 145

Farkory i

Rk inanagoment 205 232

Tatal ather contributions - cash 1,431 1450 4did 4K
Mon-cash contributions

Bushfire assals - - 1,647 -

Diadicabors < subdnmons (ofhoe Fuan by 57 11) H fHE ALl

Tatal ather contribulions = nan-cash = - 10, 430 6 643

Tatal athar contribulicns 1421 1.4%0 10 B0 ¥y

Tetal contnbutions. 2358 238 16,448 11,579
TOTAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS. 11.918 12621 21,312 15,125

Acocouwnting policy for grants and conbributions

Conliod gver gronts and contniiubons s oy olelsinsd upon thesr rocHpt (o acquttal) and & salsod ol tha T

wilisn of By gerardod of cominbednd assed nf §hoe daelo of tTranslos

WG GRARES. of CONEEHBORS FRCOGRRG B Pirddliais duilimg 1hi Rreshoss] wihl wWind ol oF condilion el thy
iy expnecied 1 o pariculnn mannes, of iSod o 8 particiHar penod, and Bhoss condilions wiese un-drechanged ol

ropnileg dolo, he unerssd grand of oohlrubon & declisod sbows

LCounol hays obbgnbors o provide Bscliles Inom coninbubon mrsoruos kved' on doveopers unde B provescns of

sochors P4, F 11 and T 17 af ha Emsrammantsd Fiannng and Assessmen Ao TR

Whills Cooncd genornlly incorpoenbes these amounts s pal ol o Dareslopmsent Consords Dedee siach dovsilopsor
e LS e ol Fecuahiitesd &L INCDITES upon feceepd by Conincll dus fothes possibikey thal indnachial developent

consenis. may nof b schid whon by he apphcant and. acooidmgly, would nol be payvable bo Council
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Armadl B 00 e X3

Port Stephens Council

Motes ta the Financial Statements

for tha yaar dnded 30 Juns 201G

Mote 3. Income fram continuing cperations (sentnued)

ohop nirtedsors may ooy be oxpondad for the p = Bow which Thin confrisulions ween Lo
T APy THHHL R HE I DO B0 AN prEcil ersiabirshod in wiork SChamdu
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Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Bor ths yoas ondoed 30 Jonoe 2014

Mote 3. Income from continuing operalions (continusd)
§ "000
{a) Unspent granis and contributions

Ceriain gramts and contributions are cbtained by Council on condition
that they be spent in & apacified manner

yperating grants

i mpeendesd @1 (i close of e provious. feooriing izt el

digdd apadahng grants. oined ol B feFovresh of goods anid Ssnnoos o b
Burluray peisrioa

Leaas: cpornlng grants recogrsssad oo peosnours ropsorrg poeod now speent

Ungxpended and hald as reatricied aassts (operating granta)

Capilal gramts

Wl cpimnddioer] @1 1Ps Closs Of B roviedus fegdirTmg o

Auddd: capinl grants recoivesd Bor Bho prowisaon of goods and seraoos in e fulure
oo

Less; capdal granls rocognsod in 0 [IEious e ponod now Spant

Unexpended and hebd as reatricted assets (capital grants)

Caniributicng

LUinnipondest] & Tho closs ol e provious feporling poshod

Add: coninbabons recognssd n tha ourrerd pericsd Bl nol yol spssnl
Lt covindmilems iy CHRFS] B 0 Erlieecs ROEDr Paleid PRl SEHINT

Uneapended and heold as restricted assets (conbibutians)

L

[Eii ]

ar

1AL}

[ 3}

{e]]

15 487

& 368

i\ 853

Faril ]

[
135

L

15 487
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Part Stephans Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
fox Bhay ypoar orded 30 Juree 2099

Mote 4. Expenses from continuing operations
§ 000 2018 2018

(@) Employee benefits and on-costs

Salanes and wagos A+ 13T 28§50
Salaties and wages — Mewcailis ainpodt parinesbg 3 456 2. T
Trdrwn| fevd olhesd & RoRsd ncas 7 505 T 407
b rrapbivgosn laso ot bmmeends (ELE } H ik {2230
S annualon 4 135 3T
WO RS CODaDieS el ivSrainc = ¥ 6y
F nimgyn Brarsalil Bax (FET) a0 ]
Trmhing cosls (ol Ihan Salanes Bl Wagpss ) 574 aoT
ProdisCi o ChatiiEng FLET 113
Caonbonencmrs 16X 131
Campoenia unidorm A ]

Occupnbonnl kaaith ord sodoby ] az
Ciirsar 30 ¥
Total employes costs S 406 & 830
Lot coplnbmad corads EREF] (A, 18]
TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS EXPENSED 48,204 43,104

Aceaunting poliey for smployes benafilts and on-coata
Emgpioyoen Bonoéit oponsos se meccaded whon tho senaco has Boon pronacied by B employoo
Robremave bovanddl ohbdgabona

Al pmplosgars of B Council ann anbilled o benofls on redeoment. deasbadlilty or doalh Counol condnbobes lo vanous
dedmbd Danedl plans. ard dedrd corinbofen plbrrs Oon bahall of 45 ampltysas

Separanrualon pland

Conlrtations o dofined coninbubion plens am ecognised &8 80 oxpenss o3 they Bsoome payable. Propasd
contiibubons ofe eoogneod G5 an a5l o tho calen] Bhal o cash mebund or @ fredoeckhon s Thé holure paymens =
mmlabbo

Council parbogalos | & delnod benald plan wndor e Locnl Gosemrenand Soporannunbon Schomo, howareon,
gifzsant indommplon & eccoueid Ioe tha plan as a Salmed benmadd 5 0ol oslabde and Sherolore Copnel pecognis Tor
s obbgataons o dotrd Donsbl plans on e sams Dass as 5 obigabors 1o definesd corfnBulsn pians, | & BS &
expstsa whin @ bocomes payabils - rofier o Nole 18 Jod meis sdormabon
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Fort Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Tos By yonr oradesd 4 Juee: S99

Male 4. Expenses from continuing operalions (continued)
§ 00D 20189
ib) Borrowing costs

[t} interesl Béaring Habdity costs

Indirrost on evardralt 4
Indaros] on eans -

Irdiias] — Ml s e Spai] Daaiinershp Fiid
L Ess capdnlned cosds {191}
Tolal interesl baaring Rability coats sxpenisd Tz

(i) Dibthar Berrowdng couls
Fnir walus advceimasnts on recognation of pdvancis and delemed doblors
ISl Eiphcabkn N il as] Foe (a8nd 1Fcairaie ) lGEhs IS L

Total other bosrowsding costs : %
TOTAL BORROWING COSTS EXPENSED 705
Aceaunting policy Tar Berrewing coals

Borierasng Coeds st Tod thp eonsinictan of gy gualilyesg mssol ala capelnleasd dnng Hoee poree] of 1@

i S GEnheeia re] pripasie Th il Tof s st oS oF Sijl LETOF Drichnie) GOridS Biid dxpeasrriand

2018

00

a4

N | Er

a7E
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Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Bor tha i ondoed 30 Janda S07H

Mote 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)
§ 000 i | i ]

{c) Materials and contracts

Flovwe mobaresls and CormumadHas 514 ¥
Wasle colethon and dripossl coniac 12,320 11,500
Dt condracind i consulancy cosls 17 /&3 18 624

fidilors remunorabon 13 137

Legal sxpanass
Ll st 72T 2,178
Ll Py Wikl D {525

Dperating leases

- Cipsnrdlingg banse nenbals minaniim BEse panmeenls 467 Ll

HMhir 1hi] 154

Tabsl rmaberials and contracts a8 130 40 B0

TOTAL MATERIALS AND CONTRACTS 38,120 40 %80

Accounting policy Tor operating leasas

L inisairs. o ywhoch & l_.l_;||||||r A peovitecen of Qe s @nad nomnnds of owriraben gro ol iransheineg B Coumesd oS s

e cladaifind ot opeenbng eases Paymonts mado uncon opetbing eses (nol of any noonines. reooned from the

lossor | e chorgod Yo o moomao slalomend on 8 singhl-bne basis ovor e porod of the s

1. Operating lease payments are atiributable 1o

Efunmgrs. 14 LI
Compulors Fa2 Lk
Eithay 54

AG7 521

7, AuRtor remsuEneration
Diuming Tha v, the following foes wene incurned for servioos prosvaded By iho
mutibor of Council, mmlated prschions snd non-rolnbod audd femms

Buditors of the Council - NSW Auvditor-General

1] Awdit &nd olher aasurance safvices

Aaihil aind reveery of Tnaroial sinlasmaents =¥} i
Ramunsrabicn lof audil and other assurancs sardices -k [}
Tatal Auditer-Ganeral iamunerathan ¥, i

Hon NEW Auditor-General audit Tioms

{1} Audit and other assurance sardices

Bladnal audl sarvicos. PKF Lswles ar A1
Remuneration for awdit and other assurance services AT (o}
Total remuneration of non NSW Auditor-Gemneral audit firms a7 i
Tatal &uditor remuneratian 120 137
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Part Stephans Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Tox Bhay ypoar onded 30 Juree 20499

Mote 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)
§ 000 ] 2018 2018

(d) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of
intangible assets and IPPSE

Bepreciation and amoriisation

Plnel s oiagma| i 333 i &4
LIMeCis onpiigirsiink 455 rr
Furnfluse and fiflings FL I8
L@ empagemaanls. (deprocubaa) s b}
Infrasiruciure
Buikdingrk — Spenci b 4 016 4 307
Dhor sbuciunns 560 317
- Riabds Z 500 F 10
Brigns. L] 12
Foolpolte 250 118
- Slormyedinn O inda el 101
Swamiminag pools 1M 305
Difhaet opaln Spscnrocroabanal augols 754 H4B
- Dhar indrasinuciue e A5 A4
Cther assets:
Haslmgn collparicinsg F 4 4
Library books . ] 137
Gl parks 541 533
Moracailhn derjhol R i A2
= thyigar 186G
Infang ik sl ! g AN
Tobsl deprooiabon and smorsabon costs 14 BHY 14 537
Impakrmeent ! revaluation decrement
Land - 573
Inveltanlcany - B ipal Eslado 1104
Tolal impasesant | reyvisiaahon decieman| cosds [ (renvarsals ) charpsd
I Incoimar Stadomand 3174 ¥ ]
TOTAL DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT / REVALUATION DECREMENT 17 857 15,085

Accounbng policy for depreciation, amortisation and impakrment expenses of intangibles and IPPRE
Cepreciation and amaorisation

[oprocanton pnd amcelsabon e caculnbed use tha shnghl bne mothod 1o adiocabs Thor cosl, mot of Fae roscusl
Vi, 040 T aebireilod issadul s Ulsalall Weos i sclinded in Nobs B e IPPE assals and BNebs 11 ke inlangilin
Assats

Daphoaston i capialrad wheds in-house assels Fave contiibubed o hew assols

Impabrmeent of nenJdinancial assets

Lol fssds sl all Taer vl [Pl A ol hekd prrnanty bof Thes alebly 1o gorssiato fol cash fiow, and Bhal am
dassmad 8o bo spocialksed, ans o lonmger isguined 0 bo eshod lor impasTresnt undor AASEE 130 This o bocouss e
Assels arn assetsad on an arewinl basis 1o ensura hal The caemysesg amsgund 5 nol madenally dilorent broen Ter valon
ared Teie om0y aeaarnond Kss woukd Do caplunsd unng s assossmin
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Aeras agt 2570 b 2019
Port Stephens Council
MNotes to the Financial Statements
Bor the yom andod 30 Joana 20714
Hote 4, Expenses from continuing operations (continued)
palts, [Pl By B indedebe usolul Ble oF aie nol vl avadais fi rse afe el aniaaly o i il

s8I Dhay foshl B
Wil ansonis Of Changes i Crcumeslisnons i

il o i oo o thas mimssdind By atech

il et ofF chiafges n ol curlane i Ll S
rin above oro feshed for Emipanrmen| W
aolinl Py o] e e OO A TRIT
I Etmids, its mEwveialilg aimaunl. Thi ol

WAk i Uil

ril maed B

Bhir CaTying

CAETHW O grigiralihn ol & B Peiban Of 60 o5%01's teir vidlieh s

gl B Sl nad

For B puipiodasd of asiadseng impadmenl, Gssals amd gicohod ol The lowes] veals 1of wich B die Sopaialoly
bl cosh milows Bhal s ey indopendond of B cosh nloes Pom ol assols of groups ol pesels
e unidsh Non-fancaal assobs. thal sulfessd nn mparmean| are revewed for possibs oversal of thoe

WPDaNTERI & Gl Neoriing Qo

IenipewiTrian] ossas Jof rewaliad gsedt fia ||H-|I!:,' Cifesd el Mhe amoiin] in e randd iidhon Hxirs o this class of
e wll ondy [ exooss jo B recogresed o e incomo Ststomssni
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Port Stephens Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)
$'000 2019

(e) Other expenses

Bad and doubtful debts 16
Bank charges 265
Contributions/levies to other levels of government
— Lands department levy (holiday parks) 403
NSW rural fire service levy 507
— Waste levy 1,742
Councillor expenses — mayoral fee 61
Councillor expenses — councillors’ fees 180
Councillors' expenses (incl. mayor) — other (excluding fees above) 126
Donations, contributions and assistance to other organisations (Section 356) 932
Election expenses -
Electricity and heating 1,686
Insurance 1,598
Memberships 131
Newcastle airport 7,925
Street lighting 1,083
Telephone and communications 264
Other 308
Total other expenses 17,317
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 17,317

Accounting policy for other expenses

Other expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the Council receives the goods or services

2018

263

514
476
1,758
61

173
109
951
431
1,616
1,540
112
7,100
1,182
291
321
16,901
16,901
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drral Fapmir] 2500 b S0
Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Bor tha i ondoed 30 Janda S07H

Mote 5. Gains or losse5 from the disposal, replacement and de-recognition of assets

§ 000 g Faril ]

Property (excl. investment property )

FProceads from dsposal = propadty 452 MK}
Lirss ey HimDun] of pro@oiy assets el wrdion off (B3} FAL
Het gaindloss) on disposal {351%) L]
Plant and eguipment

Procopds from dispoeal = plant and squipmond e ] [IET ]
LSS caimying amaun] of plan! s oglapemel assols sokdwinitedn ol {53G6) i1 980}
Het gaindloss) on disposal {537} (1 20
Newcastle airport partnership

Proooaeds rom dspesal - mfrastruciure 55

Largs emivyeril Bivsoum] of silrastrjeiuie asseds sold witlon off {553} (22
Mot gaindloss) on disposal - (22}
Real estate assets held for sale

Prostoads from disposal - foal astale assols 2 355 5,450
Lirss emdirvng aissdim] of raal oshbile pssabs Lok]semmlan aff LI (3 4175
Het gaindloss) on disposal 1,268 2 08
Investments

Piotonds from drsposal nedemplons/matuibog = invesimonis 17 950 10 K
Less: camying amound of nvasiments soldredeemed matuned {32 B50) {0 B00)
Hel gaintboss) on dispoaal

MET GAINJLOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS 274 818

Accounting pelicy for dispotal of anaste

Crirrs And ot O Ceiposiatd. et dolormanas by comparng) procesds will SRryrg oo T @i ok g
Eho Ircoema Snlomand Tho gan or ks on sole of an sl s dolsrmmenosd when conlrol of Bhoe seesef his imevocably
purasai] [0 thas Biryor e thed Assol o5 o oo resad
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Part Stepheans Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Tox Bhay ypoar orded 30 Juree 2099

Nate 6(a). Cash and cash equivalent assels
§ ‘000 2018 2018

Cash and cash equivalents

L-ash an hard =nd &l Bank 12 448 Rl
Cash aguwnlon] asseds

Deposis ol call 1500
Total cash and cash eguivalents 17 G4l TRk ]

Accountng policy for cash snd cash equivalents

Féar Shalodrsint of Cash Flo peossla o puiposas, canh fd ciih equnailoinls ichide caih oh hand | dehosts Fuk]
ol call et Firssncisl insiibabons | otha shorl-taom, hapily bguid imegstmssnts sty ongina matuntars of thioo monihs o
s thesd ane andily Convoerliblo o known amownis of cesh nnd whach ane subyect B0 on mesgndcant sk of chamngas
in vl andd Bank oeonciafls Bank ovordrafls ame shosm walinm Boirpsandgs o curmenl Sablvlers on thip S1ndemienl
of il Porsetesn

Molte 6{b). Investmenis

ih L] 209 2018 2018
§ 000 Current  Mon-curnest Cumeni  Mon-cumeni
Investmenis
i Fnancinl aesobs 81 Mo vl iough profl and oes’
B, Finasncanl @rs50is of amorieed cost © hedd o 3o, 06 1,882 40 2040 1.033
mastunly’ [AI8)
Tatal Investments 35,067 1,222 40,208 1,033
TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND INVESTMENTS 48,015 1,222 50,037 1,033
Fimancisl asaets ol smortised cost /! held oo matwnty [2048)
L tarm deposils 5 0ET 1,232 A0 205 1.033
Total 35 06T 1372 40 #0 1033

Accounting policy for Investmants

Accounting policy under AASE 9 - applicable from 1 July 2018
Fenaincial insfrumenls. ans fecognsoed indsaly on he dalo Thal Bhe Councl beoomes. parly o the confreciual picirsions
of the nsirumsni

Oy bl srcosgnition, all Tnancind instrarents s msensuned of e vakon plos iransachon costs (oxcopl lor msirumsnis
maaasired @ Tnir valksn (reouagh prost oF loss whorn Inrsecton cosls Beg cpanGoa ag incumod )

Financisl ansets
Al pecognsed Tinancial a55els org subsoguoni®y massuined o thise enliedy ol adhor prsrbssd cosh o e wlso

o] of hi classhoalon of the Bnancial ossols

Claasification

Do inalal recagretion, Conned classifis ds Thancinl Bssels iils Tha iolikning caligaiins — Wioss modsuted bl
v e Cosd
=l vl ieough peolil and loss (FYTPL)
v il walko Iheoiagh olhir Compie e iNCome - squity nunoment {FYOCE-oquity)

Fenancial aszols pfe nol ociassbed subseguoent 1o e inidiol eoogniion
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L R R

Port Stephens Council

Maotes to the Financial Statements
for the yoar andod 30 June 2015

Mote B(b). Investments (cominued)

Amortned conl
Assnds Fiaculsd ol amorlsad cost ane Tmancial assods whodn
¢ v Dursineess model i o hold assets 1o coflect confrechunl cosh Mows, and
+ el coefiir@ctuad BOIFS Gl Mesi 0F S aCifind Calirs 00 Carsh Mows It ano solsly payTranis of phncipad and inberost
oy [Pl PrersCaped demioon| Goitsiniciesg

Cowundd's brmncial aseels meitunid af amonded oo compird rads and ofthor ecesvablesy and cash and Gish
equivnilonts. m tha SEsloement of Feancinl Posibon

Lub=aaquaent bo infial recogniion, Bhese sasets ans camisd ol amofsesd ool using e flecive inleresl rale mahod
IS, penATScH Tod Impsasrs

Inloras] NGOG, INpaETEN] B QIS OF K5S on Op-mcognillcn #ro rcognssd in proll of loss

Fair yalus thrgwgh ather comprehentive Incoms = egquily insiruments

Coumcd Rk 0 Peimibald O SIralages: invasiments in anlibes ovsd which they o0 ol han Significanl iINAussncs rol
cowiirgl Coural s mads & erevotabio slochon 1o clessly s aquity mesimonts s Tair valus IPecagh ks
Eranpia bl it @ iy &l nol Bikd M PG pusposss

Thaess ivvesimonis ans caitusd al lar vales wiBh changes in laif value eoogressd m olhar compdehinsng wcoms
{financal pssol essna) On disposal any balincs in e linsncal assol resarm s nrsdemed 0 soosmulobed swpios
and & nol schessiiod Bo probl o loss

O ik Qiins A IS axchiding drsends nee Focognned i Ol Corginhorsem Boiims Slibsmom

Financial assets through profit or loss
Al hinasncesl sy el clisculiod o5 mbasured o smonmsed cosl or b wabu Feoogh athin’ comprishrres ecoemas
% darsonbesd aborvn meo manseed ol lar valus Bircugh prold or loss

Blol gains o ksses nciadng sy inleeest oo dendersd incoms, are recogrised n profil o oss

Councl's inoncial sssels mosseied of T valuo Pecugh grodd or lss comginsg awosimans o FRMs and BODs n
iy Stalorrnt ol Fesancial Posion

Acceunling pedicy wndef ARSE 139 - applicable for 2018 comparatives anly

Clasnification

Coumid classied A5 inanodl assets o N8 folliywang cabigornss . hndhiisal Baoals 8l T value hisudgh peoll o koss,
lodns and iecohmbkes, hold-loomafunly invesimonts, and avelabls-fodsals Gnancial asscls Tha classiboabon
doponds on Tha purpcse Tor which Tha meestments oo pogueed Managoemond defermines tho clanss@fcobon of s
inveaestrren s ol nfel recognibion and , i he cirso of assols clivssded o hobd-o-matunty_ no-esalsnies this desgnalion
&l pach ibpoieng dalo

{a] Financial assats ai fakr value through profi o loss

Financial gssats & fnr valua theough prolil of loss ang Tinancial assets. hed for ineding. A fnancial assel 5 chassiled
i i cllogany il atgquiied prncpaly o B puiipdso of Loelsng o e shoi-befm Astals in el caldgody aeo Rkl &t
Banr wrnhusd il changes n valis Bsloon Peowgh prolt o oS o osch fepoing peshod

(o) Held to maburity investmenbs

Holdle-makuiily invistmonts aro non-docsedne finenoad assols with fued of delorminable paymoents and food
il ol Council's manngomaend has tho posbeo inlonbon and sty o hokd o maheiy Aesipls i Hhes calegory
me maasured ot amostsoed cosk

{e] Loans snd receivables

Lnans and recataliles amm non-derrvaliva financsad assals wilh foond oF detammnablo paymanls. [l ane nol quoled
in i scie markol They aee nciuded in cuend essels, excapl Tor Bwose wilh msluriss groster Bun 12 monihs
aflar thi sepoibng dele whech &b casslhed & non-currenl assels. Loans and recovaldes are inchided n ol
Pcorynbies (Moto B} and recsvables (Mole 7)o e Salement of Fnancial Posion Recesables aro meongnssd

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

285




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 2  ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 2.

Part Stephans Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
foe Bhar your onded 30 June A9

Nate B(b). Investiments (continued)

milialy of fas vakie ars] subsoeguantly mesasuied ol amonsed ool useg Thd elochnvg Erleros] melhod, BeS peosnsen
I EmipaETiashl Focohvabios &he gonedally diss lof solllamanl willish 30 daiys

Cash Mows selabng (o shol- oo seosebiles ame nol dicsantsd f Tha offed of dscousrhing s mmalons

[d] Awvailable for sabs financisl ssssby

Arpslnbib-1or -S4k hnancial Fasels o o non-dorvalves Bal ahe elfd daseagnatod o Ihed calogory oF il classiliod
in By of 1hay oEhor cAtopones Inasimants ann cesgnalod as availabe-for-calo f thoy do ned haen Mixed
frsalustilins mnd foosd o detorminable paymants and managemenl inbends 1o hold them bor the medium o Gng

. Asssts i i calegory ore hokd al i vahie will changes @ far valos taken 16 olhlr Sompishsns s
INCom

Recagnition and de-recognition

Foaogular pancharses and sales ol hnsncis nssels an ecognised on edo-dabe: tha dalo on which Couwnol commils
lis grurehises of sell tha gssel Invesimenls e rshally recogneed &l M valie phs ansachon costs fod all inancial
Assals nol canmod & fair valso Throogh proll of e Finanosd sy carned al fas value [Faoudh plofl of loss
nrg rebally mocognesd @ fer walvs snd bereacion oosts are anporessd 5 e moomss séalormonl ivesimonts oo
derocognisad whion thir righls: [0 imcesn Cash Nows Fom the Snanoinl rssols e axpined or hivve been Transionosd
ard Cosinel hins Iennvfedrod scrsinnbally all e fsis and rownids of ownarshp

Wbl SieCaifibirs. CAassihond 65 mynilahlo-Tor-sade g sokl| Thi accirailnlod Ied vl adpistmnls iecognndd & egialy
i inchuda in 1 Incomg Sialement &% gaing o lossas Trom nvisimonl Saiuiitos.

Impabrmeent of financial asssts

Corincil aisssses ol th and of sach ropsiling piod wheled thesie s obsstine endenos Bal a Anancsl assel of
proug ol fnaneinl assols & mparsd A fmanaal sscol or @ group of Seancinl scals s enparnd and Emparmani
Iossas ang mcyrresd ooy i 0 5 oliecineg avidendd of mmpnimment 85 0 resull of o of mose eesnls Il occurmesd
il e el rocogeilon of the assol (& ‘loss avent ) and Bl loss evenl (ofF eeinis) has an mpact on e oslmabod
Tubuns cash Nowes of T hnasncesl el of group of finsnosl st Thal can bo rokably estmaled

Impainmeent of avadable for sale investments
Ins thir s of oy weEstmonls ciysifiod ns svslabio.forsaio, & sgndican of prolorgod docling in thi inic valon
of Bhir socuaty helow 15 ool B consdernd an incdcalor Bl Bw assobs e e
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Arrmad Bl X0 b XIS

Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Bor tha i ondoed 30 Janda S07H

Note &(c). Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — delails

2018 2019 ikl Fari ]

Tetal cash, casb agunaloms ard ivaimimants &0 045 i F3% SO 0T 1053
altributable 1o
E sfomad rosdnclions AR rio 1.0 Pl k) 1,033
Enlorral ol boans AU A a4 Kl
Linemshnc]ndd k

g 0S 1 337 S0 0ar 1,033
5 "000 Fara ] ot
Dwtails of restnctions
External restrichons = included in liabilities
Draposits, redanbcns gand Bonds )] 18
External reatrictions - included in liabilitiss B Bif
External reatrictions — ather
ikt Coairifafsons — Qasnodnl 16 A5 15 458
S PrIEHSD U ppaendn] GiEnls AN Pyl
Domishe Wikshi M nagemanl u BE0 @483
Caspnthireg maeas crivwm bands [FL1 a5R
Lrown Flidoy porks 3,055 1 (25
External reairictiona = otlser PRIl N 5 BaA
Totsl extermnal restrictions a1l K] FaMLi]
Eniemal resbrictions
st oAbl Asn o 407
Elaclion iasarsa 200 100
F edoral assslanos grand n sdvamnos Ll A.453
F laassi 71 1 05
Mowcas B nimpeor] pirinersieg 14 4 15 047
CHhod wnala SEryEDS sy il 212
P o minhsis 160 407
Lochon 3550 oomimithses. 28 BN
Syl aampliE orspity fewl wenlern iesaiva )
Wt wpaniciar] biemn Pinads 2 D}
W funds 11 ]
Commuiily Losns 54
Total intemnal restrictions A0 245 Pl
TOTAL RESTRICTIONS 50 ¥AT 51 (&0
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Part Stephans Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Tosr By yoar oradesd 4 Jure: S99

Mote 7. Receivables

Fog k] 2018 2018

§ 000 Cusrrent Mon-curent Cusrrent
Puirpose
Rabirs @] asnigal chisdoes 2 G0 P ]
Indnrast and exirn charges 28 ralcl
Lisar chasges aril heas (50105 50T
Kb cioflirend s dhirbibods it or ] 1 03%
Cantribubons fo works T 4%
ACCTUSd MY arilinsg

infeiesd on myesimoenis AT i ).

ettt LR BCCTLAS 1 643 & 280
Gosminment grants and subssaies 1 17
Wil GST ipcanibis 65 $05
Marwerns e aapnd paibnoarship 1918 P E34
LHwar dodlors ghinl
Tiotad H 514 13 (e
Less: proviskon of impainment
Olifser distiics (53
Total provision for impairment -
fecaivables - 51 -
TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES B.a14 186 9,066
Externally resiricied receivables
Dosnaatic wasls managemsn Ahe T
Toial external restriclions 6o TS
Intermally restricied recaivaliles
Cormenunity Lonns FH0 40
Rarcmmynbkes - Moo fonpsel 1 818 1 854
P trarship
Caomamad cinl paogir s i L - 31
Admmnesimbon boldng rosenns Al 11 a]
SuAlnallg anerly and wald fodsie 125
CHrsiir Smsin Saracik (e Gl ]
Intermally restricied receivables 8378 - i P46
Unrestricted receivables 1.87% 18 1817
TOTAL MET RECERABLES 914 188 [ 088
§ "Olxh 2018

Movement in provision for impairment of recelivables

Baasric &l B Bigeriing of s yood (cabsulabod w pccordancs wih AASE &}

13

N PIOWVROT S MCognsnd during ha v 5
amsouirds plroacy prowdied for and walton off Bhis yoos i

— FiTeiirds prosreed far Dl ieooiiedag (diinsg 1M el -

2018
Msan-ciament

THEG
L]

LLid}

(L]
180

180
100

2018

l':-?

L]
(4]
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Araasl Eapai 2300 b XIS
Port Stephens Council
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the yoar anded 30 Jane 2016
Mote 7. Receivables jcominued)
§ ‘000 it L] 18
Balance at the end of the period 5 &

Accounting policy for recalvables

Recognition and measurement
Focehymblies ar mdcusdod o curmsnl sesals, oxcopt Fod e vl mulerlses goestor Pan |3 manihs alte the reporhing
daly which &ro classifiod @5 non-ourren] assols

Focevables ano recogesed mitially ol 1nir valuo and subsoguonBy massumd of amoftsed cosl usng he offectys
inBerrrsl mabhod| keSS, peortsion for impanmanl Recesmbles ano gonnraly doo or sollermond within 30 days

Cash fiows rolaling b sho-tomn reconvablins aen pol Gscourtod if Pa eBoect of decounbing &5 immalstial
i rrnani

Actountling paldicy wider AASHE 9 applicable fram 1 July 2018
eyl Of BRancinl ASsels Maasuned ol Amorised s iS5 eognised on amn axpecad ciedi kiss (ECL) hasis

WWhin delermining whafhar the cradil sk ol o hnshcis] gssed has moeased significantly Sncs msbal recogninon, snd
when estersting ECL ihe Council conskdors noasondable sl supperiabls miormaton Pl s rolovant ar aveslabis
without ndue cost or alforl. This nciesdos  both quanidaling and qualabye Slomabon and snahyss basod on
Counol's histoncal capanonos and mfommod oo nssesemon], ard nclading femmnd-iooiong nfoemastcn

Wynan corssdpnng U EGL for rmes deddors, Coundd [nkes mbo scccsan] thad unpansd robss represont & charg afonst
Eha ralssbino proporty thal will B rmeoovemd whan tha propory s nesd sald. For non-rles doblons, Counol e tha
presamphon Tl an assed wihich s mom than 30 doys. parst dus Nas seen [ SENiCIN noeasa in credd nsk

Thap Comincil wisdes Thie presantatan el o Brancial assal s 6 dedaull when
£ g oEhor REly 5 unbkkoly 10 e s el oblgabions fo B Courscl in Bull selhcul rococise Dy e Council 1o
ichcers sach a5 roalseng socurfly (il sy s helkd) o
v I Tinasscud Siasts (o mon-stes debiors) ae mode san B0 doys parsd diss

Cradil losses are moadised as e prosoerd valee ol ke dilference bebwoan e cash Sows doo o the anlity n
acoordance wilh The contract, mnd The cosh lows axpecied io bo recered | Thes s apphed wsing o probabily wosghilod
mpERrnnch

O mitial recogrbon of e wssed, an esbmiale of the sepecied crocdl kssas or e naat 17 monlhs & mcognied
Whare o astel his eapanentad saprfican] inciagse o rk fhen s dabms 0sses ae astmabed and
Fodnaiussi]

T Fedis Esisini rad el inh [ oslimeleon Mechiguess of sigilhcaiil issuimgbons iade dising 1he cisnenl ropoftng
o]

1h|'.'-l'_?|:|'IH'q'_IIl.h'I1I.D‘LMHMIWWWEMHHMIMWIMMMEmmhm
cificulty nnd thare i no realshc prospoct of recovry, o § whisn i debitor has bssn placsd under kgusdnbon of has
@vinend w0 bankngicy procescngs, of whon B recoreabios. s ovil 17 minihs past dus, whichover poours lest
Bois of Bni PRCOREDES Il NRared D wiillen off are Sulyect B anborcesmant pitniby

Whara e Counsl ienegohiles. i e of recohsablas Gud Bom SO Cusiomars, he how sxpsoiod cath Tins
i dracountsd 8l he ongmal efecdne mleces] cobs and oy esuling difsencs 1o e Gairyeg wiies i soognsoed
w prcll oF loks

Accounting policy under AA58 135 - applicable for 2018 comparatives only
For lcans and rocoivablos, the smousl of the oss s moosoied as Bo difforoncn bebason tha assoll s camying amsount
and lha prosenl valoo of oshmadod lutune cosh Bows (eachcdeng fulsro oo lossos thal feren nod bason incunmed)
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Port Stephens Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 7. Receivables (continued)

discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the amount of the loss Is recognised in profit or loss

Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debls that are known to be uncollectable are written
off by reducing the carrying amount directly. An allowance account (provision for impairment of receivables) 1s used
when there is objective evidence that the Council will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
lerms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered
indicators that the receivable is impaired. When a receivable for which an impairment allowance had been recognised
becomes uncollectable in a subsequent period, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses in the Income Statement.

Rates and annual charges outstanding are secured against the property.
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Paort Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Tost By yonr oradesd 4 Jure: S99

Nate 8. Inventories and other assels

i | 2019 2018
§ 000 Current  Nos-curment Cusrent
{a) Inventones
[i} inventories at cost
Roal arsinhs Tod Pl 5010 0 Qo 5 A5
Shovers nred malenods 143 15
Tetal inventaries af cost 5 157 10030 5 B4G
TOTAL INVENTORIES 5,162 10,030 5 845
(b) Cther assais
Progayinants 6110 24 L26
s 1. Fah
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 610 1,774 426

Fienl b k] 2018
§ O Curfedil  Nem-Eurrenl Cuerent
Telal axtermsally radlsicted aaaals
Totsl internally restricisd ssasts 4,010 11, 7THE 5 G5
Total unrestricted assets riad T LaF &
TOTAL INVENTORIES AND OTHER ASSETS &5 Fra 11, &4 [ 3 L
(i) Oriher dincloesures

g 2019 2018
] Currenit  Mos-current Cusrent
[m) Details Tar freal eslale develcpenen
Hassderihnl £ Bha
|t s b AL 0Ty i ] 51D T OTE 5 B5F
Total resl estabe for resale 5019 10, 30 5 653

i o el el O 20N S T PP b

Arrmadl Bl 20T B XIS

2018
Msan-ciament

13102

13102

13102

2018
Mati-Suitant

13110
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o B0
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Port Stephens Council

Maotes to the Financial Statements
for the yoar andod 30 June 2015

Mote 8. Inventonies and other as5ets (continued)

2018 2018 2018 e
£ ‘000 i Cusrent  Maon-curment Curmerd  Mon-ourrent
Represenied by
Aoquisibon coskls L] Qoo ira 12,864
Dhsekormind cosds 4 24E 138 4 BE T3
Total costs 5010 10030 5853 13 1002
Tatal real estlale for renale 500 10030 5653 13 102
M Eavist s
Fal estwio assols sl Bogmeng of B youn 5 853 13, 2 14,118 57
— Pigichasos anid sl cosis 161 102 - | Pl
Fraresteers. ir from | ol ) Nole 9 104
WDV ol sales (oxpensa) [§EsE (3415

— lirghirTriadil widn ki (3 174] -
Frarrsfosr Bobamsnn casrorlmson-curnank L] o
Transhss irs Irom (oul k) Mals 10 [L=rd|

Total real estate for resals 5018 10,030 & 053 13 102

Accounting podicy fof Invenlodes and cther assals
Raw materials and sfofes. work bn progress and finkshed goods

Fem malonals and S1000s, Work i pRogress and hneshoad goeds am siolod @1 B e of cos] and ned roatsabio
il Cosls poo assaynimd 1o indrvdual Sems of irmaen Loy on T Decis ol wosgilod swiagn coals Cosls ol puichasod
merarlory &ne dolosmensd afted deducting rebatos and diecounls. Nel realsable value & Bh eshmatod sellng pocos m
B cechrsany Courkn of borrres bk the estmaled ooss of ommplobon and e eshmssiod ooss neoessary (o mokis
Ehit il

Inwantory hekd Tor distribution

Errvanlody hedd lor disbibotion is hold sl cosl, sdpisiod wheen apphoabdo o sny kes of sarvice podissilinl

Lang hald lor resale/capitalisation of barmawing coats

Lt sk Fow rocide s sAaiond &l e iowes of cord amd nel roaieablo vilue Cost s arss s by Sspacilic Slonbhcalen
mnd includes. iy oot of aopuriion, and devsiopmsnl And bortowing cosis duning dovolopmant. ¥hon dovelopmoni
s corgolnd, borromang costs and othes Folding chanpes o oot & M

Eloiprawing Costs encliachnd in ey cosl of Sand held bor roesnlo ang Thoss cosbs il would have Doen avocind o Thae

arponddnn on [N auisbon and rsslapmant of Mo el fed ol Degn mada. Borrowsng cosis incurmng wisls
et dovolopman s inbarrupsed for aebenhied padiods afe IGcognied &8 axDansas
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i i

Jne 2018

Mates to the Financial Statements
Note S{a). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (contmued)

Port Stephens Council
ar B e ar gnded 10
LU LT S
J
HIae it
rn;:.l- I.I'Iull:r-ucl.l.l-l.ﬂﬁhlll'f.
plart wed ggul e
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v Bagaa 2370 b 301

Port Stephens Council

Maotes to the Financial Statements
for the yoar andod 30 June 2015

MNote S(a). Infrastructure, propery, plant and equipment (contineed)

Acceunting pelicy for infrastnecture, property, plant and equipment

Flfrastnachung, peopsity, plant ond egugemenr] ore holkl & Ter volue Indapendant compiehansieg vislpahons e
prisriormind ol Maas] dreiry B yolid, Fomensd (R Caimyng amount of astols & stsedssd by Councd 8l anch reporhng
dale o confiem Bl i & nol matenally differant hom curenl fer volus

Inorodrsss in B CETYInG Amounts arsing on ovalunbon oo crsdilod (o the ovaluation reserve. To B extent thal
B TGRS0 TRl 5aS & CHerd Db PINVECR G NRCOR]FEsIng poodl oo 1oss rolnhing 30 that aesed class, [ Scioass = st
rcognisEd A5 prohl or ks Docrpases [l (e s piisiours iIncroases of asspls m o sams cass &l hrs) changsd
Eaisl fervaliaboh Fosarsis discly i ddguly 16 P axleed ol i foirssng (ot SinGulabie 1o P olass, & ol
chcroRes arg chagaed bo This Inooms Stibemaent

Saitrsoguint oosls and includesd i e gssel's camying amonl of recognised a5 o sopasia assel, o sppeopoalo,
cily whon d is peobaldo Thal Tubure sconoamss Binedls ossoCinlod wail o boen vl o fo Couned and P cosd of
By i car Do s rohatdy A olPsr fegaes anid msinbonarcs ann changid & s Inccendg Slaleenond dusing
ha Rrsshicasd panced i swhich They 8 sbuired

Whan mkmsiruchse, opeity. planl and egupmen] afe aoiqured by Coundal for nil of eofiendal conskdesabon, The
fwnols ang eihaly rocogresed al Bhoir Exir vl ol soquikion dabs

Land 5 not deprocibed. The peopsty, pland and cquigimes] soquinsd wnddar linenoo s & dopreciobed ovar T
el s unalel Mo o gvor tha shorlor of The assoel's usoful e ard T s lonm if B B no oasorsbie corlanBy
mal B Courcl vall obian cvmarship ol the and of e leess wrm. Depescinbon on olher gssets & calculnled usmng
B cirasghl-Brie eratod 1o aBocabs thadr cosd hol of Bl ressdusd values, ored isr eshinsiod usetul vas a8 follires.

Plant and sgquipmeant Yours  Olher equipment s
CYMicir pagyui gl S 10 Plwpground sqepenont i}
Oifficar hutmalis s 10800 Bonchrs, sonls eie &5
Cermpsilon aquipeman i
Wipkechirs S8  Buildings
Hoavy lantiiosd makeng cougsimesl S5ioB Boildegs 15 fo 05
Gt piian] i sagquigimien B 15
Transportation asseis Stormwater assets
Soanieal] roamls Drping B0t 100
Barsm 80 Cubers 50 o B
= Gl 1580 35 Fliood conbod siruciures B bo W00
. - 100
Lisrannlod moesds 100 Oiher infrastrechure ssssis
Braipo condanta 100 Bulkc garthyeoros it
Bradga ottes &0 ia 100 Sewrening pools 50
Korty, gintos mrd foeoipatng BO  CRhar opn Spain nelmaston asseds 4
Othae infrasineciun n

Thas Essils’ foradual valios and usedil as &0 foviovwed, &l adpisiod § appropeialo, @l sach mperiing dals
Land under rosds

Land ursder rosds s lard undes iosdwanys and rosd fesenaes ncuding knd undor Toolpaihs, nalure $Anps and msdan
slrigs

Councl hars slocied nod 1o rocogness lnnd uncor rosds ecguerod bolcon 1 Joby SHE maccordanco selh AKSH 1051
Linad Linckor iowds
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Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year andod 30 June 2018

Mote S(a). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Lamnd undar ioods abguisd afler 1 July 2008 5 etognsed m accomdantd wilh AASE 118 Propssity, Planl and
& cqujiiieisi|

Crown reseryes
Crom nesersm undor Council's coms and coobiod aro rocogneed & assobs of B Cooncl Whilo cwnsrshep of th
FOSOTVRE mEmams walh the Crown Cowncd mlamns. oparstcnnl conbrol of T eserves nnd & resporebda for B

RTINS LS N ROCOnlind Wil i Spoiis PuifnSas 1o wheth I fesarvirs O did g

Perai eiireinils. ai P dirsdelvies. Bie ko pocondid &S issols sl imaerlondhos Cosls acgriesd By il @il
Fusyeres. ralahng B They et aid o nesadd withon Caouresal s Encodnas olaboeman]

Rural Fire Service assotn
Undar Soction 110 o tha Ruel Fire Senwces Acl 158580 (NSW), “ail finedghling squipmant purchasoed o consinuciod
whodly o Trom monay ko the crodd ol than Fund s o b vesbed m o cournol of Bho srea Tor or on bochall ol wiech th

Rrmlghing oguigeEnen] N Boen gurchnsed oF Consinucisg

T i Fusd Find Sorvics fssets am recogresed a5 as5ets. of e Councd i ese Erancial sAnlemans

Mote 3(b). Externally restricted infrastructure, property, plant and egquipment

Fgd ekl |
draet Arsumulasss el Cosuy  Apsumyinsg Hat
CAITFIRg depn. and EAITyIng carFying dorper. gnd Earfymg
F ] s mparTraent a=aund aaunl irrpasmant arresant
Lnn
Domestc watls mardgemand
Busfanrs 4 333 1,833 Pl k483 1,540 1, 800}
Total DWW 4333 i 133 2 i) 1483 1 S 1 G
TOTAL RESTRICTED |,PP&E 4 332 1853 2 3040 3 AE3 1,580 1,803

Mote 9(c), Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment — current year impairments
§'000 2019 ol ]

{ij Impasrment losses recognised in the Income Statement:

Crighgs o W uriagoe (Fosd Fossing) [5T3)
Total impalrment losses {573}
IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS - GAINS/(LOSSES)in PIL - (573}
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Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Bor Thas Y ondod 30 Aona AT

MNote 10. Investment property
§ ‘000 1 e

(@) Investment property at fair value

Invesiment property on hand 5 550 3 457

Reconciliation of annual movement

Dpening balance 11 467 P i i
Capstalsad sapandiurn - s yonr A0 41
Mol gnind{loss) fnom far valeo adpusimeents LR i i

- Transhars ol ) imrnbales (Noba §) = 2T

CLOSING BALANCE - INVESTMENT PROPERTY 35 550 X1 AGT

{b) Valuaton basis

Thes terias of valushon of mwesimon] peopoites is far valoo, boing the amcembs for which the propesbos. could bo
mochnnged batansn wiling parikrs o anms Eenglh Eansacion, based on curment pricess man actnen markot for semilar
RN i e SEme Rl find Comndin nnd Subjsct [0 semidad |lses

Thes 2018 revaluaiions wirs based on indepandant sssessments made by
Sann Foa who s e amployen of Knight Fronk and is 8 Cohod Practang Valaoer (wathool brebstaon] AP Mo GRS

{c) Repairs and maintenance - Council as lesscr

Conbisciunl obigaion 5l repoiling dale or Tubism eaaers snd maevensnon se 512 875

{d} Leasing arrangements — Council a3 lessor

I b iy ineenl propasbos ano loasod &o bonants undor long-tom operahng loosos
wiith rondéals paynblo mondhly

FElung meEeEmam ase paymronds ecavnbid undod ron-cancgltakg
imvenrsimennl proporiy oporaling loases nof nocognised o Tha linancinl
slalormoenls e estdnda b a5 falows

WWahin 1 poar ZAa57T 1
L obesi fhon 1 yonr bal lnss Bhon 5 yoars 5.2 i
Labst than 5 yaars 618 2832
Total minkmasm lease payments recelvable & 448 HE11

Lonsa lonms vany from 1 io S yoors wilth cpbons fo ronee. Henlsl peymonts aro
dun mondy i sdvancs and 4o ol inchide conlgeeinl redinl aoemtmisnts
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Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Bor ths yoas ondoed 30 Jonoe 2014

Mate 10, Investment property (continued)
£ ‘000 018
(&) Amounis recognised in profit and loas for invesiment property

Rental intomae from invesiment preperty

Kleramigm WS [aymaants 7 B
Direct operaling sxpensst on inveslmenl proparty

Il ponaralod ronksl incomm {Gali)
Hal revenue conlribution fram investment propary 2 30
Fair value movemeant for year y 5o
Total income atfributable fo investment property & §

Accoauniing podicy Tor invesiment propery

Evwirsdmepnl propaety, proncpa By corrpinsadg necshold olfica iskiings, © hokd Tor iong-iomm nonksd geskds

) by Bhir Coignial  Chardyirs i las violios & ieocithia] i M Incorma Stalomonl &8 8 soiiialn 5o

Faril ]

& TEH
[

inid 15 ol

Fi o iisi Thol afn undol GoensSiiuccn Tod fulumg usas i emairs e’ prodsi oS, oo fognichsl &% emerilmse] propasty

Thasa nrie @k camusd o Par viduss urdoss B a8 wilos conesol yol bae et by dolecmmnadd, Vet il =

- [ S

tho proporty will be sooouniod for sl cost undl oither tho foir vahes booomees roliably dolominabls o consiruction

5 okl
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Port Stephens Council

Maotes to the Financial Statements
for the yoar andod 30 June 2015

Note 11. Intangible assets
§ ‘000 1 e

Infangible assets are as follows:

Dhpening valuss at 1 July

Geoas book valus 541 B, 14T
Aacrnimililisg e ko [RAR-ETy R BT
Hel book walue — apening balance & 704 ERalil
Movemants for the year
Himchases FRLL! 133
- Transhes boem fobe & - 262
Amorisabion chalpans { T} L
Clasing waluses af X0 juns
s, Boak v b B ] B =1
Aotumulaled amortisabcn 2 541} {1,837}
TOTAL INTANGIELE ASSETS = HNET BOOH WVALUE 8149 4704

The net book valus of intangible sasels represants;

Soflwan 1,034 BT
Merwcasto Arpor (rghd o opsoralog 1,550 413
Hindrrarsily crodas L 3 20

6 144 4 704

Accouniing podicy Tor intangible asasis
IT developmant and solftwars

Cosls intiited o Grvaloping products of syslems mid cosls incurned @ AeGUINTG SOMwane and Roenses Thal will
conintir bo fulure pisiod fnancial benolits (hrough (ovehes gonsishon and'or cosl sduchon & Gaplaleesd o
=odftavere and vyslems

Coshs capilnlmed inclsdo aodomal dvoct cosls of matenals and sornoo, dimscf penodl, and pagroll rolnbed oosks of
eempioyoas 1ma spand on e project. Amorsabon i celculobed on a stroight e binsis ovor ponods genern iy rnging
B Wi 1o Toed yars 1T dosvshopmon] Coods inchiade cnly thersn cosls deocily afinbainbie o B desslopenaent phasae
and & only MsCoqireiod otk coimpiatian of lochmcal sy, &nd whorn Counol b an inlonbon and nbddy
Bo use Bhiv Brised

Biodwersity credits

Husdremsily criwhis thad nno ofslminasd wilts tha arflordcn (o ol ara ecngrsaad 85 &0 assol Whais thaey huveg & Hinido
sl e ping CRiTeed 81 Corsd s acciamiplnbesd pmceTesalion and impaimant Iosses. AmonSaton s calculabad smng
Bher sl sl -l Pl fo aliccsto B ool of The assels over Ther eslrralod pselul s Bodnaersly crecils thal
Frvr dn ndofrile ol ide e nol smoclmaed sl s assesesd Tor mparmssnl snnesly

‘Whon Biodrvoruby orodis = disposod of, (ho gan of Kss on deposnl = dolormined e The dilfosoncs batesson T
procends and T camying amount of the assel, ard s moognised within e incoma stntemaont
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Port Stephens Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 11. Intangible assets (continued)

Right to Operate
Fit out costs incurred for the international processing area within the terminal required by the Department of Home

Affairs for border security activities required for international flights represents NAP's contractual / legal right to
operate international airport services, and is recognised at cost as an intangible asset.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

300




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 2  ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 2.

Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Bor tha o ondoed 30 Janda H07H

Mote 12. Payables and borrowings

2018 iy |
£ ‘000 Current Hon-ourmenl
Payables
Cxnods and SEnAons KLY
AL @SS

CHbenr @xpp iU oonsnls 7 50E
Bocuriy bonds deposils and istortions 051
Linciaamiod monios 10
L. N sl 1.743
CHilii i1
Total payables 14 345
Income recenad i advance
Faymeenbs onavad i nowvancm
Total income received in advands =
Borrowings
L iets — Scunogd 4 A4 EB14
Loans = Mowcaslo prport &, 250
Taksl Barrawings 4 AG4 15 0G4
TOTAL FAYABLES AND
BORROWINGS 18.809 15,064

L OENS W WA TR e QTR 'I"i_'_.."-'""'l'l ol Coegneil

e’
Current

B0

& 484
B18

q

iy
B&ET

11 17

i AGD

3 450

14,6348

Destiemoren oy ipklly syl ciln FRl sxposures O valle drictiof ey and wecipily cin G s im Hole 70

Feglgded oo in pnoy penoe] SImE

e g
£ ‘000 Current Hon-curmenl

{a] Payables snd BOrrowings relating 1o restrictsd asssts

Externally restricisd assels

Dlomirshc wisho managomesal 1.079F (¥
(Hihas 051

Cirpwn Bilday poek rosorvo T4

Payabdes and Boroersgs relabng o

aiprnaly rosincied assots 7082 TR

infsmadly resiricted asseis

DIrassge Harah

Movecistia pnport ERLT 5450
Paoyables and Boiroaings rolaling o
miarnally rasincied nssobs 4 162 B 250

Total payables and borrowings relating
s resbricted asaels B i B oEl

Total payables and borrowings relating
fo unrestricted assets 11,8885 &,082

2018 ¢
Curreni

1,874
218
LT

FAUTES

Hika
8F3

£ 0BT

5444

9,15

Arrmad B! 00 b XIS

Fgl]
Hon-ourrent

14 121
6,470
Fatle TR

20,30

2018 ¢
Hon-curresnt

1441
it |

147

10, 55

10,854

12,373
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Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Bor tha o ondod 30 Janda H07H

Mote 12. Payables and borrowings (continued)

Fig | g 208 ¢
£ ‘000 Currar Non-cunment Currem
TOTAL PAYABLES AND
BORROWINGS 18,809 15,064 14,635
7 Hedlshed Sp |o ey pere] ST
4 '000 Fiti ]

(b} Cuwrrent payables and bommowings nol anticipated to be settied within
e maxt haalve manihe

Ther folicranng labilisrs, waon thowgh chrssfed ot oument, oo nol expected o ba

sodthod i [P meoxct 17 months

Paymlrs — sacirdy bohds deoosits and felamsns 1<
Total payables and borrowings il

{e] Changes in liabilities arising from Nnancing activiten

a%
=L L LRk ] ]
[T Citfee
Cpeing Hahi A Fier it L]
§ o0 Batance Caeh fiown.  acquiviBons changet  moyemaniy
st — spiurnd 1 581 14 KN} 3
Loans = Mowmnsle aarport {1 250
TOTAL 23831 & 306) - 3 =
a ¥
HRT
LRI Gtha
GpEsing Hon-cagd Yaor waiuw no-cash
£ Ba0 [:ERT [ETUR Lo e e T T ERARQEL SRR
Leniria — Sadcyiisd 15,308 2 M8 - 5
LS ~ B asike Mot & 250
TOTAL 21,558 3 M 5
4000 Fird L
{d} Financing arrangesments
{11 LPrestricted acoess was available at balance date to the following
Hren of credit
Eiank crsardrnf Incilfss | 2,500
Crodit cands/puchase cands S0
Bk B acibbeirs - Mowcarsth Aot 5 00D
Tatal financing arrangemenis T8 000

Draen facilities as at balance dats

afig -
Hon-current

20,308

Fari] ]

17h
ITE

% at

b2 Sk ]
Craiary
fualine
133e
B350
19538

A% 2
R

17.581
B 250
FAL A

Fari]
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Al B 2500 b 01
Port Stephens Council
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the yoar andod 30 June 2015
Mote 12. Payables and borrowings (continued)
§ ‘000 Farl ] e
— Cradit coedsipurchass casds 4 " |
Henk loan faciihos - Nowonso Arpord 5,250
Total draswn financing amangements & 354 4
Undravwn facilities as al balance dals;
- Bank ceeidiafl tachbes 2,500 2,500
- Gl CRA D Chalsn il s ATH, Ak
Bank loan fsofibos - Mowcasbs Arport 1A,
Total undraven financing arrangements I_'I_]'-l-_ﬂ 2

A dditional financing arrangemants information

Braachss amd defsulls
D Bl curTent ol il yoar Thiste veies no Salsalts of b eochess of afy of hi koo

Sacuriby ower koans
Lo e sascunsd) oaer ths gersral retng wooma of Councl

& TR bani peymioiead] Faclily may b drman o @y lame el oy Be iemenaled by e fonk silonl nolice

Accounting podicy for payables and borrowings

Councd moasures all fmancial iabikbos mebindly of Inir valse kes bansachon cosis, subsequently Tenancial lnbdEos
A madsuied ol emorised cost usng (M offecivg rionis nalo mothad

Thea Tinancial labdibes of the Counce cormpresg nedi pacabios, bank aod othor Rans ard finanon lpas kakaliss
Fayablen

Thessss amounts fepiisanl Aabeiles (of goods. Shd Leivices provided 1o Bhe councl picd &0 [ and of Timancal vl
Bhnl &b unpsd. The smowusts dio Eseoied end deo uscaly e walles 30 diys of recogniiscn

Borrowings

Baorovangs oro inihnlly iecognised o) Ter valug, nol of mneschon cosls mcurned . Boenosangs ano subsaquonily
maksred 8 amorsed cosl Any dilfesencs DEhWeEN M ooReds (N of BERSS0n Cosls) ond i redermgilon
Emodl 5 recognised @ e Incoeme Siatemesnl oeod The panod of ihe Bairowends v he aflocinaa-ranesd mieiod
Fiwrs pinsd on s s abistirssnt of loan Isclibos gho meongnisod & armescion osts of tha losn io tha aciond Bl d e
priotsable theat some o @l of e inolidy wall be drassm down In Bis case, o lea s delermed unlil By drasdown ooours
T thae qretind thad [hesns i no eviconcs Thal 8 s probabde Ihal soma ce ol of [he Tacelity sl e dreram down, Th Tee
5 capstalsd o 8 propanymend Tor ity saenicns arsd amoitssod ovon e pardd of Thie Declity 1o whsch i rolales

Bedrovangs aie soredneod Troam the Stalomont of Froncial Posfon whsdh the cblgalc spociled @ B conlrael s
dechaipesd], cancollsd of axpined. Tha dfenenca bobwoen o casrpng amours! of & Tmancal kabalfy (hal B Bboen
endmguishod or ranshsmed {0 another pasity and the consikdecabon paed | including any non-cosh assols ransbomoed
o bl asoamnd, s socognisod i othor incomsd oF Tinareos ool

Borowangs an clrssiod s cumont kabdlios unless Counol hes an uncondilional ngiv o delor safilomen] of The
lnbaliy tor &l least 12 moantis afler (he reporting dole
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Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Bor thas s ondod 30 Janda H07H

Note 13. Provisions

2018 2018 2018 Fasd |
£ ‘000 Cusrent  Maon-curment Curmerd  Mon-ourrent
Frovisions
Employes bernefits
Al Wdnei 4 047 L]

L v & WS 3142
LG Safvitn il T 500 raz i, Toh 531
Flaxi e /| RO ks Fal.r] 255
Sub-todal - aggregate employes benefits 14 81F Taz 13 785 531
Assat remediation restoratian
Ayl romsdabonsestorabon Plubune wors§ 1,355 1,040
Sub-totlal = asset remasdinioniresioration i 355 1 6060
Dher provisions
e fr ] 1825
Sub-tolal - other provislons ailo i #AF5
TOTAL PROVISIONS 17,067 742 17,220 53
{a] Prowiskons relating 1o restricted assels
Extarnally restricted anssta
Dhomirsbe. wansko managesmenl 1 355 1 00
Prowsiees rolaing 1o oxlemally restnclod pssels 1 355 g 1800 =
Entarnally restricted ssseis
Drammsgoe SO 1,825
Prowmsions melaling lo elomaly rosinciod nssels G0 1825
Total provisions relating to restricied asseats 2 P55 X A5
Total provisions relating to wnresiricied assets 14 893 T42 13,738 31
TOTAL PROVISIONS 17,087 742 17,220 £1
£ ‘000 pad | i ]
(b} Current provisions no? anticipated to be sstilead within the next teslve

months
Then Tollowseng prowesions, oyon though clessihoed as cumont. see nof oupecied o Bo
st i 10 mepf 13 moniTs
Prowesor: - smployses banefils =R L] aATT

&, 1nd 8477
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A Bagaa 2370 b 30T
Part Stephans Council
Motes to the Financial Statements
foe Bhar your onded 30 June K19
Naote 13. Provisions (continued)
[e) Descriplian of and movemants in provisions
Car prevriong
Legal Costs Aniat
B R0 Perowitadn  Aisspdualios Teasi
Mg
A iy of i 1 E25 1.6 3,425
Aamicards, jisad (Do) - (245 (5]
Livnsad armcunis frversand {25 - )
Total ot frosescns o1 ercd of panod (1] 13555 2255
il ]
Al gy of i - 9 B 1 G
Ak blewninl (TR 1.82% 1825
Tolal o provesscns o1 ored of pediod 1,825 1 800 3425

Mature and purpose of non-smployes benefit provisions

Ansel remadiation
Council has o kgl publc obbgation [o makos, restons, rehabsiiinbs and mesnstalo o cowncl g

Legal costs provision

Counci has o logal obigain 1o pay g costs a5 o rasul of & past ovord, § s probabia thal e oulilow of MseEoes
urribodying oconcemiec bonsslits wall o roguerod when logal processdings. s Snalsed

Accounting policy far provisions

Provisions ane rocognsaed whon Councl hes a present logal or conslnuctive obSgabon e a resull of poesd ewscds i
is probadis Eal ano outfiow of mesources will ba noquennd 1o saltio the obbgalicoe, &nd thi nmount haes badn ielobiy
s hmaabind

Wil haen @0 8 Humber of simelar pblgabors, e Boalhood hal @ GUlfice’ will B rodianad @ salliomsenl S
detarminad By considorng B class of cbbgalions @i a wholo, & provetion B rooognesed oven @ The Bolioed of &n
oufices wilh Fospact 40 ey Gne dism inchudisd in e Some ciass of obSgaions may Ba cmal

Proveors ang mansursd ol Sur precdn| walos of manogement's bosl estmalbs of the sxpendiuns requered 1o settio
thas pensard cblgeton ol tha roporting dafo The dscourt rale ussd o delermina s peosoend valus mlieods cunms
menfkil assasemants of i (End volud ol mondy and [hed neks Spaclic 6 I5s kabibly  TH incroass = P peosiSesn
il |6 Bhir pEsaadge Of (it & Fecophiad B dilesesl] dxfiirhe

Emplayes banalits
Shortderm obligations

Linbdftses for wages and salarkes [mcloding non-monetary benalits, annual leeve snd acoumuiatng wck s
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ke lode B reoogresed m Bh peodmaecn loe amployon bihahils. Al olhded Shodl-loim eingiloyod benalil obdgabons. an
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Orther long-lerm employes benefit obiigations
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Port Stephens Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 13. Provisions (continued)

The liability for long-service leave and annual leave that is not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service is recognised in the provision for employee
benefits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided
by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method Consideration is given to
expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with
terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

On-costs

The employee benefit provisions include the aggregate on-cost liabilities that will arise when payment of current employee
benefits is made in future periods.

These amounts include superannuation and workers compensation expenses which will be payable upon the future payment
of certain leave liabilities which employees are entitled to at the reporting period

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position if the Council does not have
an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of when the
actual settlement is expected to occur.

Provisions for close-down and restoration, and environmental clean-up costs — tips and quarries

Restoration

Close-down and restoration costs include the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure, and the removal of residual
materials and remediation of disturbed areas. Estimated close-down and restoration costs are provided for in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from the related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during the
development or during the operation phase, based on the net present value of estimated future costs

Provisions for close-down and restoration costs do not include any additional obligations which are expected lo arise
from future disturbance. The costs are estimated on the basis of a closure plan. The cost estimates are calculated
annually during the life of the operation to reflect known developments, e g updated cost estimates and revisions to
the estimated lives of operations, and are subject to formal review at regular intervals

Rehabilitation

Where rehabilitation is conducted systematically over the life of the operation, rather than at the time of closure,
provision is made for the estimated outstanding continuous rehabilitation work at each reporting date, and the cost
is charged to the Income Statement.

Provision is made for the estimated present value of the costs of environmental clean-up obligations outstanding
at the reporting date. These costs are charged to the Income Statement. Movements in the environmental clean-
up provisions are presented as an operating cost, excepl for the unwinding of the discount which Is shown as a
borrowing cost.

Remediation procedures generally commence soon after the time the damage, remediation process, and estimated
remediation costs become known, but may continue for many years depending on the nature of the disturbance and
the remediation techniques

As noted above, the ulimate cost of environmental remediation is uncertain and cost estimates can vary in response
to many factors, including changes to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new restoration techniques,
or experience at other locations. The expected timing of expenditure can also change, for example in response to
changes in quarry reserves or production rates. As a result, there could be significant adjustments to the provision
for close down and restoration and environmental clean-up, which would affect future financial results.

Other movements in the provisions for close-down and restoration costs, including those resulting from new
disturbance, updated cost estimates, changes to the estimated lives of operations, and revisions to discount rates,
are capitalised within property, plant and equipment. These cosls are then depreciated over the lives of the assels
to which they relate.
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Fort Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
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Mate 13, Provisions (ceatinued)
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Port Stephens Council
Motes to the Financial Statements

for the yeor andod 30 June 2018

Mote 14, Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors

{a) Matwre and purpose of resenes
Enfrastruciure, property, plani and squipmeni revaluastion reserve

Tha mnirasinociuie, propssity, plani and equpenend evalualon iessin & used bo eoond ncremaenls | docnemasnts of
ron-ourrerd asol valuses due o thea revaluaion

Fmir value throwgh obther comprehensive income resere [FYOCT)

Chaersges. in Tha Taer valun of fnencial essois ano baon Binough T Ter value Thioegh ofhor COmEahonsan Scoemoe
revplisalion resarse. The accumulaled changes in fae valus are ransiermed 1o profl o kes when the fnancial assel
S st it o gl osd

Avallable for aale investments revaluation reserve (2018 anly)

Chusngies o Tmar yidus ano Ucen 1o the avadeblo-for-saky rrsimants revaluabon resers, smounls @e stognessd
wy prolil el oes whisn Tha essocwviod assols oo sold or mmpaind

(b} Cormection of errors relating fo a previcus reporting penod
Hature of prior-period smar

Coumnol i sdustng Tor The dfoonon in sooourdeng polosss with rogacds. 1o coptal govermenan] grants. thael v
beon noopaniod fod wiwn consclidating fis joinl cponation. Nescnsio Arport Parinership has been pooountng for
aavirhimaen] granis. undor AASE 120 wisch regquenes grahl oo 10 ba socouhled Sor &t mcoma over this g of
B sl Counol scoounis o government granis ander AASH 1004 which nequines the grant 1o Bo sooounbsd oS
o upon reonl Unaar AASEH 10 parond onbbos amo 1o propaen oonsoldntsd Rnancsl sirlomants whech s
I BCCOumniling polcess. SChnsS Dol Sl

Thed forans ilarlfsd abova Ry Does CoerDclog By roslobng B Dalanois o B Degening of [ niles] paeod

peideaniod (1 Juby 2007 and laking The aderstmend [Feoogh Accumuiabed Surplas of (hel dile Compasabves hiave
bean changsd 1o meflect The osrection of ermoers. The enpact of eech ke s shiown @ he inbles Bokow

Changes to tha opaning Statemsnt of Financial Position at 1 July 2097

Staterment of Financial Pesition

Cwiginal Invpac Reataisd

Balance Inereadel Balance
5000 1 July, T |decroase) 1 July, 04T
Total ssssts 1,000,030 = 1,004,030
Dodormed Inoiimd - Mowcaste Arpan Painarsig 5281 (5, 05E) 233
Todnl incormn gcnnnd m Rcdvancs & 4B 5, Ci%E} 431
Todnl paynbiers amd B owings AT 5, 058} 1,310
Tatal labilities 52 318 [5,058] AT el
Aoturmutalsd Swpkis Sa7 400 5058 52 AT
Fiprmbinbacn FRosivios 300 303 330 303
Total eguity 247,112 5,058 962,70
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Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Bor tha yis ondoed 30 Sonda H07TH
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Mote 14, Accumulaled surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,

changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

Adjusiments (o the comparative figures for the year ended 30 June 2018

Statement of Financial Poaition

Ciiginal Irpact

Balance Ircreanai
£ ‘000 30 June, 2048 | e e |
Tatal assels 1048 514 =
Dhefariesd Iroomn - Nirwcaslla Afpoil Patnacchp 5 Usiy 5 CHLR)
Tednl incoems defarail i acheancs 5 58 (L F [}
Totnl payabiers amd borosings 40 (54 5, 046)
Tatal Habilities 87818 [5.049]
Aocumulaled Surphis hHBa 281 &53an
Riveabinben oS SLTE R}
Total eguity HHE 698 5,311
Income Slatement

Ciriginal Imipacl

Halanes [RTSE ST
4 000 M Jurse, J078 |decreane|
Cernls & Conlribulaons prowelod o caplnl purposirs 15 387 Pl
Telnl grdls 13,711 Faird
Tatal income fram conlinuing sparationa 137,095 {263
Total expenses from continuing operaticns 118 758 -
Operating result from discontinued operations = =
Het operating result for the year 20 138 (262]
Statesment of Camprehandive Incama

Cirkginal Impact

Ralanca Incigasni
5 000 30 Jurs, 2018 |decroane|
Wet operating result for the year 20,336 (262)
Total comprehensive ncome for the year 20,336 {263

Rsataied
Balance
30 Jure, H13

1,048 514

i

K5 01
L
S Balt
4080 418
993,748

Reatsind
Balancs
30 Jurse, PR

15, 125
13 445
136 833

116,758

0,074

Reafaied
Balance
30 Jurss, M8

0,074
.0va
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Port Stephens Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 14. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies due to adoption of new accounting standards
(not-retrospective)

During the year, Council adopted a number of new accounting standards. The impact of the adoption and associated
transition disclosures are shown below.

I'he Council has adopted AASB 9 Financial Instruments for the first time in the current year with a date of initial
adoption of 1 July 2017. As part of the adoption of AASB 9, the Council adopted consequential amendments to other
accounting standards arising from the issue of AASB 9 as follows:

— AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements requires the impairment of financial assets to be presented in a
separate line item in the income statement. In prior year, this information was presented as part of other expenses.

— AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures requires amended disclosures due to changes arising from AASE 9.
These disclosures have been provided for the current year

The key changes to Council's accounting policy and the impact on these financial statements from applying AASB
9 are described below.

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of AASB 9 have been applied retrospectively except
Council has not restated any amounts relating to classification and measurement requirements, including impairment,
which have been applied from 1 July 2018

Classification of financial assets
I'he financial assets of Council have been reclassified into one of the following categories on adoption of AASB 9,
based primarily on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics are:
— measured at amortised cost

fair value through profit or loss
— fair value through other comprehensive income — equity instruments
Measurement of equity instruments
All equity instruments of the Council are measured at fair value under AASB 9 whereas there was a cost exception
under AASB 139 that allowed certain unlisted investments to be carried al amortised cost in the absence of a reliable
measurement of fair value. Any difference in the previous carrying amount and the fair value is recognised in the

opening retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at 1 July 2018,

Equity instruments are no longer subject to impairment testing and therefore all movements on equity instruments,
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, are taken to the relevant reserve

Impairment of financial assets

The incurred loss model from AASB 139 has been replaced with an expected credit loss model in AASB 9 for assets
measured al amortised cost. This has resulted in the earlier recognition of credil loss (bad debt provisions)

Transition adjustments to equity

Council has assessed the transition to AASBE 9 and deemed any impact to be not applicable or immaterial e .g. the
increase in expected credit losses for trade receivables
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Port Stephens Council

Maotes to the Financial Statements
for the year andod 30 June 2018

Mote 14, Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,

changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)
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Part Stephans Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Tost By yonr oradesd 4 Jure: S99

Naote 14, Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and efmors (continued)

Thir @i Chdiiups & BOooURlrs pobcy e frnaciod on B Siglomsent of Feancigl Postoa @ 1 July 2017

Laripd aelnanied. Hanod Deen GhAngasd o fofest] Mo Sicominling pasty changis Vv ovepasch o ihe e Basims. s iTecied

wattar 1ty Sialament of Finanosl Position hos booen shown in B tables bolow  Thoes hos boen no impac] on Lssbilitoes
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Chamnpes io the opeming Statement of Financial Position at 1 July 2017

Statement of Financial Paddiion

O giruil Il Rautabe
Baanoe Increase! Batpnce
§ 0D 1 July, 2017 [decrease] 1 Juty, 2047
It iy 23 55 {3 5305 20 03
I negifrhin arssarls 1. 1143 3. 520 4 FiG
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Adyustments to the comparative figures for the year ended 30 Jurme 2018

Statemani of Financial Posiiion

Criginal It Restabed
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|rireirn Bcary 23 41 (3 533 1B 851
i Nyl @S 1 184 1 L70 4 Tk
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Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Bor tha i ondoed 30 Janda S07H

Mote 15. Statement of cash flows - additional infarmation
£ ‘000 18 208
{a) Reconciliation of cash assets

Total cosh and cosh pquivion] ssels J 13 48 6 B2
Balance as por the Slatament of Cash Flows 13 H o B7A

(b} Reconciliation of net operating result to cash provided from

aperating activities

Met aperating result from Income Statement 4 04 0074
Adjust fos non-cash ilema:
Doproeculion and amorisnbon 14 0a3 14,572
Bl bossa s on digiossl ol assais {2 TR} [E16)
Moo -cash cagnidnl granls and oonbribabons {10 430 (G 543
Lirs sisn (ma s raciiniimad on tnir valie fe-immisunsimeants traigh B Pl
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Ry ilisihiin dacrdmants | smpaedmints al PPAE diec] 1o P&L 1174 513
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Intorasl axp on isloras!-noe Ko iehbived by Councl {pravasusly Tar & | 5
[T 1
#/— Movement In operating assets and liabdlities and other cash tems
Dincroasn NChoaso § m neoaivabies 157 {lF
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[locrosasn{ NCranso s i ayonioras 53 |
Dipcrsasnd menoass § im oifor curront nsseks i1 B50) 11
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EAcifise [ dHsraats ) o v halaidss 185 212
ENCIaise CICTaisa) iR provisin ior armployed Banafils 13748 [15)
Incroase [dochoisn ) molher proe e i1,17) 1825
Hetl cash provided fromfused in) opsrabing acliviliss
from the Statement of Cash Flows 30 242 G OTY

{c) Mon-cash investing and financing activities

Elipd sl ind] & ibsed i rsaan s B.IE8 B4
RF 5 dsals 18042
Total non-cash investing and financing activites 10,430 6 G463

{d} Net cash flows atiributable to discontinued cperations

Thasre ane no cash Nows Bl relnbs o dsconfrusd opombors
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Part Stephans Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Tosr By yoar oradesd 34 Jure: S99

Nale 16, Interests in other entities

(a) Joint arrangements
i} Jeint operaticns

[a) Courcil s invobved in the following joint operaticns [J0s)

Irderesd in
OATHTE D
§ 00 1% e e
Mame of joint operation  Principal actvity riace of
P Burtaness
e iy Ak il Ao Diaralion Wilinrslown S50% S0
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Merwecasibe Arpoi Ply Lid
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A gl Mwcas e
Andodropods Pry Lid
[B) Couneil asaisty amplayed n tee [aint sperations
§ ood 2018
Councll's share of assets jontly owned with other partness
Cairdmfil assals 1§_MEA1
Cunenl babdilns {4 470)
hi'.r Cxiifinl Eaas '|l:- 1z 0]
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Tetal met asasis employed - Cowngil and jointly owned 38303
I Hresdales due B pnc peead oo
[o) Share of jpant oparationy &xpenditure commibmsnts
§ 0hd 2018
Capital commitments
Payabin niod laloe Man T year 5305
Total capital commitmenis 5 5305
[d] Contingent llabilities of joint operations
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Part Stephans Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Tost By yonr oredesd 40 Jure: SS9

Naote 16. Interests in other entittes (continued)

Accownting policy Tar [ainl arangpemeents
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b} Subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates not recognised
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nid prali of thiy Joink Wonbuis 5 &% 8% loloews

Fieg b
Pl Prodil 5
Pl Aussinls T k!
e
Mol Profil 552
Ml Aussids 5T h

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

315




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 2  ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 2.

Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Bor tha i ondoed 30 Janda S07H

Mote 17. Commitments
£ ‘000 018
{a) Capital commétrments (exclusive of GST)

Capital exponcibure oommibied for o the reponing dslo bul nol
ridcanesas in e fnaneond shathmsants 05 bl B

Property, plant and sguipment

Binlkdings 8775
Flant and aoguimresnd 278
Mracoais mipor & a5
[ 1370 1072
Total commitments 13,470

These expendifisres are payable as follows
WWhin tha nosl yoar 13400
Tatal payable 13470

(b} Cperating lease commitments (non-cancellable)

&, ComimdEments wnder non-cancellakle operating leases al the rponting
date, bul Aot recognised a4 labilities are payable

Wy Ahin Eha noal yoor 421
Labei Tha GO ynadr aisd redl Bar Than ] yoad s b |
Lnibar than 5 yaars JED
Total nan-cancellable operaling lease commilmants 1221

b, Hor-cancellable oparating eases include the following asssts;
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ol eSO Lrsndie dunde (hed Epsda bt
Conditiana ralaling 1o finance and cperaling leasss:

Al ey SRS eyt s Gl Soc Rl anly el Thie i) as sl
NG S0 sgrissmsnls smposs any nancinl nestncins on GCouncld rogandasg Tulune dobd olc

{c} Investment in joint cparaticns — commitments

Faril ]

&5
5
1,317
162
3, Bos

3,836

3,55

40
Bid

1,0a54

For copetad coenmilrasnls. and ofhar commimants relafng 1o nsostmanis i ol opesatcns . roler o Mobs 10 {c)
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A Baga 230 b

Part Stephans Council
Motes to the Financial Statements

foe Bhar your onded 30 June A9

Naote 18, Contingencies and other assets/Miabilities not recognised

Thix hollovnng assols and habikbos oo hol gualdy for fecognibon o e Siabemeil of Feancial Posdion, Bl i
knodadgs and disclosues = conmideresd nelervant o the users of Councl s Brancial repo

LIABILITIES MOT RECOGMNISED

1. Guaraniees
[i} Defined benefit superannuation contribution plans

Coincil s party o on industng Dofined Banefil Fiaen undor 1 Local CGurvpmmsant Saperaneuniion Schams, namsad
T Lozl CHowii TPeisTil SipsDy anniaslod Sohanr — ool 1B (Ui Schiimd b wdch s 8 colingd ool plas bl has. D
il 10 By B "rRife-arrgkoyer lund” Bl punposdas ol AASET 10 Emfrlovos Banedis for tha Blowandg roasohs

*ALsgals e nol segregaled wilhin e sub-group accondeng B (he ampicyaas of Sach SpOnsHnmng errgloyar

o Thir coflinbiion fabis N Dl B sang bof Gl SHormohng oifdkingis. Thal B, conlrubon (s, R ol
vanod for pach sponsomg omployol Boooidng 16 ho expanencs relsing 1o o smgkoyois of Bhot sponsemng
g

+  Bonaiis fod empcyors of ol Sponsormg employers oo cilormined sccordng 1o e seema Tonmuson mnd withcsl
ragang b Wi Apolisned) srnplopor

o Tha Sirsd actuadial @ssumpicns am cuirenlly umed @ espec] of [ha ampioysas. of sach Lponsoring employos

Cirniiny Thad Maciors. pboy, O8ch SponSOnmg amploys & caporsds] 10 1he acfuangd nsks assocssdid wilh cament and
lirriaisl ivEkoyiirs ol ol SHonsanng amfiiyors, i hiros Shaies i he a8 L0 led Gae &l Diaes (1o D ol
1heail Thay e nod Bome By momibers )

Damcrmio of His Fnding srampaurmmly

Pooled omployoers s roquned fo pay sinndand omployes condrbofoen s and sddilionasl lump sum condnbulons §o
than fuersd

Thir siandird employe contribations s delomminid wsing B new enbisn] mis meshod under which a contnbution
il suthoian o Turd tha Iotal benalils ored Bha wirkeg iie-emae ol & Tycel now entrant & calculabed. Thea cunen
slandard amglinser conlrnbon fmbis s

!IJ B 1.9 tenes. eemployed conlrEnbons for nan 180 Posd
- Plombers. M for 180 Pomi Mesnibars

[inesion 2 By aallanos
v O |G [omeirs enplonnds Conlndubors

i

T pdd@cannl kamip sum coninbation for aach Pooled Employsr 5 @ shiing Ol thae iodnl sdovbonal confribicns of
FAQ D milon e Ennaem Bom 1 July 2018 oo 30 Mang 2031, appeeTorsl aooidrg D sach ampiopis dham ol
IFady dsbcrunised labiblios f% & 30 Joho 2008 Thids addiongd uimp sium cortnbolashs & used S uhd e defcrd ol
S5 B0 poonosed bl

Thiz adoguacy of confnbulsons i assessed ol aach Mool actuasl yesbogstion ard monioned annusly babvoeoen
IrszEnninls

Dascnpimn of Me sxfeil b0 wivch Cooncy o Do Sadde D T e o ol Councds obdalons undcer this fivms
vt porcitions of e mul-orsnio s plar

As sinfod abewn, sach sporscing ompioya | Souncil) s exposed 1o e scuanial nsks associaled wilkh cunmen ard
T eemipiynes Of BB BIHHVEOTI] Smphayeds ard handn shiens in I pssncinlsd gaas and 0ases

Hermrnr thare & no relinf unadsr the Fund's rusl dosd for employors 1o walk sy from thes dolingd bonalil
pbigatcers. Uncir lemiled cocumsinnces. on ormployor may wilhdres from the plan when thore arg no aclva
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Port Stephens Council

Maotes to the Financial Statements
for the yoar andod 30 June 2015

Mote 18. Contingencies and other assetsliabilities not recognised (continued)

TS o fol penyrnonl of culstandesg adddonal conlfibubons Thot & 60 peowrsen Tod alocabion of ary Suiphs
wrhich iy G il & Tha dale of wilidiasal al B Counl

Thaisiis aid Ho SHcEE pdovmsns. undon tha Fusnd's st deed doabng will debils of suepius, of wind-u.

Thaa aenourd of Courcil rmployor cosiinbations o P dolined Benofil Sectaon of B Local e remon] Supsnranngglion
vl SNl PRCOq]reed &5 &N OxporrD Bl I ponr onding 30 Sune 3010 was 3661 D77 84 Tha las! valualon of Thae
F sl wits porformesd By A Fichosd BovTiokd, FLAA on 31 Decambar 2018 ieléstmg 1o the penod andng M0 Juns 2018

Thas amouhl of additional contribubord ncluded m B Iobsl employss conlrbuton sdvesod above & 5327 154 00
Councl's axpocted conbribubion 1o B plan 1or The neot annusl mpoaing petiod & S638_ 180 60

The astemibod emploves nesores Snancial posion o tho Pooled Empeorers of 30 Jurss 2010

Employer reservas only Smilllions Asset Coverage
rals 1,75

Fasl Sorioo Latslitos 1,842 100 B
bt Blarsinlvis 1 7020 100 4%

* gciadeg Tmb acorainis. End resoTes I Dol Bssols. tnd hnbildos

Thad shang of ths dohcd il s Ceoadly afintuied 10 Courdl 6 oshmalod (o Bo o B ondes of §606,000 as at 30
Jusniy KI1E

Coimals shass of Thal debtoncy canmol bo actuidlaly calculblosd &S (he Scheme 6 a mobusl Srangamen] whes
arsaads and lalullos. e pooksd oo For ol b Conineils. For this reason, no kadelity fod B dolcesncy has
Esisirih ficongivsind in Coumcil’s atcounils. Coutdl has @ possdila obhgalon 1hal imay e shoukd the Scheing fdguis
nremcciabo payTnont fo corscl thae dolossnoy

Tha ktry poomomic lonig orm assemgitions wsoed o osloulnbo tha prosoent valso of aocssed benolds aro

Irevestmont resum ' 5 5% par ancum
ey nflahon 3 5% por mnneEm
Incruase n P | & 5% por anmum I

* Pl piosmoborinl rshesias

Thaa coniritrbion feuifeenants may vary From e cumant rabes i The erverall Sul-GrouD Epssiancs i nol in ine with
B gchsanal efsumpbond in delacminmg Bho Tending plogosm, howeed, any adusimant bo e fuidng program
would b [ sama foe all sporsoning smployes. in B Pooled Emploseis giowp

{ii] Statewide Limited

Counol % & mambor of Stalowacs Mulual, & mubual pool Schaemes grosding babulity msurancs 8 local gosemmoent
Mlembnrsfp ncludes b polenhsl b shane in oihoe ths nol sssels o labdbos of the und dopoendng on s past
portommancs Councd s share of e ol asseis or Rabddes pefincts. Councl's coninbalans o this ool ar The il
ol surancg clpams. vwilhin aacih of B lond yoss

T Pbunn fok=hon e frnabatsn of Clnared sncurnfed Bul nol rogoriod o 056 (s yoad may osull m Rlund Bk
o Bsnolts, @ 0 rosull of posl ovents That Council will Bo roguenod B fund o shoco i ros pacinly

{lif] StateCover Limited

Courcl s 0 masmbssr Of Stebolovr Wutoal Limdsd ana holds o partly posd shaas m e ity
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Port Stephens Council

Maotes to the Financial Statements
for the yoar andod 30 June 2015

Mote 18, Contingencies and other assetsliabilities not recognised (continued)

StaheCover S & corpany Dioveing workss compeisahon @surancn Coneel 1o e NEYY local gorvamimenl imdusiny
ahid spetically Couhicd

Councl has & conlmgen] hatsdity o conbtibube furthor aquety n Tha event of B orosion of Bha ocompany's capdal bose
&% 0 rmsull of B company's pasl paformance and'or claims cupsnon e oF &% 0 sl of sy noersed prodontsl
P TS fom APFUA

Thairiy Figlird Segiilly CONFEHIDORS wionikd Db fdianid 80 maElmn B Coempany s Mmool of nol assals in
cerdshcg Wilh A% ool Iegieinmanls

{iw] Criher guarantees

Counoal ey proveded no offs guasanioos o Then [hoss isled abova
2. Other labilties

{11 Third party claims

Th Council i rvwvolyod fom Brva o Bmo i vanous. claims. mcconbsl o the oedinaey conrrse of borsmeess including
claims fal damagas rolaling & 45 Senaas

Coiandl balsiivirs Il i & Appopnabaly Siidansd 10 all Clasms BVoagh s NS EnncE CoVIroNE and does hol axpect
aty st habdies 0 eeenluale

{ii] Potential land scgiudsiticns due 1o planning restrictions imposed by Council
Counol has classlied a number of privalely cvnsd land pancals as ool open space of Bushiand
Az @ el whend nolifsd 0 oweilng By P vanous oames, Coundl will B reguired 10 purchesa heds land paniass

A ieporing dabe, iekabds eslmatos &8 10 e valus of any polontal kabddy (and Subaeguesnl Bnd sissl) B om sch
polorilasl aogusAceis has mol boon posstin

{iii] Legal Matisrs

Cownicd s dealng with genornl maiars o5 parl of rormal apambons. Mo spocilic deckimng s mado o haso malors
ok ol fisprersannl @ sagnificient s peobabie cotfiow af nesoieos oifsn than Thiss alnsedy proviced ol

ASFETS NOT RECOGNIZED
{1 Land under roadds

As parmilled under AASE 1051, Coundl Bas elecied not 1o bong b scoourd land undé fosds thal & owiesd o
conirolod up bo and ncluding 30508

{ii] infringement noticos fines

Finos and penally mooma, Bho rosull of Counol ssaeng einngomenl nolcos i folowed up and collociod by th
Eninngoman Frocossing Bumau

Councd's g Incognilion polay fod such mecemae 5 o aoound for § 65 eeonisn on icespd
Accoedingy, al year o, oo 5 oa pobinie as50] due o Counc tepmsdting msuad Bul unpsid infringemanl nolcas

D 1o This brralied iilodmniabon varlstdo oh B skalus, valied el durabion ol cuistandng noboos, Coundl B onabis
o detoimans o vl ol outslandrsg Sooits
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Port Stephens Council
Maotes to the Financial Statements

for the yoar andod 30 June 2015

Mote 19, Financial risk management

Risk management

Coinil's soliobos oxposo d Io & vanoby of Bnanciol dsks schedesg (1) poicn ek, (2 crodt ek, (3] uchly sk
mnd (8) inlores] il vk

Tha Courl's cvnroll rER Managemand program focuses on tha unpredictnbilly of finsncsl markoks nnd saeics (o
mirumisa pobenbal acverse aflecks o the Tnancial pesfoeranco of the Councl

Couandl $ous nel ongags i NSNS fEpessed m ningn CurTEnceErs And S Imanelomn nol sulgich i Ionsgn
CLETinicy sk

Finaranl rak mansdgamesnl & carfied oul by Councl's inandd Lechon ahidi oo, appiowsd by B Coumdl

A comiparech by calogody of lha Gafryesg amouints and e valoos of Council's inarcal pSsols and riancial kabiddoes
rocognirssd in o hnneeonl siatomasnts o prosoniod bodow

Carryimg value  Camying valus Fair value Fair valua

4 "000 P i ] ] kil ] Pl ]
Financlal assetls
Mansured &t amorised ool
Sosh nrdd cosh equvilanls 13,848 2458 13 48 o b
Racaralios 8102 8,258 8102 8,257
Ervirsbmunils

Financinl sapls s amorhined conl’ | hakd 36 2 41 243 365 28 41, 243
Bo malunty’ (2018)
Tatal financial assets 5 434 60,378 58 3% i, 37 1
Flinancial lHabibities
Fayablos 14 345 11,175 Td 345 11,475
oS/ iy BMCEs 19,558 23 .83 19,528 F3,830
Tatal financial Habilithes J3 873 35 o8 I3 873 35 006
Faai valie s Seleimierd a1 okl

= Cash aid eril eguivalens, uablik, payibleds - 40 ealmaled 1o e P Chityng valin Thi? sppcasmales maibel

s T

*  Borrowivsgs and fnanclal 2354 3t amortised oo { held-io-masuriy (D0} invesiments - are hased ppon esfmaied
e cash fiows dacmmiad by the cument mid nieess rates apphoabis bo atsEis and kabdnes with semilar na pohlss
uiilih (udted Maiet prdes ann avamlalls

Counals ohnoliid & 10 MREEmii Is (el on casiy s srersimants whds il an eeuslo bl of bty
e prasarving capial

Coundl’s Branciil Soraces sechon mandges f cash and invesiments portiolio
Counol hos an nvesimant poboy which comples with P Local Governmant Aol 1853 and Minssior's investmoenl

ol 625 Thin pobcy & negulary rsnsesd by Council mnd 05 160 snd an invvestment report i ibded belomn Counci
ot i ronifly B salhng oul I poriiobo bronkug and Bs porfonmancd as requinnd By | ocal Goyarmmssnl iegulalhons
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Part Stephans Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
fos Bhe yoar orded 30 June 2018

Nate 19, Financial risk management (ceatinued)

Ty rrsks. arssociale] willh Thes ersdirmands. Bokd ae
*  Price risk - theé riik That Bho copelsd walon of awesirmants moy Mucherds Guo o changds o markol pHoos
whanlhes o changos aro cauwsed by fscbors spocalic 1o ndmdas] imancial ssinemonts or Bl Ssues of &ho
caused iy aclors afacting semilar instnamonts. Encod i a maskot
*  interesl rabe rak - i sk el mesemends o elones] riles coukd AMecd mlunns and Soie
L LII:I.Il-I:l.lI,'" risk = [Fen resk Thas Laouncil sl meol Bso o nbibe o pery @5 chsbds &% and ahan [Py 1o dus

+  Creelit rimk — Pe rrsi ] e inyasiesant colsmarparty will nol complets R oihgadons pamculan 108 financinl
Frliumand, resuleg in & fnancial es s Coumdl — B i of 8 capilad of incor refura

Council mansges e friks {amongs! olbss imoasuies) by deversdnng s postfolo and only puichassng iimsasimsnls
wilth high credil rabngs of capalal glusisnioes

(@) Market risk — price risk and interest rate risk

Thin impact on B rasull Tor the yaar of o roasonabdy possiblo manemssnl in miegest mbes 5 shown bolow. Tha
ransonahily poscdds Mcanents wions debarmead Basad o hshoncal Movemants Snd Sdonime: Comdfaos & plads
il Bhix repadbing dabe

Il & nasurmiad Bl e chsngao in o] teles woulkd P Desen cormtant Broughoul B eporing ponod

ncresss of valusairales Diprreass of vAUSL T8
§ D00 Prodil Exquity Profit Equity
Fiah
Posssbie mpacl of a 1% movomaenl m indooos] los 474 (A%.4)
J018
Poadibda wmpacl ol & 1% mosarman] in imoras! enles 338 - (338} -
(k) Credit risk

Ciotineil s Ml Fucasbees Cxmper (1) melins and ardinl chaegens snad (i) e chaipes and 1oas

Cosiincil mipnagrs o 00l rol BESOcellid Wl s Mo ieiiik By manidnies] edlslaraing Jobl and amgikoyimg
sinrgont dobd savery photideros. Counid @S0 ancousagns Islopayers ko pay e ralas. By the due dala iheough
moonbeyiesg

Thir ciedd nsk Sor bgud funds and other shod-beim fnancial asiels & corsdeded negligiile, snoe the cosnlorpartes
nrg reptnbe Banks el high qualfy axlarmsl crodil ralngs

Tharo oo no sigraficant conoonirabors of crodd ik, wholtey Fuough caposunn o ndadunl oustomens, spoeohc
mdirhny Soolors and e regions

Thin el o peEinndeng raciivabins & moaniod 1o Iha inancs Saracns Seclon MAn&gnr on & manihly Doss and
s of Sooipinbds Colacion parfoeTranc 15 CAn sl oul

Council makes suablis proveson o doubifiel reoineablins ot rogursd and daimirs oul oiedd ches on mas] Do
Tl e

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

321




ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 NOVEMBER 2019 - ATTACHMENTS

ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 2  ANNUAL REPORT VOLUME 2.

Port Stephens Council
Motes to the Financial Statements

for the yeoar andod 30 June 2018

Mote 19, Financial risk management {continued)

Thesfix &ie o mlidial recbnvabios el have Do sulpeclsd 1o & 1é-ragolbalon of fopaymon] 16ems

Cradit rizk prafile

Recelvables — rates and annual chearges

Grodil sk cn rabes and anmunl chargies s minimisod by the abdity of Counoll 1o securn o change ovor B lnd rotaling

B B dabds - that i o nnd con b sodd bo rocovar s dobl Council & aiso abie (o changa elanast on o
rates andd anncnl chames o highe fan marke] rales wihich hrlhed sncournges. the payment of dabt

it et « 1 ywar 13 yaars ¥« B ysan = ywars
§ o aveidus Gvardue e ardun Telad
2019
CHORS TRy amound Fil- S0 THY P ]
2018
Groms carmyre el 1894 1T i 121 2400

Receivables - non-rates and annual charges

Councd apphos e smmplied appoach Tor nos-rales and annunl charges deblors. 1o provids e aopeciod crodd
lrsses presyibed by AASE B, whilh permils B usa of The lilstems s pssciad kst peosseon. To measues e aapsscisd
crodil lossos, mon-inles and anrial changos debiloes have baosn groupssd batad on shansd crodil rek chedecliislios
and B cenes pasl cun

Thas loss alowanod Drovsion as ol 30 June F071D 5 Selormmdd 08 1o06wes. The apsboiod Siocl st ooporale
forvwnnd-isoiung nformabon

Fe L 0« 38 darrs 31 « 0 darga 1 - 90 dwrya = I Sy

Do crrmtdue oerdus overdus vt ot Totad
2019

0SS CRTyeey s 5168 At 10 118 530 B 406
Enpacing boms ealo (%) O 0T% D% 038% 1 2% 2% 0 H%
ECL provision 4 - - 1 13 -]
2018

CHOAS CeTyng el L 5-ry ] iy £y ik i) Y.
Exgaiscing b o (%) BT b1t 0% 1M4% 2Xr% r24%
ECL pravisien 3 1 2 1 (1] 16

{c) Liquidity risk
Paynblos and DONMCHINgs afe bolh subject o pusdity sk - Mo risk thal esuificesant funds moy bo on hand o moot
iy obbgaars 05 ard wihon oy fal dun

Coiandl meaiigees (T 7ok By mmoneloding 45 cash fow nedgusrednadils and buscby kol and mainisresg an adoeguale
= el i

Paymaon lorms can {m exdonueslng ciicumsiances | also bo axlendod and ovondimf feclles uilsod as requinsd

Baorowmgs amn sso subjoct (o miecos] rete nak - o sk thal movomonts o mloesd rales oeeld sdversoly alfec
funding oot and Sobl soracig mguEnments. Cournosl mannges Bis rsk Prough dorsfeaton of boroweg typos
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Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Bor tha i ondoed 30 Janda S07H

Mote 19, Financial nsk management (continued)

imaluibes and mdaies) iale stuciunos. Tha frsshcn Desm piulaey fenisys alones] rale minvoimesnls G ol § d

wioldd by &divanlagecus o Mlmanoh of shegaliale pail o all of [P bah poftioho

This brmang of cash Nows presonled m tho el bolow o ol Tinanosl hatilbos relieols the sl conltraciuss!
sefthmon] dales. T bming o agpeciod cotfiows & nok oxpecied 1o De maboenolly ifesood from confrmchiod cashlknws

Thea amaiints dSciosed m the Inhig e B Endscounked condachal cash Bows (e prncpal and mlorasl) and
A Glorn e G lirses wh [P Tttt FTLY TROR dejiail Il Dol sl o Mk sl of Rrsinicaal parsfaen Qi 10 Than ot

(= B e e

Weighted
average  Subject payabie in
iFfarend o e 1-8 Todnl cuikh
N ki kL

£ 000 fate sty 51 Your Years §Years outflciws
2018
Trivido: ofhive puinEbars 0 D% Gt 13 384 td 345
Lo el schvanions 3 18% 10 474 8550 841 A rs
Total fimancial Habilities =ik ] 2B B30 &8 553 E b M2
2E
T oo /othad puyilbkis £ D B2G 11 341 A 11175
Looibeis il v A41% 4 003 19 29T 21240 25 4005
Tatal financial lakilities EFE 14 3d4 19 305 ] 36 6401
Loan sgresment bresches

il e Ml Wi mgresmant Bieachas reconded durng Ihs o

Actual

Carrying
valuas

14, 4L
15, 520
X3 873

11,175
3 831

5 (a0

Arrmad Bl 000 b XIS
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Part Stephans Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Tox Bhay poar orded 30 Juree 20499

Nate 20, Material budget vanations

Cowmcil's. canginal indncesl Budgel ed 18710 was adoplod By tho Councd on 2002018 and s urssudied

Witabo Thas Imoormio: Slabemesn| mclindod i Bis Genoidl Purposs Financial Slalermonts masd decioss Thi orgnal Budogeol
adcpited by Caouncil, s Loonl Gosssanmand Act 10503 roguares. Cowancl o revew s Snancinl bodged om @ gunfardy
barsis, 50 Whal il 5 able o mansge the vanous vanalions Dobwoon acluals vorsiss budgel thal invansbly oocur
e Giaghoul ha Wodar

THis fiobs Sk o0l The dobads of meatedial variaticns Dobwoan Codncils cfginal budisd ard 85 soludd Fisulls id
YN B peiet’ e Incormis Sialomant - oven Bhough Such wsnalons may hiras Boen adpuesied for duning sach quarkory
budgol revnarw

Mistores] vanalons reprasand hose wrancos bobsoon o onginal Budgel Bigure snd the aclus! real Thal smods
I V0% OF e

Vartwthom Kay: F » Fovounbis Dipagol vaniabon, U« Lslovoosmnbss Tacgol vasuilnm

2me 2018 2018
§ 000 Budget Aubusl — RS ——
REVEMUES
Rates and annizal charges S8.TET 6T 652 BES i% F
Llear eharges and fees 39 367 44 698 5,331 14% F

L Tasirs @ng Chawgers increased above Dudgel dud %0 the recspd of nddbonal work iom HMS undar o Slase
Honids mamlorance puogssT

Inberest amd inve-sEment neve mis 1,363 1451 3] ™ F
Cither revenues 6501 G 506 5 % F
Cparating grants and conbributions 19,768 11,918 180 1'% F
Capltal grants and contributions 5811 21,312 15,5001 HT% F

Cioumcil widrd gilid & Lagrelacaind aimsunl of flfaitociuns Indin divilahitesnl subdvitinns. which axtaddod [ ohginal
hidgotod mmourd

Mot pains Trom disposal of sasels 260 218 ] 11% F

Council wes abso o gonsrate haghaor Then aepectod disposal gains o5 o osull of propedty developmssnls

Falr value Imeremsent &n inveatmen
3602 3 52 = [
progeity ;
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Mote 21. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
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Naote 21. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
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Mote 21. Fair Value Measurement (continued)
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Port Stephens Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 21. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

(5) Highest and best use

All of Council's non-financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use.
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Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements

Bor the v ondoed 30 Jona A0159

Maote 25, Financial result and financial pesition by fund
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Port Stephens Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
Bor tha i ondoed 30 Janda S07H

Mote 26. Statement of perdformance measures — consolidated results
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drua Eapeat 2300 b 30
Port Stephens Council
Motes to the Financial Statements
Bor ths yoas ondoed 30 Jonoe 2014
Maote 27, Council information and contact details
Principal place of business
114 Adolarle Shises]
FHayrmorad | orrain NHeYY A0
Conlact detalls
Meailirg Address Cpening hours
Pl Box 43 H 0am - % Olpm
Havnond Tanncs NESW 7374 Mordny 1o Fradng
Telephona: 07 4588 (045 Indermel; W pOrisiopnens rew Qo A
Facabmile: 0 45508 0430 Eremil GOl pOrElapi s, friw done A1
OHficers Elected mambers
General Manager Mary or
W Wi Rt Pl
Responsibde Accounting Officer Councillars

i Jobn Ml
of Ghin Durfley
¢ Jmirmas Abbol

Turmy Haroll

i

i

Public Officer [
'||-|::, Wy R IE L Chins [oadumn
C

Adilora [
The Audit Offcn ol Mow Souh Walos i
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My opinion does not provide assurance:

. that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

. on the Original Budget information included in the Income Statement, Statement of Cash Flows,

and Note 20 Material budget variations

. on the Special Schedules. A separate opinion has been provided on Special
Schedule - Permissible income for general rates

about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial
statements on any website where they may be presented

about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements

Furgan Yousuf

Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales

29 October 2019
SYDNEY
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Dar Cr Paleriasd

Report on the Conduct of the Audit
for the year ended 30 June 2018
Port Stephens Council

1 hawwo prudiload they ronasra] purpasa nancial skalomants (GGHE 5] of tha Porl Slephens Council {ho
Council) kor ha yosr encod 30 June 2010 85 reguined By sechon 415 of (s Local Governiar Acl
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INCOME STATEMENT

Operating result

2019 2018 Variance
im $m %

Rates and annual charges . ;
. 577 56.1 m-
Grants and =
contributions evenua 3.2 2.7
Oparating result .
Met cparating result
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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Port Stephens Council

SPECIAL SCHEDULES
for the year ended 30 June 2019
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Other Information

The Council’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2019 includes other information in addition to
the Schedule and my Independent Auditor's Report thereon. The Councillors are responsible for the
other information. At the date of this Independent Auditor's Report, the other information | have
received comprise the general purpose financial statements and Special Schedule ‘Report on
infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2019".

My opinion on the Schedule does not cover the other information. Accordingly, | do not express any
form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local
Government Act 1993, | have separately expressed an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements.

In connection with my audit of the Schedule, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Schedule or my
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude there is a material misstatement of the other
information, | must report that fact.

| have nothing to report in this regard

The Councillors’ Responsibilities for the Schedule

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation of the Schedule in accordance with the LG Code
The Councillors’ responsibility also includes such internal control as the Councillors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the Schedule that is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Schedule, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Council's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting, unless it is not appropriate to do so.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule

My objeclives are to

. obtain reasonable assurance whether the Schedule as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

. issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
based on the Schedule

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the Schedule is located at the Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board website at: www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar8.pdf. The
description forms part of my auditor's report
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Report on Infrastructure Assets - Values [continued)

Fort Stephens Council
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Port Stephens Council

Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
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